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Appeal from the Justice Court, Henderson Township
Appellant’s Motion to Reconsider, filed 7/22/20

Appellant’s Opening Brief, filed 4/23/20

Appellant’s Reply to Respondent’s Opposition to Motion to
Reconsider, filed 9/18/20.

Appellant’s Response to State’s Motion for Clarification and a
Stay of the Proceedings Following the filing of the Order, filed
11/25/20.

Court Minutes from March 26, 2020

Court Minutes from June 11, 2020

Court Minutes from June 18, 2020

Court Minutes from July 9, 2020

Court Minutes from July 16, 2020

Court Minutes from August 24, 2020

Court Minutes from August 27, 2020

Court Minutes from November 9, 2020

Court Minutes from December 3, 2020

Court Minutes from December 15, 2020

Motion for Order Extending Time, filed 3/13/20.
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Vol. 2, 246-247

Vol. 1,113
Vol. 2, 245

Vol. 2, 272-274
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Vol. 1, 167-173

Vol. 1, 239-240

Vol. 2, 241-244
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Notice of Change of Hearing to December 3, 2020
Filed 11/17/20.

Notice of Hearing, filed 3/16/20.
Notice of Hearing for November 30, 2020, filed 11/17/20.

Order Denying Respondent’s Motion for Clarification and Stay
of Proceedings, filed 1/14/21.

Order: Granting Appellant’s Motion to Reconsider, Granting
the Appeal, Reversing Conviction and Remanding to the Lower
Court, filed 11/18/20.

Order Scheduling Hearing and Briefing Schedule, filed 2/14/20.

Order to Stay Requirements Pending Final Decision,
filed 7/17/20.

Reporter’s Transcript of 9/16/19 (Proceedings) filed 3/16/20.
Reporter’s Transcript of 6/11/20 (Argument) filed 6/18/20.
State’s Notice of Motion and Motion for Clarification and a
Stay of the Proceedings Following the Filing of the Order, filed
11/17/20.

Continued State’s Notice of Motion and Motion for
Clarification and a Stay of the Proceedings Following the Filing
of the Order, filed 11/17/20.

State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Motion to Reconsider, filed
8/7/20

State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Motion to Reconsider, filed
9/14/20.

State’s Response to Defendant’s Opening Brief, filed 5/13/20.
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify and affirm that this document was filed electronically with the
Nevada Supreme Court on January 21, 2021. Electronic Service of the foregoing

document shall be made in accordance with the Master Service List as follows:

AARON D. FORD
Nevada Attorney General

CRAIG MUELLER, ESQ.
Counsel for Real Party In Interest

ALEXANDER CHEN
Chief Deputy District Attorney

I further certify that I served a copy of this document by electronic emailing

a true and correct copy thereof to:

JUDGE RICHARD SCOTTI
Email: HowardM@clarkcountycourts.us

BY /sl E. Davis
Employee, District Attorney’s Office

AC//ed
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Electronically Filed

02/11/2020

Pien i Sotain

APLC CLERK OF THE COURT
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA C-20-346852-A
II
STATE OF NEVADA, ’ 03-12-2020
Plaintiff, | District Court Case # In Chambers
|
Vs~ | Justice Court Case # 18CRH002333-0000
JENNIFER PLUMLEE Department #
Defendant,
- J
APPEAL FROM THE JUSTICE COURT, HENDERSON TOWNSHIP
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
Appellant Respondent
CRAIG A. MUELLER, ESQ. District Attormey
723 SOUTH SEVENTH STREET 200 Lewis Avenue
LAS VEGAS, NV 89101 Las Vegas, NV 89115
Attorney for Defendant Attorney for Plaintiff
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Justice Court, Henderson Townshlp

CLARK COUNTY, NEVABA. . 2457 ,%{ Ti;;'f {CE
JENNIFER PLUMLEE, e EEB t1 P EAS
Appellant, District Court Case # i L)
vs- Justice Court Case # 18CRE002333-0000
STATE OF NEVADA, Department # 2
Respondent, '

APPEAL FROM JUSTICE COURT, HENDERSON TOWNSHIP
I hereby certify the above and foregoing to be a full, true and correct copy of the

proceedings as the same appear in the above entitled matter.

WITNESS MY HAND this day of F’eﬁﬂdﬂ'ﬂy , goal

e, \

‘ \
xq»{,@néefoprmgé@ e
/’{ HENDERSON.1GWNSHIP
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CMMUHLEARiNiCU%SSOCIAmS’ INC.

G LLER, ESQ. i
Nevada Bar No.4703 w19 P 218
723 Sonth Seventh Street

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 .
(702) 382-1200 . o bod
Attorney for Defendant

JENNIFER PLUMLEE

JUSTICE COURT, HENDERSON TOWNSHIP

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA, \‘:meggg
Plaintiff, Case No. 18MH0263X
V8. Dept No. 2
JENNIFER PLUMLEE, NOTICE OF APPEAL
Defendant.

PURSUANT TO NRS 266.595, notice is hereby given that JENNIFER PLUMLEE, the
Defendant above named, hereby appeals to the Eighth Judicial District Court of Las Vegas, Clark
County, State of Nevada from the Final Judgment entered in this action on the 19™ day of
November, 2019.

DATED this 19® day of November 2019.

MUELLER & ASSOCIATES, INC.

" Craig Wucllen

CRAIG A. MUELLER, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No, 4703
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RECEIPT OF COPY

RECEIPT OF COPY of the foregoing NOTICE OF APPEAL is hereby acknowledged

Ah
this_ 17 day of November 2019.

ay ) el ek /.

DISTRICT ATTORNEY’S OFFICE
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JUSTICE COURT. HENDERSON TOWNSHIP
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
DOCKET SHEET...CRIMINAL

CASE # 18CRMH002333-0000 18MHO263X STEPHEN L GEORGE - DEPT # 2
State PLUMLEE, JENNIFER, aka GRAVES, JENNIFER LYNN 1410679 (SCOPE)
Charge(s) FAIL TO PROPERLY MAINTAIN TRAVEL LANE OR IMPROPER LANE BENCH TRIAL: CONVICTION
CHANGE
DUI ALCOHOL AND/OR CONT/PROHIBIT SUB, ABOVE THE LEGAL BENCH TRIAL: CONVICTION
LIMIT, 2ND

LINKED CASES FOR: 18CRH002333-0000

CASE # STATUS EVENT DATE EVENT DESCRIPTION

18PCH001696-0000 CRIMINAL COMPLAINT FIL KO FUTURE EVENTS 72 HOUR HEARING (VIDEO)} HND

DATE, JUDGE, OFFICERS PROCEEDINGS
OF COURT PRESENT APPEARANCES - HEARING EVENTS

February 11, 2020 PPEAL FROM JUSTICE COURT, HENDERSON
OWNSHIP SIGNED AND FILED

February 10, 2020 WPPEAL FROM JUSTICE COURT, HENDERSON
TOWNSHIP FORWARDED TO CHAMBERS

REPORTER'S TRANSCRIPT OF SENTENCING FILED
REPORTER'S TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS OF
DUl BENCH TRIAL FILED ]

21112020 2:56 pm Minutes - Criminal Page 1 of 10
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JUSTICE COURT. HENDERSON TOWNSHIP
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
DOCKET SHEET...CRIMINAL

CASE # 18CRH002333-0000 18MH0283X STEPHEN L GEORGE - DEPT #2
State PLUMLEE, JENNIFER, aka GRAVES, JENNIFER LYNN 1410679 (SCOPE)
DATE, JUDGE, OFFICERS PROCEEDINGS
~ OF COURT PRESENT APPEARANCES - HEARING EVENTS
November 19, 2019 ENTENCING HEARING HELD STATUS CHECK HND
S.L. GEORGE. JP The following event: SENTENCING HEARING HND Date: February 19, 2020
M. SCHEIBLE. DDA cheduled for 11/19/2019 at 11:00 am has been resulted | Time: 9:00 am
| JMAYNARD 'ESQ. FOR s follows: Location: DEPARTMENT 2
JC':IAE%%LEE:(ESQ' Resuit: SENTENCING HEARING HELD
L. BRENéKE CR udge: GEORGE, STEPHEN L Location:
’ ’ DEPARTMENT 2
8 |
2/11/2020 2:56 pm Minutes - Criminal Page 2 of 10
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CASE#
State

JUSTICE COURT. HENDERSON TOWNSHIP
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
DOCKET SHEET...CRIMINAL

18CRH002333-0000 18MHO263X

STEPHEN L GEORGE - DEPT #2

PLUMLEE, JENNIFER, aka GRAVES, JENNIFER LYNN

DATE, JUDGE, OFFICERS PROCEEDINGS
OF COURT PRESENT APPEARANCES - HEARING

1410679 (SCOPE])

EVENTS

NSTALL A BREATH IGNITION INTERLOCK DEVICE

NITIATED. LETTER FROM DEFENDANT'S

TME WHICH ARE MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS SET

>OURT FINDS DEFENDANT GUILTY OF
VISDEMEANOR "DRIVING UNDER THE INFLUENCE -

VIAINTAIN TRAVEL LANE"

NSTALL BREATH IGNITION INTERLOCK DEVICE
“OR AMINIMUM OF 6 MONTHS

ENTENCING HEARING:

EFENDANT PRESENT

TATEMENT BY STATE. STATE REQUESTING THAT
EFENDANT BE ADJUDICATED GUILTY OF
ISDEMEANCR "DUI 2ND OFFENSE" WITH THE
OLLOWING REQUIREMENTS:

1000 FINE OR 100 HOURS OF COMMUNITY
ERVICE IN LIEU OF FINE

ERVE 10 DAYS AT CLARK COUNTY JAIL

R SCRAM DEVICE FOR A MINIMUM OF 6 MONTHS,
R PENDENCY OF CASE

TAY OUT OF TROUBLE FOR A MINIMUM OF 6
ONTHS - ANY ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION WILL
ONSTITUTE A STAY OUT CF TROUBLE VICLATION
ONTINUE WITH TREATMENT

OMPLETE VICTIM IMPACT PANEL AND CORONERS
ROGRAM

TATEMENT MADE BY DEFENSE ~ DEFENDANT HAS
OMPLETED MODERATE OFFENDERS PROGRAM

N OTHER CASE, AFTER NEW CHARGES WERE

OUNSELOR PRESENTED TO COURT. DEFENDANT
TTENDING ALCOHOLICS ANONYMOUS MEETINGS
TIMES PER WEEK. DEFENSE'S REQUEST TO
AIVE FINE AND MANDATORY JAIL TIME, FOR
EFENDANT TO BE SENTENCED TO MODERATE
FFENDERS PROGRAM TO RUN CONCURRENT
ITH OTHER CASE AND TO ACCEPT COMPLETION
F MODERATE OFFENDERS PROGRAM FROM
RIOR CASE AS COMPLETION OF REQUIREMENTS
N THIS CASE. COURT DOES NOT HAVE
ESCRETION TO WAIVE FINE OR MANDATORY. JAIL

Y STATUTE. BENCH CONFERENCE.
ENDERSON MUNICIPAL COURT CONVICTION
ECORDS PRESENTED TO COURT BY STATE.

ND OFFENSE" AND MISDEMEANCR "FAIL TO
EFENDANT SENTENCED TO THE FOLLOWING

EQUIREMENTS:
O PAY $1,058 FINE

211172020

2:56 pm

Minutes - Criminal

Page 3 of 10
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JUSTICE COURT. HENDERSON TOWNSHIP
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
DOCKET SHEET...CRIMINAL

CASE#  18CRH002333-0000 18MHO0263X STEPHEN L GEORGE - DEPT # 2
State PLUMLEE, JENNIFER, aka GRAVES, JENNIFER LYNN 1410679 (SCOPE)
DATE, JUDGE, OFFICERS PROCEEDINGS

OF COURT PRESENT APPEARANCES - HEARING EVENTS

TO ABSTAIN FROM ALL ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION
TO CONTINUE ATTENDING ALCOHOLICS
ANONYMOUS MEETINGS 2 TIMES PER WEEK FOR A
MINIMUM OF 6 MONTHS
COMPLETE VICTIM IMPACT PANEL
COMPLETE CORONERS PROGRAM
STAY OUT OF TROUBLE FOR A MINIMUM OF 6
MONTHS
10 DAYS CLARK COUNTY JAIL WITH 6 DAYS CREDIT
TIME SERVED - 4 DAYS REMAINING
DEFENDANT TO SERVE ON WEEKENDS OR DAYS
OFF - TO BE COMPLETED WITHIN THE NEXT 8
MONTHS
150 DAYS CLARK COUNTY JAIL - SUSPENDED
ORDER FOR BREATH INGNITION INTERLOCK
DEVICE SIGNED AND FILED IN OPEN COURT, COPY
PROVIDED TO DEFENDANT AND COPY MAILED TO
DMV
CONTINUED FOR STATUS OF APPEAL AND
COMPLETION OF REQUIREMENTS
SURETY BOND EXONERATED
SET FOR COURT APPEARANCE
Event: STATUS CHEGK HND
t PDate: 02/19/2020 Time: 9:00 am

udge: GEORGE, STEPHEN L Location:
DEPARTMENT 2
NOTICE OF APPEAL FILED BY C. MUELLER, ESQ. -
FORWARDED TO CHAMBERS

214412020 2:56 pm Minutes - Criminal Page 4 of 10
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JUSTICE COURT., HENDERSON TOWNSHIP
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
DOCKET SHEET...CRIMINAL

CASE#  18CRH002333-0000 18MH0283X STEPHEN L GEORGE - DEPT #2
State PLUMLEE, JENNIFER, aka GRAVES, JENNIFER LYNN B 1410679 (SCOPE)
DATE, JUDGE, OFFICERS PROCEEDINGS

OF COURT PRESENT APPEARANGES - HEARING EVENTS

ON JURY TRIAL:

SEFENDANT PRESENT

JEFENSE'S RENEWED MOTION TO DISMISS.
BJECTION 8Y STATE. FURTHER ARGUMENT BY
JEFENSE.

TATE HAS COMPLIED WITH THE STATUTORY
EQUIREMENTS. DEFENSE MOTION DENIED.
TATE READY. DEFENSE READY.

XLUSIONARY RULE INVOKED.

PENING STATEMENT BY STATE.

OSEPH RISCO CALLED AS WITNESS BY STATE,
WORN IN BY CLERK, DIRECT. CROSS.

O REDIRECT OR RECROSS. WITNESS EXCUSED.

Qctober 07, 2019

S.L. GEORGE, JP
M. SCHIEBLE, DDA
C. MUELLER, ESQ,
J. NESCI, CLK

D. TRVAGLIONE, CR

ITNESS ID'D DEFENDANT. STATE'S EXHEB!TS 1
D 2 MARKED,

EFENSE MOTION FOR MISTRIAL. MOTION DENIED.
TATE'S EXHIBIT 1 OFFERED. OBJECTION BY
EFENSE. EXHIBIT 1 ADMITTED.

TATE'S EXHIBIT 2 OFFERED. OBJECTION BY
EFENSE. RULING WITHHELD.

ROSS. NO REDIRECT OR RECROSS. WITNESS
CUSED.

OTION BY DEFENSE TO SUPPRESS TROOPER
UNA'S TESTIMONY. OBJECTION BY STATE.
URTHER ARGUMENT BY DEFENSE AND STATE.
OTION DENIED.

TATE'S RENEWED MOTION TO ADMIT EXHIBIT 2.
ULING WITHHELD.

ARBY LANZ CALLED AS WITNESS BY STATE.
WORK IN BY CLERK. DIRECT.

TATE'S EXHIBITS 3 AND 4 MARKED. STATE'S
ENEWED MOTION TO ADMIT EXHIBIT 2. RULING
ITHHELD.

ROSS. STATE'S RENEWED MOTION TO ADMIT
XHIBIT 2, AND TO ADMIT EXHIBITS 3 AND 4.
BJECTION BY DEFENSE AS TO ADMITTING
XHIBIT 2.

ENCH CONFERENCE. STATE'S EXHIBITS 2-4
DMITTED. REDIRECT. BENCH CONFERENCE. NO
ECROSS.

ITNESS EXCUSED AT THIS TIME. STATE RESTS.
PENING STATEMENT BY DEFENSE.

ARBY LANZ RECALLED AS AWITNESS BY
EFENSE. WITNESS REMAINS UNDER OATH.

211172020 2:56 pm Minutes ~ Criminal Page 5 of 10
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JUSTICE COURT. HENDERSON TOWNSHIP
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
DOCKET SHEET...CRIMINAL

CASE#  18CRH002333-0000 18MH0263X STEPHEN L GEORGE - DEPT #2
State PLUMLEE, JENNIFER, aka GRAVES, JENNIFER LYNN 1410879 (SCOPE)
DATE, JUDGE, OFFICERS PROCEEDINGS
OF COURT PRESENT APPEARANCES - HEARING EVENTS
IRECT. NO CROSS. WITNESS EXCUSED. DEFENSE ‘
ESTS.

UMMARIZATION BY STATE. ARGUMENT BY
EFENSE. BENCH CONFERENCE. STATE NOT
ROCEEDING ON "PER SE IMPAIRMENT" TO

“LARIFY RECORD.

TATE HAS MET ITS BURDEN OF PROOF.

AATTER CONTINUED FOR FORMAL ADJUDICATION
ND SENTENCING.

DEFENDANT TO COMPLETE AN UPDATED ALCOHOL

EVALUATION PRIOR TO SENTENCING. NO ALCOHOL

CONSUMPTION ORDER REMAINS IN EFFECT.

SURETY BOND CONTINUES

SET FOR COURT APPEARANCE

Event: SENTENCING HEARING HND

Date: 11/19/2018  Time: 11:00 am

Uudge: GEORGE, STEPHEN L Location:

DEPARTMENT 2

October 03, 2019 MEMORANDUM OF LAW IN SUPPORT OF MOTION

TO DISMISS FILED
COPIES GIVEN TO RUNNER AT COUNTER

211172020 2:56 pm Minutes - Criminal Page 6 of 10
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JUSTICE COURT. HENDERSON TOWNSHIP
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
DOCKET SHEET...CRIMINAL

CASE#  18CRH002333-0000 18MH0263X STEPHEN 1. GEORGE - DEPT #2
State PLUMLEE, JENNIFER, aka GRAVES, JENNIFER LYNN 1410679 (SCOPE)

DATE, JUDGE, OFFICERS PROCEEDINGS
OF COURT PRESENT APPEARANCES - HEARING EVENTS

| September 16, 2019 ON JURY TRIAL:
EFENDANT PRESENT
M SCHERE Don OTION BY DEFENSE TO INVOKE EXCLUSIONARY
¢ MUELLER. ESQ ULE, RENEWED MOTION TO DISMISS COMPLAINT
J NESCI, CLK ND REQUEST TO QUESTION TROOPER UNDER
5. MOINTOSH. CR ATH PRIOR TO PROCEEDING WITH TRIAL,
! RGUMENT BY STATE AND STATE'S MOTION TO
DENY DEFENSE COUNSEL'S RENEWED MOTION TO
ISMISS COMPLAINT,
ENCH CONFERENCE. EVIDENTIARY HEARING TO
ROCEED.
VIDENTIARY HEARING:
ROOPER GREG LUNA CALLED BY DEFENSE.
WORN IN BY CLERK, DIRECT BY DEFENSE.
ROSS BY STATE. STATE'S EXHIBITS 1 AND 2
ARKED AND OFFERED. OBJECTION BY DEFENSE
OUNSEL AS TO ADMITTING STATE'S EXHIBIT #2.
EQUEST BY STATE FOR ADDITIONAL TIME TO
UBPOENA ADDITIONAL WITNESSES. DEFENSE
QUNSEL'S RENEWED MOTION TO DISMISS
OMPLAINT. FURTHER ARGUMENT BY STATE AND
EFENSE. STATE'S EXHIBITS 1 AND 2 NOT
DMITTED. NO RE-DIRECT OR RE-CROSS. COURT
PHOLDS ITS PREVIOUS RULING REGARDING
ERVICE. NON JURY TRIAL DATE RESET.
ROOPER LUNA EXCUSED. BENCH CONFERENCE.
ARTIES MAY PREPARE AND SUBMIT BRIEFS
RIOR TO TRIAL DATE.
EFENSE COUNSEL'S REQUEST FOR
RANSCRIPTS OF JULY 17TH PROCEEDINGS AND
RANSCRIPTS OF TODAY'S PROCEEDINGS.
DEFENSE COUNSEL PROVIDED A COPY OF JULY
17TH TRANSCRIFPTS FROM COURT'S FILE. NO
CBJECTION BY STATE. .
COURT IMPOSES A CONDITION OF NO ALCOHOL
CONSUMPTION BY DEFENDANT.
SURETY BOND CONTINUES

SET FOR COURT APPEARANCE
Event: NONJURY TRIAL HND

Date:; 10/07/2019  Time: 8:30 am

ludge: GEORGE, STEPHEN L Location:
DEPARTMENT 2

esult: CRIMINAL HEARING HELD

2011172020 2:56 pm Minutes - Criminal Page 7 of 10
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JUSTICE COURT. HENDERSON TOWNSHIP
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
DOCKET SHEET...CRIMINAL

CASE#  18CRH002333-0000 18MH0263X . STEPHEN L GEORGE - DEPT #2
State PLUMLEE, JENNIFER, aka GRAVES, JENNIFER LYNN B 1410678 (SCOPE)

DATE, JUDGE, OFFICERS PROCEEDINGS

_OF COURT PRESENT APPEARANCES - HEARING EVENTS
July 24, 2019 EPORTERS TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS
FILED

" July 17,2019 NON JURY TRIAL:
DEFENDANT PRESENT
Do ORaata 8. SCHIFALACQUA SWORN IN BY CLERK. ORAL
' " |BUSTOS MOTION TO CONTINUE NON JURY TRIAL.

e B ERD DBJECTION BY DEFENSE. FURTHER ARGUMENT BY
I NESCIGLK . [STATE AND DEFENSE. COURT FINDS THAT THE

STATE HAS MET ITS BURDEN OF PROOF. STATE'S
MOTION TO CONTINUE GRANTED.

NON JURY TRIAL DATE RESET

JEFENSE REQUESTS TRANSCRIPTS OF TODAY'S
PROCEEDINGS

SURETY BOND CONTINUES

SET FOR COURT APPEARANCE

-vent: NONJURY TRIAL HND

Date: 09/16/2019  Time: 9:30 am

udge: GEORGE, STEPHEN L Location:

L. BRENSKE, CR

DEPARTMENT 2
Result: CRIMINAL HEARING HELD
May 13, 2019 STATUS CHECK:
DEFENDANT PRESENT
e NON JURY TRIAL DATE SET
cC. MUEL[:ER. ESQ SURETY BOND CONTINUES
J. NESCI, CLK SET FOR COURT APPEARANCE
L. BRENSKE, CR Fvent: NONJURY TRIAL HND
Date: 07/17/2018  Time: 8:30 am
Judge: GEORGE, STEPHEN L Location:
DEPARTMENT 2
April 25,2019 DEMAND FOR EXPERT WITNESSES FILED
S.L. GEORGE, JP [COPIES GIVEN TO RUNNER AT FRONT COUNTER
B. SCHIFALACQUA, STATUS CHECK:
DDA DEFENDANT NOT PRESENT
S. REYES, ESQ FOR DEMAND FOR EXPERT WITNESS FILED
C. MUELLER, ESQ CONTINUED FOR POSSIBLE NEGOTIATIONS
J. NESCI, CLK SURETY BOND CONTINUES

D. TAVAGLIONE, CR SET FOR COURT APPEARANCE

Event: COURT APPEARANCE HND

Date: 05/13/2018 Time: 8:00 am

ludge; GEORGE, STEPHEN L. Location:
DEPARTMENT 2

21112020 2:56 pm Minutes - Criminal Page 8 of 10
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JUSTICE COURT. HENDERSON TOWNSHIP

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
DOCKET SHEET...CRIMINAL

CASE#  18CRH002333-0000 18MHO263X STEPHEN L GEORGE - DEPT#2
State PLUMLEE, JENNIFER, aka GRAVES, JENNIFER LYNN 1410679 (SCOPE)
DATE, JUDGE, OFFICERS PROCEEDINGS
OF COURT PRESENT APPEARANCES - HEARING EVENTS
April 10, 2018 ETATUS CHECK:
EFENDANT NOT PRESENT
gLSg]EI?ES\EdéE A CONTINUED FOR COUNSEL TO BE PRESENT AND
DDA * POSSIBLE NEGOTIATIONS
C. MUELLER, ESQ SET FOR COURT APPEARANCE
J. NESC), CLK Fvent: COURT APPEARANCE HND
S. GRAHAM, CR Date: 04/25/2019 Time: 9:00 am
Dudge: GEORGE, STEPHEN L Location:
DEPARTMENT 2
March 28, 2019 NON JURY TRIAL:
DEFENDANT NOT PRESENT
ggg&?g&%&ﬁ A PMENDED CRIMINAL COMPLAINT FILED IN OPEN
; ' [COURT
DDA
[CONTINUED FOR POSSIBLE NEGOTIATIONS
g QBIED&EERS %ggR SURETY BOND CONTINUES
J. NESCI, CLK SET FOR COURT APPEARANCE
L. BRENSKE, CR Fvent COURT APPEARANGCE HND
[Date: 04/10/2019  Time: 9:00 am
ludge: GEORGE, STEPHEN L Location:
DEPARTMENT 2
February 05, 2019 SET FOR COURT APPEARANCE
Event: NONJURY TRIAL HND
gl‘sgﬁgzi%éﬁ A Date: 03/26/2019  Time: 9:30 am
DDA ' udge: GEORGE, STEPHEN L Location:
A.EDWARDS, CLC ~[PEPARTMENT 2
C. HINDS, ESQ FOR NITIAL ARRAIGNMENT
C. MUELLER, ESQ DEFENDANT NOT PRESENT
J. NESCI. CLK DEFENDANT ADVISED, WAIVED READING OF THE
L. BRENSKE, CR COMPLAINT
DEFENDANT ADVISED OF HIS RIGHT TO SECURE
ODWN COUNSEL, WAIVED
ENTERS PLEA OF NOT GUILTY
NON JURY TRIAL DATE SET
SURETY BOND CONTINUES
December 12, 2018 SET FOR COURT APPEARANCE
Fvent: ARRAIGNMENT SUMMONS
Date: 02/05/2019 Time: 8:00 am
Judge: GEORGE, STEPHEN L  Location:
DEPARTMENT 2
Result: ARRAIGNMENT HEARING HELD
December 10, 2018 COMPLAINT FILED
SUMMONS ISSUED FILED AND MAILED
21112020 2:56 pm Minutes - Criminal Page 9 of 10
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JUSTICE COURT. HENDERSON TOWNSHIP
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
DOCKET SHEET...CRIMINAL

CASE#  18CRH002333-0000  18MH0263X STEPHEN L GEORGE - DEPT#2
State PLUMLEE, JENNIFER, aka GRAVES, JENNIFER LYNN 1410679 (SCOPE)
DATE, JUDGE, OFFICERS PROCEEDINGS

OF COURT PRESENT APPEARANCES - HEARING EVENTS

September 13, 2018 BAIL POSTED

Bond Type: SURETY BOND

Bond Amount: $5,600

Bond/Pwr No.: FCS810-1909122

Bonding Co.: GOODFELLAS BAIL BONDS

Charge #1: DUI ALCOHOL AND/OR CONT/PROHIBIT

S5UB, ABOVE THE LEGAL LIMIT, 2ND

September 14, 2018 FIRST APPEARANCE HELD

BAIL SET: $5,600 CASH OR SURETY

l'he following event: 72 HOUR HEARING (VIDEO) HND
heduled for 09/11/2018 at 8:30 am has been resulted

b5 follows:

Result: FIRST APPEARANCE HELD
Hudge: BATEMAN, SAM  Location: DEPARTMENT 1
L .. PROBABLE CAUSE DETERMINATION
September 10, 2018 SET FOR FIRST APPEARANCE
Event: 72 HOUR HEARING (VIDEO) HND

Date: 09/11/2018 Time: 8:30 am
udge: BATEMAN, SAM  Location: DEPARTMENT 1

Result: FIRST APPEARANCE HELD

2111/2020 2:56 pm Minutes - Criminal Page 10 of 10
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JUSTICE COURT, HENDERSON TOWNS(}?ﬁw 2y e
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA % %

THE STATE OF NEVADA, »
Plaintift,
CASENO: 18MH0263X
-VS_

DEPT NO:

JENNIFER LYNN PLUMLEE, aka,

Jennifer Lynn Graves #1410679, AMENDED

_ Defendant. | CRIMINAL COMPLAINT

The Defendant above named having committed the crimes of DRIVING UNDER THE
INFLUENCE (Misdemeanor - NRS 484C.110, 484C.400, 484C.105 - NOC 53902) and
FAILURE TO MAINTAIN TRAVEL LANE (Misdemeanor - NRS 484B.223 - NOC 53788),
in the manner following, to wit: That the said Defendant, on or about the 10th day of
September, 2018, at and within the County of Clark, State of Nevada,

COUNT 1 - DRIVING UNDER THE INFLUENCE

did then and there willfully and unlawfully drive and/or be in actual physical control of
a motor vehicle on a highway or on premises to which the public has access at Clark County
215 and State Route 146, Henderson, Clark County, Nevada, Defendant being responsible in
one or more of the following ways and/or under one or more of the following theories, to wit:
1) while under the influence of intoxicating liquor to any degree, however slight, which
rendered her incapable of safely driving and/or exercising actual physical control of a vehicle,
2) while she had a concentration of alcohol of .08 or more in her breath, and/or 3) when she
was found by measurement within two (2) hours after driving and/or being in actual physical
control of a vehicle to have a concentration of alcohol of .08 or more in her breath, Defendant
having previously been convicted of Driving Under The Influence within seven (7) years
immediately preceding the date of the principal offense or after the principal offense charged
herein, to wit:

7
i

WA2018\201 SMHO2\63\ SMHU263-ACOM-(PLUMLEE__ JENNIFER)-001,DQCX
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Date of Offense: All%l ist 5, 2017
Conviction: January 18, 2018, Case No. 17CR009539,
Henderson Municipal Court, Henderson Township, Clark County, State of Nevada,

COUNT 2 - FAILURE TO MAINTAIN TRAVEL LANE

did then and there willfully and unlawfully fail to drive a motor vehicle as nearly as
practicable entirely within a single lane while operating a motor vehicle at Clark County 215
and State Route 146, Henderson, Clark County, Nevada, a highway with two or more clearly
| marked lanes for traffic traveling in one direction.

All of which is contrary to the form, force and effect of Statutes in such cases made and
provided and against the peace and dignity of the State of Nevada. Said Complainant makes
this declaration subject to the penalty of perjury.

@MMLK%&L@%@

03/25/19

18MH0263X/erg/L-5
NHP EV# 180900940
(TK)

W:2018\201 8M\H02\63\1 8MHN263-ACOM-(PLUMLEE__JENNIFER)-001.DOCX
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JUSTICE COURT, HENDERSON TOWN.SHIP
LARKLQEH‘IISY NS

r‘-n

THE STATE OF NEVADA, @!\L 3
ms ntc LA U @ W ‘
Plaintiff, L2050

1 ;GASENO: 18MHO0263X

-V8- IR i L‘"
DEPT NO:-¥
JENNIFER LYNN PLUMLEE, aka,
Jennifer Lynn Graves #1410679,
Defendant. § CRIMINAL COMPLAINT

The Defendant above named having committed the crimes of DRIVING UNDER THE
INFLUENCE (Misdemeanor - NRS 484C.110, 484C.400, 484C.105 - NOC 53900) and
FAILURE TO MAINTAIN TRAVEL LANE (Misdemeanor - NRS 484B.223 - NOC 53788),
in the manner following, to wit: That the said Defendant, on or about the 10th day of
September, 2018, at and within the County of Clark, State of Nevada,

COUNT 1 - DRIVING UNDER THE INFLUENCE

did then and there willfully and unlawfully drive and/or be in actual physical control of
a motor vehicle on a highway or on premises to which the public has access at Clark County
215 and State Route 146, Henderson, Clark County, Nevada, Defendant being responsible in
one or more of the following ways and/or under one or more of the following theories, to wit:
1) while under the influence of intoxicating liquor to any degree, however slight, which
rendered her incapable of safely driving and/or exercising actual physical control of a vehicle,
2) while she had a concentration of alcohol of .08 or more in her breath, and/or 3) when she
was found by measurement within two (2) hours after driving and/or being in actual physical
control of a vehicle to have a concentration of alcohol of .08 or more in her breath.

COUNT 2 - FAILURE TO MAINTAIN TRAVEL LANE

did then and there willfully and unlawfully fail to drive a motor vehicle as nearly as
practicable entirely within a single lane while operating a motor vehicle at Clark County 215
and State Route 146, Henderson, Clatk County, Nevada, a highway with two or more clearly

marked lanes for traffic traveling in one direction.

Wi2018201 8MUHO2\63\1 8MH0263-COMP-001.DOCX
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All of which is contrary to the form, force and effect of Statutes in such cases made and
provided and against the peace and dignity of the State of Nevada. Said Complainant makes
this declaration subject to the penalty of perjury. 7,

N
12/0 3?48"'

18MHO0263X/vw
NHP EV# 180900940
(TK)

W:20182018MHO2\63\ SMHO263-COMP-001.DOCX
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NOTICE OF WITNESSES
[NRS 174.234]
TO: Defendant or attorney of record:
YOU, AND EACH OF YOU, WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that:
(1) If the offense date is prior to April 13, 2015 the STATE OF NEVADA intends to call the

following witnesses:

FORENSIC ANALYST OF ALCOHOL
DARBY LANZ MP14274

DANA RUSSELL MP7503

LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE
FORENSIC LABORATORY

(2) If the offense date is April 13, 2015 or after, the STATE OF NEVADA intends to call the
following witnesses:

FORENSIC ANALYST OF ALCOHOL
DARBY LANZ MP14274

MARLISSA COLLINS MP 14973

LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE
FORENSIC LABORATORY

These witnesses are in addition to those witnesses noted in the discovery or other

documents provided.

DATED December 5, 2018.

WAZ018\201 BM\HO2163\1 8ME10263-COMP-001.DCCX
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1D#: 1410679 EVENT: 180900940

Nevada Highway Patrol
DECLARATION OF ARREST
| DATE OF
TRUE NAME: , ARREST: TIME OF ARREST:
PLUMLEE, JENNIFER LYNN | 09/10/2018 2319 Hours

OTHER CHARGES RECOMMENDED FOR CONSIDERATION:
DUJ 3rd

THE UNDERSIGNED MAKES THE FOLLOWING DECLARATIONS SUBJECT TO THE PENALTY FOR PERJURY
AND SAYS: That [ am a peace officer with the Nevada Highway Patrol, being so
employed since September 12% 2016

That [ learned the following facts and circumstances, which lead me to believe that
PLUMLEE, JENNIFER LYNN, committed (or was committing) the offense of (See
T.C.R.) at the location of CC215 and SR146.

On 09/10/2018 at approximately 2250 hours, | was dispatched to a vehicle crash
occurring on Green Valley Parkway and CC215 at the intersection. A witness advised
a black sedan went off road and struck a pole then continued driving. Henderson
Police located the vehicle, shortly after but did not witness the crash, and performed
a traffic stop after observing the vehicle fail to maintain lane.

larrived on scene with Henderson Police Department units, at approximately 2304
hours, and then took over the investigation. [ observed a black Mercedes sedan
bearing Nevada Licénse plate #AMKM5. There was a small dent in the left front of
the vehicle. Fresh dirt particles and small rocks were located on the tires:

While approaching the vehicle on the left side, | observed a single female occupant
sitting in the driver’s seat, I made contact with the driver and while speaking with
her I smelled food emitting from inside the vehicle. There was a bag of Chinese food
in the right passenger seat. The driver was later identified as PLUMLEE, JENNIFER
LYNN by her Nevada driver's license #1502355281. I asked PLUMLEE if she hit
anything, where she was going to and coming from. She states she didn’t hit
anything, She was heading home from work. She further stated she got on the CC215
from Decatur, heading eastbound, going home. She was stopped by Henderson
Police Department, going westbound on CC215 east of State Route 146. She
continued to state she was still going eastbound.

S~ S6L
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ID#: 1410679 EVENT: 180900940

L asked PLUMLEE if she would consent to field sobriety testing, in which she agreed.
[ asked her to exit the vehicle. ] asked her if she had anything to drink, she stated she
had none tonight. I observed her to have a flushed face, glassy bloodshot eyes and I
smelled the strong odor of an unknown intoxicating beverage emitting from her
breath as we spoke. | asked her if she was under a doctors care, was injured, had any
physical, mental or medical problems, used drugs or medications, wore corrective
lenses, used insulin or was a diabetic. She replied no to all but wears glasses. | asked
her to perform a series of field sobriety tests, in which she agreed. Each phase of the
tests were explained and demonstrated prior to her attempts. She stated she
understood the instructions for each test. The tests were administered in slippers on
a relatively level concrete roadway. Walk and Turn and One Leg Stand were not
performed due to the curve in the roadway, as well as the rocks and unstable cracks
on the road affecting her while wearing the slippers.

Horizontal Gaze Nystagmus: PLUMLEE had equal pupil size and both eyes tracked
equally. PLUMLEE showed a lack of smoath pursuit in both eyes, distinct and
sustained nystagmus at maximum deviation in both eyes and onset prior to 45
degrees in both eyes, Vertical Gaze Nystagmus was observed. During this test
PLUMLEE showed 6/6 clues.

I then administered a preliminary breath test to PLUMLEE to confirm the results of
the standard field sobriety test. Results of this test over 0.08.

Due to PLUMLEE's reported driving characteristics, flush face, glassy bloodshot eyes
and the results of the field sobriety test, I placed her under arrest for Driving Under
the Influence of Alcohol. I placed her in handcuffs; checking the cuffs for proper fit,
tightness and double locked the handcuffs. I conducted a search of PLUMLEE and
secured her in the rear of my patrol car. I read PLUMLEE my NHP Issued
Evidentiary Test Card, she stated she understood and chose a breath test,

QUALITY towing removed PLUMLEE's vehicle from the roadway for storage.

I transported PLUMLEE to Henderson City Detention Center. | began my
observation period on PLUMLEE on 09/11/2018, at 0001 hours and at 0019 hours
and 0022 hours tested two samples of her breath with the results of 0.161 and
0.155.

Furthermore, a records check through NHP Dispatch revealed PLUMLEE to have two

prior DUT's. 1¢* DUl was on 04/18/2015 pled down to reckless driving. 224 DUl was
on 08/05/2017 conviction of guilty. PLUMLEE was then booked in on her charges.

M 34
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ID#: 1410679 EVENT: 180900940

Wherefore, Declarant prays that a finding be made by a magistrate that probable
cause exists to hold said person for preliminary hearing (if charges are a felony or
gross misdemeanor) or for trial (if charges are misdemeanor).

Declarant R A ?é/é?

Trooper G. Luna #366 NHF

PA0O00022
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“The undersigned Magistrate has reviewed the

warrant for the charge(s) shown,
_ ' FINDING

[ find thece is sufficienl probable causz.
defendant has committed such crime(s).

BAll: Standard Whn

T Office Use Only _

O I find there is NOT sufficieat probable ¢
immediately release from custody as to the charge(s). This

additional evidence sufficient to establish probuble cause.

Affidavit and Declaration of Probable Cause for the arrest of the above-pamed defendant without

for lhe purpose of continued incarcerstion, to believe that %E.mua crime(s) have been committed and that said
‘THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED that the defendant may be held in custedy until bail is posted.

OTHER & $

ause shown to allow the defendant to be held in custody. THEREF ORE, IT I5 ORDERED that the defendant be

order is without prejudice to the City or State to proceed with the charge(s) based upon

CORRELEASE 0O JAD RELEASE O

. DPCH D ORRELEASE O
i
_ COMMENT: P .
I RETURN DATE: NORMAL SCHEDULE 0 FIRST AVAILABLE @\ QTHER DATE
. \.\d d
\V\.sa /=" JUSTICE COURT wﬂ Date: P/ f=t & ~ Time: e ! 08 o,
Signature of Magistrate MUNICIPAL COURT o o

wHCETIWN MEC

wh T \.)1:1
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HENDERSON TOWNSHIP, JUSTICE COJ.J
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
@U@ *
THE STATE OF NEVADA, °OuQ,
Plaintiff,
~V§-
JENNIFER PLUMLEE, CASENO.: 18CRH002333-0000

18MH0263X
Defendant, DEPT.NO.: 2

ORDER FOR BREATH IGNITION
INTERLOCK DEVICE (BIID)

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that as a condition of reinstating Defendant's Nevada driver's
license, Defendant must provide proof to the Nevada Depariment of Motor Vehicles that a
Breath Ignition Interlock Device (BIID) has been installed in any motor vehicle Defendant
operates and shall pay the costs for installation, maintenance, and/or monthly charges.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendant shall have the BIID installed for 6
MONTHS MINIMUM OR PENDENCY OF CASE, with 0 days/months credit for the time the
BIID was installed prior to the entry of this Order.

DATED this 19th day of November, 2019

il

JUSTICE OF THE PEACE
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MUELLER & ASSOCIATES, INC. oo Gut 7 o
CRAIG A. MUELLER, ESQ. ' }
Nevada Bar No, 4703 -4
723 8. Seventh Street
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Attorney for Defendant
JENNIFER PLUMLEE
JUSTICE COURT, HENDERSON TOWNSHIP
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA \%( ﬂ \W

Plaintiff, Case No. 18MH0263X

vs. Dept No. 1
JENNIFER PLUMLEE, MEMORANDUM OF LAW IN
SUPPORT OF MOTION TO DISMISS
Defendant.

COMES NOW, Defendant JENNIFER PLUMLEE, by and through her attorney CRAIG A.
MUELLER, ESQ. and hereby moves to dismiss the complaint in the above captioned matter and

requests a hearing on this matter.

This Motion to Dismiss and Request for Hearing is made based upon all the papers and

pleadings on file, the attached Declaration of Counsel, Memorandum of Points and Authorities in

support hereof, and oral argument at the time set for hearing this Motion.
DATED this 2™ day of October, 2019.

CRAIG A, MUELLER, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 4703 .

723 S. Seventh Street
Las Vegas, NV 89101
P: (702) 382-1200
Attorney for Defendant
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

STATEMENT OF CASE

Defendant is charged by way of Criminal Complaint with having committed the crimes of
DRIVING UNDER THE INFLUENCE (Misdemeanor — NRS 484C.110, 484C.400, 484C.105 — NOC
S390003.

The State requested a continuance at the hearing which occurred on July 17,2019, due to the
fact that the State’s main witness, Trooper Luna of the Nevada Highway Patrol, failed to appear. The
State, as retlected by the transcript of the July 17 hearing and a following hearing on this matter held
September 16, 2019, failed to properly serve a subpoena on Trooper Luna, leaving him unaware he
was supposed to appear at the July 17 hearing. Because the State failed to meet its duty to be
prepared to present its case, and given its failure to properly subpoena Trooper Luna, because the

State cannot show good cause for its inability to present a case at the July 17 hearing, the charge[s]

against Defendant should be dismissed.

LAW AND ARGUMENT

Bustos v. Sheriff, 87 Nev. 622 (1971) established the principle that a “prosecutor should be
prepared to present his case to the magistrate or show good cause for his inability to do s0.” In Clark
v. Sheriff, 94 Nev 364 (1978) the Supreme Court of Nevada ordered the district court to issue a writ of
habeas corpus where the magistrate had acted beyond his authority in granting a continuance in
violation of the jurisdictional procedural requirements of Hill v. Sheriff, 85 Nev. 234 (1969) and

Bustos.

PA0O00026
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‘served upon witnesses does not demonstrate good cause. Hill v. Sheriff.

 properly subpoena Trooper Luna, the State failed to notify him in any way of the July 17 hearing. The

As stated in Bustos, “[tJhe business of processing criminal cases will be frustrated if continuances

are granted without good cause.” Failure to cause subpoenas to be properly issued and properly

Peace Officer Acceptance of Delivery of a Subpoena Via Electronic Means Requires a Written
Promise to Appear, NRS 174.315(4).
NRS 174.315(4) provides:

NRS 174315 Issuance of subpoena by prosecuting attorney or attorney for defendant; promise to appear;
informing witness of general nature of grand jury’s inquiry; calendaring of certain snbpoenas.

-« 4. A peace officer may accept delivery of a subpoena in lieu of service, via electronic means, by providing a
written promise to appesr that is transmitted electronically by any appropriate means, including, without limitation, by

|| electronic mail transmitted through the official electronic mail system of the law enforcement agency which employs the |

peace officer....

Trooper Luna’s testimony at the September 16, 2019 hearing, combined with the fact that he

clearly did not provide a written promise to appear, makes clear that not only did the State fail to

State’s sending out a request to appear, not receiving a written promise back from Trooper Luna, and

then not following up, simply fails to comply with the relevant statute. This failure by the State does

not meet the standard of proper diligence or good cause.
Since in the current case the prosecution failed to properly issue and serve a subpoena, the

prosecution is not in compliance with the standards of Bustos and Hill, and the charges against

defendant should be dismissed.
CONCLUSION

Consequently, as the prosecution failed to comply with Bustos and Hill standards, all charges
against defendant should be dismissed. Counsel for defendant hereby requests a hearing be scheduled

for this matier.

PAO00027
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DATED this 2™ day of October, 2019,
MUELLER & ASSOCIATES, INC.

o, Craig Wasllen

CRAIG A. MUELLER, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 4703

723 South Seventh Street

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Attorney for Defendant

RECEIPT OF COPY
RECEIPT OF COPY of the foregoing MEMORANDUM OF LAW IN SUPPORT OF

MOTION TO DISMISS is hereby acknowledged this_5 _day of (A7 ,2019.

DISTRICT ATTORNEY’S OFFICE
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MUELLER, HINDS & ASSOCIATES, CHTD. B iknas 4 .
CRAIG A. MUELLER, ESQ. bl
Nevada Bar No. 4703 |
600 S. Eighth Street P
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Attomey for Defendant
JENNIFER PLUMLEE
JUSTICE COURT, HENDERSON TOWNSHIP
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
. x |
THE STATE OF NEVADA 1% CRHDO23FD 0000
Plaintiff, Case No. 18MH0263X
vs. Dept No. 1
JENNIFER PLUMLEE, DEMAND FOR EXPERT WITNESSES

Defendant.

COMES NOW Defendant JENNIFER PLUMLEE, by and through her attorney, CRAIG A.
MUELLER, ESQ., of the law firm MUELLER, HINDS & ASSOCIATES, and provides notice to the

State Of Nevada, pursuant to NRS 50.315(6) and NRS 50.320.
Defendant requests that the individuals listed as expert witnesses in the police report in the
instant case be brought to court for live testimony, specifically TROOPER G. LUNA (NHP ) DARBY

LANZ (FORENSIC ANALYST).

Defendant contends that there is a substantial and bona fide dispute in this matter as to her
state of intoxication at the time of her arrest. Defendant demands the right to confront the State’s

witnesses to determine the accuracy of the breath test taken with a CMI Inc. Intoxilyzer 8000 Unit,

Serial Number 80-006041.
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Defendant demands that the makers of the declarations be brought to court for cross-examination on

the procedures used and the tests conducted. This is necessary to establish whether there could have

DATED this 10™ day of April, 2019.

|| possibly been an error following the checklist or administering the breath test.

MUELLER, HINDS & ASSOCIATES, CHTD.

By __ naﬁt :

CRAIG A. MUELLER, ESQ
Nevada Bar No. 4703

723 South Seventh Street
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Attorney for Defendant

RECEIPT OF COPY

RECEIPT OF COPY of the foregoing DEMAND FOR EXPERT WITNESSES is hereby

acknowledged this i day of April, 2019.

DISTRICT ATTORNEY’S OFFICE
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Jt ICE COURT, HENDERSON TOWN IP

CLARK COUNTY. NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA, ) HENCEGASIINGIICE 18CRH002333-0000
) CUURS L, 18MHO0263X
) Dept W 2
Plaintiff, y W18 DEC! Zp ,‘1}' b
)
“V ) '
) - W
JENNIFER PLUMLEE, )
#1410679 )
)
Defendant, )
o 'y SUMMONS
THE STATE OF NEVADA TO:
JENNIFER PLUMLEE
972 ROCK LEDGE CT
HENDERSON, NV 89012

YOU ARE HEREBY SUMMONED to appear before me at JUSTICE COURT, HENDERSON
TOWNSHIP,243 WATER ST, HENDERSON, NV 89015, Department 2 at 9:00 am on February 05, 2019, to
answer to the following charge(s): .

484C.400.1A° M DUI ALCOHOL AND/OR CONT/PROHIBIT SUB, ABOVE THE LEGAL LIMIT, 1ST
484B.223.1 M FAIL TO PROPERLY MAINTAIN TRAVEL LANE OR IMPROPER LANE CHANGE

JUSTICE OF THE PEACE

DATED this 12th day of December, 2018.

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING
I hereby certify that service of the SUMMONS was made this 12th day of December, 2018 by

depositing a copy in the U.S. Mail, postage prepaid, to thc above referenced address.
[
Bd@‘i/\«

Prepared by: JN
NEVADA HIGHWAY PATROL EV# 180900940
Track#
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[0 Courtesy Copy JUSTICE COURT, HENDERSON TOWNSHIP

DATE: September 11, 2018 DEPT#:'1 ___ JUDGE: SAM BATEMAN _
CUSTODY STATUS
NAME: PLUMLEE, JENNIFER EVENT #: 180900940
CASE #: _18PCH001696-0000 DEFENDANT’S ID #: o
Charue o Bail . Amended To
i 53902 DUI ALCOHOL AND/OR CONT/PROHIBIT SUB, ABOVE | 5,000.00
. THE LEGAL LIMIT,2ND | L
53788 FAIL TO PROPERLY MAINTAIN TRAVEL LANE OR 600.00 |
_IMPROPER LANE CHANGE | L
| -
- e ] r o e —
Other:

Remand on all Connts ] Remand on Counts _

(] Remand (NLVDC/HDC Billing Purposes)

[] SENTENCE TO CCDC MONTHS | DAYS [ Flat Time [ No House Arrest

' C : iv #
[] Contempt of Court [ Concurrent 1 Consecutive Case
Days with Days CTS O Specific CTS Days
[ Concurrent [ Consecutive O (1) CTS, this case, this lodging "1 (2) Total CTS, this case, ali lodgings
To Cass# - L] (3) Any CYS, all cases, this lodging
[ (4) Maximum CTS, this case —all lodgings; and all cases — this lodging

] Ifno complaint filed, defendant to be released on:

7] FUGITIVES - Court orders Defendant to be released 30 days from this date (IF THERE ARE NO LOCAL CHARGES) OR released 30
days after all local charges have been resolved.

[ House Arrest (if qualifies) [ House Arrest Days [J PreTrial to Interview
NEXT COURT DATE: 09/18/2018 _ _ TIME: 9:00AM  DEPT# TBD
CHANGE OF CUSTODY STATUS
|1 ers [J Dismissed [~ Sentenced and/or Fine § ] Found Not Guilty [ No Probable Cause Found [J PAD

{1 CourtOrdered Release [ O/R [0 O/R with Intensive Supervision [l Deft. Released from Intensive Supervision
[ Deft. Released from House Arrest [ No Contact with Victim [ Released due to DA Delayed Filing

NEXT COURT DATE: TIME:  DEPT#:
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HENDERSON, NEVADA, JULY 17, 2019
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THE COURT: Let's geo ahead and call
Jennifer Plumlee, 18MH0263X.

Good morning, Mr. Mueller.

MR. MUELLER: Craig Mueller on behalf of
Miss Plumlee.

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Judge, I know I have
witnesses but I need to know is Officer Luna here?
Officer Luna? Judge, I'm going to need to be sworn.

THE CQURT: OQOkay.

(Chief DA Schifalacqua sworn.)

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: I'm Chief Deputy
District Attorney Barbara Schifalacqua and I'm tasked
with handling the matter of State of Nevada versus
Jennifer Plumlee aka Jennifer Graves. This case was
set for trial today July 170 to which I issued
subpoenas on or about June 39 of 2019 and T have
handed to Mr. Mueller a copy of the subpoena return f
Trooper Greg Luna that was issued that indicates that
he's going to appear here to court today. I have
called the courtroom. This matter was left on and he

is not present. I'm surprised at that because

or

PAO00034



10:57AM 1 obviously we were prepared to go forward and soc I'm
2 asking for a continuance and this is not done for
3 purposes of delay. Thank you, Judge.
4 THE COURT: Thank you, Miss Schifalacqua.
10:57AM 5 MR, MIJELLER: I object, Judge. The motion
6 to continue 1s improper form as a matter of law and
7 secondarily we have an affidavit that has ne affiant.

8 There is not a signature on this indicating that

o

there's actually been a personal service as required.
10:57AM 10 May I approach?
11 THE COURT: Why don't you give that back
12 to Miss Schifalacqua and see what she says.
13 Ms8. SCHIFALACQUA: And, Judge, it is done
14 through their email services. They respond to us and
10:57aM 15 it's printed as the same. They communicated that they
16 were going to appear.
17 MR, MUELLER: An affiant is -- I just got
18 chewed out in civil court because I'm not precise
19 enough in c¢ivil court so I go over to criminal court
10:58AM 20 and now an affiant is someone who testifies under
21 penalty of perjury that I've done the following things.
22 There is not a name. If my colleague can tell me who
23 served the subpoena, I will withdraw my objection.
24 MS. SCHIFALACQUA: 1I'm not understanding

10:58AM 25 when he's saying who served the subpoena. We send it
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10:58AM 1 out. As we always do thrcocugh our office, I issue the
2 subpoena, Judge. And you c¢an see, 1 can approach,
3 Judge. This is what I get in return. Obviously this
4 is what we use with the troopers and I'll submit that
10:58AM 5 obviously this is proper, this is how we serve our
& officers, it's returned to me. Thank you.
7 MR. MUELLER: How it is done is the
8 territory of the domain of the legislature. The
g legislature is actually very clear that a service of
10:58AM 10 process has to be done and signed by an affiant.
11 That's why the box that doesn't have a name or
12 signature on it. It says affiant. There is not a good
13 faith basis to believe that Trooper Luna even knows
14 about the subpoena, let alone to rely on it as service
10:59AM 15 to relieve the duty of due diligence as a prosecutor.
i6 Now, I'm simply asking for simple
17 compliance with black letter law. Nothing has changed
18 in the last 25 years on this subject since I've been
19 doing it.
10:59aM 20 MS. SCHIFALACQUA: And, Judge, maybe he's
21 confused about the OPAs. We get them routinely
22 electronically. We get them also electronically for
23 all of our officers including obviously who I said I
24 have on call, I have the forensic analyst alsc., I can

10:59AM 25 show you the same thing happens with them, Judge, and
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10:59AM 1 it's sent back the same way. My process servers
2 obviously personally go out and serve lay witnesses.
3 The returns are through here, we get this generated,
4 printed to ourselves and if they don't, they send us
10:59AM 5 what's called a uniform non-appearance form also
6 generated, Judge. 1 have zero reason to doubt what
7 cbviously I have personally done in this case, or my
8 diligence, Judge, which I take offense to it being
9 questioned.
10:59aM 10 MR. MUELLER: If she sent out the email is
11 not the issue. T don't doubt for a moment anything she
12 said is true, but the standard is not here's what we
13 normally do. The standard is is there's been proper

14 serve to reasonably expect this person to be here.

11:00AM 15 MS. SCHIFALACQUA: What I --
16 MR, MUELLER: Counsel.
17 She's asking for you to grant the

18 continuance to relieve her of the State of its

1% obligation to be ready and not for purposes of delay
11:00aM 20 based on the affidavit of someone who served the

21 witness. There's nc indication on this document that

22 anybody served the witness. It looks like it was sent

23 out email. I get 75 emails a day, sometimes a hundred.

24 That's not service and it's not any reasonable balief

11:00AM 25 to be here. Trooper Luna is a very diligent man. I
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11:00aM b can't imagine he knew about this court date and wasn't
2 here. 1It's inconceivable to me,
3 MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Which is why I'm
4 surprised, Judge.
11:00AM 3 But if I can be clear, obviously he's
6 mixing. What we send we do have proof that shows
7 they're sent back to us. We oftentimes use electronic
8 means to serve persons in law enfcrcement, Judge. This
9 is every single case. In fact, I can show you the
11:00AaM 10 other officers that are here on my other case are
11 served the exact same way, Judge. It's the process we
12 use.
13 THE COURT: Okay. And I'm pretty familiar
14 with that process and my understanding is that process
11:01aM 15 is the process that has been determined by other courts
16 to be valid all the way through. So I think the
17 subpoena issues here are valid and unless that becomes
18 challenged in a higher court, decides otherwise, I
19 believe that the subpoena is wvalid in this case.
11:01AM 20 So at this time I will go ahead and grant
21 the State's request and we can reset this for a trial
22 ordinary course but we'll make sure that we accommodate
23 vour schedule, Mr. Mueller. So we'll give you a date
24 and if you need a different date, we'll make sure we

11:01AM 25 accommodate what date works for you.
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11:01aM 1 MR. MUELLER: Thank you, Your Honor, and
2 respectfully it's my obligation under the law at the
3 moment to make a complete record here.
4 THE COURT: Absolutely.
11:01AM 5 MR. MUELLER: ©Nothing that my colleague
6 has said is sufficient as a matter of law toc get a
7 continuance. There has been no indication that anybody
8 has been served, anything other than the email has been
9 sent. There is no indication in this record that
11:02AM | 10 Trooper Luna knew about this court date and that there
11 has been due diligence prepared for court. It's not in
12 compliance with the standard. It appears that the
13 government has decided to relieve itself of its burden
14 under law and I object to a continuance and I believe
11:02AM 15 the proper action here is the State is not ready to
16 proceed without this witness and the case should in

17 fact be dismissed.

18 THE COURT: Thank you, Mr. Mueller.
19 And, Miss Schifalacqua, it's your motion.
11:02AM 20 MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Judge, I thought you

21 had ruled, but again obviocusly I have served the
22 subpoena, we issue them through our electronic means
23 and they have persons that send us their uniform
24 non-appearance form. I got the subpoena back in fact

11:02aM 25 showing that it was served on 6/18/19 and in fact that

PAO00039



11:02AM 1 they received it and this is how we learn that Trooper

2 Luna would be here today and I'm surprised that he's

3 not.
4 MR. MUELLER: Judge, also may I reserve
11:03AM 5 ruling at later date as to may I guestion Trooper Luna

6 if in fact he actually knew about this date?
7 M3. SCHIFALACQUA: Judge, here's the
8 problem that we're going to have. If he has
9 misidentified when he's supposed to be here or not.
11:03AM 10 It's not whether or not there's been a walid subpoena
11 lissued and I got a return and I'm surprised for it.
12 Some sort of reasons for that in the future, Judge.
13 Obviously you c¢an take whatever you want under
14 advisement, but Mr. Mueller knows very well the process
11:03AaM 15 and while I appreciate his continued efforts to make
16 this seem as if something were improper when it's not,
17 at some point, Judge, you've made a ruling. I would
18 obviously submit that I properly served Trooper Luna
19 and I am surprised, I can tell you, that he's not here.
11:03AM 20 Considering I have a lay witness even here and that
21 poor man had to sit around all morning, obviously I'm
22 surprised that Trooper Luna is not here.
23 THE COURT: And I'll tell you what. I let
24 you both make your records and I've listened to all the

11:04AM 25 issues over and over again and I've heard the same
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11:04AM 1 issues presented a number of times here this morning on
2 this matter and I do believe that the State has met its
3 burden of prcof. Therefore I will grant the State's
4 moticn and gc ahead and reset this for a trial ordinary
11:04AM 5 course on that and again, Mr, Mueller, we'll

6 accommodate your schedule.

~J

MR. MUELLER: Thanrk you, Judge. If we can

8 go into the middle of September.

9 THE COURT: Yes. That would be fine.
11:04aM 10 THE CLERK: September 16%1, 9:30,

11 MR, MUELLER: Madam Court Reporter, may I

12 get a transcript of today's session?

13 THE CCOURT: Yes.
14
11:04AM 15 . {(The proceedings concluded.)
16
17 Y ok W vk
18
195 ATTEST: Full, true and accurate

11:04AM 20 transcript of proceedings.

22 /S/Lisa Brenske

23 | LISA BRENSKE, CSR No. 186
24

25
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3
1 1 HENDERSON, NEVADA, OCTQOBER 7, 3019, 11:29 A.M
1 TRAN 2 ok K U oo kR K E WK
2 CASE NO, 3
3
IN THE JUSTICE'S COURY OF HENDERSON TOWNSKIP 4 THE COURT: Okay. Go ahaad and call
4
s COUNTY OF CLARK, STATE OF MEVADA §& Jennifer Plumlea, Case No, L8BMHO263X. And we had
6 STATE OF NEVADA, g 8 continued this teial from the last trial setting
7 plaintiff, ) 7 thatwe had for the motions to be made in writing,
)
8 ¥s. ) cass 0. 19MkD263x 8 And 1 did get, as the motion ~- Mr. Muetier,
¢ IEMRXFER PLUNLEE, % 9 If I recall, you were allowed %0 renew that mation,
1% pefendant. )
> 10 butwe were notaware of the arguments that you were
1
2 REPORTER'S TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS OF 11 golng to make on that day, and new information had
13 DUT BENCH TRIAL 12 been provided, in my apinion, that neaded to be
u BEFGRE THE HONORABLE STEPNEN L. GEORGE 13 looked up and giving you guys an oppaortunity to
1s JUSTICE OF THE PEACE 14  brief.
16 HOMDAY, OCTORER 7, 2019 18 T did see that I did receive a Memorandum
17
APPEARANCES : 16 of Law In Support of Motion to Dismlss. It was
18
For the State: MELANIE SCHEXBLE, E5Q. .
. Oeputy DISERicT Attarney 17 filad October 3rd, which was Thursday, at 4:31,
20 18 which really prerty much didn't give the State any
For the nefendant: CRAIG A. MUELLER, ESQ.
18 time at all to respond, didn't really give me a
2 20 whole fot of time to look into It. Bul it's very
. 21 short, and I was able to go through It on October
24
22 the 3rd and again since then.
25  REPORTED BY: DAMA TAVAGLEONE, RPR, CCR 841
23 So let me just check with the State. ¥
24 didn't see any Opposition filed by the State. My
| 26 guess is the State didn't have enough time to review
| 4
2 1 it. Did the State recelve It at ths same time as I
1 LNBDEX 2 did?
2 WITNESSES PAGE 3 M5. SCHEIBLE: Yes, Your Honor. ] believe
3 JOSEEH RISCO 4 I received it on Friday moealng, but my offics
4 Direct Examination by Ms. Scheible 22 .
) § recaived it on Thursday afternoon.
s crgsg-Examination by Mr, Mualler 37
& Redirect Examination by Hs. Scheible A2 & THE COURT: Allright. I'm not sure of the
7 7 State's position on this. Does the State stilf want
B GREG LUNA 8 haviao b
" .
Direct Examinarion by ss. Scheible 43 ] to proceed, not having been given really any time to
? Cross-Exapination by Mr. Muellec (4 8 address it in writing, or is the State prepared and
1¢
10 ready to ga forward on the motlan?
11 DARBY LANZ ]
. SCHEIBLE: E i
. Direct Exzmination by Ms. Scheible 51 1 MSs c 1f you're comfortable with
13 Cross-Examination by ¥e. Mueller 91 12 aralrepresentation from the State, then ! am happy
14 Radirect Examinatian by Ms. Scheible 97 93 to move forward today. Frankly, I would ke to
s rRecrass-Examination by #r. Musller 167 44 hear this case today.
5 1 THE COURT: Sure.
17 EX¥XBITS
18 M58, SCHEIBLE: And hava a final disposition
18 STATE'S MARKED  ADMITTED
19 1 Inmm.}yzer 8000 50 2 17 since we have been back to court at least three,
20 ERSEkIiSE 18 four timas on this m atter.
2 sreath Strip 81 2]
21 19 THE COURT: We have bheen very patient and
2 3 cal:l;bration . 30 93
peclaration & Repart
\ ot Gas Standard. 743018 2 diligent on this matter and leoked into every single
z 4 calibration 80 98 21 thing that we possibly could.
24 paclaration & Repart
25 of Gas Standard, 9/2018 22 And, Mr. Mueller, I've listenad to 3 lot of
23 arguments on this issya, and I did recelive this
24 Memorandum in Law and Support of the Motion,
26 Dld you have anything in addition that you

1 of 36 sheets Page 110 4 of 142 PADOOTAR07:38 AM



[ 5 7
1 wanted to add to what's already been sald on this 1 by an Affidavit, and they did not have effective
2 matter? 2 electronic service. No efforts were made to obtain
3 MR. MUELLER: Just two key points, Judge. 3 his permission -- or there were na reasonable
4 Specifically, we referred to, or my colleague 4 grounds to believe he was golng to be present, and
5 referred to Subsection 4 of 174,315 that allows a § pursuant to the law and long established custom and
6 police officer to accept service of Subpoena via 6 practice in this jurisdiction, the case should be
7 electronic means, and that's true. 7 dismissed,
] Howaver, in said sentence doesntend in a 8 THE COURT: Thank you, Mr. Mueller.
9 period, it ends with a comma: And he accepts 9 Ms. Scheible,
10 service by providing a written promise to appear, 10 MS, SCHEIBLE: In short, Your Honor, the
11 which is transmitted electronically by any 11 time has passed for that kind of decision in this
42 appropriate means including, without limitation, by 12 courtroom. The State made a motion to continue back
13 electronic mail through the offivial electronic 13 inJuly, and that motion was granted. To dispute
44 system of law enforcement agency. It is actually 14 that ruling is an appeliate issue. It's not an
15 abundantly clear. 45 Issue for this Court to hear. The fact is that the
18 Now, Trooper Luna wasn't here for the trial 16 "Bustos® motion was already granted. We were
17 setting. I was surprised, and it didn't appear to 17 already given the continuance, and we are now here
18 me that he had been effectively served. He came 18 for the second time with all of our witnesses
19 back on the second setting and confirmed my 18 prepared to go forward on the trial.
20 suspicions that he had not been served. My 20 Moreover, I would like to note that there
21 colleague then generally invoked the Electronic 21 is a goed policy reason for granting a "Bustos®
22 Service Doctrine, which is fine. And then we look 22 motion in cases like what we have here, which is
23 it up, and it says he has to provide written promise 23 that -- and I'm going to -~ I'm going to make some
24 to appear. That document wasn't signed by him. 24 new representations, and I do have witnesses we can
| 25 He didn't get service. That's not 25 call to the stand to verify this, if you need. But
<] 8
1 meaningfully in doubt, He didn't have effective 1 basically when we arrived here on July 17th and
2 service, not meaningfully in doubt; and anybody in 2 Trooper Luna wasn't present, we knew that a number
| 3 the plain reading of the statute wouldn't expect him 3 of things could have happened.
4 to be there because he has to sign the thing and 4 We might have issued the Subpoena, he
§ transmit it back. Now, that's not an affidavit. § received it, and he oversiept; we might have Issued
& That's not service. And I can pull the language out, 6 the Subpoena, he received it, he got called out on
T and when I was a young prosecutor, Bll Koot beat 7 an emergency and didn't come to court; he might have
8 these cases into our heads, "Bustos" and "HIlL" 8 received Subpoena, he might have responded to the
g 1 read from the "Hili" decision: "The § Subpoena, and that response might not have made it
10 prophylactic effect of the doctrine of Hill is 10 to my file in time, much like Mr. Muelfer's motion
11 worthwhile. A prosecutor should be prepared to 11 didn't make it to my file in time for me to write a
12 present his case to the magistrate at the time he 12 coherent response.
13 scheduled or show good cause for his inability to do 13 1t also could have been Trooper Luna was
44 so. This Is not an unfair burden. The business of 14 served and that he gave his response to his
18 prosecuting criminal cases will be frustrated if 15 supervisor or to NHP Arrest Services, and they
16 continuances are granted without good cause.” 16 simply never communicated to the District Attorneys
17 Now, this is blackletter law since I've 17 Office. The point is that we knew that we had
18 been practicing law in Nevada., Bill Koot gave me 18 served Mr. Luna. We just didn't know where the
19 this case in the first hour of the first day on the 19 breakdown in communication was because we have a
20 job, this one and "Bustos.” I'm asking for a 20 very robust and very reliable communication system
21 simple, straightforward, blackletter law, 21  between our office and the Nevada Highway Patrol,
22 application of the law. 22 QOver the last three weeks, when I couild
23 On the 17th of July, they were not ready to 23 have been working on more important cases and
24 go, They hadn't talked to Officer, Trooper Luna. 24 subbing felony trials for their trial dates, when I
25 They didn't have an oral promise to appear supported 25 could have been preparing other misdemeanor domestic
02705/2020 1.1:07:38 AM Page 5 to 8 of 242 PA000Q2f 36 sheets
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violence cases or DUI cases, instead, 1 was running
around like a chicken with my head cut off,
contacting the Nevada Highway Patrol to find out
exactly what happened, which was one of the previous
aforementionad possibilities.

As it turns out, Trooper Luna was in fact
served with the Subpoena. He was out of town during
the time of the heating. So he did what he was
supposed to do. He submitted a Uniform Nonappearance
Sheet. That Uniform Nonappearance Sheet was sent by
Nevada Highway Patrol to the Clark County District
Attorneys Office. We received it the evening before
the preliminary hearing.

Here is the thing: In Henderson Justice
Court, we don't go to the office before we come to
court. So whatever we have at 3:00, 4:00, or
5:00 p.m., whengver we leave the office on Monday is
what we have when we come to court on Tuesday. That
nonappearance form came {0 a prosecutor's inbox on
Tuesday morning, when she was already here in the
courtroom. So she had no idea that Trooper Luna
had, in fact, followed all of the policies and
procedures to a *T," submitting his nonappearance
form. We simply didn't receive it in time.

And 50 we raglizad that, after the fact,

S 0 N Ot W A -
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been in writing. That's a "Hill" motion. That's
actually also grounds for a dismissal because they
didn't properly and timely serve the "Hili"* motion.

Now, every single day, the courts are here
fo protect citizens from the inconveniences caused
to them by the government. They don't have to make
a profit. They don't have to make payrolf. They
have to foliow the law. She didn't follow the law,
and in her effort to try to squeeze out of not
following the law, she's actually confessed to
something even more egregious, which is we had
timely notice that be wasn't in town and we didn't
follow the "Hil" decision, which requires a written
notice.

There is 1o good cause here. The fact that
they were sloppy, that they're busy, they didn't
feel like going by the office on the way to court
does not relieve them of the obligation. It does
not. Somebody picked up the phone at 7:30 that
morning and said, "Hey, we just find out our guy is
out of town,™ probably 99 percent would have got
professional courtesy from me or any other mamber of
the defense Bar. But that's not what happened here.

Mow, Ms. Schifalacqua said "We served him,"
don't know why he’s not here. He got on there,

10
and now I'm here to represent to you that, in fact,
we had proper service. There was a clerical error,
which happens every single day, that prevented
Officer Luna from being here on the 17th. We didn't
know on the 17th what the reason was. We know what
the reason is now. Thare's absolutely no reason
that we shouldn't be able to go forward with this
misdemeanor trial today.

THE COURT: Thank you, Ms. Scheible.

Mr. Mueller,

MR. MUELLER: I am a little confused.
Trooper Luna has testified under oath that -- I know
that. He's actuslly been on the witness stand for
15, 20 minutes. He didn't say anything about being
out of town. He said he didn't get served, That's
the transcript from the 16th of September. Now,
facts aren't a buffet. You don't get to pick them,
put them back and pick up another one when you want
it.

Now, the obligation was, if she found out
he said he had -- which he hasn't testified to. In
fact, he said he didn't know why he didn't get it.

He said nothing about being out of town. And if in
fact, he sent back a "Uniform notice of appearance,”
the law is actually even more clear. It should have
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12
under gath says "I don't know why I wasn't here. 1
didn't get served.” She says, "Oh, he did get
served and we didn't get around to doing a
‘Bustos’ -- or "Hill' motion.” Now, they've made it
impossible for you to allow this case to go forward.
Either one of those three grounds is going o get
the case dismissed. Now, the fact that they can't
even tell you which one of those three scenarios is
now true means for sure they haven't complied with
the obligations required under law.

And 'l read this paragraph again:

"The prophylactic effect of the Hill doctrine is
worthwhile." This is right from Nevada Supreme
Court case. "Prosecutor should be prepared to
present its case with the magistrate at the time
scheduled or show good cause for an inability to do
50." Peried. What's the good cause?

The first one didn"t work. The second one
didn't work. Now, I'm going to try a third theory
on my third court date? Your Honor, respectfully,
this is willful indifference to the rights of the
defendant and its inconvenience that my colleague
seems to have found herself, the reality is the
rights belonyg to the defendant. This whole
building, every one of these procedures is {0 make

l3 of 36 sheets
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and I think it is only fair that the State be given
information on anything that's going to be presented

Now, I understand that the trooper that
testified the last time, that was a new issue to us.
That was being made for the first time. That's why
we went with the continuance because we wanted to
look into it and make sure. I think he was somewhat
surprised at the fact that he was going to be called
to the stand to testify regarding the Subpoena at

And since then, I've had an opportunity to
look into the requirements on the Subpoena. And,
Mr. Mueller, you've stated correctly on NRS 178.315,
it does provide for those requirements. But I also
found that, for law enfarcement, NRS 289.027 also
requires, provides additional requirements -- maybe
not "additional,” but it’s titled "Law enforcement
agencies reguired to adopt policies and procedures
concerning service of certain subpoenas on peace

In reviewing NRS 174.315 and the statutes
contained in here, it appears to me abundantly clear
that the State did comply with the requirements by

13
1 sure the defendant Is treated fairly, not 1
2 conveniently, We maove to dismiss. 2
3 THE COURT: Thank you, Mr. Muelier. 3 tothem as far as the defense. I'm hearing
4 1 appreciate both of your representations 4 additional information.
§ on this matter. And, Ms. Scheible, 1 appreciate 5
§ vyour representations you presented. 6
7 Basically, I think what we were looking for 7
8 as far as this, I know we've had this matter on 8
9 calendar a number of times. This case has been 9
16 prolonged over and over again. We've done thatina |10
11 matter of trying to be thorough and looking into 1"
12 everything and making sure everything was covered (12 that time as well.
13 properly and correctly, and we've given everybody 13
14 some time to research that. 14
15 Just a clarification. I just wanted to 15
16 make sure because my recollection may be incorrect. |16
17  But in Mr, Mueller's motion, he stated that the 17
18 State had requested a continuance the last time. I 18
18 don't believe the State did make that request. I 19
20 Dbelieve I was the one that sald that let’s continue 20
21 this so that we can get it In writing, so that we 21
22 can look into the technicalities of this particular 22 officers.”
23 matter. 23
24 So for clarification, is that proper? 1 24
25 don't believe the State did make that moticon to 25
14
1 continue; is that correct? 1
2 MS. SCHEIBLE: No. As a matter of fact, 2
3 Your Honor requested to go farward -- 3 it's abundantly clear to me that all of the
4 THE COURT: That's my recollection. 4
5 MS. SCHEIBLE: -- the last, yeah, the last § the Motion to Dismiss, at this time, Is denied.
6 court appearance regardless of the outcome of the 6
7 motion. 7
8 THE COURT: Wonderful. Thank you. 8
3 And within that period of time, I did get 9 the case and then we can go farward.
10 the Memorandum of Law In Support of Motion to 10
11 Dismiss by Mr. Mueller. As I stated, it was filed 11 ready to proceed, with one preliminary matter.
12 at4:31, at the end -- 12
13 Our windows close at 5:30; is that correct? 13
14 THE CLERK: 5:20. 14 the case and see what we want to do.
15 THE COURT: 5:20. Thursday, this court is 15
16 dark. There is nobody here on Friday. So that 16
47 would, again, make it impossible for you to have 17
18 subrnitted anything on a Friday, and we're here on 18 require me to bring in the present analyst of
18 Monday. I was able to take the advantage of having | 19
20 it served or filed late on Thursday. So I was able 20 a call so that she can come down here,
21 to review It and look into It, and I was able to 21
22 look into a number of other matters. 22 this Issue come up before with Mr. Mueller, I
23 But it almost appears that every time we 23
24 come back here, there's additional. There's more, 24
28 more, more, more. Today Is the day to go forward, |25 his position Is.
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statute, and based on the testimony that was given
here today on some of these conditions, I belleve

requirements have been complied with. Therefore,
And at this time, let me check with both of

you. Based my ruling on the motion, are we ail

ready to proceed with the trial? If so, I can call

MS. SCHEIBLE: Your Honor, the State is

THE COURT: Ckay. Yeah, let's deal with
all those preliminary matters, and then we'll call

MS, SCHEIBLE: It's essentially a question
for you, Your Honor, of whether yvou will accept the
affidavit for the blood alcohol ievel or whether you
alcohol. She is avallable. 1 just have to give her

THE COURT: Right. And I know I've had

believe. 1 think that's where it came up the last
time. But let me check with Mr. Mueller to see what
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1 MR. MUELLER: I believe the expart should 1 going to be. So, Mr. Mueller, let me just check
2 be here, Judge. 1 believe we flled a timely demand 2 with you: Is the defense prepared and ready to go
3 for the experts. 3 forward at this time, Mr. Mueller?
4 THE COURT: Okay. So we're going to go 4 MR. MUELLER: We are, Judge.
5 forward. 5 THE COURT: Thank you. And would the
6 MS. SCHEIBLE: Thalt's fine. If you'll just 6 defense wish to invoke the Exclusionary Rule?
7 give me a moment to step into the hallway and give 7 MR. MUELLER: Yes, we would, Your Hongr.
8 heracall. 8 THE COURT: Wonderful. Thank you.
9 THE COURT: Absolutely. 9 And, Ms. Scheible, is the State prepared
10 MS. SCHEIBLE: 1 think that's all. 10  and ready and to go forward at this time?
14 THE COURT: Okay. Obh, and then when we 11 MS. SCHEIBLE: Yes, Your Honor.
12 come back -~ I know we discussed this in the back 12 THE COURT: Thank you.
13 last time regarding the way we're going to proceed, 13 So at this time, the Exclusionary Rule is
14 and I think 1 remember correctly, but on your 14 hereby invoked. I'm going to ask if there are any
15 opening remarks, we'll allow the State to make your |18 witnesses that are to testify on this matter today,
16 opening remarks and present their case. 16 that you please exit the courtroom. You're not to
17 Once you're complete, then, Mr. Mueller, I 17 discuss your testimony amongst yourselves or with
18 believe that it was your position that you wanted to 18 anybody else, and when it's your turmn to testify,
18 make your opening remarks when it was your case In |19 we'll have the marshals bring you back in.
20 chief. 20 And let's see., As we had discussed
21 MR. MUELLER: Yes, Judge. We'll see what 2% earilier, Ms. Scheible, you can make your opening
22 she has to say. 22 remarks or call your first witness.
23 THE COURT: Sure. Absolutely. That will 23 MS. SCHEIBLE: So, Your Honor, T just want,
24 be fine. Okay. Ms. Scheible, yes. You have your 24 for the record, that I enly have three witnesses in
25 time. B 25 this case. There are some additional people here in
18 20
1 MS. SCHEIBLE: Thank you. T'l} literally 1 the gallery from the Nevada Highway Patral who are
2 be right back. 2 not involved in this case.
3 THE COURT: That's okay. Thank you. 3 THE COURT: Absoclutely. That would be fine.
4 {Pause in the proceedings.) 4 MS. SCHEIBLE: And would you like the
5 MS. SCHEIBLE: Your Honor, may I have § cerilified copy of the prior conviction now?
6 Court's brief indulgence. 6 THE COURT: Well, let's see what
7 THE COURT: Yeah. Ten minutes? Five 7 Mr. Mueller's preference.
8 minutas? Let me tell you what, I've got a search 8 MR, MUELLER: Statute says it's supposed to
9 warrant that they're waiting for me on. 9 be presented at Hime of conviction, sentencing.
10 MS. SCHEIBLE: Perfect. 10 MS. SCHEIBLE: That's fine.
A | THE COURT: I'm going to go look at that, 1 THE COURT: Okay. And I'm sorry. Mr.
12 and I’ll be right back. 12 Mueller, I didn't hear what she was going to
13 MS. SCHEIBLE: That will be the perfect 13 present, but T wanted to make sure you had time to
14 amount of time. Thank you. 14 look at it.
18 {Pause In the proceedings.) 15 MR, MUELLER: The statute says that --
18 THE COURT: Okay. This is the time, place | 16 THE COURT: Yeah, let's even back-up. What
17 set for trial in the matter of Jennifer Plumlee, 17 was sha going to present?
18 Case No. 18MHOZ63X%. 18 MR. MUELLER: She's going to present
13 Just a question, preliminarily. I see this 19 apparently & prior certified conviction of some
20 s being alleged as a DUI, second; is that correct? 20 sort. The statute says -~
21 MS. SCHEIBLE: Yes, Your Honor, 21 THE COURT: Oh, I see. I sea.
22 THE COURT: Okay. Let me just check -- 22 MR. MUELLER: -- it gets presented at time
23 MR. MUELLER: The defense would invoke the |23 of sentencing. If Ms. Plumiee gets convicted, we
24 Exclusionary Rule before we -~ 24 can't do sentencing today anyway., We have to desl
25 THE COURT: That's what my question was _[35 with it another time.
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1 THE COURT: Well, we'll look into that, 1 Q. Okay. And on September 10th of 2018, were
2 But, yeah, we don't need that at this point. 2 vyou here in the Las Vegas area?
3 MS. SCHEIBLE: I also don't understand why 3 A. Yes, I was.
4 we couldn't go forward with sentencing today. 4 Q. And do you drive?
5 THE COURT: That's going to be my dedision. 5 A. Yes.
6 MS. SCHEIBLE: Okay. & Q. Were you driving on September 10th of last
7 THE COURT: And we'll see what Mr. Mueller 7?7 year?
8 says about that. 8 A, Yes, I was.
9 MS. SCHEIBLE: Okay. Your Honor, my 9 Q. And did you have occasion to cali 9117
10 opening statement Is that I'm going to show you that 10 A. Yes.
11 this lady was driving drunk. So I will call my |11 Q. And I want to direct your attention to that
12 first witness, Mr. Joseph Risco. 12 911 call. Can you tell us why you called 911,
13 THE DEPUTY: What was the [ast name, 13 A. There was a car that passed a red light.
14  Counsel? 14 Q. Okay. Where were you when you saw this car?
15 MS. SCHEIBLE: Risca. |18 A. Exiting the 215 at Green Valley Parkway.
16 THE COURT: For the record, we don't know 16 Q.  And what time of day was it?
17 if we're going to go through with sentencing today 17 A. It was during evening hours.
18 or not. It just will depend upon whether or not the 18 Q. Oksy. What kind of car?
19 State meets its burden of proof. So if it does, 18 A. Itwas a black car.
20 then we'll decide if wa'me going to do it today or 20 Q. Okay, Was this car a sedan, like a
21  inthe future. See what Mr, Mueller has {o say 21 four-door, or a larger SUV?
22 about that. 22 A. Itwas asedan.
23 If the case is dismissed after going 23 Q. Okay. And so you said that you saw this car
24 through the ixial, there will not be -- It will not 24 go through a red light?
25 be necessary to go through the -- 25 A. Yes.
22 24
1 MS. SCHEIBLE: Excellent point, Your Honor. 1 Q. And is that when you called 9117
2 (Witness sworn.) 2 A. No.
3 THE WITNESS: Yes. 3 Q. Okay. What happened after the car went
4 THE CLERK: Thank you. Can you state and 4 through the red light?
5 spell your first and last name, please, 5 A. TItjumped the median, the center median.
6 THE WITNESS: Joseph Risco. Joseph, 6 Q. Qkay. And then what?
7 J-0-S-E-P-H, Risco, R-I-5-C-O. 7 A. And then it kept proceeding towards another
8 THE CLERK: Thank you. You can have a seat. 8§ area bhefore the entrance of the freeway.
9 THE WITNESS: Thank you. 9 Q. Dkay. Sothe car was over the median. Was
10 THE COURT: Thank you. 10 it on the left side of the road then?
k& Ms. Scheible, you may proceed. 11 A. Yes,
12 MS. SCHEIBLE: Thank you. 12 Q. Driving against traffic?
13 13 A. Correct.
14 Thereupon -- 14 MR. MUELLER: Objection as to leading.
is JOSEPH RISCOQ, 15 THE CQURT: Any response, Ms., Schelble?
16 having been first duly sworn to testify to the 16 MS. SCHEIBLE: It doesn't suggest an
17 truth, was examined and testified as follows: 17  answer. I was asking if she was on the left, if the
18 18 car was on the left side of the road or not.
19 DIRECT EXAMINATION 19 THE COURT: QOkay. Any response?
20 BY MS. SCHEIBLE: 20 MR. MUELLER: It suggests the answer.
21 Q. Mr. Risco, where do you live? 21 THE COURT: Okay. Objection overruled.
2 A. Ilivein North Las Vegas. 22 MS. SCHEIBLE: QOkay.
23 €. And how long have you lived in the Las Vegas 23 THE COURT: You may proceed.
24 area? 24 BY MS. SCHEIBLE:
|25 A_ About 15 years. 25 Q. So the car was traveling against trafflc?
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1 A. Correct. 1 was hitting.
2 Q. And then did the car ever come to a stop? 2 Q. Okay. What about when she first got out of
3 A. Yes, it did. 3 thecar?
4 Q. How? 4 A. The car was stili -- still on.
5 A. It hit a electric pole. 5 Q. Okay. And how did she appear to you when
8 Q. From what angle? Did the car hit the pole 6 she exited her vehicle?
7 straight on? 7 A. She was like -~ she fell to the ground.
8 A. From the front side of the bumper, &8 She wasn't — it looked like she didn"t know what
9 Q. Okay. And did the car come to a complete 8 she was doing.
10 stop at that time? 10 Q. Okay. So when you say that "she fell to the
11 A. No. 11 ground,” can you describe, did her hands touch the
12 Q. Okay. What happened? 12 ground? Her knees?
13 A. Someone came out of the vehicle. 13 A. Her entire body just fall to thae ground.
14 Q. Okay. Would you recognize that person if 14 Q. But she managed to pick herself back up?
15 you saw them again? 15 A. Correct. And she started stumbling.
16 A. No, no. 16 Q. Okay. Around the car?
17 Q. Okay. Were you too far away to see the L 17 A. Around the car, yes.
18 person clearly? 18 Q. And did she eventually get back into the
i8 A. Yes. Correct. 19 driver's seat?
20 Q. But you could tell that it was a human being 20 A. Yes.
21 exiting the car? 21 Q. And then what did she do?
22 A. Correct. 22 A. She proceeded to hit her gas, and she was
23 Q. From which door? 23 going against the electri¢ pole.
24 A. On the driver's side door. 24 Q. Okay. So the car had already crashed into
25 Q. Okay. And what did that person do when they |25 the pole?
26 28
1t got cut of the car? 1 A. Correct.
2 A. Felil to the ground. 2 Q. And the driver proceeded to press on the
3 MR. MUELLER: Objection. Lack of 3 gas pedal?
4 foundation. How far away was he? What was the 4 A. That's correct.
5 lighting conditions? Was it dark? Was it light 5 MR. MUELLER: Objection. Asked and
6 out? & answered.
7 THE COURT: Okay. Well, you can ask thase 7 MS. SCHEIBLE: I'm just clarifying,
8 questions on cross-examination. 8 Your Honor.
9 Overruled. Go ahead, Ms. Scheible. 9 THE COURT: You may proceed. Objection
10 BY MS. SCHEIBLE: 10 overruled.
14 - Q. So the person -- I'm sorry. 11 BY MS., SCHEIBLE:
12 Let me ask this, could you teli whether it 12 Q. And how cauld you tell that she was pressing
13 was a man or a woman? 13 the gas?
14 A. Itwas a female. 14 A. The back tires.
15 Q. Okay. How could you tell? 15 . What about the back tires?
( 16 A. Adress. 16 A. They were moving. A moving motion.
17 ). Oh, the person was wearing a dress? 17 Q. Okay. And did she stay there with her car
18 A. The person wearing a dress. 18 crashed into the pole?
19 Q. Okay. 19 A. Eventually, the car slid towards the right
20 A. And the hair. 20 side, and she was able to go around the pole.
1 Q. Okay. Generally the size of a woman? 21 Q. And when you say "go around,” you mean with
22 A. Correct. 22 the vehicle, she drove the vehicle around the pole?
23 Q. Okay. 50 when the woman got out of the car, |23 A. That's correct. Yes.
24  what happened? 24 Q. Okay. At what point did you call 9117
25 A. Sha walked around the car to see what she |25 A. After she stopped in thg centear of the
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1 freeway entrance. 1 A. I flagged down a Henderson cruiser.
2 Q. So was that before or after she hit the 2 Q. And what did that officer do in the cruiser?
3 pole? 3 A. He proceeded to pull over the vehicia,
4 A. This is after she hit the pole. 4 Q. And did you watch him pull over the vehicle?
] Q. Okay. So we were just talking about her 5 A. Yes, Idid.
6 going around the pole. Had vou called 911 yet at 6 Q. And where did that occur?
7 that point? 7 A. On the freeway.
8 A. No. ] Q. And were you on the freeway at that point?
9 Q. So she goes around the pole. What happens 9 A. No.
10 next? 10 Q. But did you follow the car to the freeway?
11 A. She stays in the center of the freeway. 11 A. Yes, I did.
12 That's -~ she just stayed there. 12 Q. Why did you do that?
13 Q. Okay. So the car was completely stopped? 13 A. To just give my statement.
14 A. Yes. 14 Q. Did you think that it was important to talk
15 Q. And was it in an intersection or just on the 15 to law enforcement officars about what you had seen?
46 road? 16 A. Yss.
17 A. It was an intersection. 17 Q. Why is that?
18 Q. Okay. And at that point, what did you do? 18 A. T was just concerned.
19 A. At that point, I decided to call 911. 18 Q. Okay. Concerned for?
20 Q. All right. And did you make that call? 20 A. 1It's not a normal activity.
21 A. Yes, Idid. 21 Q. Okay. Did you think this behavior was safe?
22 Q. And did the cars remain in the intersection 22 A. No.
23 while you were on the phone with 9117 23 MR. MUELLER: Objection.
24 A. Yes, yes. 24 THE COURT: Yes. Mr. Mueller.
25 &. Okay. And then what happened? 26 MR. MUELLER: Calis for speculation, and
30 32
1 A. And then once - I guess the vehicle 1 the witness isn't a safety expert.
2 started moving eventually, 2 THE COURT: Ms. Scheitle.
3 Q. Okay. And where were you in relation to the 3 MS. SCHEIBLE: I don't think he has to be
4 vehicle in the intersection? 4 an expert to testify to whether or not he thinks the
5 Was It in front of you? Behind you? Next § sltuation is safe. It goes to what he did next and
§ to you? & why.
7 A. It wasin front of me. 7 THE COURT: Okay. From his own standpoint,
8 Q. Okay. Were you the first car in line? 8 but not as an expert testifying --
9 A. Yes, Iwas. 9 MS. SCHEIBLE: Absolutely.
10 Q. So was there anybedy between or anything 10 THE COURT: -- what was his opinion.
11 between you and the stopped vehicle? [ 11 You may proceed.
12 A. No. 12 BY MS. SCHEIBLE:
13 Q. Okay. And you sald the vehicle started to 13 Q. So were you worried about your safety?
14 move again? 14 A. Yes.
15 A. Correct. 15 Q. The safety of others?
16 Q. And which direction did it go? 16 A. Yes.
17 A. Forward. 17 Q. And s0 you followed -- am I understanding
18 Q. All right. Towards the freeway? Towards 18 correctly, you followed the Henderson cruiser on the
19 vyou? 19 freeway where he was pulling over the black cai?
20 A. Away from the freeway. 20 A. Yes.
21 Q. Okay. And you were still on the phone with 21 Q. Okay. And then did you also stop your car?
22 911 at this point? | 22 A. Yes.
23 A. Yes, I was. 23 Q. And did you speak with police officers on
24 Q. Okay. And did anybody respond, like a 24 the scene?
25 uniformed officer? 25 A. Yes.
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1 Q. Okay. Do you remember who you spoke with? 1 MS. SCHEIBLE: I think that narrative
2 A. An NHP officer. 2 testimony is fine in this instance.
3 Q. Okay. An NHP officer., Did you speak with 3 MR. MUELLER: I's actually an objection.
4 the Hendarson officer as well? 4 You can't have it.
§ A. No. At that moment; no. 5 MS. SCHEIBLE: It's not "narrative” as 2
6 Q. Okay. Did the Henderson officer leave the 6 term of art. I'm not going to ask him questions.
7 scene while you were still there? 7 “"Narrative” in the sense that I want to quit
8 A. Idon'trecail. 8 Interrupting him so that we can make sure that
9 Q. Okay. Did an NHP officer arrive while you 9 nothing gat out of order.
10 were still there? 10 THE COURT: I misunderstood, Mr. Mueller.
1 A. Yes. 11 Originally, I agreed with you. She cannot give a
12 Q. Do you remember the NHRF officer who you 12 narrative of this. But my understanding is she's
i3 spoke to? 13 not going to glive a narrative. The witness here is
14 A No. 14 going to go through that.
15 Q. Do you think you'd recognize him if you saw 15 MS. SCHEIBLE: Right.
16 him again? 16 MR. MUELLER: A distinction for that
17 A. VYes. 17 difference in testimony is you can't put 8 witness
18 Q. Okay. Have you seen him since that time? 18 on the stand and say, "Hey, what do you want to tell
19 A. No. 19 me?" That's not proper. You've got to ask them
20 Q. Okay. And what did you tell the NHP officer 20 questions.
21 that day? 21 THE COURT: Okay. And I believe the
22 A. That I saw a vehicle jump over the median 22 question was asked "From beginning to end, what
23 and just the strange activity. 23 occurred"?
24 Q1. Okay. And it was the same vehicle that was 24 MS. SCHEIBLE: Can you summarize for us.
25 on the side of the road at that point in time? 25 THE COURT: That's pretty standard. So
34 a6
1 A. Yes. 1 objection overruled.
2 Q. And then at some point, did you leave? 2 MR. MUELLER: For the record, I'd lodge a
3 A. Yes. [ 3 continuing objeciion to this testimany.
4 Q. When did you leave? 4 THE COURT: Thank you.
5 A. After the trooper -- after I provided the 5 BY MS, SCHEIBLE:
6 trooper my statement. é Q. Sayeu can go ahead and answer the question
7 Q. Okay. So you have given us a very good 7 about a summary, from beginning to end, what you saw
8 understanding of what happened. 8 the car doing.
9 MR, MUELLER: Objection. It's not a 9 A. 1T was exiting the freeway, and I came to a
10 question. 10 complete stop. I had a red light. Then I saw a
11 MS. SCHEIBLE: There's a question here. 11 vehicle approach, proceeded to move forward, passing
12 THE COURT: Go ahead. 12 the red light, went over a2 median, going against
13 BY MS. SCHEIBLE: 13 incoming traffic, going over another set of -~ 1
14 ). We have gone step by step through what you 14 don't know If it's called a "median,” but it was
15 observed, and I want to make sure that we didn't miss 15 rocks == finally hitting an electric pole. A female
16 anything. So I'm going to ask you, fram the time 16 came out of the vehicle, stumbled, went around the
17 that you first noticed this car, to the time it was {17 car, went back in the car.
18 pulled aver, can you just narrate for us what you 118 I left the scene. I flagged down a
19 observed the car doing. 19 cruiser, and then I followed the cruiser onto the
20 MR. MUELLER: Objection. Narrative 20 freeway. NHP arrived, wrote down a statement, and
21 testimony. You can't have narrative testimony, 21  went to my next destination.
22 THE COURT: Any response? 22 MS. SCHEIBLE: I have no further
23 MS. SCHEIBLE: Why not? 23 questions -- oh, I'm sorry. I do have one maore
24 THE COURT: What's the response to the 24 question for this witness.
258 objection other than "Why not"? 25 /7t
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1 BY MS5. SCHEIBLE: 1 A. 10:00, £1:00 o'clack.
2 Q. 1If you know, did this all happen in ‘ 2 Q. Now, when you saw the vehicle driving
3 Clark County, Nevada? | 3 erratically, how far away from it were you?
4 A. Yes, it did. 4 A.  Are we talking feet?
5 MS. SCHEIBLE: I have no further questions. 5 Q. Distance. Just a football field away?
6 THE COURT: Thank you, Ms. Scheible, 6 10 feet away? How far away were you?
7 MR. Mugeller. ‘ 7 A. T was from here to the second exit.
8 8 Q. So I'm walking towards the back of the
9 CROSS-EXAMINATION 8 courtroom now. So you're about this far away or
10 BY MR. MUELLER: 10 through the double doors away?
11 £). Sir, you're 2 fong way from home. 11 A. The second door.
12 What were you doing down in Henderson from 12 Q. Al right. S0 you agree about 60, maybe
%3 North Las Vegas? 13 about 55, 60 feet?
14 MS. SCHEIBLE: Objection. Relevance, { 14 A. I'm notan expert on --
15 THE COURT: Mr. Mueller. 15 @. Al right. And at no time did you get out
16 MR. MUELLER: It's cross-examination. I'm |16 of your car to assist the driver of the vehicle?
17 entitled to find out where he's coming to and where 17 A. I was worried about my safety.
18 he was golng to, how he saw things. 18 Q. Worried about your safety?
19 THE COURT: Overruled. 19 A. Yes.
20 BY MR. MUELLER: 20 Q. And how jong did you observe this vehicle
2 Q. What were you doing down inn Henderson, sir? 21 before you elecked to call the police?
22 A. Gambling, 22 A. Five, ten minutes,
23 Q. Gambling, Had you had a couple drinks? 23 Q. Five to ten minutes. Five, ten minutes.
24 A. Neo. . 24  So you looked at the car for a long time?
25 Q. pid you have anything to drink at all while | A. If that's what you call a "long time,” five
38 40
4 you were gambling? 1 minutes.
2 A. While gambling? 2 Q. Allright. And where was your car paried
3 Q. Yes, sir. 3 for those five to ten minutes?
4 A. Yes, Idid. 4 A. I was atthe red light.
5 Q. Okay. wWhat did you have to drink? 5 Q. Okay. Did you sit through a red light
] A. Alcohol. 6 cyde, or did you pull off the side of the road?
7 Q. Okay. Are you a beer drinker? Have shots? 7 A. When she went over the median, I wag at the
B8 What do you drink? 8 red light, trying to make a right turn.
g A. Abeer. ] Q. Aliright. So when the light turned, did
10 Q. Abeer. What time did you -- and what 10 you get on the highway?
11 casino did you go to, si? 11 A. I was sxiting the highway.
12 A. Green Valloy Ranch. 12 Q. You were exiting the highway?
13 Q. And what time did you get there about, 13 A, Correct.
14 approximately? 14 Q. So you didn"t - you just sat there waiting
15 A. It was evening hours., 15 for the light and then drove off?
16 Q. Evening hours. What time did you leave? 16 A. No. I made a U-turn to «- and went back
17 A. From my house? 17 towards the vehicle that passed the red light.
18 Q. No. The casino, to go. When you left 18 Q. HNaow, the vehicle was able to get moving
19 Green Valley Ranch, were yvou going to head back up to 19 again all by itself; correct?
20 North Las Vegas? 20 Nobody needed to push it?
pa A. It was dark outside. 21 A. No.
22 €. Okay. 8:00 o'clock at night? 9:00 o'clock 22 Q. Nobody needed to tow it?
23  atnight? 23 A. No.
24 A. 10:00 p.m., estimate. 24 Q. Now, did you see what happened before the
25 Q. You estimate about 10:00 p.m.? |25 vehicle went over the median?
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1 A. Can you repeat the question. 1 THE WITNESS: My first name is Greg,
2 Q. Did you see what happened, if anything, 2 G-R-E-G. Last name, Luna, L-LJ-N-A.
3 before the vehicle went over the median? 3 THE CLERK: Thank you. You can have a seat.
4 A. Isaw a car pass a red light. 4 THE COURT: Thank you, Trooper.
5 ). OKkay. But did you -- was this in your 5 Ms. Scheible, you can go ahead and proceed.
6 rearview mirrar? It would have been -- as you're 8 MR. SCHEIBLE: Thank you.
7 sitting there, would the car be going past you? 7
8 A. I passed me on my side, on the driver’s 8 Thersupon --
9 side. ] GREG LUNA,
10 Q. On the driver's side. 10 having been first duly sworn to testify to the
11 So it went through. You're sitting there 11 truth, was examined and testified as follows:
412 at the light; vehicle went passed you on the left? 12
13 A. Correct. 13 DIRECT EXAMINATION
14 Q. All right. Now, did it go over the median 14 BY MS. SCHEIBLE:
15 behind you or in front of you? 15 Q. Officer Luna, how are you?
16 A. In front. 16 A. Good, ma'am.
17 Q. How far out? 17 Q. And where do you work?
13 A. It was from here to where those -- those |18 A. I work for Nevada Highway Patrol.
19 doors. I'm not sure what they're called. 19 Q. How long have you been with Nevada Highway
20 MR, MUELLER: QOkay. 20 Patrol?
29 THE COURT: And for the record, we have 21 A. Now, about over three years.
22 measured the doors. They're 25 feet away. 22 Q. And what do you do for the highway patrol?
23 We have measured the door at the very back | 23 A. T work traffic.
24 too, but it's torn off. Ican't see. 24 Q. Are you a uniformed officer?
25 MR. MUELLER: That's 25 feet. 25 A. Yes, ma'am,
42 44
1 THE CQURT: 25 feet? 1 Q. Are you a peace officer?
2 MR. MUELLER: I would have guessed a little 2 A. Yes, ma'am.
3 longer. Ali right. Thanks, Judge. 3 Q. And what do your job duties entaif?
4 I have nothing further. 4 A. My job duties include enforcing traffic
5 THE COURT: Wonderful. Thank you, 5§ laws, solving crash investigations. Anything like
§ Mr. Mueller. Ms. Scheible. 6 that,
7 7 Q. Okay. And were you working on
8 REDIRECT EXAMINATION 8 September 10th of 20187
g BY MS. SCHEIBLE: g A. Yes, ma‘am.
10 Q. Just to clarify, when you say that you saw a 10 Q. And on September 10th of 2018, were you
14 car pass you and run a red light, that was the same 11 called out to a scene near the 215 and Green Valley
12 black car that ended up hitting the pole when you had |42 Ranch?
13 pulled over; right? 13 A. Yes, ma'am.
14 A. Yes. 14 Q. Do you remember going out to that scene?
15 MS. SCHEIBLE: I have nothing further. 15 A. Yes, ma‘am.
16 THE COURT: Mr. Mueller. 18 Q. And to your knowledge, is that here in
17 MR. MUELLER: Nothing further. 17 Clark County, Nevada?
18 THE COURT: All right. Thank you, 18 A. Yes, ma'am.
19 Mr. Risco. Appreciate your testimony. Thank you 19 Q. When you got there, did you see anybady who
20 for your patience here today. 20 you see in the courtroom today?
21 THE WITNESS: Thank you. 21 A. Yes, ma'am.
22 {Witness swom.) 22 Q. And can you point out that person, identify
23 THE WITNESS: I do. 23 an article of clothing he or she is wearing.
24 THE CLERK: Thank you. Can you state your |24 A. It's the young miss with the white striped
25 first and last name, for the record, please. |28 shirt, sitting next to him. |
PAOOBO53:07:38 AM
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1 MS. SCHEIBLE: May the record reflect 1 Q. Okay. So cthey weren't, for lack of a term,
2 identification of the defendant. | 2 oassigned to this call?
3 THE COURT: Yes. 3 A. No, ma‘am.
4 BY MS. SCHEIBLE: 4 Gl But you were assigned to the call?
5 &. And when you made contact with the 5 A. Yes, ma'am.
6 defendant, where was she? ] Q. And so when you're assigned to a call, what
7 A. She was seated in the driver's seat of 7 is your job on that scene?
8 wvehicle, 8 A. If I'm assigned to, let's say it's a
j Q. Okay. Do you remember what kind of vehicle 8 wvehicle --
189 it was? 10 {Repotter request.)
1 A. I racall that it was a black sedan. 11 THE WITNESS: My apologies.
12 Q. And she was in the driver's seat? 12 If I'm assigned to a call, the call
13 A. Yes, ma'am. 13 specified was a vehicle crash. So rmy goal is to
14 Q. If you know, why were you called out to this 14 find the car that was involved and see if anybody
15 scene? 15  was injured or find out if there's any rcadway marks
16 MR. MUELLER: Objection. Hearsay. 16 or damaged paris or anything in the area.
17 MS. SCHEIBLE: Ii's not offered for the 17 BY MS, SCHEIBLE:
18 truth of the matter. It's offered for why he 18 Q. And is that what you did in this case?
49 understood to be that he was going out there, 19 A. Yes, ma'am.
20 THE COURT: Overruled. 20 Q. And so what's the first thing you do to try
21 THE WITNESS: I was -- [ apologize. 21 1o ascertain that information?
22 1 was dispatched to the vehicle crash 22 A. Iwould have to look at what were the
23 occurring at the intersection of Green Valley 23 details of the call. For instance, X recall it was
24 Parkway and the 215. 24 a black sedan that struck a light pole. SoI'm
25 /77 25 looking for a black sedan that may have front-end
N 46 48
1 BY MS. SCHEIBLE: 1 damagss.
2 Q. Okay. And when you got there, who also is 2 Q. And is that what you saw when you responded
3 present? 3 to the 215 and Green Valley Ranch?
4 A. When I arvived around the scene, therewas | 4 A. Yes, ma'am.
5 constiuction workers around, and then I belisve 5 Q. And that's where the defendant was behind
6 there was Hendevrson police officers that was behind | 6 the wheel?
7 the black sedan, 7 A. Yes, ma‘am.
8 Q. Okay. Were there any witnesses present? 8 Q. So when did you approach the driver's side
9 A. That, I can't remember. 8§ of the car?
10 Q. Okay. When you first arrived on the scene, 10 A. Atter I parked behind Henderson police, T
11  what's the first thing that you did? 11  walked up to the left side of her car, and then
12 A. When I arrived on scene, I spoke with the 12 that's when I started talking to her.
13 Henderson police officars. 1 asked them what was 13 Q. Okay. Was there anybody else in the car?
14 goling on, They told me that they puiied -- 14 A. No, ma'am.
15 MR. MUELLER: Objection. Hearsay. 15 Q. So what did you do next?
16 BY MS. SCHEIBLE: 16 A. After that, I looked -- I wantad to make
17 Q. You don't have to tell us what they said. 17 sure that was actually the vehicle. I [ooked to the
18 But you conversed with the Henderson police 18 front of the car. There was a dent on the left
18 officers? 19 f{roat. There was also dirt particles around the
20 A. Yes, ma‘am. 20 left front tire that was very, vary recent as to
3 Q. And had thay been called out -- if you know, 21  like she went off road like several minutes before.
22 had they been calied out to the scene or just 22 Then from there, I tatkad to her, and I took over
23 happened to be there? 23 the investigation from Henderson.
24 A. I balisve they just happened {0 be there, 24 Q. Okay. You said before that you didn't
25 but T don't recall. [ 256 remember speaking to any witnesses. .
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1 Do you remember If you took any witness 1 usually smell from inside the vehicle, see if it's
2 statements? 2 DUI related, the only thing that X smelled was like
3 MR. MUELLER: Objection. Asked and 3 food. But there was a Chinese bag that was sitting
4 answered. He just said he doesn't remember. 4  there right in the right passenger seat. After
5 M3, SCHEIBLE: T'm asking if he took any 5 that, I tried to get her story. I remembaer she told
6 statements, not if he remembers the witnesses that &€ mo she didn't hit anything. She was heading home,
7 he talked to. 1 want to be clear hete, 7 eastbound on the 215 towards Henderson.
8 THE COURT: Overruled. 8 MR. MUELLER: Objection. Has the witness
g THE WITNESS: I don't remember taking a 8 been -~ never mind. Tll withdraw that, and Il
10 statement. 18 wait for cross.
11 BY MS, SCHEIBLE: 11 THE COURT: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Mueller.
12 Q. Okay. If I showed you a copy of a statement 12 You may proceed.
13 provided on the scene, might that help refresh your 13 THE WITNESS: Thank you.
14 recollection? 14 She told me that she was heading eastbound
15 MR. MUELLER: Objection. Facts not in 18 on the 215, towards her home in Henderson, but where
16 evidence. There's been no evidence that a statement 16 Henderson police pulled her over was going
17  was taken at the scene. 17  westhound. And from there, I asked her again. She
18 THE COURT: Okay. And this is just to | 18  was very adamant that she was still going easthound.
19 refresh his recollection? 19 BY MS., SCHEIBLE:
20 MS. SCHEIBLE; Yeah. 20 . Okay. And did she seem impaired to you at
21 THE COURT: wWhy don't you go ahead and show 21 the time?
22 that to Mr. Mueller, 22 A. From -- she was sitting in the right --
23 MS. SCHEIBLE: Oh, I'm sorry. 23 since she was seated in the car, I could only smell
24 THE COURT: OQther than that, objection 24 the food. The only thing I could notice was that
25 overruled, 25 she had flesh eyes, glassy.
50 52
1 THE WITNESS: Yes, ma'am, [ recognize this 1 Q. So did vou ask her to exit the vehicle?
2 statement, but this was given to me after my 2 A. Yes.
3 investigation. 3 Q. And how did that go?
4 MR. MUELLER: I'm sorry. I didn't hear 4 A. I told her exit out the vehide. I brought
§ that, Trooper. 5 ter to the front of my patrol vehicle, where I
] THE COURT; I didn't elther. 6 managed to talk to her. When I was clioser to her,
7 THE WITNESS: 1 recognize this statement, 7 that's when I was able to smell an unknown
8 but this was given to me after my investigation. § intoxicating beverage emitting on her breath, and
9 THE COURT: Oh. 8 then when I saw her eyes closaer, they appeared to be
10 BY MS. SCHEIBLE: 10 glassy, bloodshot, and watery.
" Q. So did you talk to the person who wrote that 11 8. And so at that point, did you conduct some
12 statement? 12 field sobriety tests?
13 A. No, ma‘am. 13 A. Yes, ma'am.
14 Q. Okay. Do you know who took that statement? 14 Q. How many field sobriety tests are you
15 A, At the bottom, thera's 3 signature. It was 15 trained in?
16 Trooper Pico. P-number 368. 16 A. There's only three tests.
17 {3. Okay. And then did you add it to your file? 17 Q. Okay. And did you perform -
18 A. Yes, ma'am, 18 What three tests are those?
19 Q. Okay. So on the scene, when you encountered 19 A. 1It's the whole -~ first test is
2G the defendant behind the wheel, what's the next thing 20 horizantal-gaze nystagmus; the second is walk and
21 that you did? 21 turn, and the third is one {eg stand.
22 A. From there, I would ask her how, like if 22 Q. And did you have the defendant perform all
23 she was involved in it. I remember asking her if 23 three of those?
24 she hit anything. She told me she didn't hit 24 A. From what I recall, we onily did
26 anything. From my first observations, when £ try to 26 horizontal-gaze nystagmus.
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4 . Okay. Would taking a look at your report 1 A. She lackea ~- she showed lack of smooth
2 help refresh your recollection? 2 pursult in both eyes. Onset prior, 45 degrees, both
3 MR. MUELLER: Objection. He testified that 3 eyes and maximum deviation, which was then sustained
4 he doesn't recollect. 4 for both eyes,
5 THE COURT: Objection. OQverruled. 5 Q. So six out of six clues, What did you do
6 She's just seeing if this would refresh his 6 next?
7 recollection at this time, 7 A. From there, after that, T asked if she
8 MR, MUELLER: Counsel, may 1 see what 8 would consent to preliminary breath test. She
9 vyou're showing the witnass, plaase. 9 agreed.
14 MS. SCHEIBLE: It's his report. | 10 Q. And how is the preliminary breath test
11 MR. MUELLER: I object to the witness being i1 conducted?
12 shown this report until and unless he's testified 12 A. The preliminary breath test is conducted
13 that he recorded sorme information that he no longer 13 using our prefiminary breath test machine which, at
14 recollects and this report Is necessary to refresh 14 the time, I was issued s Draeger --
15 his recollection. Nothing has been sald to lay the 15 MR. MUELLER: Objection. As to the
16 foundation, Your Honor, 16 evidence of the PBT being admitted into evidence as
17 THE COURT: Any response, Ms. Scheible? 17  inadmissible.
18 MS. SCHEIBLE; [ think he said that, as far 18 THE COURT: 1understand. Any response?
19  as he recalls, he only did the one field sobriety 19 MS. SCHEIBLE: I'm just asking him what he
20 test, which indicates to me that he could use 20 did. I'm not -~
21 refreshing of his recoliection. 21 THE COURT: My understanding of the
22 THE COURT: And this is only being used for 22 question was "How is that done?"
23 the purpose of refreshing his recollection? 23 MS. SCHEIBLE: Right.
24 MS. SCHEIBLE: That is absolutely correct, 24 THE COURT: Overruled.
25 Your Honer. 25 THE WITNESS: When I administered her
54 56
1 MR. MUELLER: The purpose to show spmeone a 1 preliminary breath test, the machine that I was
2 report is to refresh recollection, not to get out 2 Issued is a Draeger device. 1use a clean straw. 1
3 testimony that the witnhess did not -- not to coach 3 tum It on. Iask her—
4 the witness what to say. 4 MR, MUELLER: I ohject to the results of
8 THE COURT: Thank you, Mr. Mueller. 5 the preliminary breath test coming Into evidence.
] Objection overruled. ] THE COURT: And I don't believe he's giving
7 BY MS, SCHEIBLE: 7 results, It sounds to me like he's telling us how
B Q. Here. And look up when you're done. 8 it's done.
9 A. (Witness complies.} 9 MS. SCHEIBLE: Correct.
10 Q. Does that refresh your recollection? 10 THE COURT: ODbjectlon overruled.
11 A. Yes, ma‘am. 11 THE WITNESS: I put a clean straw in the
12 & So how many field sobriety tests did you 12 device. Itum the device on. I asked Ms. Plumlee
13  issue? 13  to blow into the maching as though she was blowing &
14 A. Only ons, ma‘am. 14 balloon. When she blows into it, the machine makes
15 Q. I'm sorry? 15 out atone. Once It gets enough sample size, it
16 A. Only one test, 16 stops and gives me the sample of her breath.
17 G). And that was the horizontal-gaze nystagmus 17 BY MS. SCHEIBLE:
18 test? 18 Q. And what do you do with -- so it gives you
19 A. Yes, ma'am. 18 the sample of her breath. Does It do any kind of
20 3. And how did she perform on the test? 20 analysis of it?
21 A. she showad six out of six clues. 21 A, Itshows me the results of her BAC, just
22 . And do you know what those six clues are, 22 preliminary.
23 off the top of your head? 23 Q. ©Okay. And 50 a preliminary breath test is
24 A. Yes. 24 distinct from a breath test; right?
25 Q. What are they? 25 A. TYes.
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1 Q. Can you explain the difference, 1 A, No.
2 A. The difference is when - if I were to 2 Q. Okay. Did you read "Miranda” at any point?
3 arrest her for DUI and she chose 5 breath test, if I 3 A. Mo.
4 would take her to & testing facility that has an 4 Q. Did somebody else read "Miranda™?
5 evidentiary breath test machine, which is the 5 A. No.
6 Intoxilyzer, which X did at Henderson, b Q. Okay. Is there a particular reason?
7 Q. Okay. $o the preliminary breath test, is 7 A. I wasn't charging her for anything other
8 It, in your experience, reliable? 8 than DUL I had no reason to read her "Miranda.”
2} A. I¥s mostly just to determine whether 9 Q. Okay. And so when you arrested her -~ you
10 there's drugs involved. 10 arrested her; right?
k! Q. Okay. And what did the preliminary breath 11 A. Yes.
12 test indicate in this instance? 12 0. Did you place her in handcuffs?
13 MR. MUELLER: Objection. That's the third 13 A. Yes.
14 time she's asked for the results of the preliminary 14 €. Did you place her in your vehicle?
15 breath test. It's not admissible. 15 A. Yes.
16 "THE COURT: Now we're looking at the 16 Q. And you read her the evidentiary test card
17 results. 17 from your traffic; right?
18 MS. SCHEIBLE: Correct, Your Honor. 18 A. Yes.
19 It's the first time I'm asking for the 19 Q. And then are you the one who transported her
20 results of the test. I've laid adequate foundation 2D to the Henderson Detentlon Center?
21 that I'm not using it to show that the defendant was 21 A. Yes, ma‘am.
22 per se intoxicated but to understand what the 22 €. Any conversation in the car?
23 officer did next and why. 23 A. Not that X can recall.
24 MR. MUELLER: "Inadmissible” is not a word 24 Q. Okay. And was there anybody else in the
25 susceptible to ambiguity. It is inadmissible. |25 car?
58 60
1 She’s seeking, repeatedly seeking the admission of 1 A. No, ma‘am.
2 inadmissible evidence. It's blackletter faw, 2 2.  And when you got to the Handerson Detention
3 MS. SCHEIBLE: It is inadmissible for the 3 Center, what did you do?
4 purposes of showing per se intoxication, which is 4 A. When I got to Henderson Detention Center, I
5 not why I'm admitting it. I'm asking for it to be 5 got her stuff == since she chose a breath test, 1
# admitted to show what the officer did next and why. 6 took her to the Intoxilyzer machine at Henderson
7 Perfectly admissible, 7 jail, and that's when I began my observation period
8 THE COURT: For that purpose, limited 8 and followed a checklist for the device.
9 purpose only. Overruled. 8 MS, SCHEIBLE: All right. Can I get some
10 MR. MUELLER: 1 object and move for a 180 things premarked, Sorry. [ should have done this
11  mistrial, Judge. 11 so much earlier. Showing defense counsel what's
12 THE COURT: Denied. 12 been marked strictly for identification purposes as
13 THE WITNESS: Are you asking for the 13 state's 1 and 2.
14 resuits, Miss? 14 {Whereupon State’s Exhibit 1 and 2 were
15 BY MS, SCHEIBLE: 15 marked for ldentification.)
16 Q. Yes, Iam. 16 MS. SCHEIBLE: May I approach the witness,
17 A, 1do bhelieve it was over .0B. 17 Your Honor.
18 Q. Okay. And at that point, what did you do? 18 THE COURT: Yes.
| 19 A. AFer that point, I arrested her for 19 BY MS, SCHEIBLE:
20 driving under the influence of alcohol. I scated 20 Q. Officer, showing you what's been marked for
21  her in my patrol vehicle. I read her my NHP-issued 21 identification purposes as State’s Exhibit 1, do you
22 evidentiary test card. She stated she understood 22 recognize that piece of paper?
23 and chose a breath test. 23 A. Yes. Irecognize this as the Intoxilyzer
24 €. And did you also read her "Miranda" at that 24 8000 Checklist. X recognized this through my
25 point? 25 handwriting signature at the bottom with the subject
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1 being Jennifer Plumlee, 1  me the resuits or everything.
2 Q. And is that a checklist that you fllled out 2 MS. SCHEIBLE: May I approach the witness.
3 vyourself? 3 THE COURT: Yes. Let's see what
4 A. Yes, ma’am. 4 Mr, Mueller -~
§ Q. Does this look like the original or a copy? 5 MR. MUELLER: I'm going to ask the Court
] A. This looks like -~ actually, it looks like § not to receive the results of the test until it's
7 the original. 7 been established the machina was properly calibrated
] Q. Okay. And it appears exactly the same as 8 and working.
8 you filled it out? 8 THE COURT: And I want to make you see what
10 A, Yes, ms'am. 10 she's going to hand him. I don't know what it Is.
14 MS. SCHEIBLE: Move for admission of the 11 MR. MUELLER: She showed it to me, Judge.
12 Breathalyzer Checklist. 12 MS, SCHEIBLE: It's Exhibit 2.
13 THE COURT: Any objections, Mr. Muelfer? 13 THE COURT: Oh, you did see it. Okay.
14 MR. MUELLER: No objection to the 14 MS. SCHEIBLE: VYes.
18 checklist. 15 THE COURT: You can approach the witness,
16 THE COURT: Thank you. So admitted. 16 1 don't know from there. We'll make that objection
17 And that's marked as State's Proposed 17 when it's time.
18 exhibit what. | 18 BY MS. SCHEIBLE:
19 MS. SCHEIBLE: One, Your Honor. 19 Q. And looldng at State's Exhibit 2, is that
20 {Whereupon State's Exhibit No. 1 was 20 the breath strip that you were just -~
21 admitted into evidence.) 21 Excuse me?
22 MS. SCHEIBLE: Are you ready? 22 MR, MUELLER: The Judge just invited me up
23 THE COURT: Yes. 23 to come take a look at it
24 BY MS. SCHEIBLE: 24 THE COURT: That's fine.
25 Q. Can you explain for us what the checklist 28 ///
62 64
1 is. 1 BY M5, SCHEIBLE:
2 A. The checklist is the means of how to 2 Q. Is that the breath test you were just
3 operate the Intoxilyzer 8000. There's a period ' 3 referring to?
4 where I'm suppoged to observe the subject for 4 A. Yes, The breath "strip.”
5 15 minutes before continuing the test. During that, 5 Q. The breath “strip.* Thank you.
£ I'm observing her, whether she's regurgilating, 6 And is it the original or a copy?
7 swallowing anything, or if there's any foreign 7 A. Thisis a copy.
8 object in her mouth. From there, that's when I 8 Q. Does it look exactly the same as the
9 continue on with the test where the machine starts 8 orlginal did?
10 to power up, where I could obtain two samples of her |10 A. Yes, ma'am,
11 breath. 11 (. Fair and accurate depiction?
12 Q. And anything unusual in your 15-minute 12 A. Yes, ma'am.
13 cbservation period? 13 Q. And this is the one that was -- is it
14 A. No, ma‘am. 14 printed out by the machine itself?
15 Q. So you administered the test then? 1§ A. Itis
16 A. Yes, maam. 16 Q. Kind of like a receipt at a cash register?
17 Q. And I think you already said that you have 17 A. Yes, ma'am.
18 1o do two breath tests? 18 Q. Okay. And that was printed out from this
19 A. Yes, ma'am. 19 Intoxiltyzer, and then you physically took it?
20 Q. And does she complete both breath tests? 20 A. Ves.
21 A. Yes, ma‘am. 21 Q. And that's a printout of what you got?
22 €). And did you receive some kind of indication 22 A. Yes.
23  of the results? 23 MS. SCHEIBLE: Okay. I will move for
24 A. At the end of the testing, the machine 24 admission of State's Exhibit 2.
25 would print out the breath strip, which would show 25 MR. MUELLER: I'd ask the Court to reserve
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1 a ruling until it's establishad the machine was 4 MS, SCl!lcuﬂLE: 1 have nothing further for
2 properly operating. 2 this witness.
3 THE COURT: That's fine. 3 THE COURT: Wonderful. Thank you,
4 MR. MUELLER: And also so I have a chance 4 Ms. Scheible. Mr. Mueller.
5 to cross-examine the witness. 5
6 THE COURT: That's fine. We'll walt until ] CROSS-EXAMINATION
7 after cross-examination. That's what I intended to 7 BY MR. MUELLER:
8 do. 8 Q. Trooper Luna, at no time in question did vou
8 MS. SCHEIBLE: Well, Your Honor. I think 8 see the black sedan move?
10 that it can be admitted because it is the strip that 10 A. Na, sir.
11  was produced from the Intoxilyzer. Whether or not k)] Q. And when you arrived, was the person in the
12 the Intoxilyzer was functioning properly is another 12 black sedan free to leave?
13 question. But I don't think there's any question as 13 A. She was pulled over by Henderson police for
14 to what resules it produced at that time. 14 a traffic violation.
15 That's the strip that was printed by the 15 Q. That's not what [ asked, Trooper.
18 machine, as Officer Luna saw it, read it, picked it 16 A. No.
17 up, held it in his hand. So it should be admitted 17 Q. She was not free to leave.
18 into evidence. 18 All right. So you were investigating a
18 THE COURT: I understand that. We'll wait 19 crime, a misdemeanor, which you did not witness:
20 until after cross-examination. I always do that. 20 correct?
21 BY MS. SCHEIBLE: 21 A. Correct.
22 Q. Okay. And can you telf the Court what the 22 Q. And she was not free to leave; correct?
23 results were of the breath test. 23 A. Correct.
24 A. Yes, ma’'am. For the resulis, the first 24 Q. So before you began talking to her, did you
25 test showad a BAC of .161. For the sacond test, it 25 read her the "Miranda” decislon?
86 68 |
1 showaed .155. 1 A. No.
2 MR. MUELLER: Objection. Court just said 2 Gl. No? Did you ask her questions based on what
3 "We're going to hold off admitting the resuits until 3 the other officers had told you?
4 after cross-examination,” until he calibrated it. 4 A. No.
5 Yeah. 5 @. You didn't ask her any questions?
] THE COURT: And we'll see if we're going to 6 A. I asked her questions but my questions. I
7 strike that or go forward with it. If we strike it, 7 didn't ask her questions relating to why Henderson
8 certainly it's something substantial, and I'f allow 8 pulled her over.
9 you to make your cross-examination and see how we 9 Q. Allright. Well, the Hendersan police
10 can hangle that since it's not been admitted. 10 offlcers were still present; correct?
11 MR. MUELLER: All right. Thank you, Judge. 11 A. Yes.
12 BY MS. SCHEIBLE: 12 Q. What was their names?
13 Q. And when you observed those results, what 13 A. I don't recall their names.
14 did you do? 14 Q. How long had they been there?
15 A. After thosa rasults, I finished my 15 A. For the whole scene of maybe about
16 Arrest Report for har.. 16 15 minutes,
17 Q. And was she taken into custody or rernained 17 Q. 15 minutes. So they had been there
18 In custody? 18 15 minutes prior to your arrivai?
19 A. And she was taken by Henderson Detention |19 A. Idon't recall how long that was.
20 Center. 20 Q. You don't recall,
21 MS. SCHEIBLE: Okay. Would you like these, 24 Well, you've got your breath strip there on
22 Your Honor? 22 the witness stand, don't you?
23 THE COURT: Not vet. 23 A, Ido.
24 MS. SCHEIBLE: Okay. Brief indulgence. 24 Q. Allright. If you don't know how long and
25 THE COURT: Yes. 25 vyou knaw they were there at least 15 minutes, then
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1 this breath sample is outside of two hours then, 1 Thank yuu, Trooper. Appreciate your
2 isn'tif? 2 patience and thank you for coming back.
3 A. Idon't -~ I would have to fock at my, the 3 MR. MUELLER: And before the Court -- my
4 whole point of the call, sir. The time frame where | 4 colleague calls her next witness, may I have a
5 it took from when I received the call, romwhen I | 5§ moment to make a motion,
& arrived at the scene, 3 THE COURT: Absociutely. Give me just a
7 @Q. All right. Trooper, you've been on the 7 second. Ckay. Mr. Mueller,
8 patrol now going on three years? 8 MR. MUELLER: Thank vou, Your Honor.
8 A. Correct. 9 I'm going to move to strike the trooper's
10 Q. Did you do a field sobriety workshest? 10 testimony and the breath test. Specifically, he
1M A. Ido not know what that is. 11 comes in contact with a withess, who's not free to
12 Q. Where you check the boxes and interview the |42 leave, to investigate a misdemeanor that he did not
13 questions, all the questions you ask a suspected 13 see. You have custodial Interrcgation, and you have
14 drunk driver? 14 the investigation of a crime, which impiicates
15 A. Idid not. 15 "Miranda.” There was no “Miranda" decision read.
16 €. Okay. So you didn't ask her if she had any 16 In fact, my colleague starting fishing
17 medical conditions? 17 around on direct examination seeing if he knew of
18 A. For field sobriety testing, before that, I 18 anybody that actually read her the "Miranda"
19 ask that. But if you're asking me like if I follow 19 decision, and the answer was no. So she gave him a
20 a certain worksheet that shows what clues are. I |20 second opportunity to talk about, "Did you read her
21 dor't do that. I make notes on it, on my notepad. 21 the 'Miranda’ decision?” No. “You didn't see her
22 Q. All right. Do you have your notepad with 22 driving?" No. "So you're investigating a crime
23 you? ‘ 23 that did not occur in your presence, in a custodial
24 A. Not related to this case. |24 interrogation”? Yes.
25 Q. Not related to this case. | 25 Now, blackletter law, which she's going to
70 ' 72
1 So how many DUI arrasts have you done now, ‘ 1t recite to you, is that you don't need to read the
2 Trooper? 2 “"Miranda” decision If you are investigating a DUI,
3 A. Ilost count. 3 and that's correct. You don't, if you were the
4 Q. Dozens? l 4 primary officer making the traffic stop. 1 see you
5 A. More than that. 5 driving, pulled over, I get out, I'm pretty sure
& Q. Hundreds? | & you're drunk, but I'm going to do a field sobriety
7 A. Maybe a little more than that. | 7 test anyway and ask a few questions. That's okay.,
8 Q. Okay. Now, after about three years, | 8 That's black letter law. That's not what happened
9 imagine after awhile, it's a job. Things start 9 here.
10 looking a lot like each other, don't they? 10 This is I come up to someone who's not free
11 A. No, sir. 11 1o leave, in custody, and [ start interrogating them
12 €. You can't remember the details of every 12 about whether they've committed a crime. That
13 particular case, do you? 13 requires a "Miranda” decision and, specifically,
14 A. I would have to refresh my memory. 14 since it was a interagency pass-off, The trooper
15 Cl. So the answer is no, you don't remember the |15 doesn't even testify as to the names of the
16 details? 16 Henderson police officers.
17 A. I doremember the details of this though. |17 So respectfully, the "Miranda” decision is
18 Q. Yes, sir. Did you take any photographs at 18 implicated here. It wasn't read. The conversation,
19 the scene, sir? 19 the subseguent fruit of the poisonous tree, breath
20 A. 1believe I did. 1 don't recall though, 120 testis all illegal, and we move to suppress it and
21 MR. MUELLER; I have nothing further. 121 ask it be stricken from evidence.
22 THE COURT:; Wonderful. Thank you, 22 THE COURT: Thank you, Mr. Mueller.
23 Mr, Mueller. Ms. Scheible, anything on redirect? 23 Ms. Scheible,
24 MS. SCHEIBLE: Nothing, Your Honor, 24 MS. SCHEIBLE: The "Miranda" decision
25 THE COURT: Wonderful. Thank you. 25 addresses defendant’s statements during a custodial
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1 interrogation, and here we don't have any 1 leave. If she h;u driven off, they'd have given
2 statements, and we don't even have custodial 2 chase, and she'd have gone to jail for felony
3 interragation. The fact of the matter is that 3 evasion. So she is not free to leave., Make no
4 Trooper Luna was assigned to this call, and he was 4 mistake about that. Now the State wants to have it
5 conducting a DUI investigation. The defendant was, § both ways. That Implicates the "Miranda" decision,
6 in fact, not in custady, and she was not under 6 That'sit. In custody, custodial interrogation,
7 interrogation. She was simply pulled over on the 7 investigating a crime. The only inkling he gets
8 side of the road. That she had been stopped at a 8 thatit's a DUI case is after she's out of the car
9 traffic violation, which then escalated to a DUI is 8 and then he thinks he smelis alcohol, He gives her
10 actually rather common and doesn't implicate 148 an HGN, and that's it.
11 "Miranda” at all. There's law that Indicates that 1 So the answer is is, Your Honor, this is a
412 doing a DUI investigation does not require reading 12 "Miranda” case. It's blackletter law, and It should
13 "Miranda." 13 be suppressed. Breath sample gets suppressed and
14 And so in this case, the officer who just 14 everything he learns after he arrests her gets
18 testified was not relying on any kind of statements 15 suppressed.
16 made by the defendant after she was arrested, after 16 THE COURT: Thank you, Mr. Mueller,
17 she was not free to leave that were coerced or that 17 Any response, Ms. Scheible?
18 were otherwise procured when there should have been |18 MS. SCHEIBLE: Yes, two things. First of
19 a "Miranda” waming. Because there was no point at 19 all, I do want to note that while Trooper Luna was
20 which she needed a "Miranda™ warning in order to 20 called out to Investigate, the report said that it
21 make any statements or to cooperate with the field 21 was a vehicle crash. That doesn't mean that he is
22 sobriety test, 22 limited to investigating a vehicle crash or that
23 And so 1 don't think that we have an issue 23 that is the only reason that he's there. Thisis
24 of suppressible evidence or evidence that needs to 24 clearly a DUI stop. By the time that Trooper Luna
26 be suppressed. We have an issue here where a 26 had removed the defendant from the car and started
74 78
1 trooper responds to a crash scene and does a DUI 1 doing the field sobriety test, this had clearly
2 Investigation. He does not elicit any responses 2 hecome a DUI stap.
3 from the defendant. She is not under arrest. She's 3 The other thing I want to address is really
4 not being interrogated. He's simply performing the 4 the root of "Miranda™ and the purpose of "Miranda,"
§ field sobriety test to determine whether or not she 5 which is it's not like a switch that we flip and we
& has been -- whether or not she is under the & say: Okay. Now we're in the clear -- oops, now
7 influence at the time that she got out of her car, | 7 we're not - oh, now we are, how we're not, What
8 which is completely standard practice, and I would 8 the "Miranda" decision says is that you can't force
9 oppose the motion ko suppress his testimony. 8 somebody to glve you Information when they're in
10 MR, MUELLER: My colleague sgems to have 10 custody and you are interrogating them. It's about
11 forgotten a few key points. He was investigating an 11 the coercive nature of the stop. It's about the
42 automobile accident. There was testimony —- 12 kind of information that you are eliciting from the
13 (The record was read.) 13 defendant.
14 MR. MUELLER: An automobile accident., 14 It's not about whether or not an officer
15 THE REPORTER: Repeat please. 15 has said some magic words in order to complete his
16 MR. MUELLER: Certainly. 16 or her investigation. And in this case, thera Is no
17 My colleague seems to forget a couple of 17 indication that the defendant incriminated herself
18 key points, The testimony from the trooper was he 18 by some kind of trickery on the part of Officer Luna
19 was there to investigate an automobile accident. He 19 or any other officer. Now, don't get me wrong, 1
20 came up and inspected the fender first, saw the 20 think that officers should be reading *Miranda”
21 tires or saw the rocks in the tires, went to the 21 every day of the week, and that's an incredibly
22 window where he did not smeli alcohol. 22 important part of our criminal justice system.
23 Now, she's sitting there, not free to 23 But that does mean that every time that
24 leave. Highway patrol Is there to back up the 24 "Miranda” isn't read or is read later rather than
26 Henderson Police Department. She is not free to 28 sooner or is read too fast or too siow, that the
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1 case automatically gets dismissed because there was 1 magistrate or a juuge and making a determination of
2 nocriminal conduct. What it means is that we have 2  whether or not probable cause existed,
3 to carefully assess whether or not there was any 3 But the fact that she had consented gets us
4 misconduct and whether or not there was any 4 into that factor that she was consenting to it.
5 information gleaned but directly related to the lack 5 Because I do agree with you, Mr. Mueller, had she
6 of a "Miranda" warning that brought the defendant in § not consented and they had done that, we'd have a
7 front of the car In the first place, and vou just 7 real big problem here based on the new standards of
8 don't have that here. 8 iaw that have recently come out.
9 There's no indlcation that if she had been 9 When was that, about four years ago?
10 read "Miranda,” this would have gone in a different 10 MR. MUELI ER: The legislature, four or
11 way or that if she had been read "Miranda,” she 11 less. I think it was three.
42 would not have been intoxicated and behind the 12 THE COURT: Three years ago. Three years
13 wheel. The facts of the case are the facts of the 13 ago. Soif that was the case, then [ agree with
14 case, that she was intoxicated behind the wheel of 14 Mr. Mueller. But my understanding is is that she
15 this car and that Trooper Luna followed his 15 consented; therefore, motion is denied at this time,
18 procedures to remove her from the car, administer 16 unless I get additional information. If I do, I'll
17 the field sobriety test, take her down to Henderson 17 act upon it.
18 Detention Center, administer the breathalyzer test, 18 So we'll go ahead and move forward. So,
419 and that's how we get here today in front of you, 18 M™s. Scheible, you can call your next witness.
20 Your Honor, to discuss the criminal actions of the 20 MS, SCHEIBLE: T call Ms. Lanz to the
21 case. 21 stand. I'm not sure if she's arrived yet.
22 THE COURT: Qkay. Analyzing through this, 22 I'd like to renew my motion to have
23 as far as when Trooper Luna showed up, he's 23 State's 1 and 2 admitted.
24 conducting his preliminary investigation. That's 24 THE COURT: Before we go forward with that,
25 why everything is called "preliminary.” The 25 Ms. Scheibie has renewed her motion to have --
78 80
1 "Miranda® is not triggered at that time when he's 1 No. 1 has been admitted. But it's No. 2, 1
2 doing that, It shows, goes to show what he's going 2 think, that has not been -~
3 to do next as far as the investigation is concerned. 3 MS. SCHEIBLE: No. 2. Sorry. Your Honor.
4 MNow, here's the sticky part: Once he 4 MR. MUELLER: If we can have Ms. Lanz
& determines he's going to arrest her and then he 5 testify first.
€ takes her down to the department and performs the 8 THE COURT: Okay. That's fine.
7 breath test, what is triggered? Yeah, I agree. 7 MR. MUELLER: It might be a dead issue.
8 Because in order if they don't consent, guess what 8 THE COURT: That would be fine.
g happens now? The law has changed. 9 {Witness swarn.)
10 MR. MUELLER: Yes, sir. 10 THE WITNESS: I do.
1 THE COURT: It requires the issuance of a 11 THE CLERK: Thank you.
12 magistrate or a judge to take a look at the matter 12 Can you state and spell your first and last
13 and make a determination on whether or not probable |13 name, please.
14 cause exists in order to administer the test. 14 THE WITNESS: Sure. My name is Darby Lanz,
16 That's when it's triggered, right there, and that's 15 D-A-R-B-Y, L-A-N-Z.
16 what can be used. 18 THE CLERK: Thank you.
17 Here, it's my understanding, correct me if 17 MS. SCHEIBLE: I'm sorry, Your Honor.
18 I'm wrong, is that she consented -- that's my 18 THE COURT: You may proceed, Ms. Scheible.
19 understanding of the testimony — to the breath test 19 MS. SCHEIBLE: If I could get these
20 and didn't resist or refuse to do either a breath or 20 premarkad, That would be three and four.
21 a blood test. At that point, had she done that and P | {(Whereupon State's Exhibit Nos, 3 and 4
22 thevy did it anyway, 100 percent agree with you, the 2 were marked for identification.)
23 case would be dismissed If the "Miranda” Rights 3 77/
24 weren't done or if probable cause was not found 24 /7
25 through the efforts of reviewing the matter with a B ff7
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1 Thereupon -- 1 MS, SCHEIBLE: Are yvou donge with thosa?
2 DARBY LANZ, 2 MR. MUELLER: Uh-huh.
3 having been first duly sworn to testify to the 3 BY MS. SCHEIBLE:
4 truth, was examined and testifled as follows: 4 Q. And did 1 or someone from ry office ask you
5 § to go back and pull the calibration records from this
6 DIRECT EXAMINATICN 8§ Intoxilyzer around that time?
7 BY MS. SCHEIBLE: 7 A. Yes. I provided the calibration before and
8 &}, Ms. Lanz, where do you work? .‘ 8 the calibration after.
9 A. Iam a forensic scientist and forensic 9 Q. Okay, And I'm showing you what's —
10 analyst of alcohol, with the Las Vegas Metropolitan 10 If 1 may approach.
11 Police Department’s forensics laboratory. 11 THE COURT: Yes. Did Mr. Mueller see it?
12 Q. And what does your job entail? 12 MR. MUELLER: Yes, I did, Your Honor.
13 A. I runthe breath alcohol program for the 13 THE COURT: Okay., Great.
14 southern half of Nevada, which means I manage 14 BY MS. SCHEIBLE:
18 34 avidential instruments located throughiout the 15 Q. I'm showing you what's been marked as
16 four southernmost counties, as well as train 16 State's Exhibit 3 and 4.
17 officers on how to use them. I oversee their 17 Can you tell the Court what those are.
18 calibration and maintenance and then testify to any 12 A. Yeas. State's Exhibit 3 is the Calibration
19 of the above. 18 Declaration from July 8th, 2018, for this instrument
20 Q. All right. And is that why you were called 20 at Henderson Detention; and the second page of it is
21  here today, if you know? 21 the Report of Gas Standard, which is the known
22 A. Yes. 22 concentration feft with the instrument. So that is
23 MS, SCHEIBLE: And I'm showing defense 23 fram July 6th, 2018.
24 counsel what's been marked as State's Exhibits 3 24 And State’s Exhibit 4 is for the same
25 and 4, for the record. 25 instrument, at the same iocation, on September 27th,
82 84
1 BY MS. SCHEIBLE: 1 2018, and also accompanied by, again, the Report of
2 Q. Arz you familiar with an evidentiary tool 2 Gas Standard for the standard, left with the
3 located in the Henderson Detention Center? 3 instrument.
4 A. Yes. It's an Intoxiiyzer 8000, evidential 4 Q. Okay. And are you treined in reading those
5 breath alcohol instrument, and its serial number is 5 gas standards?
§ 80-006041. 8 A. The gas standards, we purchass them from a
7 Q. Fantastic. I am showing you what's been 7 certified manufacturer, but then we verify them at
8 marked as State's Exhibit 1, which does that look 8 the laboratory and provida the Report of Gas
8 like somebody used the Breathalyzer 8600 at ¥ Standard as a declaration to say, yes, this is the
40 Henderson Detention Center? 10 concentration and it is certified to be at .100.
11 A. This is an Intoxilyzer Checklist that the 1M Q. Okay. And is that what you did in this
12 officer is reguired to fill out when deoing a breath 12 caze?
13 test, and it does laak like it is that instrument, 13 A. Yaes.
14 yes. 14 Q. So what does State’s Exhibit 3 indicate
15 . And does this look like -- I'm now showing 15 about the gas standard?
16 you what's been marked as State's Exhibit 2, for the 18 A. Three and four are actually identical gas
17 purpose of identification. Does that look ltke a 17 standards. It's the same lot number lefi both
18 printout from the Intoxilyzer 80007 18 times. But what three and four hoth mention in the
19 A. Yes, itis. And it is the same serial 19 bottom paragraphs is, at the end of calibration,
20 number on the instrument. And if i compare case 20 this gas standard was left with the instrument, and
21  numbers, it is from the same case, 21 it's to show that it is operating properly.
22 Q. Okay. And do you know what date that 2 Q. Okay. So fair to say the Instrument was
23 Intoxilyzer was used or what date that test was done? 23 properly calibrated on July 67
24 A. This test was performed on September 1ith, |24 A. Yes,
|25 2018. B |25 Q. Properly calibrated on September 27th?
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1 A, Yes. 1 make things simple, let's raserve on those because
2 Q. S0 in your oplnion, was it properly 2 I've got a legitimate argument on the preliminary.
3 calibrated on September 11th? 3 But let's let Mr. Mueller make his
4 A. Yes. I don't have anything in my 4 cross-examinatien, and then I Jat vou do that on
5 maintenance records to indicate any errors between 5 a brief cross. So let's hoid off on that for right
6 the two calibration dates. 6 now.
7 Q. Okay. Soif the test was -- as the 7 THE WITNESS: That's fine,
8 Intoxilyzer was properly calibrated, can you tell us 8 And then it did also verify the standard
89 what Exhibit 2 indicates to you? 9 test, which Is the verification of the gas standard,
19 A. Exhibit 2 is the printout from when the 10 It runs that before the subject's test. It must be
11 officer ran the test, and it does indicate a 11 a.100, plus or minus 10 percent. .100 is the
12 successfully completed test. I can go over 12 certified value. The standard read at .101, well
13 everything that telis me that, if you want me to. 13 within that range. So bebween the pair, which is a
14 Q. 1 would like that very much., 14 valid test. At the bottom, it summarizes it and
15 A, Sure. 18 says it was a successfully completed test.
16 MS. SCHEIBLE: And I would also renew my 18 BY MS. SCHEIBLE:
17 motion to admit State’s Exhibit 2. 17 Q. Okay. Can you telt us when that test was
18 THE COURT: Okay. We'll let Mr. Mueller 18 done.
19 make his cross-examination. Then I'll rule on the 19 A. The test was performed September 11th,
20 motion. 20 2018. The first air blank was at 0017 howrs, and
21 MS. SCHEIBLE: Okay. As long as you're 21 the test was completed by 0023 hours.
22 okay with her testifying to the contents of it 22 Q. Okay. And I just want -- sorry. I'm going
23 before it's been admitted. 23 to back-up just a little bit,
24 THE COURT: That's fine. 24 About your training and your experience,
25 /17 25 are you trained in running the diagnostics?
a6 88
1 BY MS, SCHEIBLE: 1 A. The diagnostics is automatic.
2 Q. Okay. Then, please, go ahead. 2 Q. Okay,
3 A. The printout has all of the information for 3 A. 1t automatically does that, but I do
4 that test. It has the subject’s data entry, which 4 calibrate the instrument. We have a series of
§ the officer enters either by scanning a driver’s § performance checks that we do after the calibration
& licemse or hand entering. It's got the location of § is complete. Plus I do maintenance on the
7 the instrument, serial number of the instrument; who 7 instruments, if necessary, back at the laboratory.
8 the operator was, which is the officer who ran the 8 Q. Okay. And what about the analysis of the
9 test. Itindicates the start of the observation 8§ actual alcohol content, is that something that you do
10 time, and when compared to the time of the first 16  as well?
11 air blank, I need to see a minimum of 15 minutes. 11 A. The analysis is done by the instrument. So
12 That is required by the checklist. 12 it's done when the officer runs the test.
13 And then as that goes on, it does seme 13 Q. Okay. And would the same be true of a biood
14 diagnostics. It does air blanks before and after 14 test as a breath test?
15 everything, and all of air blanks must have a zero 15 A. A blood test is performed by a scientist.
16 alcohol reading. There are two tests that are 16 So when collected in a DUI for blood, the blood is
17 required by the law. A pair of tests, fwo minutes 17 sent to the laboratory, and the scientist takes
18 apart, and they must agree within .020 or less, and 18 custody of it and performs the entire analysis.
19 these do. ¥ can read the values, if you want me to, 1¢ Q. Okay.
20 but X can refrain, 20 A. Breath is different in the fact that I
21 MS. SCHEIBLE: 1 would Hke to hear the 21 calibrate the instrument and then I leave it for the
22 values, Your Honor. 22 officers to run the test.
23 THE COURT: That's the finding? 23 Q. Okay. And are you trained in running those
24 MS. SCHEIBLE: Yes. 24  tests of the blood samples as well?
25 THE COURT: T'li tell you what, just to 25 A, Yes.
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1 Q. Okay. And do you have some kind of 1 information. But as long as you're consuming more

2 knowledge and tralning in alcohol absarption? 2 than you can metabolize, your level is going to

3 A. Yes. 3 rise. Al your last drink, 30 minutes or 50, you hit

4 Q. And in alcobol impairment? 4 your peak, which is the highest you're going to be,

5 A. Yes. 5 and if you're no longer consuming, your leve! will

6 Q. And do you know the legal limit for driving § then eliminate and drop.

7 under the influence in Nevada? 7 Q. Okay. And about how long does it take to

| A. We, per se, according to our law, is a .08. 8 eliminate or drop?

9 Ifit's in blood alcohel, it's grams per 9 A. Thers is some suggested standards out
418 100 milliliters of blood. If it's in breath, it is 10 there. Studies have been shown that the average
M grams per 210 liters of breath. 11 elimination rate is an .015 to an .018 per hour.
12 Q. And in your training and experience, do you 12 MS. SCHEIBLE: All right. 1 have no
13 have some kind of, well, training on how you would 13 further questions.

14 expect somebody to act, perform, appear if they were 14 THE COURT: Thank you, Ms. Scheibie,

15 at.087 15 Mr. Mueller.

16 A. Thereis a list of guidelines. It does 16

17 have crossover between. There's no set: At this 17 CROSS-EXAMINATION

18 level, they must act this way. But there's some 18 BY MR. MUELLER:

19 suggestions or ideas of how people will act at 19 Q. Ms. Lanz, nothing in this test here

20 different levels, yes. 20  indicates that it was done with inside of two hours

21 Q. Okay. And do you have an idea of about 21 of somepne driving or being in a car; correct?

22 what level somebody would completely incapacitated? 22 A. As far as the breath test is concerned,

23 MR. MUELLER: Objection. Calls for 23 that is not information that is on the printout.

24 speculation. She just said there's no strict 24 Q. Now, two hours is the legal cutoff; correct?

25 guidelines. 25 A. It's one of the theories, yas. As long as
90 a2

1 THE COURT: Let’s see "yes" or "no." 1 the result's within two hours.

2 BecauseI don't know. Ifit's a "no,” then it would 2 Q. Aslong as within two hours.

3 be speculation; but if it's a "yes," let's go from 3 Now, the reason we have two-hour limit is

4 there. 4 because people's alcohol level can change from the

5 THE WITNESS: It depends on the definition 5§ time they were first in contact with law anforcement

8 of "completely incapacitated.” It's different 6 and the levels go up or down depending; correct?

7 between person, event, date, what they're drinking. 7 A. I'm not sure if that's the reason behind

8 It's really hard to put an exact number on 8 it. But yes, your statement about it going up or

9 "completely incapacitated.” 9 down since being detained is correct, yes.

10 THE COURT: Ohjection sustained. 10 Q. Allright. So somebody's bicod level

11 BY MS. SCHEIBLE: |11 printed out or breath leval printed out dossn't

12 Q. Okay. Now, when somebody is ingesting 12 necessarily refleck what the breath level was at the

13 alcohol, can you explain to the Court how their blood 13 time they were driving If it's outside of two hours?

44 alcohol changes over time. 14 A. Correct. The printout says what it was at
15 Does it go up? Does it go down? Does it do 15 the time of the test.

16 both? 186 Q. Right. Now, you are also a trainer for the

17 A. Aslong as the person is consuming more 17 police department and the highway patrol, do you not?
18 alcohol than their bady can metabolize and getrid |13 A. Every agency in the southern half of

19 of, their lavel will rise. How quickly that rises 19 Nevada, yes.

20 depends on quite a few different factors. Basic 20 Q. Okay. And so that's "ves," highway patrol

21 ones being full or empty stomach, what type of 21  and in the Henderson Police Department?

22 alcohol they're drinking and the rate at which 22 A. Yes. And many others.

23 they're drinking it. 23 Q. Al right. So let me ask you a question,

24 It's really difficult to predict how 24 ma'am. If someone - officer is supposed to do a

25 quickly that will rise without knowing more 25 15-minute close visual observation; correct?
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1 A. 15, Minimum 15 minutes, yes. 1 MS. SCHEIBLE: I would, ance again, like to
2 Q. 15 minutes. And that's actually on the 2 renew my motion to admit State’s 2, [ think is still
3 checklist; right? I think it's State's 17 3 outstanding.
4 A, Yes. On State 1, State's 1, the 4 THE COURT: Two, three and four.
5 observation time period started at Step 3, and it 5 MS. SCHEIBLE: Two, three, and four,
6 says "Observed subject for minimum 15 minutes.” 6 please.
7 Q. And if someone weren't -- if a2 breath 7 MR. MUELLER: No abjection to three and
8 observation period weren't done in accordance with 8 four. Four is irrelevant since it occurred after
9 the checkiist, what effect could that have on the 9 the date of the incident. But no objection. If she
40 printout of the breath strip? 10 wants it, she can have it. Two --
11 A. The observation period is to help against, 1 {Reporter request.)
12 to safeguard against something called "mouth 12 MR. MUELLER: Three and four are the
13 alcohel.” Mouth alcohol is residual alcoho! either 13 calibration strips. Three is the one for 90-day
14 from a recent drink or reintroduced to the subject's |14 period in question. Four is after the fact. So
15 mouth if they are vomiting or something like that. 1§ it's irrelevant. There's no need to admit it. But
16 So the 15 minutes is to ensure that, for 16 if she wanfs it, no objection.
17 15 minutes, nothing is put into the subject's mouth. |17 No. 2, if we could have Ms. Lanz step down
18 They don't eat, drink, smoke, vomit, regurgitate, 18 for a moment, I can address the Court on No. 2.
49 put any foreign objects in thelr mouth to allow for |18 THE COURT: Sure. I'll tell you what. She
20 any alcohol in their mouth to completely dissipate. |20 can sit there, and we can go in the back. But let's
21 Xf an observation period is not completed, that 21 make it clean so we're only focused on that.
22 mouth alcohol could, in fact, raise the lImit, the 22 MR. MUELLER: Sure.
23 value shown on the breath test. 23 THE COURT: So my understanding Is three
24 Q. All right. And that means the breath test 24 and four, no objections. You don't think it's
25 would not necessarily reflect the actual limit that 25 relevant. But on top of that, no objections. Three
T 94 96
1 someone had or the actual amount of alcohol someone | 1  and four are hereby admitted. We'll step outside.
2 had in their system? [ 2 (Discussion off the record.)
3 A. If it went undetected, it could falsely 3 (Whereupon State's Exhibit Nos. 3 and 4
4 elevate it, yes. 4 were admitted into evidence.}
5 Q. All right. Now, you also teach highway 5 THE COURT: Back on record. Let's see,
8 patrol officers and young officars to ask a serfes of 6 where were you?
7 questions, do you not? 7 MS. SCHEIBLE: Exhibit 2.
8 A. It's not necessarily a series of questions. 8 THE COURT: Exhibit 2.
8 We tell them to check their mouth for foreign 9 MS. SCHEIBLE: Will he or won't he?
10 objects and to remove any removabie dental work. |10 THE COURT: Mr. Mueiler had an objection.
11 Q. All right. And do you also give them 14 You can go ahead and state that objection.
12 guidance on how to actually conduct investigations in 12 MR. MUELLER: My objection is, Judge, that
13 the field? 13 it has not been established that the blsod sample or
14 A. As far as? 14 breath sample here was taken within two hours, which
15 Q. Using the breath machine and the factors 15 is a definitional element of the crime charged.
16 that would affect it? 16 THE COURT: Yes. Thank you.
17 A. Using the breath instrument, yes. We tell 17 And, Ms. Scheible.
18 tham to check their mouth, 1o remaove any foreign 18 MS. SCHEIBLE: The two-hour time limit is
19 objects or removable dental work; and then we 118 for per se intoxication. It doesn't matter whether
20 instruct them to watch the subject for the minimum |20 or not it's taken within two hours, but that it is
21 15 minutes. |21 accurate and that is what the Intoxilyzer said at
22 MR. MUELLER: All right. I have nothing 22 the time when it said it. That's all I'm trying to
23 further. Thank you, ma'am. 23 prove here js that this is the readout from the
24 THE COURT: Thank you, Mr. Mueller. 24 Intoxilyzer and that the Intoxilyzer was working
25 Ms. Scheible. 25 properly at the time.
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F'I THE COURT: Okay. 5o at this time, 1 THE COURT: Any response?

2 Exhibit 2 is hereby admitted as well. So we've 2 MS, SCHEIBLE: 1 think that's up fo

3  admitted Exhibits 1, 2, 3 and 4. 3 Your Honor whether you'll accept her testimony as to

4 (Whereupon State's Exhibit Nos. 2 | 4 the extrapolation.

5 through 4 were admitted into avidence.} 5 MR. MUELLER: Actually, a toxicologist is

L] MS. SCHEIBLE: Excellent. 6 required. I've done a number of these, A

7 THE COURT: $o you can proceed. 7 toxicologist Is what Is required to go back to the

8 MS. SCHEIBLE: Thank you. 8 back extrapolation. There's about sever or eight

9 9 factors on the checklist that a toxicologist Is
10 REDIRECT EXAMINATION 10 supposed to review; and thera’s also a case called
11 BY M$. SCHEIBLE: 11 "Peptis,” "State of Nevada vs. Peptis," which just
12 Q. Iwant to take a look at Exhibit No. 2. 12 came to my mind, also tatks about back extrapolation.
13 So can you kefl tha Court what the readouts 13 She's not qualified to go back, and my colleague is
14 were on Exhibit No. 2? 14 asking her to venture opinions far beyond her
15 A. Sure. There were two subject tests. The 15 expertize at this moment. This is the --

18 first one was a .161, and the second one was a .155. |16 THE COQURT: Let's lay a foundation.

17 Q. Okay. So tell us what that indicates to 17 BY MS. SCHEIBLE:

18 you. 18 Q. Are you trained in the science of breath

19 A. There are two tests. The statute requires 18 alcohol content?

20 that they agree within ,020 or less, which they do. 20 A. Yes, Iam.

21  We usually default to the lower of the two being 21 Q. Can you explain to us what kind of training
the, quote-unquote, final answer. So that would be 22 you had.

23 a.155. Thatitis a valid test, they were at feast 123 A. I have been through numerous intemal and
two minutes apart. I'm not sure what else - 24 external trainings. I started with Metro's

25 Q. So at the time that this test was taken, the 256 foremsics lab in 2010. T was first trained in blood
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1 subject who performed the test, participated in the 1 alcolinl; and then following that training, I was

2 test had a blood (sic) alcohol content of .1557? 2 trained in breath alcohnl. I've been certified as a

3 MR. MUELLER: "Breath” aicoho! content. 3 forensic scientist -- well, forensic scientist and

4 MS. SCHEIBLE: I'm sorry. Thank you. 4 forensic analyst of alcohol since January of 2011,

5 BY MS, SCHEIBLE: 5 The forensic analyst of alcohol is required

5] Q. A breath alcohol content of .1557? 6 to recertify every two yoars, which I have done, to

7 A. Yes. 7 be still currently certified. Part of our training

] Q. Okay. And in your training and experience, 8 is back extrapolation, retrograde extrapolation,

9 If that had -- let's start with, within an hour, If 9 Widmark. All of that does fall under our training,
410 the subject had had their last -- hold on. 10 and our Iaboratory certifies us as in being able 1o
11 1 want to cut straight to the chase and ask 41 performit. I can't speak to the law.

12 you: If this test was done outside the two-hour |42 I don't know if what he's saying is correct
13  window -- lef's say it was three hours after the [13 ornot. But our Jaboratory does say anyone who does
14 defendant had fast been in control of a vehicle -~ 14 the alcohol analysis and blood alcohol, and which
18 can you think of any scenario in which the defendant |15 carries over into breath, is trainad on how o do
16 could have had a blood alcohol content below .08 16 the back extrapolation.
17 thres hours ago, not consumed anymore alcohol, and 17 THE COURT: Thank you.
18 then end up with a 155 at time of the test? (18 MS, SCHEIBLE: May I proceed?
19 MR. MUELLER: Objection. Calls for 19 THE COURT: Yes.
20 speculation. Also, this issue was litigated up in 20 MR, MUELLER: . Your Honor, respectfully,
21 Nevada Supreme Court, "State of Nevada vs, Bobby 21 there's a case directly on point. "State of
22 Armstrong." Extrapolation has to be done by a 22 Nevada vs. Bobby Armstrong.” Supreme Ceourt upheld
23 toxicolegist, not by Ms. Lanz, who I love to death, 23 the refusing to allow one-point back extrapolation,
24 think the world of, but is not gualified to talk 24 which is exactly what my colleague is attempting to
25 about back extrapolation. 15 do here,
25 of 36 sheets Page 97 to 100 of 142 PABDONRT:07:38 AM
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1 THE COURT: [understand that. We can go 1 But if they had drank -- an entire fifth
2 ahead and have another sidebar outside. 2 wouldn™ be necessary, like you mentioned -~ but a
3 MS. SCHEIBLE: Ckay. 3 quantity of alcohol, while it was still in their
4 THE COURT: Tell you what I'm going to do. 4 stomach and then were pulied over, that's not
5 (Bench conference outside the courtroom.} § affecting them yet. They would have it in their
6 THE COURT: So, Ms. Scheible, we were with & stomach and than if kept roadside say three hours or
7 you. You can go ahead and praceed. 7 whatever the transport time was, three hours is
8 MR. MUELLER: And, for the record, just so £ plenty of time for all of that to be consumed or o
9 there's an objection on the record, 8 be absorbed, and you'd hit your peak and start to
10 THE COURT: Yes. 10 eliminate since you're no longer consuming alcohal.
11 MR, MUELLER: Thank you. 1" Q. Okay.
12 BY MS. SCHEIBLE: 12 A. So a three-hour time frame, with that
13 Q. I want to repeat my guestion which is, is 13 specific scenario, is possible.
{4 there any way that somebody with three hours after 14 Q.  So you could end up with stilf .155 at the
18  consuming their last drink can have a bieod alcohol 15 end of the three hours?
18 content of .155 and not have had a blood alcohol : 16 A. Absolutely. It 54 depends on how much
17 content of over -- I'm sorry -~ breath aicohol 17 we'rs taliiing and the height, the weight, the
18 content of over .08 when they had thelr last drink? 18 gender, a bunch of information like that because
19 A. The only way that would be possible is if 19 it's all based on -- the math I would use is based
28 they drark a large amount of alcohol and then were 20 on studies and standards that are out there. It's
21 pulled over immediately thereafter. So the alcohol 21 all an estimate.
22 would still be in their stomach and not absorbed 22 Q. Okay. What about after the first signs of
23 into their system yet. So they could still be below 23  intoxication or the first signs of impairment?
24 the legal per se, and then while in custody for 24 Is there science on that?
25 whatever amount of time, since it takes 30 to 25 A. Asfaras?
102 ‘ 104
1 90 minutes for alcohol to be absorbed, if they 1 Q. Whether alcohol, breath alcohol, is rising?
2 hadn't absorbed it yet and then in custody absorbed 2 Falling?
3 to that quantity to get to the peak and then to 3 A. with the first signs of impairment, there's
4 start eliminating whatever time frame later, that 4 no way to know where they're at on the up or the
5 would be the way. They would had to have been $ down. The signs of impairment that officers are
§ consuming it right bafore the stop or immediately 8 trained to look for just indicate impairment due to
7 preceding it. 7 adepressant, which is alcohol in this situation.
8 Q. Okay. So if somebody was, let's just use 8 They can’t tell if they're on the way up, on the way
9 easy timeframes, if someone was pulled over at 9 dowm, at what peint in the event of drinking they're
10 midnight and thelr blood alcohol -~ breath alcohal 10 at. They're just looking for impairment signs.
11 content was .07, then you're saying that if they had 1 Q. Okay. And at what level does a person
12  just finished a fifth, that their blood alcohol or 12 normally become impaired?
13 their breath alcobiol continued to rise after that 13 Is there a science on it, or does it depend?
14 time and then continued and then started falling i 14 A. There's a -- Kurt Dubowski has this famous
15 after that ime? |18 chart, but it's ranges. Between an .02 to .04, they
16 A. Absolutely. If they have alcohol that they l 16 might exhibit these symptoms, but then those are
17  just consumed. So it's still being held in their 17 also exhibited by people in the .05 to .02 range,
18 stomach. Alcohol is ahsorbed mainly through the 18 depending on how oftan you drink, what your persenal
18 upper intestine. That's where it's easiest and best 19 tolerance of alcohol is. There's no exact number.
20 absorbed. So if there is ~ like I mentioned 20 That's why a lot of studies have gone into
21 earlier, absorption varies based on food. If they I 21 play where most people pick the .08 as the per se
22 had dinner and then drank, the alcohol would take 22 level for legal purposes. But thera isn't 2 hard
23 longer to get into the system becausa there would be |23 and fast, that's it, you're impaired numbar.
24 food in the way and absorbing something. So that's 24 MS. SCHEIBLE: Qkay. I don't have any
25 whyit's hard to anticipate an absorption rate. 25 further questions.
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1 THE COURT: Thank you, Ms. Schelble. 1 an hour, 10:00, 11:;00, 8:00, 9:00. He doesn't know,
2 Mr. Mueller. 2 which means we have a two-hour violation, clean
3 MR. MUELLER: No, Your Honor. [ don't have 3 away.
4 further questions. 4 We do not have an under-thae-influence case,
5 THE COURT: Thank you. Appreciate your & and what you're going to hear from my expert witness
6 testimony. Thank you for coming down, 8 is that back extrapolation with one point is
7 THE WITNESS: Do you want me to stay, oram | 7 scientifically not plausible. With that, I'd like
8 I freetogo? 8 to call, re-call Ms. Lanz.
] THE COURT: It's up to the State and/or 8 THE COURT: Yes.
10 Mr. Mueller. I don't know if Mr. Mueller is going 10 (Pause in the proceedings.)
11 to re-call or if the State -- 1 THE COURT: Thank you for coming back.
12 MR. MUELLER: Is the State going to rest? 12 THE WITNESS: No problem.
13 THE COURT: I don't know. 13 THE COURT: And she has been sworn and
14 MS. SCHEIBLE: Yes. 14 under oath. Everybody's satisfied that that suffices
15 THE COURT: Yes. 18 at this point?
18 MS. SCHEIBLE: They are. [ 16 MR. MUELLER: Yes, Judge.
17 THE COURT: Yes. 17 THE CQURT: Understand that you're still
18 THE WITNESS: I can stay. I just wanted to 18 under oath.
19 check. 19 THE WITNESS: Okay.
20 MR. MUELLER: Oh, I just wasn't clear if 20 THE COURT: Great. Thank you so much.
21 she was done. Don't take it personally, 21
22 Yes, if you could stay. 22 RECROSS-EXAMINATION
23 THE WITNESS: Sure. 23 BY MR. MUELLER:
24 THE COURT: Wonderful. Thank you. I 24 Q. Ms. Lanz, I'm familiar with your
25 appreciate that. _Thank yout very much, 25 qualifications, but I want to ask you some questions
106 108
1 So my understanding, Ms. Scheible, Is the 1 here. You're not a physician; correct?
2 State rests at this time. 2 A. Correct.
3 MS., SCHEIBLE: That's correct, Your Honor. 3 Q. You're not trained as a toxicologist
4 THE COURT: Okay. And, Mr. Mueller, as we 4. physician?
8§ stated before, we were reserving opening arguments. 5 A. Doctorate in toxicology, no.
6 If you'd like to make those or If you'd 8 Q. All right. You would agree thereis a
7 tike to just go ahead and call your witnesses, if 7 field such as that, someone who actually studies the
8 vyou're calling any. 8 effects of the intoxicants or, for that matter,
8 MR. MUELLER: May consider it. Justa 3§ polisonings on victims; correct?
10 moment. Did you want to take a recess and go read 10 A. Yes.
11 that "Bobby Armstrong” case? 11 Q. And that's generally done by someone with a
12 THE COURT: Well, let's get through this, 12 medical degree or higher level of education; correct?
13 and then we'll get thete. 13 A. People do have Master's in toxicology, but
14 MR, MUELLER: I'll make a very, very brief 14 ves.
15 opening, Judge. Respectfully, Judge, this case is a 15 Q. Okay. Now, simple high school or eighth
16 not guilty finding. Spedifically, the eyewitness 18 grade geometry, it takes two points to create a line;
17 who saw, allegedly saw, Ms. Plumlee driving can’t 17 correct?
18 identify her, doesn't recognize her in court. Says 18 A. Correct.
418 that she -- he had been drinking. He was markedly 19 Q. Allright. Now, a few moments ago, my
20 evasive. 20 colisague was trying to get you to extrapolate or ask
29 Even for a criminal defense lawver, he was 21 you about extrapolation. But you only have one
22 evasive as to what time he arrived at the casino, 22 reference point, which is a test of a .15 at some
23 how ruch he had to drink, what he had to drink, and 23 period of time; correct?
24 what time anything happened. When I asked him what | 24 A. Correct.
25 time this happened, he couldn't testify within even 25 Q. So with only one data point, you don't know
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1 If the curve is going up or the curve going is down; ] THE COURT: Okay. Ms. Schaible.

2 correct? 2 MS. SCHEIBLE: Thank vou.

3 A. Correct, 3 The State's burden here is to prove that

4 Q. And without anymore scientific information, 4 defendant failed to stay in her lane and drove under

5 it is scientifically impossible to go back in time 5 the influence, beyond a reasonable doubt. And I

6 with that only one data point? 6 know that you have heen in this courtroom the same

7 A. It's not impossible, but there are a lot of 7 length of time today that I have, listening to the

8 qualifying remarks to go through, which Istatemy | 8 testimony explaining all the various factors, all

9 assumptions that I assume numerous things, and it | 9 the various ways that we can try, try to determine
18 could be done. But it's all based on assumptions 18 somebody's state of mind, somebody's breath alcohol
11 and estimates, yes. 11 content at the time that they are behind the wheel.
12 Q. And you would have to have that data ahead 12 But the rmost instructive thing we can have,
13 of time to actually de a workup? 13 that we can seg, that we can find is actual evidence
14 A. It would be appreciated. I could do it 14 of impairment, and that's what Joseph Risco
15 here, but I would ask for a break with the 15 testified to at the very beginning of this case. He
16 information to do the math. 18 witnessed the defendant drive her car --
17 Q. All right. Now, let me ask you a couple 17 MR. MUELLER: Objection.
18 questions, ma'am. One point determines 3 line. One 18 MS. SCHEIBLE: -- over a --
19 point is a — one data set is a point. 19 MR, MUELLER: Objection. That's not the
20 Two points are a line; correct? 20 testimony. He couldn®t identify her. He never sald
21 A, Correct. 21 that was her.
22 Q. Now, alcohol absorption can be going up or 22 THE COURT: That is correct.
23 be going down if you have only one data paint? 23 MS. SCHEIBLE: All right, 1 think that the
24 A, Correct. 24 State has proven, beyond a reascnable doubt, that
25 MR. MUELLER: All right. I'd like the 25 the person In the car that drove over the median and

110 112

1 Court's indulgence for just a moment. 1 smashed into a light pole is the same car that was

2 THE COURT: Sure. 2 pulled over on the side of 215, by Henderson

3 MR. MUELLER: I have nothing further, 3 officers and then by responding NHP officars, and

4 THE COURT: Thank you, Ms. Scheible. 4 the person in that car was the defendant.

5 MS. SCHEIBLE: Nothing. 5 Qur obligation here is to prove it beyond a

8 THE COURT: Thank you. Thank you for 6 reasonable doubt, and if there was any doubt about

T coming back. You are now free to go. 7 it, then there would have -- then we'd be ina

8 THE WITNESS: Thank you. Free to go 8 different position. That's not the case herge. I

9 officially or wait in the hallway? 9 don't think and it's the State's position that
10 MR. MUELLER: No. 40 “Your Honor should not bave any doubt as to whether
11 THE COURT: 1 think everybody's dona. 11 or not the car that Mr. Risco cbserved and the car
12 THE WITNESS: Okay. Thank you. 12 that the defendant was driving are one in tha same
13 THE COURT: Thank you so much. Appreclate 13 because he had his eyes on it the whole time. He
14 vyou coming down. 44 testified on cross-examination that he was coming
15 MR. MUELLER: Thank you, Your Honor. 45 home from the Green Valley Ranch Casino around
16 Having consuited with Ms, Plumliee, I've 16  10:00 or 11:00 p.m,, which is just about the time
17 re-admonished her, re-advised her that she has a 17 that the defendant was stopped.
18 right to testify, a right to remain silent. On 18 He was very clear about what he saw while
18 advice of counsel, she's going to remain silent, 19 he was driving his car. He saw somebody driving
20 With that, defense rests. 20 erratically, who he was afraid of and who he thought
21 THE COURT: Waonderful. Thank you, 21 was endangering his safety and the safety of others.
22  Mr. Mueller. Ms. Schelble, any redirect? 22 Specifically, that person exhibited the signs of
23 MS. SCHEIBLE: Oh. No. 23 intoxication, namely: Driving over a median,
24 THE COURT: Thank you, Any redirect? 24 stapping in the middle of an intersection, running
25 MR. MUELLER: No, Your Honor. 25 into 2 light pole, running into t_hi pole muitiple
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times, continuing to press the gas pedal, getting
out: of her car and falling to the ground and then
leaving that scene.

That is all you need to be assured of
conviction in this case, to know beyond a reasonable
doubt that this individual was intoxicated and she
was behind the wheel of a car. But, of course, we
don't come in here with just the bare minimum. The
State has met its obligation; and the troopers In
this case, the police officers in this case, did a
thorough investigation to ensure that they were
making the right call,

That Investigation included Trooper Luna
responding to the scene, getting the defendant out:
of the car, having her do a field sobriety test;
having her do a preliminary breath test, which
indicated that her breath alcohol level was over .08.

MR. MUELLER: Objection.

MS. SCHEIBLE: It included taking her down
to the Henderson Detention Center, where he had her
do an Intoxilyzer exam, where she breathed into the
larger machine here at the Henderson Detention
Center and whers her readout was, once again, over
.08. She was blowing a .155 by the time she got to
the Henderson Detention Center. Whean you couple
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that ance she crashed her car, she thought that she
was still going eastbound on the 215. She repeated
twice to Offices Luna that she was golng eastbound
on the 215 when, In fact, she was headed westbound.
She's simply impaired behind the wheel, and there is
no reasonable doubt as to It,

The State is not trylng to do any kind of
mental gymnastics to make this Court believe that
the breathalyzer test was done within two hours. It
wasn't. It was most likely within three hours. We
don't know exactly when it was per- -- we know
exactly when it was performed. We don't know
exactly when she stopped operating her vehicle
because it doesn't matter.

Because when the margins are this wide,
there's no question that the person who just ran
into a pole, went westbound on the 215 convinced
that she was going eastbound, and has a blood --
breath alcohol content of .115 at 17 minutes after
midnight was definitely intoxicated just hours
previously, just minutes previcusly when she was
behind the wheel of that car, causing those
accidents and endangering all of those people.

If the margins wers smaller, then we would
have a debate hera. Then we would have some
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that with what the witnesses actually saw, a person
crashing her own car into a light post, driving --

MR. MUELLER: Once again, objection.
There's no testimony that that person in the car was
this person. He never saw her, didn't identify her.
She keeps forgetting that,

THE COURT: The first withess.

MR. MUELLER: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay. You can go ahead and
proceed based on what Mr. Mueller said.

MS. SCHEIBLE: It's the State's position
that that was the defendant and that is what the
witness saw. He might not know her name. He might
not know her face, but he certainly knows what he
Saw.

He was very honest with us about being
several feet away -~ 20, 30 feet away. He could
tell that the person was a womnan, She was wearing a
dress. Her hair looked like woman's hair. But he
couldn't see her face because (a), it was dark; and
(b), he was just too far away, just like I can't see
the face of sumebody who is outside the doors right
now because they're too far away, even if I could
see through the window.

So we know that this is the same person and
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argument, Then we would have some quastions. But
in this case, the margins are huge. She was not
just intoxicated. She was very intoxicated at the
time that she crashed her car, at the time that she
was stopped, and she was still very Intoxicated by
the time that she got to the Henderson Detention
Center.

T’ll point out, also, that when we talked
to Ms. Lanz on the stand about extrapolation, we
spoke in generalities because nobody has taken the
time In this case to extrapolate exactly what the
defendant's blood alcohol content would have been at
the time that she was stopped because it doesn't
matter. The breath alcohol content is simply
confirrnation of what we already know, that she's
drunk behind the wheel.

So you don't have to accept that the test
was taken within two hours because It wasn't. You
don't have to accept that the preliminary breath
test Is good because it's preliminary. You don't
even have to accept that the Intoxilyzer was
utilized that day. All you have to accept is that
we have one, two, three, four, five diffarent
factors that indicate that she was drunk behind the
wheel.
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1 The actual signs of impairment, like 1 from the sound of it, He was just -~
2 crashing the car; the actual signs of impairment, 2 MS. SCHEIBLE: Objection. It's
3 like falling out of the car when it ultimately 3 argumentative. It's speculative, and It's not
4 stopped; the prellminary breath test, the actual 4 consistent with testimony.
5 breath test; in addition to her believing that she 5 MR. MUELLER: He was completely consistent.
6 was headed eastbound when she was actually headed 6 He admitted that he had been in the casino for a
7 westbound. Everything in this casa points to an 7 number of hours and had a couple of drinks.
8 intoxicated person behind the wheel, and to suggest 8 Now, he didn't identify anybody at the
9§ anything otherwise is not reasonable doubt. That is 9 scene. He didn't get out of his car to go to the
10 either unreasonable doubt or legal technicalities, 10 scene. He didn't -- the person whoever was involved
11 legal technicalities that don't matter in this case. 11 in this accident. Now, here's the fascinating -- I
12 It would be a completely different story if 12  want to stay on point for a minute. So we don't
13 I were standing up here arguing to you that: She 13 have an under-the-influence case. We don'’t have
44 was per se drunk, per se driving under the influence 14 field sobriety tests. We don't have a one-leg
15 of alcohol, convict her based solely on that breath 16 stand.
16 test; but thai's not what I'm arguing. I'm arguing '16 We don't have interviews. "How many did
17 that the breath test supports my position, not that 17 you have?" Like four Margaritas. Okay. That's a
18 it clenches it, not that it is the end-all, be-all 18 problem. We don't have "Where are you coming from?"
19 of proving that this crime occurred, but that it | 18 We don't have that. We don't have "Where were you
20 supports my position that it indicates the suspicion 20 going?" We don't have how much you had to drink.
21 that that witness had and that he might not have 21 We don't know any of this. The trooper didn't
22 said on the stand that there was something wrong 22 testify to any of that,
23 with this driver was accurate. 23 1 specifically asked him, there's a
24 MR. MUELLER: Objection. Speculation as to 24 standardized field sobriety form checklist that
25 what the witness thought. That's inappropriate |28 you're supposed to sit there with a clipboard and go
118 120
1 argument, Judge. Objection. 1 through that. He didn't do any of that. We've got
2 MS. SCHEIBLE: It's perfectly fine for 2 a woman behind the wheel, pulled over for some
3 argument. 8ut I don't need to go on much {onger, 3 unknown reason, by some unknown officer. Then we
4 Your Honor, because T think I've been perfectly 4 have another vignette where Mr. Risco thinks he sees
§ clear that the issue is whether or not she was 5 the same car.
§ driving under the influence and failing to maintain 6 Well, the record doesn't even reflect the
7 her lane, beyond a reasonable doubt, and the State's 7 license plate is the same. In fact, if Mr. Risco
8 proven it beyond a reasonable doubt. 8 waere to tell you the truth, that car smashed into
9 THE COURT: Wonderful. Thank you, 8§ the light pole. The trooper doesn't even see enough
| 10 Ms, Scheible, Appreciate your representations. 10 damage to bother taking a picture of it. It raises
M" Mr. Mueller. 11 a reasonable inference was it even the same car.
12 MR. MUELLER: Law, logic, and science are 12 Now, Your Honor, this is the evidence that's been
13 Old Testament studies. Lots of rules, no 13 produced.
14 forgiveness. Now, here's what the State hag to do 14 THE COURT: I'm going stop you right there,
15 bere, and they failed on all three counts: 15 and we're going to have a sidebar real quick.
16 No. 1, they have to prove that she was too 16 {Bench conference.)
47 intoxicated to drive safely. The objective evidence 17 MR. MUELLER: Now, my colleague is asking
18 that Trooper Luna has prasented to you today wasshe |18 and is leading the Court astray on a couple of very
18 was sitting behind the wheel and had food in the car 18 key point. Her argument is: Well, we had a .16
20 and did not smell of liquor when he approached the 20 that we think at about three hours; therefore, she
21 window. He didn't see her driving, couldn't name a (21 had to have heen over the limit before that time.
22 highway patrol officer or a trooper that had seen 22 That's wrong, That issue has been {itigated all the
23 her driving. That's the evidence. 23 way up to the Nevada Supreme Court, "State of
24 We have a gentleman, to a reasonabla 24 Nevada vs. Bobby Armstrong." 1 litigated it,
25 infe_rence, probabiy had a good buzz going himself 28 drafted the brief, won the case.
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1 One-point extrapelation is not 1 THE COURT: Thank you, Mr. Mueller.
2 scientifically valid and cannot be done. If it were 2 Now, let's have a discussion out here
3 within two hours and two seconds, okay, maybe. But 3 because I misunderstood something, but we'll see if
4 that's not what we have here. Ms, Lanz was asked: 4 it's necessary for me to go through that case. I'm
5 "What factors would you need to successfully go back 5 notsure if it is, at this point, but let's see.
6 for one-point extrapolation?” She gave a whole 6 Let's talk about it out here real quick.
7 laundry list of things, none of which has actually 7 {Bench conference outside the courtroom.)
8 been done. 8 THE COURT: Are we all ready? Let me just
] Now, this case has hot been made. Whether 9 get a few things clarified on the record because [
10 there was a case here that could be made is not 10 want to make sure this is absolutely clear.
11 even -- doesn't even suggest ltself. I've got two 11 In the confusion that we were trying to
12 vigneltes, nobody tying them together. Where was 12 cdear up at sidebar In the half was, it's now clear
13 Henderson police officers; who flagged her down; how |13 to me that the State is not proceeding on the per se
14 do we know it's the same car? I''m puzzied. 14 violation; is that correct?
15 Actually, kind of durnbfounded because I don't know 15 MS. SCHEIBLE: That's correct, Your Honor,
16 how this happens. 16 THE COURT: Only on the impairment.
17 You hit a light pole and then you drive 17 MS., SCHEIBLE: That's correct.
18 off. Then highway patrol trooper sees your car and 18 THE COURT: Okay. So based on that, that's
18 doesn't even take pictures of the damage. I mean, 19 going to be the Himit of my consideration on this
20 if we had a license plate or even a make or maodel of 20 particular matter here today, So the perseis
21 the car. If you go back and put this record 21 gone. 5o let me go back and review through my notes
22 together, they haven't identified the car, the 22 and see what we've got and see if that burden has
23 model, the make, or the year, let alone the license 23 been met with the communications that we had at
24 plate. No one asked her "Were you driving eartier?" 24 sidebar.
25 No one asked — I mean none of this. This record is 2 MR. MUELLER: I'm going to accept the
122 124
1 completely barren. 1 Court's invitation to step out for a minute.
2 Now, my colleague lacks -- or her 2 THE COURT: Oh, absolutely. Absolutely.
3 enthusiasm is commendable, but it's going to 3 (Pause in the proceedings.)
4 mislead -- it's misleading because it overpromises 4 THE COURT: Let me just check.
& the evidence. What do we have? Luna says: I § Ms. Scheible and Mr. Mugller, my recoliection was
§ arrived. 1see a woman. Idoen't read her the 6 that -- "Mr. Risco"; is that right?
7 "Miranda.” She doesn't smell of liquor. I get her 7 MS, SCHEIBLE: Ub-huh.
8 out of the car. I do smell liguor, I doan HGN, 8 THE COURT: That his testimony was that he
9 and I take her down. That's the case. 9 saw her get out of the car and fail.
10 He doesn't tie the two instances together. 10 MR. MUELLER: No, sir. He saw somebody get
11  He doesn't get a license plate number. He doesn't 11  out of the car.
12 get any eyewitness statements. He can't even 12 THE COURT: Corract. "Somebody.”
13 establish what time he got there., That's the state 13 MR. MUELLER: He did not identify her.
14 of the evidence. Without a two -~ with no two 14 THE COURT: Right. I was gaing to go back
15 hours, that goes away. The per sg violation, you 15 to the transcript and see if that was part of his
16 can't use it. Her enthusiasm together to say that 16 testimony.
17 leaves us standing alone. 17 MS. SCHEIBLE: Sure, He's also still here
18 And pardon the pun, but we're standing 18 if you'd like to ask him any questions.
19 alone, and the State is asking you, without any 19 THE COURT: And when he said “her," that
20 admissions of drinking, without any independent 20 could have been any female.
21 eyewitnesses, they want you to convict her literally 21 MS. SCHEIBLE: Right.
22 on an HGN. That is the objective piece of evidence 22 THE COURT: Because he couldn't identify
23 that she's standing here on; and it's not encugh. 23 her. We'll make sure that's clear. I do understand
24 So I'd ask for a finding of not gullty across the 24 that. That is correct, Mr. Mueller.
25 board, Judge. 25 If we all agree that that was part of his
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1 testimony, then I don't need to look back at the 1 the vehicle -- it was a Toyota truck, I believe --
2 record. If we don't, then I'm going to look back at 2 and it smashed the roof in and smashed the driver in
3 the record and see what his testimony said. That 3 the head, and it killed him. And the other one was
4 was my recollection. 4 a motorcycle, and the same thing. The pole fell on
5 MS, SCHEIBLE: Ch, I understand now, your 5 him and killed him. It was not really from the
6 question. I agree that that was part of the 6 impact. Butif you hit a pole and you're in an
7 testimony. 7 accldent, you're going to get out, and vou might
8 THE COURT: Okay. You ready? 8 stumble even though you're not in under the
9 I understand this case has been going on 9 influence because you've got a head trauma, head
10 for a long time. We've taken quite a bit of time, a 10 injury. But that isn't the end of the story here.
11 considerable amount of time looking into the issues 11 We have the totality of the circumstances
12 here, and I'll be honest with you, I appreciate 12 that are ongoing here, and that's the issue. 1
13 that. It doesn’t matter to me how long it takes as 13 agree that Mr. Risco did not identify the defendant,
14 long as we get it right, and we're trying to do 14 Ms. Plumles, directly. And he was here, and he sald
18 that. Understanding we're not perfect, but we do 15 he couldn't point to her and identify her as the
16 everything we can to be as perfect as we can. 16 person that was in the car. However, we can't
17 And, Mr. Muelier, I really appreciate your 17 ignore the testimony that we did get, and that was
18 representations on your client. You represent your 18 that Mr. Risco observed what he observed, which we
19 client very well, and you've done a great and 19 already stated on the record.
20 outstanding job here. 20 He dialed 911. Law enforcement was there
21 Ms. Scheible, I appreclate your 21 within a very short period of time, it appears to
22 reprasentation of your client as well. And as well, 22 me, and we have an ongoing chain of events, without
23 you've done an ogutstanding and great job here. 1 23 any brealk in -- T guess we call it "custody of
24 can tell you that, on an implied basis, we're not 24 events on the totality of the circumstancas.” The
25 there. But on an impairment theory, T do believe 25 officers testifled and did point out here in court,
128 128
1 that the State has met its burden of proof, 1 Ms. Plumlee was the person that they investigated.
2 And let me go through that so that you have | 2 They pointed out that it was a black sedan,
3 that, that we had the Witness Risco, Mr. Risco, 3 and they pointed out that it was a fernale that was
4 observe what was going on. The car went through a 4 Inthat car. The chain of events were ongoing and
§ red light. The car jumped the median. He had § continuous. I don't think there's any doubt who was
8 testified that it appeared that the car was 6 in that car and who was driving that vehicle and
7T traveling against traffic and it hit a light pole. 7 what vehicle that was at that point. You can't
8 He testifled that the vehicle that he 8 ignore that. Then they had the subsequent test that
9 witnessed was a black sedan. He testified that the 8 continued from there. And Trooper Luna did testify
10 person who got out of the car had hair that 10 that they did do the horizontal-gaze nystagmus test,
11 resembled that of a woman's halr, was wearing a 11  and six out of six clues were discovered.
12 dress, resembling that it was a female driver. And 12 And based on that, I agree with you,
13 a point of clariftcation, when he observed and 13  Mr. Mueller, independent of one another, I don't
14 witnessed the individual getting out of the car, he 14 think that we can jump to that conclusion. But with
15 witnessed the Individual falling down. 18 the totality of the circumstances, with the unbroken
16 Now, we come with the other argument 16 chaln of events that occurred throughout this time,
17 saying, well -- and we discussed this a little bit 17 that there is enough evidence there, and the State
18 in the hall -~ that people do hit poles that aren't 18 has met its burden that Ms. Plumlee was impaired,
19 under the influence, and I've had that happen a 19 operating a vehicle.
20 couple of times in my own neighborhood; and I can 20 Now, In saying that, I've discussed with
21 tell you, depending upon tow hard you hit that, that |21 vyou my feelings on that situation, and I can tell
22 both people in my neighborhood unfortunately were |22 vyou normally, I prefer to do a sentencing portion
23 killed because the impact was so hard in hitting the 23 after the trial; and I know that, Ms. Scheible, you,
24 pole. 24 kind of sald, "Well, no, that" -- and I agree with
25 Both poles actually fell on top of, one on 25 vyou it's up to me to determine that. Normally I do

02/05/2020 11:07:38 AM

Page 125 to 128 of 142

PAOOO® ¢ 36 sheets



131

129

1 do it that way. However, based on what we've got 1 statute, and we set sentencing over 15th or 16th of

2 here and what we're looking at -- 2 November?

3 And, Mr. Muefler, T know originally, you 3 THE DEFENDANT: I graduate the 15th.

4 were saying, "Well, that might be a separate 4 MR. MUELLER: Yes, I know.

5 hearing.” And to be honest with you, when you 5 THE COURT: We'll ge bayond that.

6 spoke, I'm sitting here thinking I'm really not sure 6 But let me let -~ Ms, Scheible, you've been

7 because I don't know if we're going to even have one 7 patient, and I didn't understand those things

8 or not because if I find Ms. Plumiee not guilty, of 8 previously. But now that Mr. Mueller has given us

g course it's over with, it's done. S0 we might not 9 that Information, I do have a few more things to
10 need another one, but if we do, it might be today 1¢ say. But let's let you have your representation.

11 and it might be at a future time. " MS. SCHEIBLE: Yeah, well, first, I think
12 And so, Mr. Mueller -- and then I made the 12 he indicated that he wanted to bring in the same
13 statement, "Well, I'll make that determination.” 13 evaluation from the previous event, to which 1
14 But based on the findings and based on your 14 absolutely object. She needs a new aicohol
15 representations that you made here, Mr. Mueller, 18 evaluation for a new case, and for a conviction a
16 guass what, I'll let you make that determination. 16 year later, I think it's important that we have an
17 Would you like to continue this, at this 17 up-to-date alcohol evaluation in this case.
18 point, for the sentencing portion? If so, I'll 18 Second of all, 1 appreciate that she's been
19 honor your request. If not -- 19 working hard and doing well in her moderate
20 MR. MUELLER: It's my understanding of the 20 offenders program, but I would not be surprised if a
21 statute, Juclge, that as a2 DUJ, second offense, you 2t new DUI conviction would affect her ability to
22 have to order an alcohol evaluation before we go to 22 graduate in November,
23 3 formal sentencing. 23 THE COURT: Okay. So here's what we --
24 THE COURT: Okay. 24 Mr. Mueller, I'm going to see what's going to happen
25 MR, MUELLER: Having said that, these 25 on that.

130 132

1 conditions, this situation is a little bit different 1 MR. MUELLER: Okay.

2 than maost. She is actuslly due to graduate from a 2 THE COURT: So we're going to 9o outside

3 vyear-long minor offenders program down in Las Vegas | 3 that November date. The 15th was -~

4 Justice Court on the 15th of November. So maybe if 4 MR. MUELLER: She's scheduled to graduate

5 we could -- T'll get it, see if I can find the 5 the 15th of November,

8 evaluation for that incident and then bring it to 6 THE CLERK: Our next day would be the 19th.

7 the court. Save her a few dollars. 7 THE COURT: Yeah, lat's go out a little —-

8 My client single mother of four. She's had 8 You want a little bit more time than then,

9 a tough patch here. She's gone a vear down at the § than that; right? You want to go out the first week
16 program; and so you know, she's going to two group |10 of December, or do you want to go the last week
11 sessions a week. She's had one counseling session 11 of -- I don't want to get that far into Thanksgiving.
12 individually per week. She's going to AA two times 12 MR. MUELLER: 19th of November will work,
13 per week. Every morning, she's got random U.A.s and |13 Judge.

14 breathalyzers for the car. And she has to report 14 THE COURT: Okay. Let's do 19th of

18 over in Las Vegas Justice Court, I believe it's 16 November. And in doing that, you know, now that
18 Sciscento — Judge Sciscento? 16 I've gone through the trial, and now that I've made
17 THE DEFENDANT: Sciscento, yeah. |17 my ruling, our concern, Ms. Plumlee, is you and the
18 MR. MUELLER: She's in 100 percent 18 safety of our community, And it's critically

19 compliance. Never been called over to address 19 Impartant that you comply with these counseling
20 anything with her, and I just delivered a status 20 agencies. With what Mr. Mueller has said, 1 can

21 letter from Tom Stewart to the program coordinator 21 tell you it helps me in making a determination on
22 on the supervising judge about a month ago on that. 22 what I'm going to finally do at the end here.

23 In fact, less than a month ago. A couple weeks ago. 23 In my opinion, there's g problem here,

24 So if we could just set sentencing over, 24 You've got to fix it for your own well being. There
25 TI'll get an evaluation in accordance with the 25 is no question you have to fix it. You cannot do it
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1 on youi‘ own. 1 Christmas." And I said "Don't do that, please.”
2 THE DEFENDANT: I've been in the program a 2 I can't stay away from it. I can't. My
3 vyear, and I've never had any failed U.A.s, no 3 mother buys them, and every time I go there, she
4 nothing wrong. I have complied with every single 4 knows how much I love them. I'll eat a handful at
8§ thing. I have not had a drink in over a2 year and § her house, and then she'll say, "Oh, just take the
6 two months. So I've only done what I can do until 6 whole thing." I'm like "No, no." Because ] know
7 today. So going forward, I'm not drinking. I don't 7 what's going to happen. If I take that home, the
8 plan to drink. I'm a single mom that takes care of 8 whole thing will be gone tomorrow. So much easier
8 two kids in college and two teenagers in high school. 9 for me not to be around it and not have it around
40 We've had a bout of a rough patch. My daughter's 186 myself and not have it in my home. I don't.
11 boyfriend died on October ist. So we've had a lot 11 So I don't buy soda pop. My kids, we'll go
12 of things we were going through. But and I haven't 12 back to that, my two boys, it's about 15 years now,
13 even drank at all in over a year, so. 13 and neither of them have ever had a drink of soda
14 THE COURT: Okay. Well, and that's really 14 pop of any kind. They don't -- they saw how big 1
15 important because some people can regulate, and some |18 got as a result of not being able to control it, and
16 people can't. We're all different. 168 they heard about the health issues involved in
17 THE DEFENDANT: Correct. 17  soda pop. So they just don't drink it. So it's a
18 THE COURT: It appears here that you're ona 18 good thing.
19 that can't, and there's some things that I can do 19 So it's not just for you too because that's
20 and can't do, myself personally. And those things 20 in your best interest; it's for all of us too, and 1
21 that cause me trouble, I don't aliow them in my 21 can tell you thank goodness nobody was hurt,
22 home. Legally, even though they're legal things 22 seriously. Thank goodness. That's not going to
23 that I can have and do, I don't want them. 23 always be the case iIf we can't regulate that, and we
24 I don't want io overeat. You know what, 24 see that every week, We see that every week., The
25 one of my biggest weaknesses? I can tell you I 25 odds aren't reaily good, and when somebody gets hurt
134 136
1 don't drink aicohol, but I love soda pop. And 1 1 or dies as a resuit of it, we all lose.
2 could use this as an analogy because soda pop is not 2 We all lose forever because, one, you have
3 good for you. Soda pop creates heaith fssues. But, 3 to live with the thought of what's occurred, IF
4 for me, 1 can tell you, once I start drinking soda 4 vyou're the survivor; and the other side has to live
5 pop, I can't stop. I really like it. But guess 5 with the thoughts of not having that loved one that
§ what? Within a month on or two, I gain a lot of 6 they care about. Think about your own kids and not
7 weight. And I feel very uncomfortable, and I don't 7 having them around for something that they didn't do
8 feel good, 8 wrong; or the reverse, you're gone.
9 So guess what I do as a resuft? It's easy. 9 THE DEFENDANT: I don't drink anymore, and
0 I tell everybody, "There's no soda pop allowed in my 10 I won't drink anymore.
11 house.” Sg guess what's happened as a result? My | 11 THE COURT: You can't,
12 two boys, they've said, "Hey, you know what, dad 12 THE DEFENDANT: I won't.
13 said that soda pop is not good.” They're older now, 13 THE COURT: You can‘t.
14 much older. And at an early age, they said to 14 THE DEFENDANT: I won't.
15 themselves: Dad thinks that soda pop's not really 15 THE COURT: You can't. Because there's too
16 good. 16 many risks involved. And In conclusion, just, vou
17 And to say I don't ever drink i, T do 47 know, let’s say -- the first example I gave you is
18 still. But if I go to the grocery store and I buy 18  you walk out okay, but somebody else Is hurt, you've
19 soda pop and I have it in my house, guess what? I'm 19 got to live with that. That's awful. But that
20 going to drink it until it's gone. And I do the 20 family has to too. So secend scenario is you don't
21 same thing with cashew peanuts. My mother buys them |21 walk away from it; you're not around anymore. You
22 all the ime. But guess what, I can't regulate 22 have two kids.
23 myself. I can'tdoit. And 1 eat a five-pound 23 THE DEFENDANT: I have four.
24 thing of cashews one day because my wife thought 24 THE COURT: Four kids. What do you think
25 “I'm going to be nice to him get him these for 25 the impact is going to be on them?
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THE DEFENDANT: I'm aware, which is why
I'll never drink again.

THE COURT: Ever.

THE DEFENDANT: I agree.

THE COURT: Ever. Aside from the legality
of the issues here, Mr. Mueller will advise you, you
don't want anyrmore because the penalties from here
on, in my aplnion, are pretty severe. You don't
want to have to face that, You want to do whatever
you have to do {o fix the problem. And I discussed
that with Ms. Scheible and Mr. Muetler back here.
We want to fix the problem. We don't want anybody
hurt. You just got to fix it.

THE DEFENDANT: I've been working on it for
a year, and so far, that's how long I've had, so.

MR. MUELLER: All right. Judge, we'll see
that she gets the evaluation, Judge, and we'll see
you the next time.

THE COURT: It's got to be a lifetime.

It's got to be a lifetime, and it's a daily battie,
but you've got to have that for a lifetime. IY's
important,

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: So I'il tell you what, we'll go
ahead and d9 the sentencing.

W NWm ;s W A
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THE COURT: Does that work for you,
Ms. Scheible?

MS. SCHEIBLE: I'm not sure I can be here
on that day -- ch, It looks like I can. So, yes,
that's fine.

THE COURT: Let’s set that at a different
time, yeah, at 11:00 o'clock. That way, I don't
have sverybody here, and I'lt give you plenty of
time because, on these, I want to be very thorough
and lock into everything and especially what,

Mr. Mueller, I'm anticipating is going to present.
1 don't want to take it lightly.

MR, MUELLER: Thank you, Your Honor.

I'd ask you to hold off formal adjudication
of guilt until the 18th. Otherwise, we're at
cross-purposes with appellate rights,

THE COURT: I couldn't bear what you were
savying.

MR. MUELLER: Otherwise, we would be at
cross-purposes with her appellate rights. I don't
want to file a notice of appeal ten days from today.
If we could hold off formal adjudication appeal to
sentencing.

MS. SCHEIBLE: I would like her adjudicated
today, Your Honor, It's a misdemeanor, I think

138

And, Mr. Mueller, you can provide me with
those records. But I'd love if you could give those
to Ms, Scheible before we see what's going to happen
because I know you're going to show me what's
happened and what she's done, That's what I'm
jooking at as far as sentencing is concerned and
where wa're at.

It's a little bi{ of a different situation
now after my findings.

M5, SCHEIBLE: Qkay.

MR. MUELLER: Thank you, Your Honor.

MS. SCHEIBLE: Two quick guestions,

Your Honor. Ars you adjuclicating her today?

THE COURT: Yes. But I'm not sentencing.

MS. SCHEIBLE: And what time will the
sentencing be on the 19th?

THE COURT: You know what, that's a good,
real good question because I don't want you to have
to come and sit around and everybody sitting here.

What day Is that?

THE CLERK: That is a Tuesclay.

THE COURT: That is & Tuesday. So it will
probably be big calendar.

Do you want to do it at 11:007

MR. MUELLER: That will be fine, Judge.
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that's pretty -- 1 think that's par for the course.

THE COURT: Yeah, help me understand what
the problem with the appeal Is.

MR. MUELLER: Because If T've got ten days
from the date of the adjudication of guilt to file a
Notice of Appeal, I don't want to sit down and tatk
to her about appealing anything. I want her to get
the evaluation done and follow-up on It.

THE COURT: Oh, okay. Okay. Becausel
thought that was going to be a for sure, But it's
not a for sure thing?

MR. MUELLER: No, sir.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. That's fine,

MR, MUELLER: Thank you.

THE COURT: Any problem with that?

MS. SCHEIBLE: Well, Your Honor --

THE COURT: I made my record. We've
already had the trial,

MS. SCHEIBLE: I know. May we approach?

THE COURT: Yesh, sure. That's fine.

(Bench conference.)

THE COURT: We're on record one more time.
I just want to make sure that the record is clear.

Ms. Plumleg, the condition of absolutely no
alcohol of any kind is still ‘there. Hopefully that
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1 won't be an issue. I think that we should he okay
2 with that after, you know, hearing from you here
3 today.
4 But, Mr. Mueller, your request is granted,
5 and we'll be back here on that November date,
) MR. MUELLER: All right. Thank you,
7 Your Honor.
: THE CQURT: You're welcome. Thank you.
9
10 (The proceedings concluded at 2:31 p.m.}
Kk -000-
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HENDERSON, NEVADA, NOVEMBER 19, 2019

* % k% k& ok k% Kk % kX %k %

THE COURT: Let's go ahead and call
Jennifer Plumlee, Case Number 18MH0263X.

Good morning, Miss Scheihle and
Mr, Maynard. Nice to have you both here. We did have
some discussions in the conference room on this matter,
but, Miss Scheible, I will let the State take over and
kind of give us an update on where we were, why we're
here and what's going on.

MS. SCHEIBLE: Thank vyou, your Honor. You
are very familiar with this case as am I, It's been
open for over a year now since the defendant was
arrested in September of 2018. She finally went to
trial on October 23'% of 2019. You heard the case
and found her guilty of driving under the influence.
Her second offense. She's not yet been adjudicated and
we're asking that she be adiudicated today guilty of
DUI seccnd. Her first offense she picked up just a few
months before this offense which occurred on
September 10th of 2018 and as a result of picking up
this second DUI, even though she had not yet been

convicted, she was transferred from the DUI --~ she was

PAO00080
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tranzferred into the MOP program and I understand that
she has since completed that program and she's done
very well in that program and the State is pleased with
her progress in maintaining her clean and sober
lifestyle.

Unfortunately we are back here again on &
sentencing on a DULI case and I don't want the Ccurt to
forget that even though a vear and some months have
passed, in that time the defendant did engage in some
extremely dangerous conduct tc herself, to her four
children to which I understand she is the only parent
and to the rest of the community. And the State
frankly, vour Honor, is disappointed tolaee that over
the last year she's still not taken responsibility for
this danger that she caused to the community. Despite
being in the Moderate Offenders Program and despite
getting clean and sober she has not acknowledged her
role in the accident that occurred on September 10th of
2018. T hesitate to say luckily but I think we are
lucky that she was the only perscn invelved in that
accident and that nobody else was injured. And as long
as she stands here hefore this Court unwilling to take
responsibility for what she did on September 10%2 of
2018, I think it is appropriate that additional

sanctions be imposed on her beyond just what she's




12:45PM 1 | already endured as a result of her DUI first

2 conviction.

3 So today I'm not trying to be
4 unreasonable, your Honor. TI'm trying to acknowledge
12:49PM 5 that this was year ago and that as far as we know she’'s

& not had a drop of alcohel since that time. I think we

7 all share in the goal of sseing the defendant live a

8 productive and happy life that dees not include anymore

9 drinking, especially not drinking and then getting
12:49eM 10 behind the wheel of a car.

11 And lest she forget the seriousnsss of

12 this charge because time has passed and she has

13 successfully completed the MOP program, we are going to

i4 ask you to do a few things today, your Honor. The
12:49pPM 15 first as I menticned before to adjudicate hexr guilty of

16 the DUI second which is still a misdemeancr. The Stats

7 is asking for a thousand dollars as a fine or the

i3 aquivalent in community service. We're alse requesting

19 that she complete 10 days in custody. This is the
12:50PM 20 statutory minimum. The State is not belng punitive.
21 The State is not being vindictive. This is literally
22 the minimum requirements for a DUI second. And I khow
23 that it might feel like it's coming a year after the

24 fact, but the truth of the matter i1s that it is the

12:50PM 25 defendant who delayed the prosecution of this case and
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delayed her conviction and adiudication to this day and
now she has to answer for it., So I understand that she
may have some credit already and we're asking that she
complete her 10-day sentencs.

In addition the State is asking that the
interlock device be placed on her car once again.

There were some discussions in chambers about a SCRAM
bracelet instead. 1It's my understanding that the
defendant would prefer the interlock device and if that
has changed since I last spoke to her counsel, then I
will stand up again and address that. But otherwise I
think I'm going to go forward with my request for
interlock device for either six months or the pendency
cf this case, whichever is longer. I will be asking
for a stay out of trouble order for the same length of
time, either six months or the pendency of this case,
whichever one is longer.

I'm asking that any use of alcohol be
considered a viclation of the stay out of trouble order
whether it is detected with the interlock device or if
she is arrested on completely unrelated charges and
found to be intoxicated at the time, whether she is
subject to a UA in court, whether she may or may not be
intoxicated, whether it is proven by witnesses at an

evidentiary hearing because somebody sees her ingesting
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alcohol and the State finds out, we are requesting that
any consumption of alcohol be considered a stay out of
trouble violation.

We're asking that she continue any
treatment that she's already undergoing., I understand
that she's completed the VIP and/or the coroner's
program. If there's eithsr of those that she's not
done, we'd request that she do that now. Otherwise I
would leave it to the defendant's discretion. To my
knowledge she's not snrolled in AA and the State has no
problem with her checosing an alternative course of
treatment, but I would like to see some kind of
documentation from a counselor, a treatment center,
meetings, support group. I saw some similar
decumentation this morning of what she's done up to now
and an evaluation as she leaves the MOP program, but I
think it's important that she continue to sse a
therapist or go to meetings or deo something to maintain
her sobriety.

Other than that, your Homor, I am asking
for a six months suspended sentence and I think that it
is fair in light of the charges, in light of the
seriousness of the offense. And if she is really doing
as well as she says that she is, which I hope -- beyond

all hope I really want that to be true, that she has
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been completely sober and she will continue to be
sober, she will have no problems paying the fine or
doing the community service, serving whatever remains
of her 10 days and driving her car whenever and
wherever she wants because she has no problems with the
interlock device, then the six months suspended
sentence shouldn't be a prchlem.

THE COURT: Great, Wonderful. Thank you,
Miss Scheible,

Mr. Maynard.

MR. MAYNARD: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: You're welcome.

MR. MAYNARD: Your Honor, we discussed in
champers and I think the appropriate question hers is
what 's our purpose here today, what's cur objective,
what's our goal? First and foremost our goal here has
to be to insure the safety of the community including
the safety of Miss Plumlee and absolutely understand
that drinking and driving is a threat to that safety.

I think the bast way and I think we all agree and I
know that Miss Plumlee agrees the best way to insure
the safety of the community, including herself,
incliuding her children, is that Miss Plumlee no longer
drives. I know that she agrees with this. T know that

she understands this because she is already in full
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12:53pM i compliance with that requirement.
2 Miss Plumlee did have a rough period here
3 and she did have a prior DUI and while she was
4 completing her requirements for that DUI she picked up
12:54pM 5 this case., However, it was Ms. Plumlee through Mueller
) and Associates who went to the Court and went to ths
7 district attornsy in that other case and it was us who
8 requested the Moderate Offender Program to satisfy that
9 violaticn of her probation for an informal precbationary
12:54PM 10 period. We were the ones who suggested the Moderate
11 Offender Program, Miss Plumlee was the one who
12 volunteered to go into the program. And not only did
13 she go into the program but she has successfully
14 completed it. I do have a certification here
12:54pM 15 acknowledging her successful completion.
16 THE COURT: For clarification for me was
17 that before the new charges came down or after?
18 MR. MAYNARD: It was after the new charges
19 came down. I believe she was charged with this in
12:55eM 20 September of 2018 and she entered the MOP in
21 | November 15%P, 2018.
22 Worthy of note here is that she began her

23 | current periocd of sobriety on October 215% of zo1s.

24 50 even before she entered the Moderate Gffenders

ts
N

2 55PN 25 Program she started her period of sobriety that is
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present and ongeing and Ged willing day by day she will
maintain that for the rest of her life, And that is
her plan. Not only did she volunteer to go into the
Moderate Offender Program, it is absolutely transparent
that she took it incredibkly seriously. I balked at the
reference the State made. I chaff at the reference the
State made to the idea that Miss Plumlee hasn't taken
responsibility. I think what the State means, and I
take her meaning, but I think what she means that she
hasn't stopped fighting this case. She hasn't pled
guilty. She hasn't thrown herself admitted everything
that has happened and everything that she did on that
day and confessed all of her sins before the Court.

Bnd that is a symptom not of Miss Plumlee not taking
her sobriety and her recovery seriocusly. That is a
symptom of the fact that what we're dealing with here
today, and I think we're all informed adults here and
we all understand what we're dealing with here today,
we're addressing a public health crisis, addiction.
with a criminal system and it's what we have and I am
extraordinarily proud to work within this system.
However, it is not without its flaws and this is one of
them. And so criminal culpability is a different issue
than the underlying cause of what led to these charges

which is Ms. Plumlee's relationship, dysfunctional
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relationship with alcohol. And she has absoclutely
addressed that relationship and addressed that
dysfunction, your Honor.

I would like to read from the letter
provided to the Court and I have a copy for the Court
if you would care for one, your Honor? I'd like to
read from the letter that was just provided to the
Court from Ms. Flumlee's counselor Jose Florido. This
is on the second page ©f the letter. "I hope this
information may be able to help you and Courts to make
a decision. Miss Plumlee has been adhering perfectly
to the requirements of the Court and program. She is
in total compliance with everything that has been
regquired and there is nothing else that we require from
her. During the almost year" -— as a side note it has
now been more than a year and she has graduated the
program though this was written before that. "During
the almost year she has been in the program she has
never submitted a positive urine analysis test, That
proves her seriousness and commitment to complete
recovery. In spite of the difficulties that she has
been going through and the financlal stresses of life,
she has remained in perfect compliance. She has never
missed & class or a UA or an individual counseling

session.

PA0O00088



12:58PM

12:59PM

12:58PM

12:55PM

1:-00PM

1:00PM

10

11

12

13

14

15

17

18

19

20

21

22

24

25

11

"Her progress in the program has been
outstanding and she is totally free from triggers or
cravings leading to relapse in the old lifestvle. Her
prognosis for a sober life is wonderful.

"She possesses a great determination to
remain alcohol free, due to internal motivations is not
anymore because the Court may have a finger on her, but
hbecause she wants to be a responsible single mother
helping her four children to succeed at school and in
life. As her counselor I am proud of the entirely good
job that she has been doing in the programn.”

To say that she hasn't taken
responsibility for her actions and for her difficulties
and again for her dysfunctional relationship with
alccheol in the face of this, in the face of what she's
acgomplished? Perfect compliance, your Honor., I am
sure you know and I'm sure I do not need to tell you
but let me restate it regardless of its redundancy.
Perfect compliance with any addiction treatment program
imposed by the Court is incredibly difficult. It is
incredibly difficult. One bad day, one late showing to
a urinalysis, one missed text message. The number of
ways that you can create a flaw -~ you can provide a
flaw to these programs is legion and yet she has

avoided all of them. Honestly, your Honor, I don't
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know that I've ever known of another defendant who has
had perfect compliance. Perfect., To say that she
hasn't taken responsibkbility is frankly launghable, if it
weren't quite so preposterous given the face of this.
And again I mean no offense to my colleague. I
understand the point she was trying te make, but
clearly Miss Plumlee has taken responsibility for her
actions,

Not only has she taken responsibility for
her actions, she has corrected the underlying problems
and insured that she will not repeat them. And
insuring that is a day in and day out effort for her
that she continues to make every day. She works as a
real estate specialist at Wyndham and she has four
children. They are all currently in schecel and they
are all currently at home. Two of them are in college,
two of them are in high school. They live at home and
she provides for them. She works between the past year
in the Moderate Offender Program between court dates
and working in drder to be able tc pay all the fees and
fines reguired of her. 3he on average is lucky to get
about two days off z month because she has to take
whatever overtime she can get, and quite frankly
certainly mean no offense to her but she's lucky that

she has a job that has allowed her to be able to take
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time off and go down and give a UA whenever it's
required of her because there are many Jjobs that aren't
nearly as understanding. But she has also given them
as much time as they could possibly need from her and
done as much work for them as she possibly could to
maintain that good relaticnship and yet she hasn't
taken responsibility?

To clarify a moment later on in the
district attorney's presentation Ms., Plumlee is
currently going to two Alcoholics Anonymous meebings a
week as well as she had been attending three classes
for the Moderate Offender Program. But now that those
are freed up she's at least going to two AA meetings a
week. She has maintained more than a year's worth of
sobriety. Again her initial sobriety date
october 21%%, 2018.

I started this by asking what the purpose
of this was, what our goal was. Cur goal is to make
sure that Miss Plumlee remain sober and remains a
happy, healthy, non-dangerous part of our community.
That geal, your Honor, has been achieved. That result
is present befare you. We see that here today with no
questions and no doubts. This was mentioned earlier,
hut the evaluaticn of her program from again her

counselor states that "According to DSM 5 criteria for
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diagnosis Miss Plumles is in sustained full remission.
Sustained full remissicon means that none of the
criteria for dependence or abuse have been met at any
time during the past 12 months or longer. Miss Plumlee
has been an excellent client always in perfect
compliance with Court and program rules and
regulations. Urine tests always have been in total
compliance with the expectations of the judge and the
program. Attendance has always been perfect.
Participation in group and individual sessions
outstanding. She has driven to maintain total
abstinence and has clear determination to do it due to
internal motivations like her children's education and
welfare. Her prognosis fowards an alcchol free life is
excellent . ™

The purposs of sentancing here has been
achieved and for that reason we would be asking your
Honor that the sentence in this case be that she
participate in the Moderate Offender Program and that
that sentence be run concurrent with the prior case,
Case Number 17CRG0953%. Our reguest is that her
sentence be the Moderate Offender Program to run
cencurrent with the prior case and that this Court
accept the completion of that case as the completion of

her requirements in this case. We understand that the
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Court may be hesitant to do that. In the alternative
we would ask that Miss Plumlee be expected to continue
her period of sobriety not imbibing any alcohol t;'be
measured by & breath interlock device currently
installed on her car and that she stay out of trouble
for six months., We would ask that her underlying
sentence be nc more than 90 days.

And, your Honor, we have notably left out
the 10 days in custody and the thousand dollar fine.
That goes back to the very first question I asked which
is what is the purpose here? Ms., Flumlee was in
custody for six days when she was arrested on this
case. First of all we would ask the Court to give her
credit for time served on the 10 days in custody due to
that time period in custody. However, what is that
10-day period going to serve? Is it going to serve the
purpose of keeping her sober? Does it have anything to
do with that purpose whatsoever? We would say, your
Honor, no, it doesn't. She's been out of custodv for
mere than a year and she's been scber for more than a
year. She's clearly capable of staying sober without
having a jail sentence imposed upon her. Furthermore,
what is the thousand deollars going to do? What is a
thousand dollar fine gcing to do to help her sobriety?

She isn't not drinking because she doesn't have an
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extra thousand dellars around. She's not drinking
because of her own determination to provide a better
life for herself and her children and to be a better
part of this community. The thecusand dellar fine would
have nothing to do with the purpose of this Court and
this sentence. 8So we would ask that both of those be
denied from the State's request.

Again first and fcremost we are asking for
her to be sentenced to the Mcderate Offender Program
and this Court accept completicon of that program as
completion of her requirements here. In the
alternative we'd ask for a breath interlock device and
stav out of trouble for six months.

THE COURT: Wonderful, Appreciate that.
Thank you, Mr. Mavnard.

I'm going to let you respond, Miss
Scheible, but just a few questions. It's my
understanding that on a DUI second I do net have any
discretion on the 10 days?

MS. SCHEIBLE: That's my understanding,
your Henor. That's the minimum.

THE COURT: And I don't have any
discretion on the fine.

MS. SCHEIBLE: The fine, the minimum is

$750. We're asking for a thousand dollars.

PA000094



1:08pPM

1: 08P

1:0%PM

1:09PM

1:32PM

1:33pPM

aey

i3

14

15

16

17

i8

19

17

THE COURT: Right. But

MS. SCHEIBLE: You don't have discretion
not to impose it.

THE COURT: Let me explain because I read
the statute. That's correct, but when you tally up all
the fees that are required by statute for me to impose
on top of that I have got my number., It's 51058,

MS. SCHEIBLE: That's the minimum, your
Honor. We're asking for an additional 250 on top of
that.

THE COURT: So my understanding I don't
have any discretion on that on the minimums.

MS. SCHEIBLE: Correct. That's my
understanding as well, your Honor.

THE COURT: ®With that, Miss Scheible,

MS. BCHEIBLE: I have nothing else, your
Honor

THE CCURT: Can we have a side bar.

(At the bench discussion.)

THE COURT: The case 1s still called.
We're still there. At side bar we had some discussions
regarding the mandatory minimums. One of those was the
fineg and just for the record including the AA fees the
minimum that we do on a DUI second is $1058. On the

jall time, and I think that was the lssue that we wera
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trying to figure out here, the minimum is 10 days, it
looks like we've got six days credit for time served so
we have an additional four days. So I'm trving to
figure out what we can do within the scope of the law
on those additional four days. I think that's kind of
where we left it. And then we d¢ need to get the
information submitted on the recoerd. I don't know,
Miss Scheible, I think you have that regarding the --

MS. SCHEIBLE: I do, your Honor, So I
think the information that you're looking for is I had
brought in a certificate of conviction from her prior
case file for the DUI first. It was not entered on the
record at the time of the trial because she was not
adjudicated at that time and the Court decided that it
was an issue for sentencing rather than an issue for
finding of fact of her guilt.

THE COURT: We discussed it in the back
that Mr. Mueller asked we hold off on that.

MS. SCHEIBLE: That's correct, your Honor.
That's my reccllection.

THE COURT: I don't recollect, but that's
good, I accept that,

MS. SCHEIBLE: So I brought it back with
me today. I provided it to your Honor. I'm not sure

1f you want to enter it into the record as well. So I
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will hand it back to your marshal to hand back Lo you
if that's okay. For the record the event number is
17-146492. The only case number I see on here because
it's Municipal Court is 17CR0095392. I don't know that
it's adopted ancther case number in Muni Court at some
point in time, but she was definitely convicted of DUI
on that case.

THE COURT: I would like Mr. Maynard to
have a chance to look at that and see if he has any
response.

MS. SCHEIBLE: 1I'm sorry, your Honor.
Here are a few more pages.

MR. MAYNARD: That's correct.

THE COURT: Any objections, Mr. Maynard?

MR. MAYNARDE: Nc¢ cbjections.

THE CCURT: Let's get back to the other
issue.

MS. SCHEIBLE: The State will just renew
its requesk that she be sentenced to 10 days in the
Clark County Detention Center and that she serve those
days in the Clark County Detenticn Center. Frankly
from a broader perspective I understand the defense's
repeated request for mercy based on the defendant's
success over the past year and those have not gone

unnoticed by the State. That is why I'm up here
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literally asking for the minimum sentence and they're
still fighting me on it. So I don't know what
defendant wants less than the minimum sentence, but I
don't think that she is deserving of treatment beycnd
what the law tells us is the minimum for a perscn who
commits this crime. And so on that I will submit.
Once again my request that she be sentenced to 10 days
in the Clark County Detention Center to be served in
the Clark County Detenticn Center.

THE COURT: Wonderful. Thank you very
much, Miss Scheible. Appreciate that.

Mr., Maynard.

MR, MAYNARD: After consulting with my
client we would be asking for -— she has served six
days on this as we understand it -- we would be asking
for her to serve the remaining four days in custody at
CCDC on the weekends as she can. To c¢larify, her
weekends, quote, unguote, are Thursday and Friday. I
assume it doesn't really matter which particular days
she's in there but as long as she‘'s in there for a
matter of four davs and she would have the full six
months to get those four days served?

THE COURT: That is correct. What I don't
want to do is Jjeopardize employment and make the

situation worse.
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MR. MAYNARD: That is her primary concern
and the cencern with the idea of the 30-day House
Arrest is because the presence of the ankle monitor
could possibly interfere with her capacity to
effectively do her job. So balancing all the concerns
and considerations she has deemed that it would
probably be best for her to do the four remaining days
of the 10-day sentence in custpdy at CCDC over the
six-month period.

THE COURT: That would be great.

Approciate that. Thank you, Mr., Maynard.

So at this time we did grant Mr. Mueller's
reqguest to hold off on the adjudication until this date
and at this time we are going teo go ahead and
adjudicate you Jennifer Plumlee guilty on the criminal
complaint after going through the trial of the DUI
second and based on the evidence and the testimony. I
dec want to make it absolutely clear that that was --
because in the criminal complaint it does provide a per
se and a presumption that the test was not done within
the period of two hours. So it's not based on that,
it's based on incapable of safely driving and/or
exercising actual physical control of the vehicle as we
discussed from the witnesses. I thought it was

abundantly clear from the testimony that was given that
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we have an under the influence. My feeling is that we
can't wear blinders and ignore what actually occurred
and what actually happened on that day. It appears
that since then things have gotten better. Miss
Plumlee has enrolled herself in the SOP program which
is —-

MR. MAYNARD: MOP program,

THE COURT: 1TI'm sorry. MOP. Moderate
Offender Program which is something that I believe that
she's done on her own in order to try and correct the
problem. S0 it appears to me that she is trying and
needs to continue to try. And as we had discussed it's
not a let me try today, it's a dally thing that you
need to continue to work on and wake up in the morning
and say I am going to be sober today and I'm not going
Lo create a problem.

The good news is, and to be honest with
you, I think it's Jjust a matter of luck. I think we
werea just lucky. We're just lucky that nobody was
hurt. This was a pretty bad accident. It was pretty
bad under out of control. The testimony that I
received and heard sounded pretty bad. So I think we
were lucky. And I'm not talking about anybody else,
because I haven’'t even talked about you yourself. You

were lucky you weren't hurt. And we have seen evidence
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over and cver and over again on almost a daily basis
unfortunately of pecple that aren't lucky and scmebody
is hurt and the tragedy that that creates. HNot Fust
for the person who decided to take the wheel and drive
while intoxicated but the tragedy for everybody
invelved. In that situation everybody loses. &And in
my opinion these are so very, very, very avoidable.
With all the knowledge, with all the awarsness that we
have nowadays this should never happen but yet we get
them over and over again and they seem to be increasing
rather than decreasing with all the technelogy, with
all the information we have about the results of what
happens. I think we're fortunate in this situation
that nobody was hurt. The vehicle can be replaced,
they can be repaired. Lives cannot be. BSo I'm glad
that you've taken some responsibility and done the —-
am I going say it right -— the SOP?

MS. SCHEIBLE: The MOP.

THE COURT: The MOP, Moderate Offender
Program. I think that's a great program and I commend
you for deing that and that's a good thing to do.

I do agree with Miss Scheible on some of
the conditions here and again some of these are
minimum. I den't have a choice on these is my

understanding. I don't have discretion on this. So
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here's what I'm going to do. Adjudicate you guilty
based on the testimony and the abundantly clear
evidence that I believe that was given and the
testimony that was presented before me during the trial
and therefore I'm going to go ahead and require Miss
Plumlse to pay a fine of —— and just so we know with
the AA fees it comes out to $1058. I know it's a weird
number but with the AA fees that's how come it comes
ocut. And just so you know, Mr. Maynard, vou asked for
the minimum and that is the minimum on that. Otherwise
Miss Scheible asked for a thousand, it would have been
substantially more. And then I'm going to go ahead and
impose 10 days of jail time with six days credit for
time served. The remaining four days can be served on
her days off. How is that? That makes it clear. And
it can be served in my opinien any day during the week.
One day at a time, all four at a time, two days at a
time. I don't want to Jjeopardize the employment is my
bigoest concern. So that can be done within the next
six months and that's fine.

The interlock device be placed in the car
for a period of a minimum six months or the pendency.
And then we discussed no alcohol. She is to abstain
from any alcohol of any kind. I know the hclidays are

coming up. Sometimes it's hard. Alcohol is your enemy
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and so you need to stay away from it a hundred percent.
Hopefully ferever but at least for the pendency of this
action while this case is still ongoing.

One thing I forgot to tell you,

Mr. Maynard, I think you told me she was doing this
anyway, I really like the BR classes. I've been
informed that that is wery helpful. 8o I'd like her to
continue with the AA classes. Scunds like she's doing
two per week for the pendency of this action or six
months, whichever is longer. Theousand dollar fine, 10
days jail time, interlock device, stay out of trouble
for a period of six months or the pendency, ne alcohol.
Victim Impact Panel, did we discuss that? And the
coroner's program, Those are two requirements that I
think are really good.

And you know what, Mr. Maynard? I was
talking to you and there's a very intense Coroner's
Program, but now that I'm locking if she's attending
the AA meetings, she can go through the standard
¢coroner program. We'll accept the standard because
she's deing the AA.

And then at the end of the day we're
looking at imposing a 150-day sentence overall.
However, we are going to suspend that. And so on the

10 days I don't have discretion. In my opinion on the
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six months I do. I am geing te impose that. However,
I'm going to suspend the remaining time to make sure
that she's compliant with all the terms of the
negotiations.

MS. SCHEIBLE: The suspended sentence was
150 days or six months?

THE COURT: ZIt's 150 days because I'm
imposing 10 days. So it's 180 days minus 10 days but I
think we requested 150. I'm good with that.

Here is my hope, and again, I'm trusting
you that we are not going to have a problem. So that
shouldn't be an issue. Just do what you're supposed to
and tell me 10 years it won't make a difference because
guess what? When you come back to see me again in six
months, it's all going to be done and I'm going to be
happy. And we can close it out.

Let me just check with we'll start with
Mr. Maynard. Did T miss anything? And, Miss Scheible,
I'll come to you and see if T missed anything.

MR. MAYNARD: I don't think ycu missed
anything as far as I caught. That's what I got on my
notes.

THE COURT: Okay. Miss Scheible, did I
get everything?

MS5. SCHEIBLE: Got everything.
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THE COURT: I can tell you I really
appreciate both of your representation. I know you
both worked really hard. Miss Scheible, vou've worked
so hard on this and I appreciate that. And,

Mr. Maynard, I appreciate you being here and taking
time to gc through this because it's critically
important to me and it really looks like it's very
critically important to you and it's extremely
important to Miss Plumlee that we go through this
process. And I appreciate your patience in allowing us
to get to this point. Thank you so much.

MR. MAYNARD: Your Honocr, before we close
out as I mentioned in the back we have a notice of
appeal we will be £iling immediately. We would ask
that the requirements be suspended for the pendency of
the appeals case and then reinstated if and when the
appeal comes back down in affirmation or in the
alternative we will deal with that when it happens.

THE COURT: Miss Scheible.

MS. SCHEIBLE: No. You don't get to
suspend your sentence while you're pending appeal. The
sentence 1s to be imposed when the sentence is handed
down and then if there are some other -- 1f by some
legal miracle this case is appealed, then there are

other remedies at law for having served the sentences

PA0O00105
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under that conviction. But the State is vehemently
opposed to staying the adjudication, staying the
sentences until the appeal has been finalized. That's
not only ludicrous but flies in the face of defendant's
passioned argument that she is prepared to take
responsibility for what she's dons and set down on the
track of recovery.

THE COURT: And I'll tell you what. Let's
do this. And this is how we normally do it on this,.
I'm going to set a status check for 90 days and see
where we're at with it at that point.

MR, MAYNARD: Okay.

THE CLERK: February 19, 2020, 9:00 a.m.

MR. MAYNARD: Status check on the
reguirements and the appeal process?

THE COURT: Yes.

{The proceedings concluded.)

L A A

ATTEST: Full, true and accurate

transcript c¢f proceedings.

/S/lisa Brenske

LISA BRENSKE, CCR No. 186

PA000106
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2/14/2020 10:01 AM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE COU,

2
5 DISTRICT COURT
i CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
5
61| JENNIFER PLUMLEE, Case No.: (C-20-346852-A
Dept. No.: 2
7 Appellant,
Date: May 14, 2020
8 vs. Time: 9:00 a.m.
91| STATE OF NEVADA, ORDER SCHEDULING HEARING
AND BRIEFING SCHEDULE
10 Respondent.
11
12 TO: ALL PARTIES AND THEIR COUNSEL OF RECORD
13 PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the undersigned will bring a hearing on appeal on the

14| 14™ day of May, 2020, at 9:00 a.m. or as soon thereafter as counsel/parties can be heard, in
15| | Dept. II, Courtroom 3B, District Court.
16 Parties shall file briefs in accordance with the deadlines established in NRS 223B.130

17| | as follows:

18 Petitioner’s Opening Brief: ~ March 16, 2020

19 Respondent’s Brief: April 15, 2020

20 Petitioner’s Reply: April 30, 2020

21 Petitioner to provide courtesy copies of all pleadings to Department 2, 200 Lewis

22| | Avenue, 3" Floor, no later than May 6, 2020.

23 The hearing scheduled for March 12, 2020 at 9:00 a.m. is hereby VACATED.
24 IT IS SO ORDERED.
25 Dated this 12% day of February, 2020.
26
27
RICHARD F. SCOTTI
28 DISTRICT COURT JUDGE

1
Richard F. Scotti

District Judge

Department Two

Las Vegas, NV 89155 PA0O00107

Case Number: C-20-346852-A
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that on or about the date signed, a copy of this Order was electronically

served in accordance with Administrative Order 14.2, to all interested parties, through the

Court’s Odyssey EFileNV system.

Craig Mueller, Esq.
Counsel for Appellant

Melanie Scheible, Esq.
Steven Wolfson, Esq.

District Attorney

/s/ Melody Howard

Melody Howard
Judicial Executive Assistant
C-20-346852-A
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Electronically Filed
3/13/2020 3:00 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE COU
OET '

CRAIG A. MUELLER, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 4703

MUELLER & ASSOCIATES, INC
723 S. Seventh St.

Las Vegas, NV 89101

Office (702) 382-1200

Fax (702) 940.1235

Attorney For Appellant

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

JENNIFER PLUMLEE, aka,

Jennifer Lynn Graves #1410679,
Appellant, CASE NO:  C-20-346852-A

VS. DEPT NO: I

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

e N N N N N N N N N

Respondent.

MOTION FOR ORDER EXTENDING TIME
COMES NOW, Appellant Jennifer Plumlee, by and through her attorney Craig A.
Mueller, Esqg., and hereby moves this Honorable Court for an Order Extending Time for the
purpose of filing her Opening Brief. This Motion is based on Eighth Judicial District Court Rule
3.50, is supported by the attached Memorandum Of Points And Authorities, and is made in good

faith and not for the purposes of delay.

DATED 13" day of March, 2020.

/s/Craig A. Mueller
Craig A. Mueller, Esq.
Attorney For Appellant
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

PROCEDURAL HISTORY OF THE CASE

OnJuly 17, 2019, Appellant was scheduled for DUI trial in case number 18MH0263X.

Respondent moved for a continuance pursuant to Bustos v. Sheriff, 491 P.2D 1279 (1971) due to

Respondent’s witness, Trooper Greg Luna, not being present. The court granted Respondent’s
motion to continue over Appellant’s objections and motion to dismiss. The trial date was reset to
September 16, 2019, at which time Trooper Luna was present for the trial. During cross-
examination, Trooper Luna who admitted that he had never been served a subpoena for July 17,
2019. Appellant renewed her motion to dismiss the case due to an improper continuance. The
court continued the trial to October 07, 2019. Appellant was convicted of DUI in Henderson
Justice Court on October 07, 2019, after a bench trial. Appellant filed her Notice Of Appeal
timely on February 11, 2020. Appellant timely ordered transcripts of the proceedings on July 17,
2019, September 16, 2019, and October 07, 2019. However, no transcript for September 16,
2019 was filed. The Court set dates for filing the Opening Brief, Responsive Brief, Reply Brief,
and Argument. The deadline to file the Opening Brief is March 16, 2020, Responsive Brief
April 15, 2020, and Reply Brief April 16, 2020. The matter is set for argument on May 14, 2020
at 9:00. Appellate counsel is requesting an extension until March 30, 2019, to file the Opening
Brief.
ARGUMENT

Eighth Judicial District Court Rule 3.50 states in relevant part: Extending time.

(@) When by these rules or by a notice given thereunder or by order of court an act is
required or allowed to be done at or within a specified time, the court for cause shown may af

any time in its discretion, with or without motion or notice, order the period enlarged if request
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therefor is made before the expiration of the period originally prescribed or as extended by 3
previous order; but it may not extend the time for taking any action under Rule 3.40, except tg
the extent and under the conditions stated therein.

Cause exists to extend the time for Appellant to file her Opening Brief. Appellant needs
the additional time to finish her Opening Brief, file it with the Court, and serve it upon
Respondent. Appellant has significant colorable issues to appeal. Denial of this request for an
extension of time to file the Opening Brief would be fatal to her appeal. Counsel’s paralegal
who is typically charged with drafting such documents has been dedicated to working on 3
Supreme Court Appeal from a two-week jury trial of a 23 count Indictment on charges of sex
with a minor. Counsel was not aware until March 12, 2020 that the transcript of the proceedings
of September 16, 2019 were never filed. Counsel requests this short continuance to finish thg
Opening Brief so as to serve the best interests of justice.

CONCLUSION

For the reasons stated above, Appellant Jennifer Plumlee respectfully requests that

counsel be given until March 30, 2020 to file her Opening Brief.

Respectfully SUBMITTED this 13" day of March, 2020.

/s/Craig Mueller
Craig A. Mueller, Esqg.
Attorney For Appellant
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CERTIFICATE OF ELECTRONIC SERVICE

| certify that a copy of Appellant’s Motion For Order Extending Time was served through

the court clerk’s Odyssey Efile/Eservice network on March 13, 2020, to:

MELANIE SCHEIBLE
Deputy District Attorney
Clark County District Attorney’s Office

BY: /s/Rosa Ramos
Legal Assistant to
Mueller & Associates
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Electronically Filed
3/16/2020 10:46 AM
Steven D. Grierson

DISTRICT COURT CLERK OF THE COU
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA w ﬁ,

seseskesk
Jennifer Lynn Plumlee, Appellant(s) Case No.: C-20-346852-A
Vs
Nevada State of, Respondent(s) Department 2
NOTICE OF HEARING

Please be advised that the Appellant's Motion for Order Extending Time in the above-
entitled matter is set for hearing as follows:
Date: March 26, 2020
Time: Chambers

Location: RJC Courtroom 03B
Regional Justice Center
200 Lewis Ave.
Las Vegas, NV 89101
NOTE: Under NEFCR 9(d), if a party is not receiving electronic service through the
Eighth Judicial District Court Electronic Filing System, the movant requesting a

hearing must serve this notice on the party by traditional means.

STEVEN D. GRIERSON, CEO/Clerk of the Court

By: /s/ Imelda Murrieta
Deputy Clerk of the Court

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that pursuant to Rule 9(b) of the Nevada Electronic Filing and Conversion
Rules a copy of this Notice of Hearing was electronically served to all registered users on
this case in the Eighth Judicial District Court Electronic Filing System.

By: /s/ Imelda Murrieta
Deputy Clerk of the Court
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CLERK OF THE COU
CASE NO. (C346852 Cﬁl«fﬁ““

DEPARTMENT NO. 2

I N THE JUSTI CE COURT OF HENDERSON TOWNSHI P
COUNTY OF CLARK, STATE OF NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Pl ai ntiff,

VS. CASE NO. 18MH0263X

JENNI FER PLUMLEE

Def endant .

N N N N N N’ N N N N

REPORTER' S TRANSCRI PT

OF

PROCEEDI NGS

BEFORE THE HONORABLE STEPHEN L. GEORGE
JUSTI CE OF THE PEACE

MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 16, 2019

9:30 A M
APPEARANCES:
For the State: MELANI E SCHEI BLE, ESQ.
Deputy District Attorney
For the Defendant: CRAI G MUELLER, ESQ.

Attorney at Law

Reported by: Shawna J. Mclntosh, CCR No. 770

SHAWNA J. MCI NTOSH, CCR NC. 770
(702) 671-0691
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I NDEX

STATE OF NEVADA v. JENNI FER PLUMLEE

CASE NO. 18MH0263X

Direct Cr oss

Redi r ect Recr oss

STATE' S W TNESS:

Greg Luna 7 12

DEFENSE W TNESS:

(No wi tnesses)

EXHI BI TS MARKED AND ADM TTED:

State's Exhibit 1 - Docunent

State's Exhibit 2 - Docunent

M SCELLANEOUS

Argument by M. Mueller...............
Argunment by Ms. Scheible..............

Mar ked Admitted
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SHAWNA J. MCI NTCSH, CCR NC. 770

(702) 671-0691
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HENDERSON, NEVADA, SEPTEMBER 16, 2019

THE COURT: Let me just call a case first

before trial. Because, M. Mueller, my understanding
is that you have a notion here. W will go ahead and
hear that first. And then we'll see what we're going
to do after that. If we go forward, then we'll

re-call the case and start a trial. If we do not go

forward, then we won't need to get there.

So et me go ahead and call the case
of Jennifer Plum ee. Case No. 18MHO0263X.

And, M. Mueller, you had nmentioned
that you had a nmotion that you wanted to submt prior
to going forward with the trial; is that correct?

MR. MUELLER: That's correct, Judge. |*'d ask
to invoke the exclusionary rule. And, Your Honor, |
want to formally request a hearing on the -- ny
renewed nmotion to dismss. On the 17th of July, the
State and I got into a fairly good-size donnybr ook
about - -

THE COURT: | remember.

MR. MUELLER: -- continuing this, that | did

not believe that they had reason to believe that the

SHAWNA J. MCI NTOSH, CCR NC. 770
(702) 671-0691

PA000116
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trooper had been subpoenaed. And now that the trooper

is here, | believe -- if menmory serves -- |'ve done a
| ot of these, so | don't want to -- but in reading ny
notes and reading the court mnutes, |'ve -- |if

recoll ection serves you, giving me the opportunity to
renew my notion when the trooper was avail able. And
I'd like to put himon the stand for just a noment or
two, ask hima couple questions, and then be heard.
THE COURT: Okay.
Ms. Schei bl e, any response?
MS. SCHEIBLE: Well, my concern, Your Honor,

Is that the trooper is not the person at the
Nevada Hi ghway Patrol agency who is responsible for
serving subpoenas. So |I'm happy to have him on the
stand and tell us what he knows or remenbers about the
service of the subpoena, but he would not be qualified
to testify to whether or not a subpoena was received
by his office and whether or not that subpoena was
sent to himor really to give us an overview of how
t he Nevada Hi ghway Patrol handl es subpoenas.
Personally, | don't know how they handle them either

And so if -- if that's going to be
the -- the motion, then I would request if -- if you
want to hear -- if you want an evidentiary hearing on

t hat kind of notion, | would request some additional

SHAWNA J. MCI NTOSH, CCR NC. 770
(702) 671-0691
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time to subpoena additional wi tnesses.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. MUELLER: May | proceed.

THE COURT: Well, let's see what we're going
to do.

MR. MUELLER: Al'l right.

Def ense would call to the stand
Trooper Luna.

THE COURT: Well, just give me a second. [
trying to figure out what we're going to do. The
State has nentioned that if we're going to go forward
with an evidentiary hearing, they would Iike to have
some time to perhaps call additional wi tnesses based
on this --

Let me ask Ms. Schei ble, were you
aware of this prior to today's date?

MS. SCHEI BLE: | have read the transcript
fromthe previous --

THE COURT: Were you -- were you aware of
M. Mieller's notion?

MS. SCHEI BLE: No.

MR. MUELLER: Maybe my col |l eague coul d
refresh me. The transcript very clearly gives ne
perm ssion to renew the notion, correct?

THE COURT: Correct. But she wasn't --

SHAWNA J. MCI NTOSH, CCR NC. 770
(702) 671-0691

PA000118
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didn't get notice that you were going to renew it
t oday.
MS. SCHEI BLE: That's correct, Your Honor.
MR. MUELLER: All right. Why don't we ask
the trooper a few questions under oath and see what he
has to say. Maybe it's nmoot.
MS. SCHEI BLE: Il -- 1 would just request that
you deny the motion without an evidentiary hearing.
MR. MUELLER: That's appropri ate.
THE COURT: All right. Let's -- let's --
let's do this. Let's have a sidebar real quick.
(An off-the-record discussion was held at the bench)
THE COURT: All right. Are we going to go
forward with the evidentiary hearing; is that right?
MR. MUELLER: That's defense's pl easure,
Judge.
THE COURT: Okay. Let's go ahead.
M. Mueller, you can proceed.
MR. MUELLER: Thank you, Your Honor.
Trooper Luna. | thought it was Luna.
How do you pronounce it, sir?
THE W TNESS: Luna, sir.
MR. MUELLER: Luna. | apol ogi ze, sir. ' ve
got a client from China called Luna. Same four

letters, different pronunciation.

SHAWNA J. MCI NTOSH, CCR NC. 770
(702) 671-0691

PA000119
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THE COURT: Thank you.

Wher eupon,

GREG LUNA,

havi ng been first duly sworn to testify to the truth,
the whole truth, and nothing but the truth, was

exam ned and testified as foll ows:

THE CLERK: Thank you. Can you state and
spell your first and | ast nanme, please?

THE W TNESS: My name is Greg, Gr-e-g. Last
name, Luna. L-u-n-a.

THE CLERK: Thank you. You can have a seat.

THE COURT: Thank you.

MR. MUELLER: May | proceed, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Yes.

DI RECT EXAM NATI ON

BY MR. MUELLER

Q Trooper Luna, how | ong have you been with
Nevada Hi ghway Patrol ?

A. |"ve been with Nevada Hi ghway Patrol for
three years.

Q About three years. All right.

Now, did you -- have you been

SHAWNA J. MCI NTOSH, CCR NC. 770
(702) 671-0691
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subpoenaed before to court?

A. For this case?

Q In general, sir.

Do you know -- are you

fam liar with the procedures?

A. Yes, sir.

Q Al'l right. And you get handed a subpoena,

and you sign for a subpoena?

A. | get e-mailed a subpoena.

Q Ckay. And how do you acknow edge that you

have gotten the subpoena?

A. I don't acknowl edge. | just get it. | print

it out, then | follow the instructions on the sheet.

For instance, if there is court, | will call the

number and see if it's going.

Q Sir, the 17th of July of this year, you were

subpoenaed to court on this matter, correct?

A. | don't remember

t hat .

Q Al right. Did you get a subpoena to be in

court on the 17th of July?

A | do not recall

Q Did you sign a docunment acknow edging -- from
anybody in your chain of command -- you sign the

subpoena return and hand

it

back to sonmeone

acknowl edgi ng that you would be in court?

A. | do not recall

Si

r.

SHAWNA J. MCI NTOSH, CCR NC. 770
(702) 671-0691
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Q Did anybody fromthe District Attorney's
office or fromthe Hi ghway Patrol chain of command
talk to you about why you were not here on the 17th of
July?

A No, sir.

Q And from the 17th of July until this date,
has the subject -- until you walked into court
today -- has the subject of why you had not been
present on the 17th of July ever come up?

A No, sir.

Q Sir, you would not intentionally avoid going
to court with a subpoena when you've properly been
subpoenaed, correct?

A No, sir.

Q Al right. So you didn't intentionally not
come, correct?

No, sir.

Q Al'l right. I mean, | -- | know you guys are
busy and you get tired sometimes, but you didn't take
out the subpoena and stuff it in your call box and
say, The hell with it, I'll catch a nap instead?

No, sir.

Q Okay. So to the best of your know edge, you

wer e never advised, subpoenaed, or had any reason to

bel i eve you needed to be here in court on the

SHAWNA J. MCI NTOSH, CCR NC. 770
(702) 671-0691

PA000122
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10

17th of July?

A Yes, sir.

Q Al'l right. Now, |let me ask you a question,
Troop, | know you guys are allowed to carry personal
cell phones in your patrol cars?

You mean, just a personal phone in general --
Yeah.

-- or a work phone?

o > O P

You're entitled to a work phone. You have a
phone in the car, right?

A. Yes, sir.

Q Al'l right. And if someone called up and
sai d, Hey. | need a witness here in court through
di spat ch. Di spatch woul d have called you and -- and

tal ked to you over your cell phone, correct?
MS. SCHEI BLE: Obj ection, Your Honor. Calls
for specul ation.
MR. MUELLER: All right. Well, let me
rephrase the question.
BY MR. MUELLER
Q Have you ever heard of dispatch calling
people on their cell phone and telling themto be in
court?
A Di spatch, no. They would redirect me to

somebody el se.

SHAWNA J. MCI NTOSH, CCR NC. 770
(702) 671-0691

PA000123
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11

Q Al right. But they would -- they would
refer your phone call to -- you can receive calls
while you're on duty, correct?

A Yes, sir.

Q All right. And what shift are you working
t hese days?

A. Graveyard, sir.

Q Graveyard. And what are the hours of

graveyard? | know it varies a little bit.
A 10 ppm to 8 a.m
Q That's pretty rough. Are you -- you're the

junior guy?
A. I just like graveyard.

Q You |i ke graveyard. Okay. Good for you.

Al'l right.
And so when do you normally sleep?
A About eleven to five.
Q About eleven in the afternoon until five in

the afternoon?
A. El even in the morning until five.
Q That's when you get your sl eep.
And you don't have any recollection of
why you weren't here on the 17th of July?
A No, sir.

Q Al'l right.

SHAWNA J. MCI NTOSH, CCR NC. 770
(702) 671-0691

PA000124
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12

MR. MUELLER: | have nothing further.
THE COURT: Ms. Schei bl e.

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MS. SCHEI BLE:

Q Officer Luna, how do you get your work
e-mail ?

A. I go on to a work computer, | log on to
bud lug tach (Phonetic). And then that's nmy e-mail.
Do you get your e-mails on your phone?

No.
Do you receive subpoenas by e-mail ?
Yes.

How frequently would you say?

> o >» O > O

Maybe two times a nonth.

Q Ckay. And what do you do when you get a
subpoena by e-mail ?

A The e-mail has an attachment of the subpoena.
| open it up. | print it out. | put it on, like, a
desk. And then | put the date of the court on ny --
li ke, my little calendar at home so | know when it's
going to be on.

Q Okay. I's that what you did in preparation
for today's hearing?

A. Yes, ma' am

SHAWNA J. MCI NTOSH, CCR NC. 770
(702) 671-0691

PA000125
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13

Q Do you have that subpoena with you?
Yes, ma'am | gave it to you.
You gave it to me?
What courtrooms do you get subpoenas
to?

A Las Vegas Justice and Las Vegas Muni ci pa
Court.

Q What about Henderson?

A Very rarely.

Q Ckay. That attachment on the e-mail, do you
know what kind of document it is? Wrd? Pdf? Exce
spreadsheet ?

A. Il think it's a pdf, but I'mnot entirely
sure.

Q Okay.

MS. SCHEI BLE: May | approach your clerk to
have this marked.

THE COURT: Yes.

MS. SCHEI BLE: Actually, let me get two.

(State's Proposed Exhibit Nos. 1 and 2

were mar ked for identification)

MS. SCHEI BLE: Showi ng defense what's been

mar ked as State's Exhibits 1 and 2.
May | approach the witness,

Your Honor.

SHAWNA J. MCI NTOSH, CCR NC. 770
(702) 671-0691
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THE COURT: Yes.
BY MS. SCHEI BLE:
Q ' m showi ng you what's been marked as
State's Exhibits 1 and 2. Do you recogni ze these

docunment s?

A Yes, ma' am | recognize these docunents.

Q Can you tell the Court what they are?

A. These are subpoenas that | would receive
from-- on the e-mail. And | would print it out and
mark it.

Q Okay. And what's the date on Exhibit No. 1,

the court date?
Exhibit -- it's 5:32 p. m

Q What's the date?

A The date is the 16th day of Septenber, 2019.

Q And what about Exhibit 2?

A Exhibit 2 is the 17th day of July, 2019.

Q And are these fair and accurate reflections
of the type of subpoenas that you normally receive?

A Yes, ma' am

Q Anything different about either one of thenf?

A. No, ma'am

Q Okay. And is there a little box at the
bottom t hat has some additional information in it from

NHP Servi ces?

SHAWNA J. MCI NTOSH, CCR NC. 770
(702) 671-0691
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A Yes, ma' am

Q And do you normally see that on your
subpoena?

A Yes, ma' am

Q So are these very standard subpoenas that you

woul d receive via e-mail?
A. Yes, ma' am
MS. SCHEI BLE: I nmove for adm ssion of

State's 1 and 2.

MR. MUELLER: Well, specifically, as exanples
of subpoenas, | don't have any objection. But he's
never been -- it's never been established that he's

ever seen the one fromthe 17th of July.

THE COURT: Go ahead and ask him
BY MS. SCHEI BLE:

Q Have you seen the one on the right -- have
you seen Exhibit No. 2 before?

A |"ve seen the same subpoena, but |'ve never
seen the date. | -- 1 can't verify if I've seen it
bef ore or not.

MR. MUELLER: W th that proviso, that they
are generally generic sanples of subpoenas in the
subpoenai ng process, | have no objection. But it's
not for -- and the defense does object for the

adm ssion that he did receive the one on the 17th of
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July which he's not testified to.

THE COURT: Well, | think that would be my
determ nati on, but Ms. Scheible?

MS. SCHEI BLE: Your Honor, in that case, |I'm
going to need additional time to subpoena additional

wi t nesses.

MR. MUELLER: | have no further witness --
questions for the trooper. | -- and defense has no
further questions for this -- for the hearing.

The law on this point is very clear.
| -- we've already covered the grounds that would need
to be --

THE COURT: Well, let's go ahead and cover

MR. MUELLER: All right. Thank you,

Your Honor.

If the Court may recall -- or maybe |
do have a few years on you -- | started the DU team
The law is actually very clear. | still have burned

in my brain serving subpoenas at one and two in the
morning in front of the Clark County Courthouse, the
ol d one.

The laws in Nevada is service of
subpoena is effective under only -- only two, and only

two conditions. One, somebody personally hands them
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t he subpoena, and they sign for it, which is the way
we had to do it. And then about 10 years after that,
maybe 15 years ago, they added a statute that says if
you call someone -- if | call the trooper, Hey, Troop
We've got court tomorrow. Did you get your subpoena?
Oh, yeah. You mailed it to me. | got it. 'l be
there. Tel ephone service is also good.

Those are the two ways that are -- and
that's the only two ways this case doesn't get
dism ssed, if the State can establish either one of
those two services. Number one, he didn't sign for
It. He said he didn't sign for it. No one in his
chain of command gave him a subpoena. He did not get
subpoenaed the ol d-fashioned, old-school way. So
nunmber two is, did someone talk to himon the phone or
acknowl edge that he got the subpoena? He still hasn't
testified anything about that.

What we have is a docunent call ed
NHP Servi ces. Okay. That's wonderful. But | aw
exists -- law in courts exist to prevent the citizens
bei ng taken advantage of by government and gover nment
conveni ence. It doesn't matter at this point what she
adduces. That's one of two ways that service is
effective. And she can't establish it. The trooper's

al ready foreclosed both ways. So she can come in and
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establish, Well, we normally do it this way. W
normally do it that way. The law is the | aw.

| assure you |'ve spent many days
argui ng what the | aw should be, but that's not what my

job is. My job is to enforce the law as it's written.

And as it's witten, it says one of two ways, neither

of which has been established. It doesn't matter what
el se she says. It doesn't matter what -- how
convenient the systemis. It doesn't matter what its
error rate is. It does not matter. He didn't get

served one of two valid ways. And the State did not
have reason to believe he was going to be here.
The Bustos granted by the Court over
objection on the 17th of July isn't appropriate. I
renew my nmotion to dism ss.
THE COURT: It appears to me that the State
did satisfy it. But I1'd like to have this briefed
because this is a new issue that is going forward.
And |'ve never heard this issue before. And it sounds
like if it is one of two, |I think one of the two
prongs has been sati sfied.
Go ahead, Ms. Schei bl e.
MS. SCHEI BLE: If I could just be heard
briefly, Your Honor? The -- the legal requirement is

t hat personal service be made. And in the modern era
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of e-mail, we have e-mail accounts that can only be
accessed by the person who has the password. And
staff everywhere, NHP officers included, are
instructed on who to share that password and who not
to share that password with. The -- NHP has a system
in place that provides for personal service via

e-mail . Because our technol ogy is advanced enough
today that NHP has the capability to e-mail a subpoena
personally to an officer and be ensured that that
subpoena has gone to that officer, that officer alone,
and directly to that officer. Once they do that, they
communi cate back to the DA's office that they have
served that subpoena on that officer.

And that is the proof that | brought
with me today in the subpoena return that shows that
NHP did its part to inform Officer Luna of the hearing
on the 17th of July. And they did their part to tell
us that he was going to be here. That there was a
breakdown somewhere in that conmmunication, somewhere
in the scheduling, that M. Luna failed to appear is
not the point here. The point is that he was properly
served, and he sinmply failed to get to the courthouse.

And | understand if you want
additional briefing on the matter. I would be willing

to do that, but I think that as far as the overarching
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policy goals of the service statute and of the
crimnal statute, we have satisfied them here. The
point isn't to keep -- the point is not to keep people
from being prosecuted due to technical issues in an
el ectroni ¢ subpoena system the point is to make sure
that the State is meeting its burden to inform
officers when they have to be present and doi ng what
is practical and what is ordinary practice in order to
get those officers here, which is what we've done.

Again, | think that we will be able to
show t hat personal service was effectuated on
Officer Luna, given the time to further speak with him
and to further speak with the appropriate
adm ni strative agents at NHP. And | would ask for
that time to do that if you're not inclined to
grant -- if you're not inclined to deny the motion at
this time.

THE COURT: M. Mueller.
MR. MUELLER: My col |l eague actually nmakes no

meani ngful effort to avail herself of the |aw.

Now, just Sunday | had brunch with a
guy who wants to run for the State Assenbly. It's a
wonder ful job, a great occupation.

But that's not this case. What she

wants the law to be is not what it is. VWhat the | aw
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is is there's two mechanisms, and only two, to

effectuate service, personal service or acknow edgnment

via the phone. Nei t her was present. She can't
explain why he wasn't served. He doesn't deny he
wasn't served. He's got no recollection of being
her e.

The State did not exercise due
diligence to be ready to go. This is willful right
indifference to the rights of the defendant. The
moti on should be granted. This case should be
di sm ssed.

Now, if she wants to run for State
Assembly, | think she'd be a very fine State
Assenmbl ywoman.

THE COURT: Well -- and | appreciate that.
"1l be honest with you. | think we went through a
| ot of this the last time. And the argunents that
Ms. Schei ble made, | think, were the argunments that |
was | ooking at this fromthe standpoint of the
requi rements. And | believe that they have been
satisfied. | think service is -- the issue of service
has been addressed.

But if you would Iike additional time
to brief it --

MR. MUELLER: Yes, Judge. I woul d accept

SHAWNA J. MCI NTOSH, CCR NC. 770
(702) 671-0691

PA000134
22




© 0 N o o b~ w NP

N NN N NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N O O N~ W N B O

22

your offer.

THE COURT: But -- well, Ms. -- so this isn't
Ms. -- this isn't -- this is your notion. And
Ms. Schei ble just | earned about it today, as | did,
understanding that | did say you could renew it, but I

wasn't aware that you were going to renew it until

just now.

MS. SCHEI BLE: I"'mjust a little bit confused
by your ruling. Is it that we have met the burden and
you will deny the notion?

THE COURT: | believe that service has been

fine and | properly ruled at the |last hearing. And
the arguments that you nmade were what | considered to
be good service on the subpoena. But if you would
i ke time to have that briefed which, an issue |like
this, | think probably is maybe a good i dea. But if
you don't --

MS. SCHEI BLE: ' m not seeking to brief the
I ssue, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. MUELLER: | -- respectfully, Judge, |
am -- and to my coll eague, | am on rock-solid ground
her e. | take -- if -- if -- comng in now that | know
he's verified the facts that | understood them on the

previous occasion. And | can bring you in the | aw.
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And | believe that will end up in a dism ssal for
Ms. Plum ee. That's what's appropriate here.

And if you would -- 1'd Iike a day or
two to put this transcript -- daily transcript
t oget her and make a notion to dism ss.

THE COURT: And -- | guess, you know, part of
my concern is we've been trying to go forward with
this proceeding. The difference is we're |ooking at a
trial. And I"'mtrying to proceed on these matters.
And it seems |ike we've been delayed for quite some
time. | did mention that at sidebar. This case is
over a year old at this point. And we've been trying
and trying and trying to proceed on this. And it
seens |i ke we have some roadbl ocks.

You know what, let's do this. Let's
do this. Let's go ahead and continue it for a period
of two weeks. I|'m going to continue the trial. ' m
not going to continue to do an evidentiary hearing and

then continue it for a trial because we've been taking

way too much time on this already. ['1l give you both
an opportunity to submt your briefs that | can
revi ew.

If you would like to call any
additional witnesses, Ms. Scheible, you are more than

wel come to do that. | think that's only fair in these
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proceedi ngs, based on the fact that you just found out

about it about -- what -- ten m nutes ago? So did I
MS. SCHEI BLE: That's fine, Your Honor. ' m
just wondering -- procedurally, is there any reason

that we couldn't go forward with the trial today? And
then if she's convicted, asking that the trial --
M. Mueller could renew his motion for a dism ssal on
the same grounds, and it could be revi ewed
post-conviction.

MR. MUELLER: |'"'m satisfied with the Court's
ruling.

THE COURT: Yeah. And we're -- we're going
to proceed this way.

MS. SCHEI BLE: Okay.

THE COURT: And I'Ill explain that to you at
si debar.

MS. SCHEI BLE: Okay.

THE CLERK: October 1st at 9: 30.

MR. MUELLER: Madam Cl erk and Judge, if | can
get just an additional week? | have taken -- agreed
to take nmy kids back to the old country. I'm flying

my two ol dest kids back --
THE COURT: Yeah. | don't want to interfere
with that.

MR. MUELLER: -- to Munich for the | ast
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weekend of Septenber for Oktoberfest.

THE COURT: That's fine.

THE CLERK: Oct ober 7th --

MR. MUELLER: That's fi ne. "1l get one of
my |awyers to wite a brief.

THE CLERK: -- at 9:30.

THE COURT: We just noved it fromthe 1st to

the 2nd?
THE CLERK: The 7t h.
THE COURT: Oh, 7th. Okay. Okay. | was
going to say, | didn't know he can do that.
Trooper, thank you very, very, very
much for being here. | apol ogize for the del ay.
Thank you.

And if | can have a sidebar?

MR. MUELLER: Certainly.

And, Madam Court Reporter, if it's not
too much trouble, can | get a copy of the 17th of
July's hearing and today's hearing?

THE COURT REPORTER: [|'Ill let Lisa know about
the July date. And then I'lIl call your office, and we
can figure out an estimate.

THE COURT: And | thought you had that,

Craig, because |'ve got it.

MR. MUELLER: Okay.
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Maybe you can run off a copy then
(An off-the-record discussion was held at the bench)
THE COURT: Let's go back on the m nutes of
Jennifer Plunmlee. She is to abstain from any
consumpti on of any al coholic beverage of any kind.
MR. MUELLER: Not a problem Judge. She's in
the Moderate Of fenders Program  She's been doing
random UAs al most every day for a year. And she's
great -- making great progress.
THE COURT: Thank you.
(Proceedi ngs concl uded)

--000- -

Attest: Full, true, and accurate transcript of

proceedi ngs.

/'s/ Shawna J. Ml ntosh

Shawna J. Ml ntosh, CCR No. 770
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C-20-346852-A

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Criminal Appeal COURT MINUTES March 26, 2020

C-20-346852-A Jennifer Lynn Plumlee, Appellant(s)
Vs
Nevada State of, Respondent(s)

March 26, 2020 3:00 AM Motion for Order
Extending Time

HEARD BY: Scotti, Richard F. COURTROOM: R]JC Courtroom 03B
COURT CLERK: Elizabeth Vargas

PARTIES Minute Order- No parties present.
PRESENT:

JOURNAL ENTRIES

- The Court GRANTS Appellant's Motion for Order Extending Time. Given the Court's continued
efforts to combat and accommodate the issues presented by the COVID-19 pandemic, the February
14, 2020 Notice of Hearing is amended as follows; a new Notice of Hearing/Scheduling Order will
NOT be issued:

Appellant s Opening Brief Thursday, April 23, 2020
Respondent s Brief Wednesday, May 13, 2020
Appellant s Reply Wednesday, May 27, 2020

Appeal Hearing/ Argument Thursday, June 11, 2020
Appellant to prepare the Order.
CLERK'S NOTE: This Minute Order was electronically served by Courtroom Clerk, Elizabeth Vargas,

to the following: motions@clarkcountyda.com; Melanie.scheible@clarkcountyda.com;
receptionist@craigmuellerlaw.com. //ev 4/3/20

PRINT DATE: 04/03/2020 Page1of 1 Minutes Date:  March 26, 2020
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Electronically Filed
4/23/2020 5:11 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE COU,
BREF C&wf

CRAIG A. MUELLER, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 4703

MUELLER & ASSOCIATES, INC
723 S. Seventh St.

Las Vegas, NV 89101

Office (702) 388.0568
Fax (702) 940.1235
Attorney For Appellant
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
JENNIFER PLUMLEE,
Appellant, CASE NO:  (C-20-346852-A

V8. DEPT NO: II

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

e N’ e N ) N N N N

Respondent.

APPELLANT’S OPENING BRIEF
Appellant JENNIFER PLUMLEE, by and through her attorney of record
CRAIG A. MUELLER, ESQ., hereby submits the attached as and for her Opening Brief.
DATED this 23" day of April, 2020.
___/s/Craig A. Mueller

CRAIG A. MUELLER, ESQ.
Attorney For Appellant
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STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES
A. Did The Justice Court Commit Reversible Error When It Denied Defendant’s
Motion To Dismiss?
B. Did The Justice Court Commit Reversible Error When It Admitted The
Intoxilyyzer 8000 Breath Strip?
PROCEDURAL HISTORY
On October 7, 2019, Appellant JENNIFER PLUMLEE was convicted of

DRIVING UNDER THE INFLUENCE (Misdemeanor-NRS 484C.110, 484C.400, 484C.105)
after a bench trial in Henderson Justice Court. She timely filed her Notice of Appeal. The
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transcript of the trial was received by counsel on February 26, 2020.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

According to the testimony presented at trial, on a lay witness testified that on September
10, 2018, he was stopped for a traffic light exiting 215 onto Green Valley Parkway in Henderson,)
Nevada. A black sedan passed his vehicle, ran the red light, struck the center median, drove on
the wrong side of the road and struck an electrical pole. TT pp. 23-25:1-8. The witness saw a
woman exit from the driver’s seat and fall to the ground. He was too far away to be able to
identify the person. He believed the individual was a woman because she was wearing a dress.
TT pp. 25-27:1-20. The individual got back in the car and continued driving, eventually coming
to a stop on the on ramp to the 215. The witness called 911 and flagged down an HPD cruiser.

NHP Trooper Luna testified that he was dispatched to the scene. He made contact with
Appellant. He testified that he could not smell alcohol, only prepared food that was bagged up in
the car. TT 51:22-25. Later he did smell alcohol on her breath and that her eyes appeared
glassy, bloodshot and watery. TT 52:4-10. She performed the horizontal gaze nystagmus test,
failing with six of six clues. TT 55:1-6. Trooper Luna had Appellant perform a preliminary
breath test. The State did not move to admit the results of the preliminary breath test. Trooper
Luna placed Appellant under arrest. At the Henderson Detention Center, Trooper Luna used the
Intoxilyzer 8000 to administer two breath tests to Appellant. The first test came back with a
BAC of .161. The second test came back with a BAC .155. The State eventually conceded that
the breath tests were not performed within two hours but closer to three hours after Appellant
was driving. TT 115:7-10.

The State called Darby Lanz to testify about calibration of the particular Intoxilyzer 8000

machine used to test Appellant. Ms. Lanz is a forensic scientist and forensic analyst of alcohol
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with the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department’s forensics laboratory. She is in charge of
managing and calibrating 34 evidential instruments in four counties in Nevada. TT 81:9-19. She
is neither a toxicology physician nor does she have a Master’s degree in toxicology. TT 108:3-

14.
In addition to testimony regarding the calibration and maintenance of the Intoxilyzer 8000,

the State elicited the following testimony over defense counsel’s objection:

Q: I want to repeat my question which is, is there any way that somebody
with three hours after consuming their last drink can have a blood alcohol
content of .155 and not have had a blood alcohol content of --I’m sorry--
breath alcohol content of over .08 when they had their last drink?
A: The only way that would be possible is if they drank a large amount of
alcohol and then were pulled over immediately thereafter. So the alcohol
would still be in their stomach and not in their system yet. So they could
still be below the legal per se, and then while in custody for whatever amount
of time, since it takes 30 to 90 minutes for alcohol to be absorbed to that
quantity to get to the peak and then to start eliminating whatever time frame
later, that would be the way. They would had to have been consuming it right
before the stop or immediately preceding it.
Q: Okay. So if somebody was, let’s just use easy timeframes, if someone was
pulled over at midnight and their blood alcohol or their breath alcohol content
was .07, then you’re saying that if they had just finished a fifth, that their blood
alcohol or their breath alcohol continued to rise after that time and then continued
to rise after that time and then continued and then started falling after that time?
A: Absolutely. If they have alcohol they had just consumed. So it’s still being held
in their stomach. Alcohol is absorbed mainly through the upper intestine.
That’s where it’s easiest and best absorbed. So if there is —like I mentioned
earlier, absorption varies depending on food. If they had dinner and then drank,
the alcohol would take longer to get into the system because there would be food
in the way and absorbing something. So that’s why it’s hard to anticipate an
absorption rate.
But if they had drank --an entire fifth wouldn’t be necessary, like you mentioned
--but a quantity of alcohol, while it was still in their stomach and then were
pulled over, that’s not affecting them yet. They would have had it in their
stomach and then if kept roadside say three hours or whatever the transport time
was, three hours is plenty of time for all that to be consumed, and you’d hit your
peak and start to eliminate since you’re no longer consuming alcohol.

Q: Okay.

A: So a three-hour time frame, with that specific scenario, is possible.

Q: So could end up with still .155 at the end of three hours?

A: Absolutely. It all depends on how much we’re talking and the height,
weight, the gender, a bunch of information like that because it’s all based
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on the math I would use is based on studies and standards that are out there.
It’s all an estimate.
TT 101:13-25, 102:1-25, 103:1-21.

STANDARD OF REVIEW

A reviewing court reviews a lower court’s legal conclusions de novo and the lower
court’s factual findings for clear error. Lamb v. State, 127 Nev. Adv. Op. 3, 251 P.3d 700
(2011); Rosky v. State, 121 Nev. 184, 190, 111 P.3d 690, 694 (2005).

ARGUMENT

A. The Justice Court Committed Reversible Error When It Denied Defendant’s
Motion To Dismiss.

NRS 174.315 states in relevant part:

Issuance of subpoena by prosecuting attorney or attorney for defendant;
promise to appear; informing witness of general nature of grand jury’s inquiry;
calendaring of certain subpoenas.

1. A prosecuting attorney may issue subpoenas subscribed by the prosecuting
attorney for witnesses within the State, in support of the prosecution or
whom a grand jury may direct to appear before it, upon any investigation
pending before the grand jury....

4. A peace officer may accept delivery of a subpoena in lieu of service, via
electronic means, by providing a written promise to appear that is transmitted
electronically by any appropriate means, including, without limitation, by
electronic mail transmitted through the official electronic mail system of the
law enforcement agency which employs the peace officer.

NRS 289.027 states:

Law enforcement agency required to adopt policies and procedures concerning
service of certain subpoenas on peace officers.

1. Each law enforcement agency shall adopt policies and procedures that provide
for the orderly and safe acceptance of service of certain subpoenas served
on a peace officer employed by the law enforcement agency.

2. A subpoena to be served upon a peace officer that is authorized to be served
upon a law enforcement agency in accordance with the policies and
procedures adopted pursuant to subsection 1 may be served in the manner
provided by those policies and procedures.

Before the start of the trial on October 7, 2019, defense counsel renewed a motion to
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dismiss he had made at other hearings. On July 17, 2019, the State requested a continuance of
trial due to the fact that the State’s main witness, Trooper Luna of the Nevada Highway Patrol,
failed to appear. This motion was renewed on September 16, 2019, the State, as reflected by the
transcript of the July 17 hearing and a following hearing on this matter held September 16, 2019,
failed to properly serve a subpoena on Trooper Luna, leaving him unaware he was supposed to
appear at the July 17 hearing. Because the State failed to meet its duty to be prepared to present
its case, and given its failure to properly subpoena Trooper Luna, the State cannot show good
cause for its inability to present a case at the July 17 hearing, the charge[s] against Defendant
should be dismissed.

Bustos v. Sheriff, 87 Nev. 622, 491 P.2d 1279 (1971) established the principle that a
“prosecutor should be prepared to present his case to the magistrate or show good cause for his
inability to do so.” In Clark v. Sheriff, 94 Nev 364, 580 P.2d 472 (1978) the Supreme Court of
Nevada ordered the district court to issue a writ of habeas corpus where the magistrate had acted
beyond his authority in granting a continuance in violation of the jurisdictional procedural
requirements of Hill and Bustos. As stated in Bustos, “[t]he business of processing criminal
cases will be frustrated if continuances are granted without good cause.” Bustos, 87 Nev. at 624,
491 P.2d at 1280. Failure to cause subpoenas to be properly issued and properly served upon
witnesses does not demonstrate good cause. Hill, 85 Nev. at 235, 452 P.2d at 918. Trooper
Luna’s testimony at the September 16, 2019 hearing, combined with the fact that he clearly did
not provide a written promise to appear, makes clear that not only did the State fail to properly
subpoena Trooper Luna, the State failed to notify him in any way of the July 17 hearing. The
State’s sending out a request to appear, not receiving a written promise back from Trooper Luna,

and then not following up, simply fails to comply with the relevant statute. This failure by the
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State does not meet the standard of proper diligence or good cause. Since in the current case the
prosecution failed to properly issue and serve a subpoena, the prosecution is not in compliance
with the standards of Bustos and Hill, and the charges against defendant should be dismissed.

B. The Justice Court Committed Reversible Error When It Admitted The Intoxilyzer
8000 Breath Strip.

NRS 484C.110 states in relevant part:

Unlawful acts; affirmative defense; additional penalty for violation committed

in work zone or pedestrian safety zone.

1. It is unlawful for any person who:

(a) Is under the influence of intoxicating liquor;

(b) Has a concentration of alcohol of 0.08 or more in his or her blood or breath; or

(c) Is found by measurement within 2 hours after driving or being in actual
physical control of a vehicle to have a concentration of alcohol of 0.08 or
more in his or her blood or breath, to drive or be in actual physical control
of a vehicle on a highway or on premises to which the public has access....

In State v. Bobby Armstrong, 127 Nev. Adv. Op. 84, 267 P.3d 777 (2011), a blood test
taken more than two hours after the vehicle stop was excluded. There, as here, the State tried to
introduce evidence of retrograde extrapolation to establish the defendant’s BAC at the time of
the stop. The District Court ruled the evidence inadmissible and the Supreme Court agreed. /d.
In doing so, the Supreme noted that reliable retrograde extrapolation calculation requires
consideration of a variety of factors.

The following factors are relevant to achieving a sufficiently reliable
retrograde extrapolation calculation: (1) gender, (2) weight, (3) age,

(4) height, (5) mental state, (6) the type and amount of food in the
stomach, (7) type and amount of alcohol consumed, (8) when the last
alcoholic drink was consumed, (9) drinking pattern at the relevant time,
(10) elapsed time between the first and last drink consumed, (11) time
elapsed between the last drink consumed and the blood draw, (12) the
number of samples taken, (13) the length of time between the offense
and the blood draws, (14) the average alcohol absorption rate, and

(15) the average elimination rate.

State v. Bobby Armstrong, 127 Nev. Adv. Op. at 12, 267 P.3d at 783.
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LVMPD chemist Lanz identified these same factors, and acknowledged that she
could not testify to these factors. TT 103:1-21. Thus, not only was her testimony as to
Appellant’s breath alcohol content outside her area of expertise, but it lacked sufficient
foundation and was improperly admitted.

CONCLUSION
Based on the foregoing, Appellant Jennifer Plumlee’s appeal must be granted, and her
conviction vacated.
Respectfully SUBMITTED this 23" day of April, 2020.
___ /s/Craig Mueller

CRAIG A. MUELLER, ESQ.
Attorney For Appellant
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AFFIRMATION PURSUANT TO NRS 239B.030

I, Craig A. Mueller, Esq., do hereby affirm that the preceding APPELLANT’S OPENING

BRIEF in Eighth Judicial District Court, case number C-20-346852-A, Dept. 11, does not contain

the social security number of any person.
DATED this 23" day of April, 2020.

/s/Craig A. Mueller
CRAIG A. MUELLER , ESQ.

CERTIFICATE OF ELECTRONIC SERVICE

I certify that a copy of Appellant’s Opening Brief was served through the court
Odyssey Efile/Eservice network on April 23, 2020, to:
MELANIE SCHEIBLE, ESQ.
Deputy District Attorney
Clark County District Attorney’s Office

BY: /s/Rosa Ramos
Senior Criminal Paralegal
Mueller & Associates

10

clerk’s
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Electronically Filed
5/13/2020 5:02 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE COU
RSPN C&wf ﬁ.u....

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565
MELANIE SCHEIBLE

Depuéy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #14266

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212
702) 6/1-2500

ttorney for Plaintiff

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,
-VS- CASE NO: (C-20-346852-A
JENNIFER PLUMLEE, )
10675 DEPT NO: |l
Defendant.

STATE’S RESPONSE TO DEFENDANT’S OPENING BREIF

DATE OF HEARING: JUNE 11, 2020
TIME OF HEARING: 9:00 AM

COMES NOW, the State of Nevada, by STEVEN B. WOLFSON, Clark County
District Attorney, through MELANIE SCHEIBLE, Deputy District Attorney, and hereby
submits the attached Points and Authorities in Response to Defendant’s Opening Breif.

This Response is made and based upon all the papers and pleadings on file herein, the
attached points and authorities in support hereof, and oral argument at the time of hearing, if
deemed necessary by this Honorable Court.

I
I
I
I
I
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POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Appellant was arrested in the instant case on September 19, 2018 for Driving Under the
Influence and Failure to Maintain Lane and released from custody shortly thereafter. The
State filed a criminal complaint on or about December 15, 2018 and Appellant was arraigned
on February 5, 2019. Appellant’s non jury trial was first schedule March 26, 2019.

At the time of Appellant’s arrest she had already been adjudicated guilty of Driving
Under the Influence — 1%t Offense in Henderson Municipal Court Case 17CR009539, and that
case remained open. Prior to the non jury trial in the instant case, a Chief Deputy District
Attorney discussed this case with her Appellant’s attorney at the time, Christina Hinds, and
the case was “called off” as the parties had reached a negotiation. A subsequent date was set
for Appellant to enter her plea on April 10, 2019. On April 10, 2019, Appellant indicated she
changed attorneys and another date was set for a status check on the confirmation of counsel
for April 25, 2019.

On April 25, 2019 Susana Reyes appeared on behalf of Craig Mueller and yet another
status check was set for May 13, 2019. On May 13, 2019, Appellant rejected the previous
negotiations and a non jury trial was scheduled for July 17, 2019.

While the instant case was pending, on or about June 18, 2019, Appellant’s sentence
was modified in the Municipal Court Case, 17CR009539 to require that she complete the
Moderate Offenders Program through Las Vegas Justice Court.

On July 17, 2019 the State moved for a continuance of the non jury trial in the instant

case pursuant to Bustos v. Sheriff, Clark County, 87 Nev. 622, 623, 491 P.2d 1279, 1280

(1971). The motion was granted and the trial was re-set for September 16, 2019.

On September 16, 2019, Appellant moved to dismiss the case on the grounds that the
previous motion to continue had been granted in error. The Court offered Appellant the
opportunity to brief her argument in writing, and the non jury trial was re-set again to October

7, 2019.

P:\SCHEI BLEM\M%AQ@FQ\;Z@JCMGSEZ A.DOCX
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On October 7, 2019, Appellant’s motion to dismiss was denied and she proceeded to
trial. Appellant was found guilty of Driving Under the Influence and Failure to Maintain Lane
following the trial. A date was set for formal adjudication and sentencing of November 19,
2019. Appellant was adjudicated guilty of Driving While under the Influence — Second
Offense, and Failure to Maintain Lane in the instant case on November 19, 2019. Appellant

subsequently filed her Notice of Appeal Opening Brief. The State’s Reply follows.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

On September 10, 2018, Jennifer Plumlee (“Appellant”) was driving along Green
Valley Parkway near the 215 in Henderson Nevada. 10/7/19 Non Jury Trial Transcript (NJTT)
at 23. After running through a red light, she hit and jumped over the center median smashing
into an electric pole, head on. Id at 24-25. Appellant opened the driver’s side door, stumbled,
and fell to the ground as she tried to exit her vehicle. 1d at 26. Appellant eventually stood,
surveyed her vehicle and got back in the driver’s seat. Id at 27. She continued to press the gas
pedal, causing her back wheels to turn, though the vehicle could not move because it has
already collided with the pole._Id at 29. The car eventually slid backwards and Appellant
maneuvered around the pole into the center of an intersection. 1d at 30. Another concerned
driver called 911 and flagged down a law enforcement officer who conducted a stop of the
vehicle on the 215 heading westbound. Id at 32-35, 51. Shortly after, NHP Officer Greg Luna
arrived and took over the investigation. Id at 44. Appellant had Chinese food in the passenger
seat of her car, which Officer Luna immediately smelled upon approaching the vehicle. Id at
51. Upon inquiry, Appellant was adamant that she was heading home in the eastbound
direction, despite being on the west bound freeway. Id at 51. Officer Luna observed her eyes
to be glassy and smelled alcohol on her breath once was closer to her in physical proximity.
1d at 52.

Officer Luna conducted a Horizontal Gaze Nystagmus test, on which Appellant
exhibited six out of six clues of impairment. 1d at 54-55. He then administered a preliminary
breath test, which showed Appellant’s Breath Alcohol Content to be above .08. Id at 58.

Officer Luna then placed Appellant under arrest for Driving Under the Influence and

3
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transported her to Henderson Detention Center. 1d at 59-60. At Henderson Detention Center,
Officer Luna administered a Breath Alcohol Content test using the Intoxilyzer 8000. Id at 60.
The test — administered at 12:19 AM and 12:22 AM September 11, 2019 — showed her breath

alcohol content to be .161 and .155, respectively.

ARGUMENT

l. The Court did not Err in Denying Appellant’s Motion to Dismiss

In the instant case the trial court granted the State Motion to Continue (based on the Bustos
decision) on July 72, 2019. Subsequently, the court allowed Defense to argue a “Motion to
Dismiss” on September 16, 2019, and again on October 7, 2019, alleging the same arguments
at the previous Motion to Continue. On October 7, 2019, the court denied the “Motion to
Dismiss,” essentially, affirming its own prior decision to grant the motion to continue.
Therefore, the question here of whether the motion to dismiss was improperly denied and
whether the motion to continue was improperly granted are one and the same. The Nevada
Supreme Court has weighed in many times on the requirements for the State to show good
cause for a continuance, and those standard apply in the instant case.

Good cause requires that the State “exercised reasonable diligence to secure [a witness’s]
attendance at trial [and].... What constitutes reasonable efforts to procure a witness's
attendance must be determined upon considering the totality of the circumstances.” Hernandez
v. State, 124 Nev. 639, 650, 188 P.3d 1126, 1134 (2008) citing Sheriff, Clark County v.
Terpstra, 111 Nev. 860, 899 P.2d 548 (1995)

Therefore, it is relevant to note the particular facts and circumstances surrounding
Appellant’s case. Approximately four months after Appellant’s arraignment, and almost six
months after the incident in question, her case was set for a non jury trial for the second time.
More than a month before that trial date, on June 3, 2019, the State caused a subpoena to be
issued for NHP Trooper Greg Luna’s appearance. And, sometime before July 17, 2019 NHP
arrest services sent a return to the State indicating that the subpoena has been served on Officer

Luna on June 18, 2019. Subsequently, when Officer Luna was not present in court on July 17,
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2019, the State represented to the Court that it has made reasonable efforts to secure his
appearance and requested a continuance for good cause.

Given these facts — of which the lower trial court had been fully apprised — the State
acted reasonably. After numerous continuances — including a previous trial date — and nine
months having passed since the incident occurred, and Appellant having been out of custody,
enjoying the benefit of participating in Henderson Municipal Court’s Moderate Offender
Program, there was no prejudice to Appellant caused by the granting of the continuance.
10/7/19 NJTT at 130-135. In fact, when given the opportunity to proceed to trial on September
16, 2019, it was Appellant who requested the matter be delayed, over the State’s objection.
9/16/19 Transcript at 24.

To offer context: in the seminal case in which the court found the State’s actions to be
unreasonable an out-of-state, lay witness, who had never been served a subpoena, failed to
appear on the first day of a jury trial. Rather than seek to procure her attendance through a
material witness warrant, the State sought (and was allowed) to introduce her testimony from

preliminary hearing. Hernandez v. State, 124 Nev. 639, (2008)

Here, the witness has been served with the subpoena, the underlying charges were a
misdemeanor, the defendant remained out of the custody, and the remedy sought was a
continuance.

The State’s actions simply do not meet the criteria for the kind of misconduct the

Nevada Supreme Court has repeatedly stated it is trying to prevent.
It has long been our aim that “criminal accusations should proceed
or terminate on principles compatible with judicial economy, fair

play and reason,” and we have attempted to apply the above rules
“firmly, consistently, but realistically.”

Sheriff, Clark County v. Terpstra, 111 Nev. 860, 862, 899 P.2d 548, 549—
50 (1995), quoting McNair v. Sheriff, 89 Nev. 434, 438, 514 P.2d 1175, 1177
(1973).

P:\SCHEI BLEM\M%AQ@FQ\?Z@IQMGSEZ A.DOCX
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The conduct does not fall within the auspice of the scenarios described in Maes v.
Sherriff as “willful failure of the prosecution to comply with important procedural rules;” nor

within the realm of comparison to State v. Austin “where the prosecutor had exhibited a

conscious indifference to rules of procedure affecting the defendant's rights”. Bustos v.
Sheriff, Clark County, 87 Nev. 622, 623, 491 P.2d 1279, 1280 (1971) (Citing Maes v. Sheriff,
86 Nev. 31m, 468 P.2d 332 (1970), State v. Austin, 87 Nev. 81, 482 P.2d 284 (1971).

In the instant case, the State later learned that Officer Luna was unavailable on July 17,
2019 because he was participating in mandatory training and Nevada Highway Patrol sent a
“uniform non-appearance” form the Clark County District Attorney’s office on July 16, 2019.
10/7/19 NJTT at 9-10 However, the prosecutor assigned to the case did not (and could not)
receive the non-appearance form prior to her arrival in court on the morning of July 17, 2019.
Id. Therefore, the Chief Deputy District Attorney prosecuting the case acted in good faith to
request a continuance, for which there was good cause. If the notice of Officer Luna’s training
had been transmitted with more haste, the prosecutor on July 17, 2019 would have represented
to the court that it is not the practice of our local law enforcement agencies to pull officers out
of mandatory training to testify in non jury trials which have already been continued numerous
times and can be continued again without prejudice to the defendant. Judicial economy, fair
play and reason all point to allowing the continuance in this circumstance and upholding the
subsequent conviction. Sheriff, Clark County v. Terpstra, 111 Nev. 860, 899 P.2d 548, (1995)

1. The Court did not Err in Admitting Evidence of Appellant’s Intoxilyzer
Results

It 1s well settled that a trial court’s determination to admit or exclude evidence is to be

given great deference and will not be reversed absent manifest error. See e.q. Braunstein v.
State, 118 Nev. 68, 72, 40 P.3d 413, 416 (2002), Bletcher v. State, 111 Nev. 1477, 1480, 907
P.2d 978 (1995), Daly v. State, 99 Nev. 564, 567, 665 P.2d 798, 801 (1983), Krause Inc. v.
Little, 117 Nev. 929, 935, 34 P.3d 566, 570 (2001)
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https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=Y&serNum=1970131079&pubNum=661&originatingDoc=Ie34440c1f74711d9b386b232635db992&refType=RP&originationContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.UserEnteredCitation)
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Appellant’s dependence on State v. Dist. Ct. (Armstrong), 127 Nev. 927, 936, (2011)

is misplaced. That case addressed whether the results of a test of blood taken more than two
hours after the defendant was involved in a vehicle accident would appeal to “the emotional
and sympathetic tendencies of a jury, rather than the jury's intellectual ability to evaluate
evidence.” State v. Dist. Ct. (Armstrong), 127 Nev. 927, 933, (citing Krause Inc. v. Little, 117
Nev. 929 at 935 (2001)) The concern that a jury would be so shocked by the defendant’s

astonishingly high blood alcohol content that its members would be unable to rationally
consider the evidence does not apply in this case where the trier of fact was a judge and not a
jury.

The State reiterates the argument put forth at trial. If Appellant’s obvious signs of
impairment, including hitting a lamp post, continuing to accelerate into that lamp post, being
unable to stand up on two feet upon exiting her vehicle, and exhibiting numerous clues on the
Field Sobriety Test left any doubt as to her impairment, looking to the results of a breath
alcohol test could be useful. 10/7/2019 NJTT at 113-117. In this case, the test was taken
outside the two hour mark, so if the breath alcohol concentration had been near .08, retrograde
extrapolation may have been useful—though not necessary—to prove Appellant’s
intoxication beyond a reasonable doubt. Id. But, this case is not a “close call.” By the time the
test was administered, some two hours and seventeen minutes after Officer Luna reported to
the scene, her breath alcohol content was still twice the legal limit: .161 and .155. NJTT at 97.

In Sheriff of Clark County v. Burcham, the Nevada Supreme Court held that no expert

opinion is required to establish probable cause through retrograde extrapolation. 124 Nev.
1247, 1249-50, 198 P.3d 326, 327 (2008). In other words, a grand jury or jury can infer if a
defendant’s blood alcohol concentration was rising or falling. 1d. In Burcham, police
administered a retrograde extrapolation test on a DUI suspect within the statutory two-hour
time window, which indicated a BAC of 0.07. Id. at 1251, 198 P.3d at 328; NRS 484C.110,
484C.200. A subsequent test was administered an hour and seven minutes later, which
indicated a BAC of 0.04. Burcham, 124 Nev. at 1251. Both tests made clear that the suspect’s

intoxication level was decreasing rather than increasing. Id. The Court noted that the average
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metabolic dissipation rate of alcohol—approximately 0.02 percent per hour—may be used to
infer that a suspect was at or above the 0.08 BAC limit. Id. at 1254. Using this line of logic,
the Court held that no expert witness was necessary at a probable cause hearing, and based on
the two BAC levels, it could infer that the suspect’s BAC was at or above 0.08 while operating
the motor vehicle. 1d.

In the instant case, the State was not burdened with proving that Appellant’s BAC was
at or above .08 while operating a vehicle beyond a reasonable doubt. The State offered, and
the court accepted, evidence of a BAC between .160 and .155 as further corroboration of the
the intoxication already proven by eyewitnesses at the time of trial. 10/7/19 NJTT at 115-116.
Under Burcham it is acceptable for a finder of fact to use their basic cognitivie abilites to make
inferences about metabolism of alchol by the human body and resulting impairment. The
evidence was both relevant and admissible, leaving no reason for this Honorable Court to
reverse the trial court’s decision.

CONCLUSION

For the forgoing reasons, the State respectfully submits that Appellant’s conviction
ought to be AFFIRMED.
DATED this 13 day of May, 2020.

Respectfully submitted,

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

oY MELA?I)\IWEMM
SCHETBLE

Deputy District Attorney
Nevad>z/;1 Bar #14266

ROC or Certmail or Certfax

MS/ms/L-5
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C-20-346852-A DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Criminal Appeal COURT MINUTES June 11, 2020
C-20-346852-A Jennifer Lynn Plumlee, Appellant(s)
VS
Nevada State of, Respondent(s)
June 11, 2020 09:00 AM  Argument
HEARD BY: Scotti, Richard F. COURTROOM: RJC Courtroom 03B

COURT CLERK: Vargas, Elizabeth
RECORDER: Amoroso, Brittany

REPORTER:

PARTIES PRESENT:

Craig A Mueller Attorney for Appellant
Jennifer Lynn Plumlee Appellant

JOURNAL ENTRIES

State not present. Mr. Mueller argued regarding the Appeal. COURT ORDERED, the District
Attorney to listen to JAVS and provide or be prepared to provide an opposing argument at the
next hearing, and Mr. Mueller's reply was reserved. COURT ORDERED, matter CONTINUED.

CONTINUED TO: 6/18/20 9:00 AM

Printed Date: 6/16/2020 Page 1 of 1 Minutes Date: June 11, 2020

Prepared by: Elizabeth Vargas PA000164



C-20-346852-A DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Criminal Appeal COURT MINUTES June 18, 2020
C-20-346852-A Jennifer Lynn Plumlee, Appellant(s)
VS
Nevada State of, Respondent(s)
June 18, 2020 09:00 AM  Argument
HEARD BY: Scotti, Richard F. COURTROOM: RJC Courtroom 03B

COURT CLERK: Tucker, Michele
RECORDER: Amoroso, Brittany

REPORTER:

PARTIES PRESENT:

Craig A Mueller Attorney for Appellant
Melanie L. Scheible Attorney for Respondent

JOURNAL ENTRIES
Ms. Scheible appeared via BlueJeans.

Mr. Mueller advised the State has asked for a continuance. Ms. Scheible requested 7/9/20.
COURT ORDERED, Matter CONTINUED.

CONTINUED TO: 7/09/21 9:00 AM

Printed Date: 6/19/2020 Page 1 of 1 Minutes Date: June 18, 2020

Prepared by: Michele Tucker PA000165



C-20-346852-A DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Criminal Appeal COURT MINUTES July 09, 2020
C-20-346852-A Jennifer Lynn Plumlee, Appellant(s)
VS
Nevada State of, Respondent(s)
July 09, 2020 09:00 AM  Argument
HEARD BY: Scotti, Richard F. COURTROOM: RJC Courtroom 03B

COURT CLERK: Garcia, Louisa
RECORDER: Amoroso, Brittany

REPORTER:

PARTIES PRESENT:

Craig A Mueller Attorney for Appellant
Jennifer Lynn Plumlee Appellant

Michael G Giles Attorney for Respondent

JOURNAL ENTRIES

Mr. Miles appeared for Melanie Scheible on behalf of State. Court noted Mr. Mueller already
argued and State was going to reply. Arguments by counsel whether or not the evidence that
came in was admissible and if it influenced Judge George's decision. COURT ORDERED,
matter taken UNDER ADVISEMENT; it will issue its decision from Chambers.

Printed Date: 7/10/2020 Page 1 of 1 Minutes Date: July 09, 2020

Prepared by: Louisa Garcia
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Electronically Filed
6/18/2020 11:31 AM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE C?ﬁ‘
RTRAN C&wf prssson

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

CASE NO.: C-20-346852-A
DEPT. Il

JENNIFER LYNN PLUMLEE,
Appellant,

VS.

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Respondent.

N e N e e N N N N N

BEFORE THE HONORABLE RICHARD F. SCOTTI, DISTRICT COURT JUDGE
THURSDAY, JUNE 11, 2020

RECORDER’S TRANSCRIPT OF HEARING RE:

ARGUMENT
APPEARANCES:
For the Appellant: CRAIG A. MUELLER, ESQ.
For the Respondent: NO APPEARANCE

RECORDED BY: BRITTANY AMOROSO, COURT RECORDER
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Las Vegas, Nevada; Thursday, June 11, 2020

[Hearing commenced at 9:32 a.m.]

THE COURT: Plumlee versus State of Nevada, C346852.

Do we have somebody from the DA’s office on this one? Anybody from
the -- Mr. Nance are you still --

MR. MUELLER: This was done of -- up from the Henderson
team, Judge. | know they’re administratively broken up into different
units.

THE COURT: Let’s call one more time. Plumlee versus State
of Nevada, C346852. Do we have anybody here on behalf of the State?
This is the matter where Officer Luna apparently didn’t show up at some
prior hearing and there was a continuance. Anybody from the State call
in anybody, or text, or email indicating that they wouldn'’t -- or needed a
continuance on this one? All right. Let's move this one over.

If you want, | could hear -- since you have client here, | could
hear argument now and then | would simply ask the State to listen to
JAVS and then respond.

MR. MUELLER: Surely, Judge. I'm --

THE COURT: And then you could be back here for reply in
the absence of your client.

MR. MUELLER: That'll be great.

THE COURT: Why don’t you go ahead and present argument
on this one then.

MR. MUELLER: Certainly. Jennifer, you want to go ahead
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and sit down?

Your Honor, | applied for the District Attorney’s Office out of
civil practice in 1993. A friend of mine heard | gotten the interview and
pulled me aside and took me to lunch before | went and met with Bill
Koot and Rex Bell, and the first thing that that former District Attorney
taught me was two motions, the Hill motion and the Bustos motion.
Literally, the very first --

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. MUELLER: --idea that | was exposed to as a District
Attorney, or would be District Attorney, was the idea that the State had
to prepare. The State --

THE COURT: | studied, of course, both when | was handling
the felonies.

MR. MUELLER: All right.

THE COURT: And so, I'm well familiar, but you may
summarize it.

MR. MUELLER: All right. Well thank you, Your Honor. So,
this is literally the blackest of black letter law. It is the first -- literally the
first minute, and the first hour, the first day that | thought about being a
District Attorney, this is the law | was exposed to. State has to prepare.
If they don’t prepare, the case gets dismissed. That's it. It's about that
simple.

There are circumstances where if someone is unavailable
because of training or they’re in a car wreck, there is law that makes

allowances on behalf of the State. Specifically, | subpoenaed the guy
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and he’s on vacation seeing his grandmother in Austria. Okay. We’'ll
give him a pass on that one by law. If he does it in writing and it's done
ahead of time.

Then there’s a Bustos motion. Bustos is a bus stop. That’s
how | always remember it. Bustos is, | subpoenaed the guy, | expected
him to be here. He wasn’t here. Well, | know Trooper Luna. That's the
one -- one of the upsides and downsides of practicing a small
jurisdiction, is | kind of know people. So the District Attorney, Ms.
Plumlee, and | are ready for trial. The District Attorney makes a Bustos
motion for Trooper Luna.

THE COURT: Mm-hmm.

MR. MUELLER: I'look at the motion. | don'’t believe it's
served. It's a electronic service. Judge, | know Trooper Luna. He's a
former Marine. | assure you if he knew about this, he’d be here. Okay?
Because that’s the kind of guy he is. | don’t believe that he was served.
| don'’t believe he’s got actual notice.

| asked the District Attorney to prove who talked to Luna. She
could not make affirmative representations. | move to dismiss. And the
judge, probably in abundance of caution, held back, and if | were a
judge, probably would have held back too to let the record get flushed
out. Then I said, all right, Your Honor. If you're not going to dismiss it,
then I’'m going to ask that I'd be allowed to renew this motion before the
trial date continues, which is -- was something I'd been taught to do over
the years.

Trooper Luna shows up and | get him on the witness stand
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before trial. Did you know about this date? No. Were you served
electronically? No. Did you have any reason that you knew about and
didn’t appear at the prior date? No. That’s it. That means | was correct
on the trial date. There was no effort to find Trooper Luna. He did not
appear and Ms. Plumlee’s rights to a speedy trial are impeded. Nevada
law is abundantly clear on this point.

THE COURT: Well of course, it's the good cause standard,
and the judge made a determination implicitly that there was good
cause. Isn’t that a question of fact also?

MR. MUELLER: Well, perhaps I've gotten a little
cantankerous that I've gotten a few older, but | used to stay at the office
and call witnesses that | didn’t have subpoenas for so | could stand up in
Court and said -- and when | didn’t have a subpoena, | tried calling
them. All right? | never got a case dismissed on me. Now, that’s the
level of diligence that the State has -- has to by law due to be prepared -

THE COURT: Right.

MR. MUELLER: --to go.

THE COURT: The question is could any reasonable judge
have determined, based on the facts that you just presented, that there
was not good cause?

MR. MUELLER: The answer is no. It's black --

THE COURT: Or that there was good cause so --

MR. MUELLER: It's -- this is law to fact.

THE COURT: Yeah. Okay.
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MR. MUELLER: This is -- this isn’t a finding of fact appeal.
This is a finding de novo of law. | believe that she stood up and said,
and candidly | don’t believe she did this intentionally, but she stood up
and made falsehoods to the Court. He was served. | expected him to
be here. | look at the subpoena. | say, | wouldn’t have expected him to
be here. Who served it? Well, | don’t know. This is electronic service.
Okay. How do we know he got it?

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. MUELLER: So -- and then | confirmed my suspicion was
correct. Trooper Luna hadn’t gotten it. No one had made any effort.

[Colloquy between the Court and the Gallery]

MR. MUELLER: Trooper Luna had not gotten it. So, |
renewed my motion to dismiss. Now, two trial dates, they weren'’t ready
to go. Case should have been dismissed by every bit of law that I've
ever known in Nevada.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. MUELLER: They hadn’t made an effort. If Trooper Luna
had been on reserve duty, okay. If he’d been out of town, they’d have
gotten it. They thought he had it. Nobody had made an effort to do it.

THE COURT: All right. So I've heard enough on that.

MR. MUELLER: Okay, next issue.

THE COURT: Well -- ten more -- well, okay.

MR. MUELLER: Okay.

THE COURT: Ten more -- can you give me your additional

argument in a minute?
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MR. MUELLER: They've -- they admit a breath test at three
and a half hours -- three hours and fifteen minutes. And that’s -- and it
used as a base of conviction. That’s actually errors of once again, an
error of law. This -- I've got a young District Attorney who's gotten her
teeth down there, and the judge is giving her a little more rope than
she’s entitled to, and now we’re standing up here in District Court
complaining on two egregious errors of law, that either one of which,
warrants a summary dismissal with prejudice.

THE COURT: Very good. You have time reserved for a reply.
We’'ll have the DA listen to JAVS and be back here in a week for any
argument that they have. All right?

MR. MUELLER: All right. Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thank you. That’s technically continued then,
until next --

THE COURT CLERK: Thursday?

THE COURT: -- for one week. Yep, Thursday.

THE COURT CLERK: June 18™.

MR. MUELLER: All right. Thank you. See you on the 18".

THE COURT: Thank you.

[Hearing concluded at 9:39 a.m.]

ATTEST: |do hereby certify that | have truly and correctly transcribed
the audio/video proceedings in the above-entitled case to the best of my

ability. -
( %wfﬂnﬂ.ﬂ @mnpﬁr——““

Brittany Amorbso
Court Recorder/Transcriber
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C-20-346852-A DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Criminal Appeal COURT MINUTES July 16, 2020
C-20-346852-A Jennifer Lynn Plumlee, Appellant(s)
Klsevada State of, Respondent(s)
July 16, 2020 03:00 PM  Minute Order
HEARD BY: Scotti, Richard F. COURTROOM: Chambers
COURT CLERK: Garcia, Louisa
RECORDER:
REPORTER:

PARTIES PRESENT:

JOURNAL ENTRIES

The Court DENIES the Appeal, AFFIRMS the Conviction, and any bond is forfeited to the
State.

The Court finds that the Justice of the Peace (Justice) did not commit error in finding "good
cause" to grant the State s motion for continuance. The Justice could have found from the
evidence that: the State prepared a subpoena for Officer Luna; the State provided the
subpoena to the Nevada Highway Patrol (NHP); the NHP told the State that the subpoena had
been served on Officer Luna; the State believed in good faith that Officer Luna would appear
for Trial on July 17, 2019; and the State did not reasonably discover that Officer Luna would
not appear until the day of Trial.

Appellant argues that strict compliance with the requirements for service of a subpoena, or,
alternatively, a promise to appear by the witness, is a hecessary condition to establish "good
cause" under Bustos, 87 Nev. 622 (1971). This Court disagrees, noting that "good cause" must
be examined under the totality of the circumstances.

As for the Intoxilyzer 8000 data, the Court accepts the representation of the Justice that he did
not rely upon that evidence, so admission of such evidence, if in error, was harmless. The
State to prepare and submit the Order, pursuant to the requirements of AO 20-17.

CLERK'S NOTE: A copy of this minute order was emailed to Melanie L. Scheible,
melaniescheible@clarkcountyda.com, Michael Giles, michaelgiles@clarkcountyda.com and
Craig Mueller, craig@muellerlaw.com. /Ig 7-16-20

Printed Date: 7/17/2020 Page 1 of 1 Minutes Date: July 16, 2020

Prepared by: Louisa Garcia
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Electronically
07/17/2020 1.

ORDR

CRAIG A. MUELLER, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 4703

MUELLER & ASSOCIATES, INC
723 S. Seventh St.

Las Vegas, NV 89101

Office (702) 388.0568

Fax (702) 940.1235
receptionist@craigmuellerlaw.com
Attorney For Appellant

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

JENNIFER PLUMLEE, )
Appellant, )) CASE NO:  C-20-346852-A
VS. )) DEPT NO: I
THE STATE OF NEVADA, ;
Respondent. ;
ORDER

Appellant JENNIFER PLUMLEE’s oral motion to stay requirements pending this court’s
final decision on her appeal having come before the court July 9, 2020, by and through her
attorney of record CRAIG A. MUELLER, ESQ., the STATE OF NEVADA represented by
Deputy District Attorney MELANIE SCHEIBLE, and good cause appearing, it is hereby
ORDERED that the sentence requirements imposed by the Henderson Justice Court in case
number 18MHO0263X are hereby STAYED until final decision in this appeal.

SO ORa@xRtiED! Thiglay of July, 2629 of July, 2020.
/
S S
DISTRICT COURT JUDGE
B8B A11 OEC1 54A1

Richard F. Scotti
District Court Judge

BMT
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Prepared And Submitted By:

/s/ Craig A. Mueller
CRAIG A. MUELLER, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 4703
MUELLER & ASSOCIATES, INC
723 S. Seventh St.
Las Vegas, NV 89101
Office (702) 388.0568
Fax (702) 940.1235
receptionist@craigmuellerlaw.com
Attorney For Appellant
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Jennifer Lynn Plumlee, CASE NO: C-20-346852-A

Appellant(s
bp ) DEPT. NO. Department 2

VS

Nevada State of, Respondent(s)

AUTOMATED CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

This automated certificate of service was generated by the Eighth Judicial District
Court. The foregoing Order was served via the court’s electronic eFile system to all
recipients registered for e-Service on the above entitled case as listed below:

Service Date: 7/17/2020

Craig Mueller electronicservice@craigmuellerlaw.com
Rosa Ramos rosa@craigmuellerlaw.com
District Attorney motions@clarkcountyda.com
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Electronically Filed
7122/2020 5:04 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE COU,
MRCN Cﬁwf

CRAIG A. MUELLER, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 4703

MUELLER & ASSOCIATES, INC
723 S. Seventh St.

Las Vegas, NV 89101

Office (702) 388.0568

Fax (702) 940.1235
receptionist@craigmuellerlaw.com
Attorney For Appellant

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

JENNIFER PLUMLEE, )

Appellant, )) CASE NO:  C-20-346852-A
VS. )) DEPT NO: I
THE STATE OF NEVADA, ;

Respondent. ;

APPELLANT’S MOTION TO RECONSIDER
COMES NOW, Appellant JENNIFER PLUMLEE, by and through her attorney Craig
Mueller, Esg., and hereby moves for reconsideration of this Honorable Court’s decision dated
July 16, 2020, denying her appeal. This Motion is supported by the attached Memorandum Of
Points And Authorities.

/s/ Craig A. Mueller
CRAIG A. MUELLER, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 4703
MUELLER & ASSOCIATES, INC
723 S. Seventh St.
Las Vegas, NV 89101
Office (702) 388.0568
Fax (702) 940.1235
receptionist@craigmuellerlaw.com
Attorney For Appellant

PAO00178
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
Appellant Jennifer Plumlee respectfully requests that this Honorable Court reconsider its
decision to deny her appeal on the following grounds:
A. Deputy District Attorney Scheibel’s prosecution of this case violates the Separation of
Powers Doctrine.

The Nevada Constitution states in relevant part:

ARTICLE. 3. - Distribution of Powers.

Section 1. Three separate departments; separation of powers; legislative review of
administrative regulations.

1. The powers of the Government of the State of Nevada shall be divided into threg
separate departments, the Legislative, the Executive and the Judicial; and no persons charged
with the exercise of powers properly belonging to one of these departments shall exercise anyf
functions, appertaining to either of the others, except in the cases expressly directed or permitted
in this constitution.

Deputy District Attorney Scheibel serves on the Nevada State Legislature. She is also employed
as a prosecutor by the Clark County District Attorney’s Office. Her active involvement trying
criminal cases would appear to clearly violate the express terms of Nev. Const. Art. 3 Sec. 1(1):
““...no persons charged with the exercise of powers properly belonging to one of these
departments shall exercise any functions, appertaining to either of the others....”

B. The Justice of the Peace committed plain error.

Even applying the court’s “totality of the circumstances” test for good cause, the State did
not establish a good faith to move to continue Appellant’s trial on July 17, 2019. The totality of
the circumstances at the time the case was called for trial were:

1. Trooper Luna, the State’s most essential witness, was not present.

2. The Deputy DA in the courtroom was unable to produce a signed subpoena return, or an

electronic return/acknowledgement of service.
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3. The Deputy DA in the courtroom was unable to produce a Uniform Nonappearance Sheet.
4. The Deputy DA did not prepare and file a timely written motion to continue as required by
Hill v. Sheriff, 85 Nev. 234, 452 P.2d 918 (1969).

Based on the clear totality of the circumstances on July 17, 2019, as they existed at the time of
trial (which is the only time relevant to this inquiry), the State did not have a good faith belief
that Trooper Luna would appear for trial and did not have a basis to move for a continuance.
Therefore, the Justice of the Peace committed clear error in granting the State’s Motion To
Continue on July 17, 2019.

Respectfully SUBMITTED this 21% day of July, 2020.

/sl Craig A. Mueller

CRAIG A. MUELLER, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 4703

MUELLER & ASSOCIATES, INC
723 S. Seventh St.

Las Vegas, NV 89101

Office (702) 388.0568

Fax (702) 940.1235
receptionist@craigmuellerlaw.com
Attorney For Appellant

CERTIFICATE OF ELECTRONIC SERVICE

| certify that a copy of Appellant’s Motion To Reconsider was served through the court
clerk’s Odyssey Efile/Eservice network on July 21, 2020, to:

MELANIE SCHEIBLE, ESQ.
Deputy District Attorney
Clark County District Attorney’s Office

BY: /s/Rosa Ramos
Senior Criminal Paralegal
Mueller & Associates
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Electronically Filed
7/23/2020 10:47 AM
Steven D. Grierson

DISTRICT COURT CLERK OF THE COU
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA w ﬁ,

seseskesk
Jennifer Lynn Plumlee, Appellant(s) Case No.: C-20-346852-A
Vs
Nevada State of, Respondent(s) Department 2
NOTICE OF HEARING

Please be advised that the Appellant's Motion to Reconsider in the above-entitled
matter is set for hearing as follows:
Date: August 27, 2020
Time: Chambers

Location: RJC Courtroom 03B
Regional Justice Center
200 Lewis Ave.
Las Vegas, NV 89101
NOTE: Under NEFCR 9(d), if a party is not receiving electronic service through the
Eighth Judicial District Court Electronic Filing System, the movant requesting a

hearing must serve this notice on the party by traditional means.

STEVEN D. GRIERSON, CEO/Clerk of the Court

By: /s/ Marie Kramer
Deputy Clerk of the Court

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that pursuant to Rule 9(b) of the Nevada Electronic Filing and Conversion
Rules a copy of this Notice of Hearing was electronically served to all registered users on
this case in the Eighth Judicial District Court Electronic Filing System.

By: /s/ Marie Kramer
Deputy Clerk of the Court
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Electronically Filed
8/7/2020 5:02 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE COUE :I
OPPS Cﬁz«f

STEVEN B. WOLFSON

Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565
MELANIE SCHEIBLE

Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #14266

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212
(702) 671-2500

Attorney for Plaintiff

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,
-vs- CASENO: (C-20-346852-A
E%E%R PLUMLEE, DEPTNO: I
Defendant.

STATE’S OPPOSITION TO DEFENDANT’S MOTION TO RECONSIDER

DATE OF HEARING: AUGUST 27, 2020
TIME OF HEARING: CHAMBER

COMES NOW, the State of Nevada, by STEVEN B. WOLFSON, Clark County
District Attorney, through MELANIE SCHEIBLE, Deputy District Attorney, and hereby
submits the attached Points and Authorities in Opposition to Defendant’s Motion To
Reconsider.

This Opposition is made and based upon all the papers and pleadings on file herein, the
attached points and authorities in support hereof, and oral argument at the time of hearing, if
deemed necessary by this Honorable Court.

/4
1
I
1

C:\USERS\CASE!\‘IAR\M’PDATA\LOCALNICROSOFT\WINDOWS\!NETCACI-IECON’I'ENI‘.OUROOmﬂﬂmﬁ@zgggllg(gl’?smI (002).00CX

Case Number: C-20-346852-A



R = R e = T ¥ B - VS N R

NN N R RN = e e e e e e e e
o ~1 O L A W NN = O O e =y R WD = O

POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Appellant was arrested in the instant case on September 19, 2018 for Driving Under the
Influence and Failure to Maintain Lane and released from custody shortly thereafter. The
State filed a criminal complaint on or about December 15, 2018 and Appellant was arraigned
on February 5, 2019. Appellant’s non jury trial was first schedule March 26, 2019.

At the time of Appellant’s arrest she had already been adjudicated guilty of Driving
Under the Influence — 1% Offense in Henderson Municipal Court Case 17CR009539, and that
case remained open. Prior to the non jury trial in the instant case, a Chief Deputy District
Attorney discussed this case with her Appellant’s attorney at the time, Christina Hinds, and
the case was “called off” as the parties had reached a negotiation. A subsequent date was set
for Appellant to enter her plea on April 10, 2019. On April 10, 2019, Appellant indicated she
changed attorneys and another date was set for a status check on the confirmation of counsel
for April 25, 2019.

On April 25, 2019 Susana Reyes appeared on behalf of Craig Mueller and yet another
status check was set for May 13, 2019. On May 13, 2019, Appellant rejected the previous
negotiations and a non jury trial was scheduled for July 17, 2019.

While the instant case was pending, on or about June 18, 2019, Appellant’s sentence
was modified in the Municipal Court Case, 17CR009539 to require that she complete the
Moderate Offenders Program through Las Vegas Justice Court.

On July 17, 2019 the State moved for a continuance of the non jury trial in the instant

case pursuant to Bustos v. Sheriff. Clark County, 87 Nev. 622, 623, 491 P.2d 1279, 1280

(1971). The motion was granted and the trial was re-set for September 16, 2019.

On September 16, 2019, Appellant moved to dismiss the case on the grounds that the
previous motion to continue had been granted in error. The Court offered Appellant the
opportunity to brief her argument in writing, and the non jury trial was re-set again to October

7,2019.
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On October 7, 2019, Appellant’s motion to dismiss was denied and she proceeded to
trial. Appellant was found guilty of Driving Under the Influence and Failure to Maintain Lane
following the trial. A date was set for formal adjudication and sentencing of November 19,
2019. Appellant was adjudicated guilty of Driving While under the Influence — Second
Offense, and Failure to Maintain Lane in the instant case on November 19, 2019.

Appellant subsequently filed a direct appeal on or about April 23, 2020. The State filed
a response on or about May 13, 2020. Appellant’s conviction was affirmed by this honorable
court on July 17, 2020.

Appellant filed the instant motion on or about July 22,2020. The State herein responds.

STATEMENT OF FACTS |

On September 10, 2018, Jennifer Plumlee (“Appellant”) was driving along Green
Valley Parkway near the 215 in Henderson Nevada. 10/7/19 Non Jury Trial Transcript (NJTT)
at 23. After running through a red light, she hit and jumped over ‘the center median smashing
into an electric pole, head on. Id at 24-25. Appellant opened the driver’s side door, stumbled,
and fell to the ground as she tried to exit her vehicle. 1d at 26. Appeilaq% eventually stood,
surveyed her vehicle and got back in the driver’s seat. Id at 27. She continued to press the gas
pedal, causing her back wheels to turn, though the vehicle could not move because it has
already collided with the pole._Id at 29. The car eventually slid backwards and Appellant
maneuvered around the pole into the center of an intersection. Id at 30. Another concerned
driver called 911 and flagged down a law enforcement officer who conducted a stop of the
vehicle on the 215 heading westbound. Id at32-35, 51. Shortly after, NHP Officer Greg Luna
arrived and took over the investigation, Id at 44. Appellant had Chinese food in the passenger
seat of her car, which Officer Luna immediately smelled upon approaching the vehicle. Id at
51. Upon inquiry, Appellant was adamant that she was heading home in the eastbound
direction, despite being on the west bound freeway. Id at 51. Officer Luna observed her eyes
to be glassy and smelled alcohol on her breath once was closer to her in physical proximity.

Id at 52.
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Officer Luna conducted a Horizontal Gaze Nystagmus test, on which Appellant
exhibited six out of six clues of impairment. Id at 54-55. He then administered a preliminary
breath test, which showed Appellant’s Breath Alcohol Content to be above .08. Id at 58.
Officer Luna then placed Appellant under arrest for Driving Under the Influence and
transported her to Henderson Detention Center. 1d at 59-60. At Henderson Detention Center,
Officer Luna administered a Breath Alcohol Content test using the Intoxilyzer 8000. Id at 60.
The test — administered at 12:19 AM and 12:22 AM September 11, 2019 — showed her breath
alcohol content to be .161 and .155, respectively.

ARGUMENT

Appellant has no legal grounds for bringing a motion to reconsider and fails to cite any
law that supports her right to move for reconsideration of the previous affirmation of her
conviction. It is appellant’s responsibility to present relevant authority and cogent argument,
issues not so presented need not be addressed by this court. Maresca v. State, 103 Nev. 669,
673, 748 P.2d 3, 6 (1987); NRAP 28(a)(9)(A)

Appellant’s failure to cite any authority for her motion not withstanding, her claims

both fail on the merits, too. Appellant’s first claim was waived by not including it in the direct
appeal from conviction. The Nevada Supreme Court has held that “[A]ll . . . claims that are
appropriate for a direct appeal must be pursued on direct appeal, or they will be considered
waived in subsequent proceedings.” Franklin v. State, 110 Nev. 750, 752, 877 P.2d 1058, 1059
(1994) (emphasis added) (disapproved on other grounds by Thomas v. State, 115 Nev. 148,
979 P.2d 222 (1999)).

Second, to the extend Appellant’s motion for reconsideration may be considered a
motion for modification of sentence, it is similarly inappropriate. A district court has
jurisdiction to modify a defendant's sentence "only if (1) the district court actually sentenced
appellant based on a materially false assumption of fact that worked to appellant's extreme
detriment, and (2) the particular mistake at issue was of the type that would rise to the level of

a violation of due process.” Passanisi v. State, 108 Nev. 318 (1992) at 322-23. Appellant does
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not assert a mistake of fact about her criminal record and therefore is not entitled to a sentence
modification.

CONCLUSION

For the forgoing reasons, the State respectfully requestst that Appellant’s motion be
DISMISSED.

DATED this day of August, 2020,

Respectfully submitted,

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorne
Nevada Bar #001565

Deputy District Atforney
Nevada Bar #14266

CERTIFICATE OF ELECTRONIC FILING

I hereby certify that service of State’s Ol]))position To Defendant’s Motion To
Reconsider, was made this 7th day of August, 2020, by Electronic Filing to:

CRAIG MUELLER
receptionist@craigmuellerlaw.com

Secretary for the District Attorney's Office

MS/ms/L-5
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C-20-346852-A

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Criminal Appeal COURT MINUTES August 24, 2020

C-20-346852-A Jennifer Lynn Plumlee, Appellant(s)
Vs
Nevada State of, Respondent(s)

August 24, 2020 Minute Order
HEARD BY: Scotti, Richard F. COURTROOM: Chambers
COURT CLERK: Michele Tucker

JOURNAL ENTRIES

The Court notes that Appellant filed a Request for Hearing which the Court construes as a Request
for Oral Argument on August 7, 2020. Accordingly, the Court MOVES Appellant s Motion for
Reconsideration from chambers to the oral calendar on Thursday, August 27, 2020 at 9AM. However,
in-person appearances are NOT permitted at this time. Parties are directed to call-in to, or login to,
the Blue Jeans system via the below provided phone number and Session ID number, or link.

Access phone number: 408.419.1715
Session ID: 908 222 797
Meeting link: https://bluejeans.com /908222797

RESCHEDULED TO: 8/27/20 9:00 AM

CLERK'S NOTE: A copy of this minute order was distributed via the E-Service list and emailed to all
parties. / mit

PRINT DATE: 08/24/2020 Pagelof1l Minutes Date:  August 24, 2020

PA000188



C-20-346852-A DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Criminal Appeal COURT MINUTES August 27, 2020
C-20-346852-A Jennifer Lynn Plumlee, Appellant(s)
VS
Nevada State of, Respondent(s)
August 27, 2020 11:00 AM  Motion to Reconsider
HEARD BY: Scotti, Richard F. COURTROOM: RJC Courtroom 03B

COURT CLERK: Garcia, Louisa
RECORDER: Amoroso, Brittany

REPORTER:

PARTIES PRESENT:

Craig A Mueller Attorney for Appellant
Melanie L. Scheible Attorney for Respondent

JOURNAL ENTRIES

Following arguments by counsel regarding service and separation of powers, COURT
ORDERED, matter CONTINUED and GRANTED State additional time to prepare
supplemental briefing on the issue of whether Appellant waived his argument of separation of
powers and subject matter jurisdiction; that the proceedings were illegal based upon the
Const. Article 3 Sec.1(1). State's supplemental Points and Authorities DUE 9/14/20;
Response DUE 9/21/20 and Argument SET thereafter.

CONTINUED TO 9/30/20 9:15 AM

Printed Date: 8/29/2020 Page 1 of 1 Minutes Date: August 27, 2020

Prepared by: Louisa Garcia
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Electronically Filed
9/14/2020 3:33 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE COU,
OPPS _ Cﬁ;,‘._ﬁ ﬁ"—“-

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney

Nevada Bar #001565

ALEXANDER CHEN

Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #10539

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212
(702) 671-2500

Attorney for Plaintiff

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,
-vs- CASENO: C-20-346852-A
JENNIEER PLUMLEE, DEPTNO: N
Defendant.

STATE’S OPPOSITION TO DEFENDANT’S MOTION TO RECONSIDER

DATE OF HEARING: SEPTEMBER 30, 2020
TIME OF HEARING: 9:15 AM

COMES NOW, the State of Nevada, by STEVEN B. WOLFSON, Clark County
District Aftorney, through ALEXANDER CHEN, Chief Deputy District Attorney, and hereby
submits the attached Points and Authorities in Opposition to Defendant’s Motion to Suppress.

This Opposition is made and based upon all the papers and pleadings on file herein, the
attached points and authorities in support hereof, and oral argument at the time of hearing, if
deemed necessary by this Honorable Court.
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ARGUMENT
L APPELLANT WAIVED HER RIGHT TO THE CLAIM BY NEVER
MAKING AN OBJECTION

While Appellant’s argument lacks any merits on the separation of powers grounds, this
Court must first look to whether any objection to the deputy’s involvement in the case has
been waived. The longstanding rule is that failure to preserve an error is forfeited on appeal,
even when the error that has been deemed structural. Jeremias v. State, 134 Nev., Adv. Op. 8,
412 P.3d 43, 48 (2018); See also, United States v. Olano, 507 U.8. 725, 731, 113 §8.Ct, 1770,
123 L.Ed.2d 508 (1993) (*No procedural principle is more familiar to this Court than that a

constitutional right, or a right of any other sort, may be forfeited in criminal as well as civil
cases by the failure to make timely assertion of the right...”(internal quotation marks
omitted)). Thus, failure to object at any point means that this objection is untimely and should
be rejected.

Appellant is suddenly for the first time arguing in a Motion to Reconsider that the

~ Deputy District Attorney should not have been allowed to handle this case. While Appellant

never objected to this matter, it should and would have failed as a matter of law.
When a party wishes to disqualify a prosecutor, such impropriety must take the form

of a conflict of interest. See NRPC 1.7, 1.9, 1.11; United States v. Kahre, 737 F.3d 554, 574

(2013) (“proof of a conflict [of interest] must be clear and convincing to justify removal of a

prosecutor from a case.”). Defendant has failed to demonstrate, or even address, the existence

" of a conflict of interest.

None of these issues were ever raised by Appellant, and it is certainly no secret that the

Deputy District Attorney that prosecuted Appellant was a member of the Nevada Senate at the

time this case was prosecuted. The fact that the objection is coming now is clearly a last-ditch

~effort to get this Court to entertain the issue after having already lost the direct appeal. The

easy and correct solution here is to deny Appellant’s motion as something that was never raised
and thereby waived.

1
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II. HOLDING A POSITION ON THE LEGISLATURE AND BEING A DEPUTY
DISTRICT ATTORNEY DOES NOT VIOLATE THE SEPARATION OF POWERS
IN ARTICLE 3 § 1 OF THE NEVADA CONSTITUTION

Appellant claims that by holding a seat on the Legislature, a Deputy District Attorney
is violating the separation of powers clause in the Nevada Constitution. This is false on
numerous grounds. According to Article 3, § 1, sets out the three separate departments of
government: the Legislative, the Executive, and the Judicial bodies. However, an acting
Deputy District Attorney is a public employee rather than a person merely holding a public
office, and thus the separation of powers does not apply. Article 4, § 6 grants in each House
the authority to determine the qualifications of its own members. Clearly, the Senate in
Nevada has not enacted any law or prohibition of a public employee also serving as a member
of the Legislature.

The Nevada Constitution does not contain any specific provisions concerning
incompatible public offices that would prohibit legislators from holding positions of public
employment with the local government. Further it is relevant to point out that a Deputy
District Attorney is a mere “public employee” and not a “public officer” as used in the Nevada
Constitution. See State ex rel. Mathews v. Murray, 70 Nev. 116, 120-21, 258 P.2d 982, 984
(1953). Public officers are created by law not simply created by mere administrative authority
and discretion. Second, the duties of a public officer must be fixed by law and must involve
an exercise of the sovereign functions of the state, such as formulating state policy. Univ. &
Cmty. Coll. Sys. V. DR Partners, 117 Nev. 195 200-06. Since a Deputy District Attorney is a
“public employee,” the separation of powers doctrine as listed in Article 3 §1 is not applicable.

Specifically, for district attorneys the Nevada Supreme Court has held that the
separation of powers was not applicable to the exercise of certain powers by a county’s District
Attorney because he was not a state constitutional officer. Lane v. Second Jud. Dist. Ct. 104
Nev. 427,437 (1988). In citing NRS 252.110, which sets forth the powers inured to the district
attorney, the Court indicated that the district attorney is not an office created via the Nevada

State Constitution, thus the separation of powers doctrine is inapplicable.

3
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In 2004, then Secretary of State Dean Heller also broached this topic in two different
ways. First, he sought an advisory opinion from the Nevada Attorney General on whether the
separation of powers clause of the Nevada Constitution was applicable to local governments.
2004 Nev. Op. Atty. Gen. No. 03 (Nev.A.G.), 2004 WL 723329. Attorney General Brian
Sandoval issued his opinion that local government employees could dually serve as members
of the Nevada Legislature, and that such service did not violate Article 3, § 1 of the Nevada
Constitution’s separation of powers clause.

Attorney General Sandoval went on to explain Nevada’s “long-standing practice of
local government employees serving in the Nevada State Legislature.” He pointed to
examples such as Assemblywoman Ruth Averill, who was the second woman ever elected to
the Nevada State Legislature. Assemblywoman Averill was a school teacher that went on to
serve on the Assembly Committee on Judiciary as well as the Assembly Committee on
Education.

In finding authority for the dual service of people like Assemblywoman Averill,
Attorney General Sandoval relied on California laws that held the separation of powers
doctrine does not apply to local government employees. People ex rel. Attorney General v.
Provines, 34 Cal. 520 (1868). The California court distinguished that the constitution set up
the State government but not local and county governments. This decision was reaffirmed in
California and is adopted in a majority of other jurisdictions. Mariposa County v. Merced
Irrig. Dist., 196 P.2d 920, 926 (Cal. 1948). It should be noted that California was an
appropriate state to draw from given that Nevada’s Constitution was largely modeled after
California’s State Constitution. See Aftercare of Clark County v. Justice Court of Clark
County, 120 Nev. 1, 82 P.3d 931 (2004). Attorney General Sandoval concluded his advisory
opinion by stating the following: “Further, it is the opinion of this office that the constitutional
requirement of separation of powers is not applicable to local governments. Accordingly,
absent legal restrictions unrelated to the separation of powers doctrine, a local government
employee may simultaneously serve as a member of the Nevada Legislature.”

I
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The second way that Secretary of State Heller sought clarification on this issue followed
the advisory opinion in a petition for writ of mandamus that he sought challenging state

government employees who also serve on the Legislature. Heller v. Legislature of the State

of Nevada, 120 Nev. 456 (2008). The Court in Heller echoed and affirmed the language in

Article 4, § 6 that only the Legislature has the authority to judge its members’ qualifications.
Id., at 468, 93 P.3d at 755.

In denying the petition for writ of mandamus, the Nevada Supreme Court further held
that it would be in violation of the Separation of Powers Doctrine to judicially legislate who
is eligible to serve in the Nevada Legislature, given that such a function lies with the
Legislature itself.

The Legislature is given deference in determining who is qualified to be a member of
the Legislature. As seen in Heller, the Supreme Court of Nevada réﬁ;sed to address this issue
on the merits because to address the issue presented would in itself be a violation of the
separation of powers. The Legislature was given the specific authority in the constitution to
qualify their members, and the supreme court said that “by asking us to declare that dual
service violates the separation of powers, the secretary urges our own violation of the
separation of powers”. Heller at 459.

If this Court were to prohibit a Deputy District Attorney from a righteous prosecution,
thereby vacating a conviction and starting the case anew, it would result in this Court also
violating the separation of powers doctrine. Since the Legislature was granted this power in
the Nevada Constitution, this authority cannot be usurped by the Judicial branch of the
government without violating the separation of powers article of the Constitution.

Finally, this Court should be aware that the Legislative Counsel Bureau (LCB Legal)
issued a recent opinion regarding this exact same issue. (Attached as Exhibit *“1”). While LCB
Legal initially affirms and reiterates much of what has been discussed above, it went further
to also examine other jurisdictiéns, as well as the history of Nevada, in concluding that public

employment is not a bar to serving in the Legislature.

/i
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CONCLUSION

Appellant’s Motion to Reconsider should first and foremost be denied on the basis of
something that was waived and not previously raised. However, even on the merits,
Appeliant’s argument lacks merit because service of a public employee in the Legislature is
not a violation of the Nevada Constitution’s Separation of Powers clause. Based upon the
foregoing argument, the State respectfully requests that Defendant’s Motion to Reconsider be
DENIED.

DATED this _14th _day of September 2020.

Respectfully submitted,

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

BY /s/ Alexander Chen
ALEXANDER CHEN
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar # 10539

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that service of the above and foregoing was made this 14th day of
SEPTEMBER 2020, by Email to:

CRAIG MUELLER, ESQ.
receptionist(@craigmuellerlaw.com

BY: /s/l. Serpa

J. Serpa
Employee of the District Attorney’s Office

AC/s
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LEGISLATIVE COMMISSION (775) 684-6800

STATE OF NEVADA NICGLE 1. CANNIZZARQ, Senator. Cluir
L E G l S L A ‘I" I V E C O U N S E L B U R E A U Bronda ). Erdoes. Director. Secretary
LEGISLATIVE BUILDING INTERIM FINANCE COMMITTEE (775) 684-6824

MAGGIE CARLTON, Asemblywenun, Chair
Cindy Jones. Fiscal Amsdvst
Mark Krmpotic, Fiseal Anelyst

401 5. CARSON STREET

CARSDN CITY, NEVADA 89701-4747
Fax No.: (7751 683-6600

LEGAL DIVISION (775) 683-6830
REVIN C. POWERS, Gercral Connsel
BRYAN ). FERNLEY, Legisfarrvy Counse!

BRENDA ). ERDOES, Director
(775} 6846800

August 8, 2020

Brenda J. Erdoes, Esq.
Director

Legislative Counsel Bureau
401 S. Carson St.

Carson City, NV 89701

Dear Director Erdoes:

Pursuant to NRS 218F.710(2), you have asked the General Counsel of the Legal Division
of the Legislative Counsel Bureau (LCB Legal) to address a question of constitutional law
relating to the separation-of-powers provision in Article 3, Section] of the Nevada
Constitution.!

In particular, you have asked whether the separation-of-powers provision prohibits state

legislators from hoi‘din,vs positions of public employment with the Executive Department of the
rs and Public Employees Servin.:_.pdf" - . s

@PJL SET STRINGCODESET=UTF8
@pJL COMMENT "D
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LEGISLATIVE COMMISSION (775) 684-6800

STATE OF NEVADA NICOLE J. CARNIZZARQ, Seactor, Chair
L E G I S LA T I V E C O U N S E L B U R E A U Brenda J. Erdoes. irecior, Seeretary
LEGISLATIVE BUILDING INTERIM FINANCE COMMITTEE (775) 684-682)

MAGGIE CARLTON. Assembhwonan, Chair
Cindy Joney, Fisoal Anaivst
Muark Krmpotic, Fisoaf Anefys

401 S. CARSON STREET

CARSON CITY, NEVADA B970-4747
Fax, No.: (7151 684-6600

BRENDA J ERDOES. Dirvetor
(7751 6316300

LEGAL DIVISION (775) 684-6830
KEVIN C. POWERS. Gengral Coansel
BRYAN ). FERNLEY. Legislaiive Counsel

August 8. 2020

Brenda J. Erdoes, Esq.
Director

Legislative Counsel Bureau
401 S. Carson St.

Carson City, NV 89701

Dear Director Erdoes:

Pursuant to NRS 218F.710(2), you have asked the General Counsel of the Legal Division
of the Legislative Counsel Bureau (LCB Legal) to address a question of constitutional law
relating to the separation-of-powers provision in Article 3, Section ] of the Nevada
Constitution.

In particular, you have asked whether the separation-of-powers provision prohibits state
legislators from holding positions of public employment with the Executive Department of the
Nevada State Government (hereafter “the state executive branch”) or with local governments.
In asking this question, you note that LCB Legal has addressed this question of constitutional
law in: (1) prior legal opinions issued by LCB Legal in 2002 and 2003 which were disclosed to
the public; and (2) prior legal arguments made by LCB Legal in 2004 before the Nevada

Supreme Court in the case of Heller, Secretary of State v, Legislature of the State of Nevada,
120 Nev. 456 (2004).

In the Heller case, former Secretary of State Dean Heller brought a lawsuit against the
Legislature claiming that the separation-of-powers provision in Article 3, Section 1 of the
Nevada Constitution ‘prohibits state legislators from holding positions of public employment
with the state executive branch or with local governments. 120 Nev. at 458-60. As a remedy
for the alleged separation-of-powers violations, the former Secretary of State asked the Nevada
Supreme Court to oust or exclude state and local government employees from their seats in the
Legislature. Id.

' NRS 218F.710(2), as amended by section 22 of Assembly Bill No. 2 (AB 2) of the 32nd
Special Session of the Legislature, provides that upon the request of the Director, the General
Counsel may give a legal opinion in writing upon any question of law.
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In response to the lawsuit, LCB Legal, which represented the Legislature in the litigation,
argued in line with our prior legal opinions that the separation-of-powers provision dees not
prohibit legislators from holding positions of public employment with the state executive
branch or with local governments. Heller v. Legislature, Case No. 43079, Doc. No. 04-08124,
Answer -of Respondent Legislature in Opposition to Petition for Writ of Mandamus, at 42-75
(May 4, 2004). In particular, LCB Legal argued that the Framers of the Nevada Constitution
did not intend the separation-of-powers provision. to prohibit legislators from holding positions
of public employment with the state executive branch because persons whe hold such positions
of public employment do not exercise any sovereign functions appertaining to the state
executive branch. Id. at 42-68. By contrast, LLCB Legal argued that the Framers intended the
separation-of-powers provision to prohibit legislators from holding only public offices in the
state executive branch because persons who hold such public offices exercise sovereign
functions appertaining to the state executive branch. Id. Finally, LCB Legal argued that the
Framers did not inténd the separation-of-powers provision to prohibit legislators fiom holding
positions of public employment with local governments because the separation-of-powers
provision applies only to the three departments of state government, and local governments and
their officers and employees are not part of one of the three departments of state government.
Id. at'68-76.

On July 14, 2004, the Nevada Supreme Court decided the Heller case in favor of the
Legislature, but the court decided the case on different legal grounds from the separation-of-
powers challenge raised by the former Secretary of State. Consequently, the Nevada Supreme
Court did not decide the merits of the ‘separation-of-powers challenge to legislators holding
positions of publi¢ eimployment with the state executive branch or with local governments.
Since the Heller case in 2004, neither the Nevada Supreme Court nor the Nevada Court of
Appeals has addressed or. decided the merits of such a separation-of-powers challenge ifi a
reported case. "

In the absence of any controlling Nevada case lJaw directly on point, you have asked
whether it rémains thie opinion of LCB Legal that the separation-of-powers provision does not
prohibit legislators from holding positions of public employment with the state executive
branch or with local governments. Given that there is no controlling Nevada case law directly
on point to resolve this question of constitutional law, we again have carefully considered:
(1) historical evidence of the practices in the Federal Government and Congress imméediately
following the ratification of the Federal Constitution; (2) historical evidence of the practices if
the California Legislature under similar state constitutional provisions which served as the
model for the Nevada Constitution; (3) historical evidence of the practices in the Nevada
Legislature since statehood; (4) legal treatises and other authorities on constitutional law;
(5)case law from other jurisdictions interpreting similar state constitutional provisions;
(6) common-law rules goveming public officers and employees; and (7) the intent of the
Framers and their underlying public policies supporting the concept of the “citizen-legislator”
as the cornerstone of an effective, responsive and qualified part-time legislative body. Taking
all these compelling historical factors, legal authorities and public policies into consideration—
along with our prior legal opinions on this question of constitutional law—it remains the
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opinion of LCB Legal that the separation-of-powers provision does not prohibit legislators
fror holding positions of public employment with the state executive branch or with local
governments.

BACKGROUND

The Heller case is the primary Nevada case discussing the proper procedure. for raising a
separation-of-powers challenge to legislators holding positions of public employment with the
state ¢xecutive brarich or with local governments. Therefore, in discussing this question of
constitutional law, we must begin by analyzing the Heller case in some detail.

On April 2, 2004, former Secretary of State Dean Heller, who was represented in the
litigation by former Attorney General Brian Sandoval, filed an original action in the Nevada
Supreme Court in the form of a petition for writ of mandamus (mandamus petition) which
asked the court to oust or exclude state and local government employees from their seats in the
Legislature. 120 Nev. at 458-60. In the mandamus petition, the former Secretary of State
argued that the separation-of-powers provision prohibits legislators from holding positions of -
public émployrent as state executive branch employees and also “question[ed] whether local
govemmmeit employees may serve as legislators without violating separation of powers.” Id.
With regard to state executive branch employees, the former Secretary of State asked the
Nevada Supreme Court to “declare state executive branch employees unqualified to serve as
legislators, and then direct the Legislature to comply with [that] declaration and either remove
or exclude those employees from the Legislature.” Id. at 460.

As pait of the mandamus petition, the former Secretary of State attached as exhibits two
legal opinions from LCB Legal—one issued to former Assemblyman Lynn Hettrick on
January 11, 2002, and one issued to former Assemblyman Jason Geddes on January 23, 2003.
Heller v. Legislature, Case No. 43079, Doc. No. 04-06157, Petition for Writ of Mandamus
(Apr. 2, 2004) (Exhibits B-1 and B-2). In the two opinions, LCB Legal found that the
separation-of-powets provision only prohibits legislators from holding public offices in the
state executive- branch because persons who hold such public offices exercise sovereign
functions appér‘tai‘ning to the state executive branch. However, LCB Legal also found that the
separation-of-powers provision does not prohibit legislators from holding positions of public
employment with the state executive branch because pérsons who hold such positions of public
employment do not exercise any sovereign functions appertaining to the state executive branch,
Based on our interpretation of the separation-of-powers provision, LCB Legal determined that
certain positions of public employment with, respectively, the Nevada Department of
Transportation and the University and Community College System of Nevada (now the Nevada
System of Higher Education), wete not public offices in the state executive branch because the
positions did not involve the exercise of any sovereign functions appertaining to the state
executive branch. Therefore, LCB Legal concluded that legislators could hold the respective
positions of public employmént without violating the separation-of-powers provision.
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Also as part. of the mandamus petition, the former Secretary of State attached as an
exhibit a legal opinion issued by former Attorney General Sandoval—AGO 2004-03 (Mar. 1,
2004)—which . disagreed with the two legal opinions issued by LCB Legal. Heller v.
Legislature, Case No. 43079, Doc. No. 04-06157, Petition' for Writ of Mandamus (Apr. 2,
.2004) (Exhibit A). In AGO 2004-03, the former Attorney General concluded that the
separation-of-powers provision prohibits legislators from holding both public offices and
pﬂsmons of public employment with the state executive branch, whether or not such positions
exercise any sovereign functions appertaining to the state executive branch. AGO 2004-03, at
23-25. However, with regard to local government employees, the former Attorney General
concluded that the separation-of-powers provision does not prohibit legislators from holding
positions of public employment with local governments because the separation-of-powers
provision is not applicable to local governments. Id. at 26.

In the Legislature’s answer to the mandamus petition, LCB Legal responded
comprehensively and thoroughly in opposition to the legal conclusion in AGO 2004-03 that the
separation-of-powers provision prohibits legislators from holding positions of public
employment with the state executive branch. Heller 'v. Legislature, Case No. 43079, Doc.
No. 04-08124, Answer of Respondent Legislature in Opposition to Petition for Writ of
Mandamus, at 42-68 (May 4, 2004). Specifically, LCB Legal demonstrated throiigh extensive
citation to historical evidence and well-established legal authorities that the legal conclusion in
AGO.2004-03 is not entitled to any persuasive weight for the following reasons: (1) it used
incompletely researched and therefore inaccurate historical evidence; (2) it relied on inapt and
inapplicable case law; (3) it failed to properly apply the rules of consutuuonal construction; and
(4) it was not suppofted by relevant and persuasive legal authorities.?

For example, becanse the Nevada Constitution was modeled on the California
Constitution of 1849, AGO 2004-03 attempts to use historical evidence and case law from
California to support its legal conclusion that Nevada’s legislators are prohibited from holding
positions as state executive branch employees. AGO 2004-03, at 9-10. However, the historical
evidence and case law from California actually proves the exact opposite. During California’s
first 67 years of statehood, it was a common and accepted practice for California Legislators to
hold positions as state executive branch employees until 1916, when the California Constitution
was amended to expressly prohibit legislators from being state executive branch employees.
See Chenoweth v, Chambers, 164 P. 428, 430 (Cal. Dist. Ct. App. 1917) (explaining that the
constitutional amendment “was intended to reach a practice in state administration of many

2 We note that the legal opinions of the Attorney General and LCB Legal do not constitute
bmdmg legal authority or precedent. Univ. & Cmty. Coll. Sys. v. DR Partners, 117 Nev.
195, 203 (2001); Lorton v. Jones, 130 Nev. 51, 62 n.7 (2014). Instead, such legal opinions
are entitled only to such persuasive weight as the courts think proper based on the legal
reasoning and ¢itation to relevant legal authorities that support the opinion. See Tahoe Reg'l
Planning Agenéy v. McKay, 590 F. Supp. 1071, 1074 (D. Nev. 1984), aff'd, 769 F.2d 534
(9th Cir. 1985); Santa Clara Caty. Local Transp. Auth. v. Guardino, 902 P.2d 225 238 (Cal.
1995).
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years’ standing.””). As more fully addressed in the legal discussion below, this is but one
example of many historical and legal flaws that undermine the persuasive weight of
AGO.2004-03. :

.However, in the Heller case, because the Nevada Supreme Court decided the case in
favor of the Legislature on different legal grounds from the separation-of-powers challenge
raised by the former Secretary of State, the court did not resolvé the coiflicting legal
conclusions expressed in AGO 2004-03 and the two legal opinions issued by LCB Legal. 120
Nev. at 466-72. Nevertheless, the court’s decision in the Heller case established some
important legal principles governing separation-of-powers challenges and the exclusive
constitutional power of each House of the Legislature to judge the qualifications of its members
under Article 4, Section 6 of the Nevada Constitution, Id.

In the Heller case, as a remedy for the alleged separation-of-powers violations, the former
Secretary of State asked the Nevada Supreme Court to oust or exclude state and local
government employees from their seats in the Legislature. Id. at 458-60. However, in light of
the requested remedy, the court declined to decide the merits of the separation-of-powers
challenge because each House is invested with the exclusive constitutional power to judge the
qualifications of its members under Article 4, Section 6, which provides in relevant part that
“[e]ach House shall judge of the qualifications, elections and returns of its own meinbers.” Id.
at 466. Based on the exclusive constitutional power in Article 4, Section 6, and guided by
cases from other states interpreting similar constitutional provisions, the court found that
Article 4, Section 6 “insulates a legislator’s qualifications to hold office from _]udlcml review,”
which mieans that “a legislative body’s decision to admit or expel a member is almost
unreviewable in the courts.” Id. at 466-67.

As a result, the court determined that the judicial branch does not have the constitutional
power to oust or exclude legislators from their legislative seats based on separation-of-powers
challenges. Id. at 466-72. In other words, the court concluded that such separation-of-powers
challenges to legislators’ quahficatlons to hold their legislative seats are not “justiciable” in the
courts. Id. at 472 (“[T]he Secretary asks this court to judge legislators’ qualifications based on
their execitive branch employment. This request runs afoul of the separation of powers and is
not justiciable.”).” As further explained by court:

Tronically, the Secretary’s attempt to have state executive branch employees
ousted or excluded from the Legislature is barred by the same doctrine he felies
on—separation of powers. The Nevada Constitution expressiy reservés to the
Senate and Assembly the authority to judge their members’ qualifications. Neaily
every staté court to have confronted the issue of dual service in the legislature has
found the issue unreachable because a constitutional reservation similar to
Nevada’s created an insurmountable separation-of-powers barrier. Thus, by asking
us to declare that dual service violates separafion of powers, the Secretary urges our
own violation of separation of powers. We necessarily decline this invitation.
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Id. at 458-59.

However, because neither the statc executive branch nor local governments possess any
constitutionally-based powers that are similar to the exclusive constitutional powers of the
legislative branch under Article 4, Section 6, the Nevada Supreme Court determined that the
judicial branch has the constitutional power to consider—in a properly brought Jawsuit against
a leglslator--—a separation-of-powers challenge to the legislator’s qualifications to hold his or
her positien of public employment with the state executive branch or with a local government.
Id. at 472-73. As explained by the court:

[A]ithough a court. may not feview a state employee’s qualifications to sit as a

legislator, a court may review a legislator’s emiployment in the executive branch.

This dichotomy exists because no state constitutional provision gives the executive

branch ‘the exclusive authority to judge its employees’ qualiﬁcations. Often then,

cases discussing and resolving the dual service issue arise when a legislator seeks

femuferation for working in the éxecutive branch or when a party seeks to remove
" a leglslator froin executive branch employmcnt

1d, at 467-68.

With this background in mind, we turn now to a comprehensive and thorough legal
discussion to address the question of constitutional law of whether the separation-of-powers
provision prohibits legislators from holding positions of public employment with the state
executive branch or with local governments. For the reasons set forth in the discussion below,
it remains the opinion of LCB Legal that the separation-of-powers provision does not prohibit
legislators from holding positions of public employment with the state exécutive branch or with
local governments.

DISCUSSION
I. Overview of state constitutional provisions.

Many state constitutions contain provisions that difectly address the issue of a person
holding more than one position in government. Scott M. Mathesen, Eligibility of Public
Officers. and. Employees to Serve in the State Legislature: An Essay on Separation of . Powers
Politics and Constitutional Policy, 1988 Utah L. Rev. 295, 355-69 (1988). For example, the
State -constitution of Texas contains a broad prov1swn that prohibits any public officer in any
branch of govémmerit from accepting or occupying another public office. See, e.g., Powell v.
State, 898 S;W.2d 821 (Tex. Crim. App. 1994); State ex rel. Hill v. Pirtle, 887 S.Ww.2d 921
(Tex. Crim. App. 1994). Some state constitutions contain more limited provisions that prohlbxt
members of the state legislature from accepting or occupying another public office. See, e.g,,
Hudson v. Annear, 75 P.2d 587 (Colo. 1938); McCutcheon v. City: of St. Paul, 216 N.W.2d 137
(Minn, 1974). Finally, some state consntunons contain prov1s1ons that prohibit members of the
state legislature from accepting or ‘occupying any position of employment in state government,

PA000203



Director Erdoes
August 8, 2020
Page 7

whet,hé_r or not the position is considered to be a public office. See. e.g., Begich v. .Teﬂ'erson, :
441 P.2d 27 (Alaska 1968); Parker v, Riley, 113 P.2d 873 (Cal. 1941); Stolberg v. Caldwell, -
402 A.2d 763 (Conn. 1978). -

The Nevada Constitution does not contain any broad provisiens with regard to
incompatible public offices. See State ex rel. Davenport v. Laughton, 19 Nev. 202, 206 (1885)
(holding that “[{Jhere is nothing in the constitution of this state prohibiting respondent from
holding the office of lieutenant-governor and the office of state librarian.”); Crosman v.
Nightingill, 1 Nev. 323, 326 (1865) (holding that there is nothing in the constitution prohibiting
a person from holding the offices of Lieutenant Governor and warden of the state prison at the
same time). Rather, the Nevada Constitution contains only a few specific provisions
concerning incompatible public offices. See Nev. Const. art. 4, §§ 8 and 9; art. 5, § 12; art. 6,
§ 11. However, for the purposes of this opinion, those specific provisions are not felevant to
answering your question.

Thus, the Nevada Constitution does not contain any specific provisions concerning
incompatible public offices that would prohibit legislators from holding positions of public
employment with the state executive branch or with local governments. As a result, in the
absence of any specific constitutional provisions that are applicable to this mattef, any
challenge to the constitutionality of legislators holding positions of public employment with the
state executive. branch or with local governments must be based on the general separation-of-
powets provision in Article 3, Section 1. That provision provides.in full:

The powers of the Government of the State of Nevada shall be divided into three
separate departments,—the Legislative,—the Exécutive and the Judicial; and no
persons charged with the exercise of powers properly belonging to one of these
departments shall exercise any functions, appertaining to either of the others,
except in the cases expressly directed or permitted in this constitution.

Nev.. Const. art. 3, § 1 (emphasis added).

As discussed previously, neither the Nevada Supreme Court nor the Nevada Court of
Appeals has addressed or decided the merits. of a separation-of-powers challenge to legislators.
holding positions. of public employment with the state executive branch or with local
governments. In one case, the Nevada Supreme Court considered the constitutionality of a
statute that made the Secretary of State the ex officio Clerk of the Supreme Court, but the court
declined to rule on the separation-of-powers issue. State ex rel. Josephs v. Douglass, 33 Nev.
82, 92 (1910), overruled in.part on other grounds, State ex rel. Harvey v. Second Jud. Dist. Ct.,
117 Nev. 754, 765-66 (2001). The petitioner in Douglass argued that the statute violated the
separation-of-powers provision in the Nevada Constitution, and although the court found that
the statute was unconstitutional, it based its decision on other constitutional grounds. 33 Nev.
at91-92. Specifically, the court stated:
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It has been urged that as these two offices appertain to separate and distinct
coordinate departments of the state government, it would be in violation of article 3
of the constitution to combine them, but as this contention is not clearly manifest,
both offices being mainly ministerial in character, and as the question can be
determined upon another view of the case, we give this point no consideration
further than to observe that it emphasizes the fact that the two offices are distinct,
and that the duties of one do not pertain to the duties of the other.

Id. at 92.

In State ex rel. Mathews v. Murray, 70 Nev. 116 (1953), former Attorney General W. T.
Mathews raised a-separation-of-powers challenge against former State Senator John H. Murray
who, while a member of the Legislature, accepted the position of Director of the Drivers
License Division of the Public Service Commission of Nevada. Id. at 119-20. However, as
will discussed ifi greater detail below in the section dealing with the common-law differences
between public officers dnd public employees, the Nevada Supreme Court decided the ¢ase on
different legal grounds, and it did not address or decide the merits of the separation-of-powers
challenge raised by the Attorney General. Id. at 120-24.

At least one state court in New Hampshire has held that the separation-of-powers
provision in its state constitution does not apply to the issue of incompatible public offices
because that issue is addressed in other, more specific provisions of the constitution. Attorney-
General v. Meader, 116 A. 433, 434 (N.H. 1922). Considering that the issue of incompatible
public offices is specifically addressed in the Nevada Constitution in Article 4, Sections 8 and
9, Article 5, Section 12, and Article 6, Section 11, it could be argued that the Framers intended
those provisions to be the exclusive constitutional basis for determining whether a person is
holding incompatible public offices. However, such an interpretation of the Nevada
Constitution is unlikely given the numerous court decisions holding that the separation-of-
‘powers doctrine applies to the issue of incompatible public offices.

Consequently, to address your question fully, we must determine whether Nevada’s
separation-of-powers provision prohibits legislators from holding positions of public
employnient with the state executive branch or with local governments. Under Nevada’s
separation-of-powers provision, because legislators hold elective offices that are éxpressly
created by Articlé 4 of the Nevada Constitution governing the Legislative Department,
legislators ar¢ “charged with the exercise of powers properly belonging ‘to one of these
departments”—the Legislative Department. Nev. Const. art, 3, § 1 (emphasis added). As a
result, legislators are not allowed by the separation-of-powers provision to “exercise amy
functions, appertaining to either of the others, except in the cases expressly directed or
permitted in this constitution.” Id. (emphasis added).

Thus, the critical issue under the separation-of-powers provision is whether legislators

who hold positions of public employment with the state executive branch or with, local
governments “exercise any furictions” appertaining to the state executive branch which cause
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their pubhc employment to be constitutionally mcornpauble with their service as legislators in
the state legisiative branch. In resolving this issue, because there is no controlling Nevada case
law directly on point, we must consider historical evidence, legal treatises and other authorities
on constitutional law, case law from other jurisdictions interpreting similar state constitutional
provisions, common-law rules governing public officers and employees and, most importantly,
the intent of the Framers and their underlying public policies supporting the concept of the
“citizen-legislator” as the cornerstone of an effective, responsive and qualified part-time
legislative body. We begin by examining historical evidence of the practices in the Federal
Government and Congress immediately following the ratification of the Federal Constitution,
historical evidence of the practices. in the California Legislature under similar state
constitutional provisions which served as the model for the Nevada Constitition, and historical
evidence of the practices in the Nevada Legislature since statehood.

" II. Historical evidence.
A. Federal Government and Congress.

In AGO 2004-03, the former Attorney General relies heavily on statements made by the
" Founders of the United States Constitution in the Federalist Papers. Specifically, AGO 2004-
03 states that “[f]he the Federalist Papers are quite instructive in the instant analysis. The
concerns raised by the founders with regard to the separation of powers are as relevant to the
question presented in thxs opunon as they were 216 years ago.” AGO 2004-03 at 8. However,
accepted historical practices under the United States Consntut:on it is clear the Founders did
not believe that the doctrine of separation of powers absolutely prohibited an officer of ene
department from performing functions in another department.

On many occasions, the United States Supreme Court has discussed how the Founders
adopted a pragmatic, flexible view of the separation of powers in ‘the Federalist Papers. See,
eg., Mlstretta v. United States, 488 U.S. 361, 380-82 (1989); Nixon v. Adm’r of Gen. Serys.,
433 U.S. 425, 441-43. (1977). Relying on the Federalist Papers, the Supteme Court has
consistently adhered to “Madison’s flexible approach to sepatation of powers.” Mistretta, 488 -
- U.S. at 380. In particular; Madison stated in the Federalist Papers that the separation of powers
“‘dfoes] not mean that these. [three] departments ought to have no partial agency in, or no
controul over the acts of each other.”” Id. at 380-81 (quoting The Federalist No. 47, pp. 325-
326 (J. Cooke ed. 1961)).

In light of Madison’s staterents and other writings in the Federalist Papers, the Supreme
Court has found that “the Framers did not require—and indeed rejected—the notion that the
three Branches must be entirely separate and distinct.” Mistretta, 488 U.S. at 380. Thus, as
understood by the Framers in the Federalist Papers, the doctrine of separation of powers did not
impose a hermetic, airtight seal around each department of government. See Loving v. United
States, 517 U.S. 748, 756-57 (1996). Rather, the doctrine created a pragmatic, flexible
templaté of overlapping functions and responsibilities so that three coordinate departments
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could be fused into a workable government. See Mistretta, 488 U.S. at 380-81. Therefore,
contrary to the inflexible and impractical interpretation of the doctrine of separation of powers
advocated in AGO 2004-03, the Founders believed in a “pragmatic, flexible view of
differentiated governmental power.” Id. at 381.

Moreover, in the years immediately following the adoption of the United States
Constitution, it was a-commeon and accepted practice for judicial officers of the United States to
serve simultaneously as executive officers of the United States. See Mistretta, 488 U.S. at 397-
99. For example, the first Chief Justice, John Jay, served simultaneously as Chief Justice and
Ambassador to England. Similarly, Oliver Ellsworth served simultaneously as Chief Justice
and Minister to France. While he was Chief Justice, John Marshall served briefly as Secretary
of State and was a member of the Sinking Fund Commission with responsibility for refunding
the Revolutionary War debt. Id. at 398-99, Such long-accepted historical practices support the
conclusion that the doctrine of separation of powers does not absolutely prohibit an officer of
one de‘partment from performing functions in another department.

Fmally, the Founders did not believe that, on its own, the doctrine of separation of
powers would prohibit an executive officer from serving as a member of Congress.. See 2 The
Founders’ Constitution 346-57 (Philip B. Kurland & Ralph Lemer eds., 1987). Therefore, the
Founders added the Incompatibility Clause to the United States Constitution. Id. The
Incormpatibility Clause provides that “no Person holding any Office under the United States,
shall bé a Member of either House during his Continuance in Office.” U.S. Const. art. 1, § 6,
cl. 2. The history surrounding the Iacormpatibility Clause supports the conclusion that the
doctrine of separation of powers does not prohibit a legislator from holding a positien of public
employment in the executive branch.

In 1806, Congressman J. Randolph introduced a resolution into the House of
Representatives which previded that “a contractor under the Government of the United States is
an officer within the purview and meaning of the [Incompatibility Clause of the] Constitution,
and, as such, is incapable of holding a seat in this House.” 2 The Founders’ Constitution 357.
Congressman Randolph introduced the resolution because the Postinaster General had entered

- into a contract of employment with a person to be a mail carrier and, at the time, the person was
also a member of the Senate. Id. at 357-62.

In debating the resolution, many Congressmen indicated that the Incompatibility Clause
was the only provision in the Constitution which prohibited dual officeholding and that, based
on the long-aecépted meaning of the term “office,” a person who held a contract of employment
with the executive branch was not an officer of the United States and was not prohibited from
serving simultaneously as a member of Congress. Id. After the debate; the House soundly
rejected the resolution because many members believed the resolution banning members of
Congress from employment with the executive branch contained an interpretation of the
Incompatibility Clause which expanded the meaning of the provision well beyond its plain
terms. Id.
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Shortly thereafter, in 1808, Congress passed a federal law which prohibited an executive
officer of the United States from entering into a contract of employment with a member of
Congress. Id. at 371, A version of that federal law remains in effect. 18 U.S.C. § 431; 2 Op.
U.S. Att’'y Gen, 38 (1826) (explaining that the federal law prohibited all contracts of
_employment between officers of the executive branch and members of Congress).

Based on this historical evidence, it is quite instructive that, a mere 19 years after the
United States Constitution was drafted, many members of the House of Representatives .
expressed the opinion that the Federal Constitution did not prohibit a person who held a
contract of employment with the executive branch ffom serving simultaneously as a member of
Congress. At the very least, this historical evidence casts significant doubt on the legal
.conclusion in AGO 2004-03 that the doctrine of separation of powers prohibits an officer of
one department from being employed in another department.

B. California Legislature.

~ In AGO 2004-03, the former Attorney General cotTectly notes that because the Framers
of the Nevada Constitution modeled its provisions on the California Constitution of 1849, it is
appropriate to consider historical evidence and case law from Califoriia when interpreting
analogous provisions of the Nevada Constitution. AGO 2004-03, at 9-10; State ex rel. Harvey
v. Second Jud. Dist. Ct., 117 Nev. 754, 763 (2001).

No California court has ever held that the separation-of-powers provision in the
California Constitution prohibits a legislator from being a state executive branch employee.
Nevertheless, AGO 2004-03 incorrectly claims that in Staude v. Bd. of Election Comm’rs, 61
Cal. 313 (1882), the California Supreme Court found that Senators and Assemblymer could not
simultaneously serve in the executive and judicial departments as defined in Article V and
Article VI of the California Constitution. AGO 2004-03, at 9. However, that specific issue
was never raised before the court, and the court never decided such an issue. It is a
fundamental rule of law that a case cannot be cited for authority on an issue that was never
raised or decided. See Jackson v. Harris, 64 Nev. 339, 351 (1947); Steptoe Live Stock Co. ¥..
Gullex 53 Nev. 163, 172-73 (1931); Jensen v. Pradere, 39 Nev. 466,471 (1916).

Moreover, when a court makes statements of a general nature in an opinion and those
staternents are unnecessary to the determination of the questions involved id the case, those
statements are mere dictum and have no precedential value. See Stanley v. A. Levy & J.
Zenither Co., 60 Nev. 432, 448 (1941); Dellamonica v. Lyon Cnty. Bank Mort. Corp., 58 Nev.
307,316 (1938) Based on general statements or dictum used by the California Supreme Court
in Staude, it appears that the court believed the separation-of-powers provision only prohibited
a legislator from being an officer in the executive branch. The legal distinction between a state
officer and a state employee was well established in the law when the California Supreme
Court decided Staude. It is reasonable to assume that the court meant what it said:
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So of each officer of theé Execuuve Dcpamncnt—he cannot belong to the Judicial
or Legislative Department. That is to say, he can hold no judicial gffice, nor the
office of Senator or member of the Assembly. And so of Senators and members of
the Assembly—they can hold no judicial or executive offices comprised within the
Executive and Judicia] Departments, as defined in Articles V and VI.

Staude, 61 Cal. at 323 {(quoting People ex rel. Att’y Gen. v. Provines, 34 Cal. 520, 534 (1868))
(emphasis added).

Thus, if the California case of Staude stands for anything on this issue, it is the principle
that the separation-of-powers provision prohibits a legislator from being a state officer in the
execttive branch. Neither the facts nor dictum in the case support the proposition that the
separation-of-powers provision prohibits a legislator from being a state employee. -

Finally, AGO 2004-03 also incorrectly claims that in Elliott v. Van Delinder, 247 P. 523
(Cal. Dist, Ct. App. 1926), the court found that the separation-of-powers provision in the
California Constitution means that no person shall hold positions under different departments
of the povemnment at the same tirhe, and that a person. cannot be an employee of the state
department of engmeenng afid a township justice of thie peace at the same time. AGO 2004-03,
at 9. However, in the Heller case, the Névada Supreme Coust rejected the fofmer Attorney
General’s incorrect reading of Elliott 'v. Van Delinder -because the California court never
reached the merits of the separation-of-powers issue. 120 Nev. at 470.

In sum, the reliance in AGO 2004-03 on California case law is misplaced because the
California cases cited by the former Attorney General do not support the legal reasoning or
conclusions contained in AGO 2004-03, and bécause no California couit has ever held that the
separation-of-powers provision in the California Constitution prohibits a legislator ffom being a
state executive branch employee. '

Furthermore, the historical evidence from California establishes that during California’s
first 67 years of statehood, it was a common and accepted practice for California I.cglslators to
hold positions as state executive branch employees until 1916, when the California Constitution
was ameénded to expressly prohibit legislators from being state executive branch employees.

'See Chenoweth v. Chambers, 164 P. 428, 430 (Cal. Dist. Ct. App. 1917) (explaining that the
constitutional amendment “was inténded to reach a practice in state administration of many
years’ standing.”).

.. At the general election held in California on November 7, 1916, one of the ballot
questtons was Amendment No. 6, which was an initiative measure to amend Cal. Const. art. 4,
§ 19, to read as follows:

No senator or member of the assembly shall, during the term for which he shall
have beer elécted, hold or accept any office, trust, or employment under this state;
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_ provided, that this provision shall not apply to any office filled by élection by the
people.

1916 Cal. Stat. 54 (As a result of subsequent constitutional amendments, the substance of the
1916 constitutional amendment is now found in Cal. Const, art. 4, § 13, which provides: “A
member of the Legislature may not, during the term for' which the member is elected, hold any
office or employment under the State other than an elective office.”).

In the weeks leading up to the 1916 general election, the proposed constitutional
amendment was described in several California newspapers. In an article dated October28,
1916, the San Francisco Chronicle reported that:

Some thirty-five or forty legislators in the employ of the State in various
capacities are anxiously awaiting the result of the November election, for if the .
électorate should adopt amendment six on the ballot, known as the ineligibility to’
office méasure, State Controller John S. Chambers probably will rcfusc to draw
~warrants in favor of legislators then in the employ of tlie State.

Measure. Alarms Legislators on_‘Side’ Payroll, S.F. Chron., Oct. 28, 1916, at 5, submitted as
exhibit in Heller.v. Legislature, Case No. 43079, Doc. Ne. 04-08124, Answer of Respondent
Legislature in Opposmon to Petition for Writ of Mandamus (May 4, 2004) (Appendlx at 9).

In another article dated October 28, 1916, the Sacramento Bee reported that many
California Legislators were employed at that tifie by executive branch agencies, including the
State Lunacy Commission, State Motor Vehicles Department, State Labor Commissioner, State
Pharmacy Commission, State Pharmacy Board, State Railroad Commission, Folsom State
Prison and State Inheritance Tax Commission. Chambers Studies Amendment No. 6: Proposal
to Make Legislature Members Ineligible to State Jobs is Perplexing, Sacramento Bee, Oct. 28,
1916, at 9, submitted as exhibit in Heller v. Legislature, Case No. 43079, Doc. No, 04-08124,
Answer of Respondent Legislature in Opposition to Petition for Writ of Mandamus (May 4,
2004) (Appendix at 11).

On the ballot .at the 1916 general election, the ballot arguments relating to the proposed
constitutional amendment stated that “some of our most efficient officials have been men
holding appointments under the state, [while] at the same tifne beéing members of the
legislature.” Amendments to Constitution and Proposed Statutes with Argiiments Respecting
the Same to.be. Subrmtted to the Electors of the State of California at the Geneial Election on
Tuesday, November7. 1916 (Cal. State Archives 1916), submitted as exhibit in Hellet v.
Legislature, ‘Case No.43079, Doc. No.04-08124, Answer of Respondent Legislature in
Opposition to Petition for Writ of Mandamus (May 4, 2004) (Appendix at 13). Those
arguments also stated that:

Here and there the state, by reason of such a law, will actually suffer, as jt .
frequently happens that the most highly specialized man for work in connection
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with a certain department of state is a member of the legislature. There are
instances of that sort today, where, by the enactment of such a law, the state will
lose the services of especially qualified and conscientious officials.

¥ kK

Another argument advanced by the proponents of this measure is that members
of the legislature who are appointed to state offices receive two salaries, but the
records wilI show that lcaves of absence are invariably obtained by such appoimees

generally about eighty-days every two years.
Id.

Shortly after the constitutional amendment was adopted, the California Court of Appeal
was called upon to interpret whether the amendment applied to legislators whose terms began
before the effective date of the améndment. Chenoweth v. Chambers, 164 P, 428 (Cal: Dist.
Ct. App. 1917). ‘The court held that the amendment was intended to apply to those legislators.
Id. at 434, In reaching its holding, the court noted that the constitutional amendment “was
intended to reach a practice in. state administration of many years’ standing and which the
people believed should be presently eradicated.” Id. at 430.

Taken together, these historical accounts establish that before the California Constitution
was amended in 1916, California Legislators routinely held positions as state executive branch
employees. This is notable because, at that time, the separation-of-powers provision in the
California Constitution was nearly identical to the separation-of-powers provision in the
Nevada Constitution. Thus, the historical evidence in California supports the conclusion that,
in the absence of a specific constitutional amendment expressly banning legislators from public
employment, the separation-of-powers provision does not prohibit a legislator from holding a
position as a staté executive branch employee.

C. Nevada Legislature.

For many decades, state and local government employees have served simultaneously as.
members of the Nevada Legislature, Affidavit of Guy L. Rocha, Former Assistant
Administrator for Archives and Records of the Division of State Library and Archives 6f the
Department of Cultural Affalrs of the State of Nevada (Apr. 29, 2004), submitted as exhibit in
Heller v. Legislature, Case No. 43079, Doc. No. 04-08124, Answer of Respondent Legislaturé
in Opposition to Petition for Writ of Mandamus (May 4, 2004) (Appendix at 1-3). Although
there are no official records specifically detailing. the occupations of legislators who served in
the Legislature during the 1800s and early 1900s, the records that are available indicate that
state and local government employees have been serving in the Legislature since at least 1903.
Id. The earliest known examples of local government employees who served as members of
the Legislature are Mark Richards Averill, who was a member of the Assembly in 1903, and
Ruth Averill, who was a member of the Assembly in 1921. Id. The earliest known examples
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of state executive branch employees who served as members of the Legislature are August C.
Frohlich, who was a member of the Assembly in 1931, and Harry E. Hazard, who was a
member of the Assembly in 1939. Id.

Based on research-conducted by the Legislative Counsel Bureau covering the period from
1967 to 2019, state and local government employees have served as members of the Legislature
during each regular session convened over the past 50-plus years. See Nevada Legislative
Manual (LCB 1967-2019); Affidavit of Donald O. Williams, Former Research Director of the
Research Division of the Leglslatwe Counsel Bureau of the State of Nevada (Apr. 28, 2004),
submitted as exhibit in Heller v. Legislature, Case No. 43079, Doc. No. 04-08124, Answer of
Respondent Legislature in Opposmon to Petition for Writ of Mandamus (May 4, 2004)
(Appendlx at 4-5).

Thus, the historical evidence from the Nevada Legislature supports. the conclusion that
the separation-of-powers provision does not prohibit a legislator from holding a positien as a
state executive branch employee or a local government employee. Under well-established rules
of constitutional construction, this historical evidence represents da long-standing interpretation
of the separation-of-powers provision by the Legislature which must be given great weight,

When interpreting a constitutional provision, the Nevada Supreme Court “looks to the
Legislature’s contemporaneous actions in interpreting constitutional language to cairy out the
intent of the framers of Nevada’s Constitution.,” Halverson v. Miller, 124 Nev. 484, 488-89
(2008). Because the Legislature’s interpretation of a constitutional provision is “likely
reflective, of the mindset of the framers,” such a construction “is a safe guide to its proper
interpretation and creates a strong presumption that the interpretation was proper.” Id. (intemnal
quotation marks omitted); Hendel v. Weaver, 77 Nev. 16, 20 (1961); State ex.rel._Herr v.
Laxalt, 84 Nev. 382, 387 (1968); Tam v. Colton, 94 Nev. 452, 458 (1978).

Furthermore, when the Legislature’s construction is consistently followed over a
considerable peﬁod of time, that construction is treated as a long-standing interpretation of the
constitutional provision, and such an interpretation is given great weight and deference by the
Nevada Supreme Court, especially when the constitutional provision involves legislative
operations or procedures. State ex rel. Coffin v. Howell, 26 Nev. 93, 104-05 (1901); State ex
rel. Torreyson v. Grey, 21 Nev. 378, 387-90 (1893) (Bigelow, J., concurnng), State ex rel.
Cardwell v. Glenn, 18 Nev. 34," 43-46 (1883). As a result, “[a] long continued and
contemporaneous construction placed by the coordinate branch of government upon a matter of
procedure in such coordinate branch of government should be given great weight.” Howell, 26
Nev. at 104,

The weight given to the Legislature’s construction of a constitutional provision involving
legislative opera_tions or procedures is of particular force when the meaning of the
constitutional provision is subject to any uncertainty, ambiguity or doubt. See, e.g., Nev.
Mining Ass’n v. Erdoes, 117 Nev. 531, 53940 (2001). Under such circumstances, thé Nevada
Supreme Court has stated that “although the [interpretation] of the legislature is not final, its
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decision upon this pbint is to be treated by the courts with the consideration which is due to a
co-ordinate depariment of the state government, and in case of a reasonable doubt as to the
meaning of the words, the construction given to them by the legislature ought to prevail.”

Dayton Gold & Silver Mining Co. v. Seawell, 11 Nev. 394, 399-400 (1876).

The Nevada Supreme Court has also stated that when the meaning of a constitutional
provision involving legislative operations or procedures is subject to any uncertainty, ambiguity
or doubt, the Legislature may rely on an opinion of LCB Legal which interprets the
constitutional provision, and “the Legislature is entitled to deference in its counseled selection
of this interpretation.” Nev. Mining Ass’n, 117 Nev. at 540. For example, wheri the meaning
of the term “midnight Pacific standard time,” as formerly used in the constitutional provision
limiting legislative sessions to 120 days, was subject to uncertainty, ambiguity and doubt
following the 2001 regular session, the Nevada Supreme Court explained that the Legislature’s
interpretation -of the. constitutional provision was entitled to deference because “[i]n choosing
this interpretation, the Legislature acted on Legislative Counsel’s opinion that this is a
reasonable construction of the provision. We agree that it is, and the Legislature is entitled to
deference in its counseled selection of this interpretation.” Id.

With regard to state and local government employees serving as legislators, the
Legislature has chosen to follow LCB Legal’s long-standing interpretation of the separation-of-
powers provision for decades, and it has acted on LCB Legal’s opiriion that this is a reasonable
construction of the separation-of-powers provision. As a result, “the Legislature is entitled to
deference in its counseled selection of this interpretation.” Nev. Mining Ass’n, 117 Nev. at
540.

Therefore, under the rules of constitutional construction, the Legislature’s long-standing
interpretation of the separation-of-powers provision “should be given great weight.” Howell,
26 Nev. at 104 (“A long continued and contemporaneous construction placed by the coordinate
branch of government upon a matter of procedure in such coordinate branch of government
should be given great weight.”). Furthermore, to the extent there is any amblgmty, uncertainty
or doubt concerning the interpretation of the separation-of-powers provision, the interpretation
given to it by the Legislature “ought to prevail.” Dayton Gold & Silver Mining, 11 Nev. at 400
(“[T)n case of a reasonable doubt as to the meaning of the words, the construction given to them
by the legislature ought to prevail.”).

III. Case law from other jurisdictions.

Several courts from other jurisdictions have decided cases involving the legal issue of
whether a state constitutional separation-of-powers provision prohibits legislators from being
state or local govemment employees. However, the cases from the other jurisdictions are in
conflict on this issue. Because the cases are in conflict, we believe that it will be helpful to
review those cases in some detail.
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In State ex rel. Barney v. Hawkins, 257 P. 411, 412 (Mont. 1927), an action was brought
to enjoin the state from paying Grant Reed his salary as an auditor for the state board of
railroad commissioners while he served as a member of the state leglslature The complaint
alleged that Reed was violating the separation-of-powers provision in the state constitution
because he was occupying a position in the executive branch of state government at the same
time that he was serving as a member of the state legislature. Id. at 412. At the time, the
separation-of-powers provision in the Montana Constitution provided that “no person or
collection of persons cha.rgcd with the exercise of powers properly belonging to one of these
departments shall exercise any powers properly belonging to either of the others.” Id. at 413.
The complaint also alleged that Reed was violating section 7 of article 5 of the state
constitution, which provided that “[nJo senator or representative shall, during the term for
which he shall have been elected, be appointed to any civil office under the State.” Id. The
Montana Supreme Court framed the issue it was deciding as follows:

- The only question for us to decide is—is the position -of auditor, held by Grant
Reed, a civil office(?); for, if it be a civil office, he is holding it unlawfully; and, if
it be not a civil office, he is not an officer, but only an employee, subject to the
direction of others, and he has no power in connection with his position, and is not
éxercising any powers belonging to the executive or judicial department of the state
government. In the latter event, Article IV of the Constitution [separation of
powers] is not involved.

Id.

After considering voluminous case law concerning the definition of a “civil office,”
including cases from Nevada that we will discuss below, the Montana Supreme Court
determined that Reed was not exercising any portion of the sovereign-power of state
government when he was acting as an auditor for the board of railroad commissioners and that,
therefore, Reed did not occupy a civil office.- Id. at 418. Rather, the couit found that Reed was
simply an employee “holding a position of employment, terminable at the pleasure of the
employing power, the Board of Railroad Commissioners. » Jd. Thus, because Reed did not
eccupy a civil office, the court concluded that he had “no powers properly belonging to the
judieial of executive department of the state government, for he is wholly subject to the power
of the board, and, having no powers, he can exercise none; and, therefore, his appointment was
not v1olat1ve of Article IV of the Constitution [separation of powers].” Id.

The reasoning of the Montana Supreme Court was followed by the New Mexico Court of
Appeals in State ex rel. Stratton v. Roswell Ind. Schools, 806 P.2d 1085, 1094-95 (N.M. Ct.
App. 1991). In Stratton, the Attorney General argued that two members of the state legislature
were violating the separation-of-powers provision in the state constitution because thie
legislators also occupied positions -as a teacher and an administratoy in local public school
distticts. Id. at 1088. At the time, the separanon-of-powers provisien in the New Mexico
Constitution was identical to the separation-of-powers provision interpreted by the Montana
Supreme Court.in Hawkins: “no person or collection of persons charged with the exercise of
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powers properly belonging to one-of these departments, shall exercise any powers properly
belonging to either of the others[.]"” Id at 1094.

Like the Montana Supreme Court, the: New Mexico Court of Appeals determined that a
violation of the separation-of-powers provision could occur only if the members of the
legislature were invested in their positions as school teacher and school administrator with
sovereign power that properly belonged to another branch of government. Id. Because only
publlc officers exercised sovereign power, the court determined that the separation-of-powers
provision “applies [only] to public officers, not employees, in the different branches of
government.” Id. at 1095. After considering the nature of the public school positions, the court
concluded that “[p]ubhc school instructors and administrators are not ‘public officials,” They
do not éstablish policy for the local schoel districts or for the state department of education.”
Id. at 1094. Instead, “[a] school teacher employed by a common school district is [an]
‘employee’ not [an] ‘officer’, and the relationship between school teacher and school board is
contractual only.” Id. at 1095 (citing Brown v. Bowling, 240 P.2d 846, 849 (N.M. 1952)).
Therefore, because the school teacher and school administrator were not public officers, but
simply public employees, the court held that they were not barred by the separation-of-powers
provision from being members of the legislature. Id.

The Colorado Supreme Court has also adopted this view. Hudson v. Anneat, 75 P.2d
587, 588-89 (Colo, 1938) (holding that a position as chief field deputy for thé staté income tax
department was not a ¢ivil office, but a position of public employment, -and that thefefore a
legislator could ocecupy such a position without viplating Colorado’s separation-of-powers
provision). See also Jenkins v. Bishop, 589 P.2d 770, 771-72 (Utah 1978) (Crockett, J.,
concurring in a memoranduin per curiam opinion and arguing that Utah’s separation-of-powers
provision would not prohibit a legislator from also being.a public school teacher); State v,
Osloond, 805 P.2d 263, 264-67 (Wash. Ct. App. 1991) (holding that a legislator who served as.
a judge pro tempore in a criminal case did not violate the principle of separation of powéfs as
recognized in Washington, wh1ch does not have an express separatlon-of-powers provision in
its consntutlon)

In stark contrast to the foregoing court decisions are several court decisions from Indiana,
Oregon and Nébraska. The court decisions from Indiana and Oregon are especially notable
because the language-in the séparation-of-powers provisions of those states more closely
resembles the language in Nevada’s separation-of-powers provision.

In State ex rel. Black-v. Burch, 80 N.E.2d 294 (Ind. 1948), actions were brought to
' prevent the state from paying four members of the state legislature salaries that they had earned
while occupying posﬂmns with various state commissions and boards in the executive branch
of government. After reviewing the relevant statutes relating to these positions, the court held
that the legislators’ positions in the executive branch “are not public offices, nor do they in
their respective positions, perform any official functions in carrying out their duties in these
respective jobs; they were acting merely as employees of the respective commission or boards
by whom they were hired.” Id. at 299. In other words, “[iln performing their respective jobs,
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none of these [legislators] were vested with any fiinctions pertaining to sovereignty.” Id.
Having determined that the legislators occupied positions of public émployment, rather than
public officeés, the court’s next task was to determine whether such public empioyment in
another branch of state government violated Indiana’s separation-of-powers provision, which
provided at the time that “no person, charged with official duties under one of these
-depaml;_cnt's[,] shall exercise any of the functions of another[.]” Id. The court framed the issue
as follows: “[I]t now becomes necessary for this Court to determine what is the meaning of the
phrase ‘any of the funct:ons of another,” as set out in the above quoted section of the
Constitution.” Id.

In mterpretmg the use of the term “functions,” the court noted that the term “power” had
been used instead of the term “functions” in the original draft of the separauon-ofvpowers
prov'ision Id. at 302, However, the term “functions” was inserted in the final version of the
prowsxon that was adopted by the drafters of the constimution. Id. The court then stated that

“[i]t would seein to us that these two words are interchangeable but, if there is any distinction,.
the térm ‘functions’ would denote a broader field of activities than the word ‘power.’” Id.-The
court also quoted extensively from the decision in Saint v. Allen, 126 So. 548 (La. 1930), in
which the Louisiana Supreme Court held that a meémber of the state legislature was prohibited
from being employed by the executive department of state goveinmiént pursuant to the
separation-of-powers provision in the Louisiana Constitution, which provided at the time that
“Ino] person or collection of persons holding office in one of [the departments], shall exercise
power properly belonging to either of the others[.]” Saint, 126 So. at 550. In particular, the
Lobisiana Supteme Court held that:

It is not necessary, to constitute a violation of the article, that a person should hold
office in two departments of government. It is sufficient if he is an officer in one
department and at the same time is employed to perform duties, or. exefcise power,
belonging to another department. The words “exercise power,” speaking officially,
mean perform duties or functions.

1d. at 555.

Based on the Saint case and other court decisions, the Indiana Supreme Court in Burch
concluded that: -

In view of the fact that it is obvious that the purpose of all these separation of
powers provisions of Federal and State Constitutions is to rid each of the separate
departments of government from any control or influence by eithér of the other
departmients, and that this object can be obtained only if § 1 of Art. 3 of the Indiana
Constitution is read exactly as it is written, we are constrained to follow the New
York and Louisiana cases above cited. If persons charged with official duties in
one departinent may be employed to perform duties, official or otherwise, in
another department thie door is epened to influenee and control by the employing
‘department. We also think that these two cases are logical in holding that an
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employee of an officer, even though he be performi:ig a duty not involving the
exercise of sovereignty, may be and is, executing one of the functions of that public
office, and this applies to the cases before us.

. 80N.E.2d at 302,

The reasoning of the Indiana Supreme Court was followed by the Oregon Supréme Court
in Monaghan v. School Dist. No. 1, 315 P.2d 797 (Or. 1957), superseded by Or. Const. ait. XV,
§ 8. In that case, the court was asked “to determine whether or not [a state legislator, MF.
Monaghan,] is eligible for employment as a teacher in the public schools of this state while he
holds a position as a member of the [state] House of Representatives.” Id. at 799. At that time,
the separation=of-powers provision in the Oregon Constitution provided that “no person
charged with official duties under one of these departments, shall exercise any of the functions
of another[.]” Id. at 800. Mr. Monaghan argued that the term “official duties” was
synonymous with the term “functions,” and that therefore the separation-of-powers provision
applied only to a person holding a public office in more than one depaitment of state
government and not to a person merely occupying a position of public employmient. Id. at 801,
The court flatly rejected this argument:

It is riot difficult to define the word “official duties.” As a general rule, and as
we think the phrase is used in the section of the constitution, they are the duties or
obligations imposed by law on a public officer. 67 C.J.S. Officers § 110, p. 396; 28
C.1.S. Duty, p. 597. There can be no doubt that Mi. Monaghan, as a legislator, is
“charged with official duties.” But the exercise of the “functions” of a department
of government gives to the word “functions” a broader sweep and miofe
comprehensive meaning than “official duties.” It contemplates a wider range of the
exercise of functions including and beyond those which may be comprehended in
the “official duties” of any one officer.

It may appear to some as a construction of extreme precaution, but we think that
it expresses the considered judgment and deliberation of the Oregon Convention to
give greater force to the concepts of separation by thus barring any official in one
department of government of the opportunity to serve any other departinent, even
as an employee. Thus, to use the language of O’Donoghue v. United Statés, supra
[289 U.S, 516), in a sense, his role as a teacher subjugates the department of his
employment to the possibility of being “controlied by, or subjected, directly or
indirectly, to the coercive influence of” the other department wherein he has
official duties and vice versa. (Emphasis supplied.) In the Burch case, supra [80
N.E.2d 294, 302], when considering the word “functions” in its similar setting in
the Indiana Constitution, the court observed that the term “functions” denotes a
broader field of activities than the word “power.”

* %k
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OQur conclusion is that the word “functions” embodies a definite meaning with
no contradiction of the phrase “official duties,” that is, he who exercises the
functions of another department of government may be either an official or an
employee.

Id. at 802:04:. Although acknowledging that a public school teacher was not a public officer, -
the couft concluded, nevertheless, that a public school teacher was a public employee who was
exercising one of the functions of the executive départment of state govérnment. Id. at 804-06.
Therefore, the court held that Mr. Monaghan could not be employed as a public school teacher
while he held a position as a member of the state legislature. Id.; see also Jenkins, 589 P.2d at
773-77 (Ellett, C.J., concurring and dissenting in 2 memorandum per curiam opinion and
arguing that Utah’s. séparation-of-powers provisien would prohibit a legistator from also being
a public school teacher).

After the decision in Monaghan, the Oregon Constitution was amended to permit
legislators to be employed by the State Board of Higher Education or to be a member of any
school board or an employee thereof. In re Sawyer, 594 P.2d 803, 808 & n.7 (Or. 1979).
However, the amendment did not apply to other branches of state government. 1d. In Sawyer,
the Oregon Supreme Couit was asked whether the state’s separation-of-powers provision
prohibited a judge from being regularly employed as a part:time professor at a state-funded
college. The court answered in the affirmative, stating that:

It is true-that Judge Sawyer is not a full-time teacher. In our opinion, however, a
part:time teacher regularly employed for compensation by a state-funded college to
perform the duties of a teacher also performs “functions” of the executive
depattment of government within the meaning of Article III, § 1, as construed by
this court in Monaghan,

Id. at 809. The court noted, however, that “[w]e do not undertake to decide in this case whether
the same result would necessarily follow in the event that a judge should eccasionally, but not
regularly, lecture at a state-funded college, but without other responsibilities as a teacher.” Id.
at 809 n.8.

Firally, in State ex rel. Spire v..Conway, 472 N.W.2d 403 (Neb. 1991), the Attorney
General brought an action claiming that the separation-of-powers provision of the Nebraska
Constitution prohibited a person from occupying a position as an assistant professor at a state-
funded college while simultaneously seiving as a member of the state legislature. At the time,
Nebraska’s separation-of-powers provision provided that “no person or collection of persons
being one of these departments, shall exercise any power properly belonging to either of the
others.” Id. at 404, ‘

Unlike most other courts, the Nebraska Supreme Court determined that, under certain

circumstances, an assistant professor ‘at a public college could be considered to be holding a
public office. Id. at 406-07. However, despite this determination, the court found that the
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'pubhc officer-public employee dlstmctlon was not “determinative of the [separamn—of—powers]
issue now under consideration, for article II does not speak in terms of officers or employees; it
speaks of persons “‘being one of* the branches of government.” Id. at 408. Rather, the court
found that “[t]he unusual expression ‘being one of these departments’ is not clear; accordingly,
construction is necessary. One thing that is clear, however, is that ‘being one of these
departments’ is not intended to be synonymous with ‘exercising any power of” a branch.” Id. at
409.

After considering the text-and history of the Nebraska Constitution, the court determined
that the provision sheuld be construed to read, “fo persen or collection of petsons being [a
member of] one of these departments.” Id. at 412. Based on this constnictiosi, the couit held
that the separation-of-powers provision “prohibits one who exercises the power of one bratich--
that is, an officer in the broader sense of the word--from being a member—ithat is, either an
officer or employee--of another branch.” Id. The court then applied this construction to
conclude that an assistant professor at a state college is a member of the executive branch and
that a législator, therefore, could not occupy such a position during his term in the legislature.
1d.-at 414-16. Specifically, the court held that:

Although we have neither been directed to nor found any case explicitly stating that
the state colleges are part of the executive branch, there are but three braiiches, and
the state colleges clearly are not part of the judicial or legislative branches.

* ¥ ¥

The Board of Regents of the University of Nebraska performs a function for the
university which is identical to that of the Board of Trustees. of the Nebraska State
Colleges. While the Board of Regents is an “independent bedy charged with the
power and responsibility to manage and operate the University,” it is, nevertheless,
an administrative or executive agency of the state. As thc regents are part of the
executive branch, so, too, are the trustees.

Since the Board of Trustees, which govemns the state colleges, is part of the -
executive branch, those who work for those colleges likewise are members of that
branch. Respondent, as an assistant professor at the college, is thus a member of
the executive branch within the meaning of article IL.

* Kk ¥

Respondent is therefore a member of one branch of government; the executive,
exercising the powers of another, the legislative, and, as a consequence, is in
violation of article II of the state Constitution.

Id. at 414-15 (citations omitted).

If the Nevada Supreme Court were to follow the reasoning of the courts. of Indiana;
Oregon and Nebraska, rather than the reasoning of the courts of Montana, New Mexico and
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Colorado, a state executive branch employee could not, pursuant to Nevada's separation=of-
powers provision, serve as a member of the Legislatire. Althoigh we cannot determine with
any reasonable degree of certainty whether the Nevada Supreme Court would adopt those
holdings, we do believe that the decisions of those courts are not consistent With the text and
structure of the Nevada Constitution. In particular, while we agree with the courts of Indiana
and Oregon that the term “functions” is distinct in meaning from other terms such as “powers”
or “duties,” we do not believe that the meaning ascribed to the term “functions” in Burch and
Monaghan is consistent with the structure and organization of Nevada’s government. '

Thus, -despite the holdings of the courts of Indiana, Oregon and Nebraska, it is the
opinion of LCB Legal that Nevada’s separation-of-powers provision dees not prohibit
legislators from holding positions of public employment with the state executive branch or with
local governments. Qbviously, we cannot say with any certainty whether the Nevada Supréeme
Court would agree with our opinion. However, as we explain next, we do believe that our
. opinion is supported by the text and structure of the Nevada Constitution and by the concept of
the “citizen-législator,” which is a concept that is the cornerstone of an effective, responsive
and qualified part-time legislative body.

IV. Interpretation of Nevada’s separation-of-powers provision with regard to state
executive branch employees.

It is a fondamental rule of constitutional construction that the Nevada Constitution must
be interpreted in its entirety and that each part of the Constitution must be given effect. State
ex rel. Herr v. Laxalt, 84 Nev. 382, 386 (1968). Therefore, the separation-of-powers provision
in the Nevada Constitution cannot be read in isolation, but rather must be construed in
accordance with the Nevada Constitution as-a whole. Thus, the meaning of the phrases “n
persons charged with the exercise of powers properly belonging 1o one of thes¢ departments
and “shall exercise any functions, appenalmng to either of the others” cannot be based on a
bare reading of the separation-of-powers provision alone. Rather, these phrases must bé read in
light of the othet parts of the Nevada Constitution which specifically enumerate the persons
who are to be charged with exercising the powers and functions of state government. As stated
by the Nevada Supreme Court:

[Article 3, Section 1] divides the state government into three great departments, and
directs that “no person charged with the exercise of powers properly belonging to
one of these departmcnts shall exercise any functions appertaining to either of the
others, except in the cases herein expressly directed or permitted.” As will be
noticed, it is the state government as created by the constitution Which is divided
into -depaitinents. These departments are each charged by other parts of the
constitution with certain duties and functions, and it is to these that the prohibition
Just quoted refers. .

Sawyer v. Dooley, 21 Nev. 390, 396 (1893) (emphasis added). '
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According to the Nevada Supreme Court, the prohibition in Article 3, Section 1 applies
only to persons who are charged by other parts of the Nevada Constitution with exercising
powers or duties belonging to one of the three departments of state goverhment. In other
words,. for the purposes of the separation-of-powers provision, the officers who are prohibited -
from exercising functions appertaining to another department of state government are limited to
those officers in the legislative, executive and judicial departments who are expressly given
powers and duties under the Nevada Constitution.

~ This construction of the separation-of-powers provision in the Nevada Constitution is
consistent with the Utah Supreme Court’s construction of an identical séparation-of-powers
provision in section 1 of article V the Utah Constitution. As to that provision, the Utah
Supreme Court has held: .

[TIhe prohibition of section 1, is directed to a “person” charged with the exercise of
powers properly belonging to the “executive department.” The Constitution further
specifies-in Article VII, Section 1, the persons of whom the Executive Department
shall consist. Thus it is the “persons” specified in Article VII, Section 1, who are
charged with the exercise of powers belonging to the Executive Department, who
are prohibited from gxercising any functions appertaining to the legislative and
judicial departments.

State v. Gallion, 572 P.2d 683 687 (Utah 1977); accord Robinson v. State, 20 P.3d 396, 399-
400 (Utah 2001).

Consequently, a constitutional officer is an officer of the legislative, executive or judicial
department who is “charged with the exercise of powers properly belonging to one of these
departments.” Nev. Const. art. 3, § 1; see also People v. Provines, 34 Cal. 520 (1868). No
other person may exercise the powers given to a consumnonal officer by the Nevada
Constitution. As ‘a result, when thé Nevada Constitution grants powers to a particular
constitutional officer, “their exercise and -discharge by any other officer or department are
forbidden by a necessary and unavoidable implication. Every posifive delegation of power to
one officer or department implies.a negation of its exércise by any other officer, department, or
person,” King v. Bd. of Regents, 65 Nev. 533, 556 (1948) (quoting State ex rel. Crawford v.
Hastings, 10 Wis. 525, 531 (1860)). Thus, the constitutiorial powers of each department may
be exercised only by the constitutional officers from that department to whom the powers have

beén assigned.

Even though it is only the constitutional officers of each department who may exercise
the constitutional powers given to that department, the Framers realized that each department
" would also be charged with the exercjse of certain nonconstitutional functions. Accordingly,
the Framers provided for the creation by statute of nonconstitutional officers who could be
charged by the Legislature with the exercise of nonconstitutional functions. See Nev. Const,
art. 15, §§ 2,3, 10 and 11. As observed by the Nevada Supreme Court:
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[Tlhe framers of the constitution decided for themselves that the officers. named [in
the constitution] were necessary and should be elected by the people; but they left it
to the legislature to decide as to the necessity of additional ones, whether state,
county, or township. ... The duty of deciding as to the necessity of any office,
other than those named in the constitution, is placed upon the legislature[.] -

State ex .rel. Perry v. Amington, 18 Nev. 412, 417-18 (1884), As a result, the Nevada
Constitution recognizes two distinct types of offices, “one which is created by the constitution
itself, and the other which is created by statute.” Douglass, 33 Nev. at 93 (quoting Péople v.
Bollam, 54 N.E. 1032, 1033 (Til. 1899)).

Like the framers of other state constitutions, the Framers of the Nevada Constitution
could have simply stated that a constitutional officer shall not exercise any “powers”
.appertaining to anothér department of state government. However, the Framers of the Nevada
Constitution provided that a constitutional officer shall not exercise any “functions”
appertaining to another department of state government. We believe that the Framers used the
term “functions” because they realized that, in each .department of state govesfiment, the
functions of the department would be perfonned by constitutional officers and by
nonconstitutional ofﬁcers Thus, had the Framers used only the term “powers” in Article 3,
for it may have béen construed snnply to mean that a constltu_nonal ofﬁce,r in one department
could not exercise the powérs entrusted to the constitutional officers in another department. To
avoid this restrictive construction, we believe that the Framers used the term “functions” to
ensure that a constitutional officer in one department could not perform the sovereign functions
entrusted to both constitutional officers and nonconstitutional officers in another department.

Therefore, by using the term “functions,” we believe that the Framers intended to prohibit
a constitutional officer in one department from holding constitutional offices or
nonconstitutional offices in another department, because persons holding constitutional or
nonconstitutional offices in ariother department exercise the sovereign functions of state
government. Because public employees do not exercise the sovereign functions. of state
government, ‘we do not believe that the Framers intended to prohibit a constitutional officer
from holding a position of public employment in another departrhent of state government. Our
conclusion is based on a well-established body of case law which holds that public officers are
the only persons who exercise the sovereign functions of state government and that public
employees do not exercise such sovereign functions.

In Staté ex rel. Kendall v. Cole, 38 Nev. 215 (1915), the Nevada Supreme Court

. discussed extensively the attributes of a public office, and the court also cited pumerous cases

that had been decided in other jurisdictions well before the Nevada Censtitution was drafted in
1864. See Bradford v. Justices of Inferior Ct., 33 Ga. 332 (1862); Shelby v. Alcorn, 36 Miss.
273 (1858); see also Annotation, Offices Within Constitutional or Statutory Provisions Against

Holding Two Offices, 1917A L.R.A. 231 (1917). Fror these cases, the Nevada Supreme Court
concluded that the smgle most important characteristic of a public office is that the person who
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holds such a position is “clothed with some portion of the sovereign ﬁmctwns of government.”
Cole, 38 Nev. at 229 (quoting Attomney-General v. McCaughey, 43 A. 646 (R.I. 1899)). In
later cases, the court expressed a similar view:

The nature of a public office as distinguished from mere employment is the subject
of a considerable body of authority, and many criteria of detefmination are
suggested by the courts. Upon one point at least the authorities uniformly appear t0
concur. A public office is distinguishable from other forms of employmcnt in that
its holder has by the sovereign been invested with some portion of the sovereign
functions of government.

State ex rel. Mathews v. Murray, 70 Nev. 116, 120-21 (1953) (citation omitted). Simply put,
“the sovereign function of government is not delegated to a mere employee.” Eads v. City of
Boulder City, 94 Nev. 735, 737 (1978).

Thus, in each department of state government, only two types of persons are empowered
to exercise the sovereign functions of that department, these who hold constitutional offices
and those who hold nonconstititional offices. We believe this is how tlie Framers of the
Nevada Constitution understood the structure and organizational framework of each department
of state government, and we believe that this is why the Framers used the word “functions” in
Article 3, Section 1—to prohibit a constitutional officer in one department of state goverhment
from holdmg any other public office that was empowered, either by the constitution or statute,
to exercise the soverelgn functions of another department of state government. Because public
employees do not exercise the sovereign funections of state government, a broader construction
of the term “functions” to include public employees would not be consistent with the manner in

which the sovereign functions of government are exercised in Nevada.

Moreover, a broader construction of the term “functions” to inchide public employees
would run counter to “the constituency concept of our legislature in this state, which can
aceutately ‘be described as a citizens’ legislature.” Stratton, 806 P.2d at 1093. Thus, we
believe that the Framers of the Nevada Constitution realized that “[i]ln a sparsely populated
state . . . it would prove difficult, if not impossible, to have a conflict-free legislature.” Id. In
addition, we believe that any potential conflicts of interests experienced by a legislator who is
also a public employee in anether branch of state government are no greater than those
conflicts experienced by other members of the Legislature. As stated by Justice Crockett of the
Utah Supremg Court:

In our democratic system, the legislature is intended to represent the people: that
is, to be thade up from the general public representing a wide spectrum of the
citizenry. It is not to be doubted that legislators from the ranks of education are
affected by the interests-of that calling. But all other legislators also have interests.
No one lives in a vacuum.

Jenkins, 589 P.2d at 771 (Crockett, J., concurring).
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Finally, it is clear that the Framers intended the Nevada Legislature to be a part-time
legislative body. In particular, the Framers provided for biennial legislative sessions in
Article 4, Section 2 of the Nevada Constitution, and they originally limited those biennial
sessions to 60 days in Article 4, Section 29. Although Article 4, Section 29 was repealed in
1958, the fact that the citizens of Nevada voted in 1998 to linit biennial sessions to 120 days is
a clear indication that the citizens of Nevada, like the Framers, want the Nevada Legislature to
be a part-time legislative body.

The economic reality of a part-time Legislature is that most legislators must continue to
be employed in other occupations on a full-time or part-time basis during their terms of
legislative service. This is as true today as it was when the Nevada Constitution was originally
adopted. Given this economic, reality, it is likely that the Framers fully expected that public
employees, like other citizens, would be members of the Legislature, especially since some of
the most qualified and dedicated citizens of the community often occupy positions of
government employment. As stated by Chief Justice Hastings of the Nebraska Supreme Court
in his dissent in Conway:

A senatorial position in the Nebraska Legislature is a part-time position. .
Therefore, it is not uncommon for senators to have additional sources of income
and careers. An uncompromising interpretation of the separation of powers would
inhibit the ability of a part-time legislature to attract qualified members.

472 N.W.2d at 417 (Hastings, C.]., dissenting): Therefore, we believe that construing the term
“functions” in Article 3, Section'l to prohibit a member of the Nevada Legislature from
occupying a position of public employment would not cofmport with the concept of the “citizen-
legislator” that was undoubtedly envisioned by the Framers of the Nevada Constitution.

In sum, it is the opinion of LCB Legal that the separation-of-powers provision in the
Nevada Constitution only prohibits a legislator from holding a public office in another
department of state government, because a person who holds a public office exercises sovereign .
functions appertaining to another department of state government. However, it is also the
opinion of LCB Legal that the separation-of-powers provision in the Nevada Constitution does
not prohibit a legislator from occupying a position of public employment in another department
of state government, because .a person who occtipies a position of public employment does not
exercise any sovereign functions appertaining to another department of state government.

Based on this construction of the separation-of-powers provision, if a legislator holds
another position in state government, the deciding issue under the Nevada Constitution is
whether the other position is a public office or a position of public employment. If the other
positien is a public office,.then the legislator would be prohibited by the separation-of-powers
provision from holding the public office. However, if the other position is merely a position of
public emplayment, then the legislator would not be prohibited by the separation-of-powers
provision from holding the position of public employment.
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As discussed previously, the Nevada Supreme Court has addressed the distinction
between a public officer and a public employee on many occasions. See State ex fel. Kendall
v._Cole, 38 Nev. 215 (1915); State ex rel. Mathews v. Murray, 70 Nev. 116 (1953); Mullen v.
Clark Cnty., 89 Nev. 308 (1973); Eads v. City of Boulder City, 94 Nev. 735, 737 (1978). As
recently as 2013, the court reaffirmed that “as is clear from our jurisprudence, officers are
fundathedtally dlfferent from employees.” City of Sparks v. Sparks Mun. Ct., 129 Nev. 348,
361 (2013). In one of its inoie recent cases on the issue, the couiit restated the two fundamental
. principles that dlStlIlgl.llSh a public officer from a public employee. Univ. & Crmty. Coll. Sys. v.

DR Partncrs 117 Nev. 195, 200-06 (2001) (holding that, for- the purposes of the Open Meéeting
' Law, the position of community college president is not a public office).

The first fundamental principle is that a public officer must serve in a position ereated by
law, not one created by mere administrative authority and discretion. Id. The second
fundamental principle is that the duties of a public officer must be fixed by law and must
involve an exercise of the sovereign functions of the state, such as formulatirig state policy. Id.
Both fundamental principles must be satisfied before a person is deemed a pubhc officer. Sée
Mullen_v.. Clark_Cnty., 89 Nev. 308, 311 (1973). Thus, if a position is created by mere

administrative authority and discretion or if the person servmg in the position is subordinate
and responsible to higher-ranking policymakers, the person is not a public officer but is simply
a public employee. We beliéve that these fundamental principles are best illustrated by the
cases-of State ex rel. Mathews.v. Murray, 70 Nev. 116 (1953), and Unijv. & Cmty. Coll. Sys. V.

DR Partners, 117 Nev. 195 (2001).

* In Mathews, the defendant accepted the position of Director of the Drivers License
Divisiof of the Public Service Commission of Nevada. 70 Nev. at 120. The Attorney General
© broaght an ofiginal action in.quo warranto in the Nevada Supreme Court to oust the defendant
from that posmon because when the defendant accepted his position in the executive branch he
was also serving as a State Senator. Id. The Attomey General argued that the defendant acted
in violation of the separation-of-powers provision of the Nevada Constitution. Id. Before the
court. could determine the constitutional issue, the court. needed to have jurisdiction cver the
original action in quo warranto. Id. Because an original action in quo warranto could lie only
if the defendant’s position in the executive branch was a public office, the issué before the
¢onit was whether the position of Director of the Drivers License Division was a publi¢ office
or a position of public employment. Id. The court held that the Director’s position was a
position of public employment, not a public office, and thus the court dismissed the original
action for lack of jufisdiction Without reaching the constitutional issue. Id. at 124.

* reviewed the statutes controllmg the state department under which the Drivers License Dmsmn
operated. Id. at 122. 'The court found that the position of Director of the Drivers License
Division was created by administrative authority and discretion, not by statute, and that the
position was wholly subordinate and responsible to the administrator of the department. Id. at
122-23. In this regard, the court stated:
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Nowhere in either act is any reference made to the “drivers license division’™ of
 the department or to a director thereof, Nowhere are duties imposed or authority
. granted save to the department and to its administrator. It appears clear that the

positien of director was created not by the act but by the administrator and may as
easily by him be discontinued or destroyed. It appears clear that the duties of the
.position are fixed not by law but by the adminristrator and may as easily by him be
modified from time to time. No tenure attaches. to the position save as may be
fixed from time to time by the administrator, The director, then, is wholly
subordinate and responsible to the administrator. It cannot, then, be said that that
position has been created by law; or that the duties which attach to it have been
presctibed by law; or that, subject only to the provisions of law, the holder of such
position is indépendent in his exercise of such duties. It cannot, then, be said that
he has been invéstéd with any portien of the sovereign functions of the
government.

Id. at 122-23.

In DR Parthers, the court was asked to determine whether the position of community
college président was a public effice for the purposes of the Open Meeting Law, which is
codified in chapter 241 of NRS. Although the Open Meeting Law does not define the term
“public office” or “public officer,” the court found that the definition of “public officer” in
chapter 281 of NRS was applicable because “[t]he Legislature’s statutory definition of a ‘public
officer’ incorporates the fundamental criteria we applied in Mathews and Kendall, and is in
harmony with those cases, as we subsequently confirmed in Mullen v. Clark Courty.” 117
Nev. at 201.

When the court applied the fundamental criteria from Mathews and Kendall and the
statutory definition from chapter 281 of NRS to the position of community college president,
the court concluded that the position of community college president was not a public office.
DR Partners, 117 Nev. at 202-06. In reaching this conclasion, the court first found that the
position of community college president. is not created by the Nevada Constitution or statute,
but is.created by administrative authority and discretion of the Board of Regents. Id. Second,
the court found that a community college president does not exefcise any of the sovereign
functiofis of the state. Id. Instead, a community college president is wholly subordinate to the
Board of Regents and simply implements policies made by higher-ranking state officials. Id.
As explained by the court;

The community college president holds an important position, but the sovereign

functions of higher education repose in the Board of Regents, and to a lesser degree
in the chancellor, and not at all in the community college president.

* k ¥
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Because the president is wholly subordinate and responsible to the Board, and
can only implement policies established by the Board, we conclude that the
community college president does not meet the statutory requisites of a public
officer set forth in NRS 281.005(1)(b).

Id, at 205-06.

. Based on the foregoing discussion, it is the opinion of LCB Legal that state executive
branch employees are not public officers because they do not exercise any sovereign functions
appertajning to the executive branch of state government. As a result, it is the opinion of LCB
Legal that the separation-of-powers provision does not prohibit legislators from holding
positions of public employment as state executive branch employees because persons who hold
such positions of public employment do not exercise any sovereign functions appertaining to
the state executive branch.

V. Interpretation of Nevada’s separation-of-powers provision with regard to local
government employees.

Nevada’s séparation-of-powers provision provides that “[t]he powers of the Government
of the State of Nevada shall be divided into thiee separate departments,—the Legislative,—the
Executive and the Judicial.” Nev. Const. art. 3, § 1 (emphasis added). By using the term
“State” in the separation-of-powers provision, the Framers of the Névada Constitution
expressed a clear intent to have the provision apply only to the three departments of state
government. As explained by the Ohio Supreme Court:

[Mn general at least, when the constitution speaks of the “State,” the whole State, in
her political capacity, and not her subdivisions, is intended. That such is the
natural import of the language used, no one denies. That such must be its
construction, to make the constitution consistent with itself, and sénsible, is very
apparent.

Cass v. Dillon, 2 Ohio St. 607, 616 (1853) (emphasis added).

The Nevada Supréme Court- has recently stated that “the language of the separanon-of-
powers provision in the Constitution does net extend any protection to political subdivisions.”
City of Fernley V. State Dep t of Tax’n, 132 Nev. 32, 43 n.6 (2016). This determination is
consistent with prior cases in which the court has recognized that pelitical subdivisions are not
part of one of the three departments of state government. See Univ. & Cmty. Coll. Sys. v. DR
Partners, 117 Nev. 195, 203-04 (2001) (“Neither state-owned institutions, nor state
departments, nor public corporations are synonymous with political subdivisions of the state.”);
Nunez. v..City of N. Las Vegas, 116 Nev. 535, 540 (2000) (*Although municipal courts are
created by the legislature pursuant to authority vested in that body by the Nevada Constitution,
these courts are separate branches of their respective city governments. . . .. [T]hey are not state

governmental entities.”); City of Sparks v. Sparks Mun. Ct., 129 Nev. 348, 362 n.5 (2013)
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(_“While 'm_unicipal courts are included within the state constitutional judicial system, they are
. nonetheless primarily city entities, rather than an extension of the state.”). :

Because political subdivisions are not part of one.of the three depariments of state
government, their local officers generally are not considered to be state officers who are subject
to. the separation-of-powers provision. See State ex rel. Mason v. Bd. of Cnty. Comm’ss, 7
Nev, 392, 396-97 (1872) (noting that the exercise of certain powers by a board of county
commissioners was not limited by the doctrine of separation of powers); Lane v. Second Jud.
Dist. Ct., 104 Nev. 427, 437 (1988) (noting that the doctrine of separation of powers was not
applicable to the exercise of certain powers by a county’s district attorey because he was not a
state constitutional officer).

Furthermore, as discussed previously, the Nevada Constitution was modeled on the
California Constitution of 1849, State ex rel. Harvey v. Second Jud. Dist. Ct., 117 Nev. 754,
761 (2001). Because the provisions of the Nevada Constitution were taken from the California
Constitution of 1849, those provisions “may be lawfully presumed to have been taken with the
judicial intéfpretation attached.” Mason, 7 Nev. at 397,

In construing the separation-of-powers provision in the California Constitution of 1849,
the California Supreme Court held that the separation-of-powers provision did not apply to
local governments and their officers- and employees. People ex rel. Att’y Gen. v. Provines, 34
Cal.-520, 52340 (1868). In Provines, the court stated that “[w]e understand the Constitution to
have been formed for the purpose of establishing a State Government; and we here use thé térm
‘State Government’ in contradistinction to local, or to county or municipal governments.” Id.
at 532. After éxamining the history and purpose of the separation-of-powers provision, the
court concluded that “the Third Article of the Constitution means that the powers. of the State
Government, not the local governments thereafter to be created by the Legislature, shall be
divided into three departments.” Id. at 534. Thus, the court held that the separation-of-powers
provision had no application to the functions performed by a persori at the loeal governmental
level. Id. at 523-40.

In later cases, the California Supreme Court reaffirmed that under California law, “it is
settled that the separation of powers provision of the constitution, art. 3, § 1, does not apply to
local govemiiiesits as distinguished from departments of the state government.” Mariposa
County v. Merced Irfig. Dist., 196 P.2d 920, 926 (Cal. 1948). This interpretation of the
separanon—of—powers doctrine is. followed by a majority of other jurisdictions. See. e.g,
Poynter v. Walling, 177 A.2d 641, 645 (Del. Super. Ct. 1962); La Guardia.v. Smith, 41 N.E.2d
153, 156 (N.Y. 1942); 16 C.J.S. Constitutional Law § 112, at 377 (1984).

Consequently, it is well settled that “a local government unit, though established under
state law, funded by the state, and ultimately under state centrol, with jurisdiction over only a
- limited area, is not a ‘State.”” United States ex rel. Norton Sound Health Corp. v. Bering Strait
Sch. Dist., 138 F.3d 1281, 1284 (9th Cir. 1998). Furthermore, “a local government with
authority over a limited area, is a different type of government unit than a state-wide agency

PA000228



Director Erdoes
Angust 8, 2020
Page 32

that is part of the organized government of the state itself.” Wash. State Dep’t of Transp. v.
Wash. Natural Gas Co., 59 F.3d 793, 800 n.5 (9th Cir. 1995). Thus, “[w]hile local subdivisions
and boards created by the state may have some connection with one of the departments of the
state government as defined by the Constitution, they are not ‘departments of state government'
within the intent and meaning of the [law].” State v. Coulon, 3 So. 2d 241, 243 (La. 1941). In
the face of these basic rules of law, courts have consistently found that cities, counties, school
districts and othér local governmental entities are not included within one of the three
departments of state government. See, e.g., Dermott Special Sch. Dist. v. Johnson, 32 S.W.3d
471, 480-81 (Ark. 2000); Dunbar Elec. Supply, Inc. v. Sch. Bd., 690 So. 2d 1339, 1340 (Fla.
Dist. Ct. App. 1997); Stokes v. Harrison, 115 So. 2d 373, 377-79 (La. 1959); Coulon, 3 So. 2d
at 243.

Likewise, in the context of the Eleventh Amendment, federal courts interpreting Nevada
law have consistently found that cities, counties, school districts and -other local governmental
entities in this state are not included within one of the thrée departments of state governiment
and that these local political subdivisions are not entitled to Nevada’s sovereign immunity in
federal court. See, e.g., Lincoln County v. Lumng 133 U.S. 529, 530 (1890); Eason v. Clark
Cnty. Sch, Dist., 303 F.3d 1137, 1144 (5th Cir. 2002); Herrera v. Russo, 106 F. Supp. 2d 1057,
1062 (D. Nev. 2000). These federal cases are important because when a federal court
determiries whethér 4 political subdivision is part of state government for the purposes of the
Eleventh Amendmient, the federal court makes its determination based on state law. See Mt.
Healthv City Sch. Dist. Bd. of Educ. v. Doyle, 429 U.S. 274, 280-81 (1977); Austin v. State
Indus. Ins. Sys., 939 F.2d 676, 678-79 (9th Cir. 1991).

After cxamjm’ng state law in Nevada, federal courts have found that the Nevada Gaming
Control Boatrd, the Nevada Gaming Commission, the Nevada State Industrial Insurance
System, the Nevada Supreme Court and the Nevada Commission en Judicial Discipline are
state agencxes included within one of the three depattments of state government and that these
state agencies are entitled to Nevada’'s sovereign imninity under the Eleventh Amendment.
See Carey v. Ney. Gamin Contml Bd., 279 F3d 873, 877-78 (9Lh C1r 2002); Romano V.

F-2d 749 750 (9th C1r 1982); alman V. Nev Comm n on Jud. Dlsmplm , 104 F Supp 2d
1262, 1267 (D. Nev. 2000). In contrast, after examining state law in Nevada, federal courts
liave found that cities, counties and school districts in Nevada are not included within one of
the thre¢ departments of state government and that these. local political subdivisions are not
entitled to Nevada’s sovereign immunity under the Eleventh Amendment. See Lincoln County,
133 U.S. at 530; Eason, 303 F.3d at 1144; Herrera, 106 F. Supp. 2d at 1062. Thus, as viewed
by federal courts that have interpreted Nevada law, local political subdivisions in this state are
not included within one of the three departments of state government.

Accordingly, because local political subdivisions i in this state are not included within one
of the three departments of state government, their officers and employees also are not part of
oné of the three departments of state government. Therefore, legislators who hold positions of -
public employment with local governments do not hold such positions within one of the three
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departments of state government. Consequently, given that the separation-of-powers provision
applies only to the three departments of state government, it is the opinjon of LCB Legal that
the separation-of-powers provision does not prohibit legislators from holding positions of

- public employment with local governments because local governments are not part of one of the
three departments of state government.

Firtherinore, as discussed previously, it is the opinion of LCB Legal that the separation-
of-powers provision prohibits legislators from holding only public offices, not positions of
public employment. Thus, even assuming that. the separation-of-powers provision applied to
local governments, it is the opinion of LCB Legal that the separation-of-powers provision still
would not prohibit legislators from holding positions of public employment with local
governments because persons who hold such positions of public employment do not exercise
any sovereign functions of state government.

CONCLUSION

It is the opinion of LCB Legal that the separation-of-powers provision does not prohibit
legislators from holding positions of public employment with the state executive branch
because persons who hold such positions of public emiployment do not exercise any sovereign
functions appertaining to the state executive branch. By contrast, it is the opinion of LCB
Legal that the separation-of-powers provision prohibits. legislators from holding only public
offices in the state executive branch because persons who hold such pubhc oﬁ‘ices exercise
sovereign functions appertaining to the state executive branch. Finally, it is the opinion of LCB
Legal that the separation-of-powers provision does not prohibit legislators from holding
posmons of public employment with local governments because the sgparation-of-powers
provision applies only to the three departments of state govérnment, and local governments and
their officers and employees are not part of one of the three departments of state governiment.

‘ If you have hny further questions regarding this matter, please do not hesitate to contact
this office.

Sincerely,

Kevin C. Powers
General Counsel

KCP-dtm

" Ref No. 200807100628
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9/18/202
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Steven D. Grierson
LERK OF THE COU

C
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CRAIG A. MUELLER, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 4703

CRAIG A. MUELLER & ASSOCIATES
723 S. Seventh St.

Las Vegas, NV 89101

Office (702) 382.1200

Fax (702) 940.1235
receptionist@craigmuellerlaw.com
Attorney For Appellant

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

JENNIFER PLUMLEE, )

Appellant, )) CASE NO:  C-20-346852-A
VS. )) DEPT NO: I
THE STATE OF NEVADA, ;

Respondent. ;

APPELLANT’S REPLY TO RESPONDENT’S
OPPOSITION TO MOTION TO RECONSIDER

COMES NOW, Appellant Jennifer Plumlee, by and through her attorney Craig
Mueller, Esqg., and hereby submits the following as and for her Reply to Respondent’s
Opposition to her Motion To Reconsider:

A. Deputy District Attorney Scheibel’s Prosecution Of This Case
Violates The Separation Of Powers Doctrine.

The Nevada Constitution states in relevant part:
ARTICLE. 3. - Distribution of Powers.

Section 1. Three separate departments; separation of powers; legislative
review of administrative regulations.
1. The powers of the Government of the State of Nevada shall be
divided into three separate departments, the Legislative, the Executive
and the Judicial; and no persons charged with the exercise of powers

Case Number: C-20-346852-A
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properly belonging to one of these departments shall exercise any functions,

appertaining to either of the others, except in the cases expressly directed

or permitted in this constitution.
Deputy District Attorney Scheibel serves on the Nevada State Legislature. She is also employed
as a prosecutor by the Clark County District Attorney’s Office. Her active involvement trying
criminal cases would appear to clearly violate the express terms of Nev. Const. Art. 3 Sec. 1(1):
“...no persons charged with the exercise of powers properly belonging to one of these
departments shall exercise any functions, appertaining to either of the others....”

In Heller v. Legislature of Nevada, 120 Nev. 456, 93 P.3d 746 (2004), the Nevada
Supreme Court ruled that the Secretary of State does not have standing to sue the Legislature to
remove executive branch employees from serving on the Legislature because doing so violates
the separation of powers doctrine. The Supreme Court held that Secretary Of State Dean Heller
did not state an actionable “claim or controversy”. Id. at 463. The Supreme Court further held
that since there were no executive branch employees actually seated in the Legislature, the matter
was not ripe for review. Id.

By contrast, Appellant was actually aggrieved by the fact that he was convicted after a
bench trial that should never have happened. Deputy DA Scheible may not prosecute individuals,
for violating statutes she may have had input in writing or amending as that would clearly cross
the separation-of-powers line. Because of that the trial was a nullity: the Unlike Secretary of
State Heller, Appellant is not requesting a sweeping ruling altering the way the Legislature
polices its members. 1d. Appellant singles out a specific prosecutor who is also serves in the
Assembly who violated the separation of powers doctrine when she prosecuted his case.

The language of the Nevada Constitution is clear and unambiguous: “...no persons

charged with the exercise of powers properly belonging to one of these departments shall
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exercise any functions, appertaining to either of the others, except in the cases expressly directed
or permitted in this constitution.”

Respondent provides a copy of the Legislative Counsel Bureau’s opinion letter dated
August 8, 2020. The LCB’s opinion is “...that the separation-of-powers provision of the Nevada
Constitution only prohibits a legislator from holding a public office in another department of
state government, because a person who holds a public office exercises sovereign functions
appertaining to another department of state government.” Respondent’s Ex. 1, p. 27. The LCB
opines “...that the separation-of-powers provision of the Nevada Constitution does not prohibit a
legislator from occupying a position of public employment in another department of state
government, because a person who occupies a position of public employment does not exercise
any sovereign functions appertaining to another department of state government.” 1d. Put
concretely, District Attorney Steve Wolfson is prohibited from serving as a legislator but Deputy
District Attorney Melanie Scheibel is not.

This opinion, and its distinction between public office and public employment, may or
may not eventually prove to be correct. As the LCB points out: “Since the Heller case in 2004,
neither the Nevada Supreme Court nor the Nevada Court of Appeals has addressed or decided
the merits of such a separation-of-powers challenge in a reported case.” Respondent’s Ex.1, p. 2.
What is fact today is that the plain language of Nevada Constitution, Article 3, Section 1(1)

does not make any distinction between public office and public employment. It does, however,

prohibit an individual from working in the legislative and executive branches of government
simultaneously.

B. The Call To Legislative Action.

The framers of the Nevada Constitution carved out an exception to what is a prima facie
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prohibition on working as a member of the legislative and executive branches of state
government simultaneously. That exception is found in the last phrase of Article 3, Section 1(1):
“...except in the cases expressly directed or permitted in this constitution.” The plain language
of Article 3, Section 1(1) states that the legislature may permit an individual to work for two
branches of government if it either: 1) amends the constitution, or 2) passes legislation enabling
an individual to work for two branches of government simultaneously. This interpretation is
harmonious with the Nevada Supreme Court’s reasoning in Heller that Article 4, Section 6 of the
Nevada Constitution «...expressly reserves to the Senate and Assembly the rights to extend, with
and withdraw membership status.” Id. at 466, 93 P.3d at 753. Until the Senate and Assembly
authorize dual service, the practice is expressly prohibited by Article 3, Section 1(1). The irony
here being that Assemblywoman Scheible could not introduce, sponsor or vote on such
legislative action because doing so would not only violate the separation-of-powers doctrine, but
would present an actual conflict of interest with Deputy District Attorney Scheible!
Respectfully SUBMITTED this 18" day of September, 2020.

/s/ Craig A. Mueller
CRAIG A. MUELLER, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 4703
CRAIG A. MUELLER & ASSOCIATES, INC
723 S. Seventh St.
Las Vegas, NV 89101
Office (702) 382.1200
Fax (702) 940.1235

receptionist@craigmuellerlaw.com
Attorney For Appellant
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CERTIFICATE OF ELECTRONIC SERVICE

| certify that a copy of Appellant’s Motion To Reconsider was served through the court
clerk’s Odyssey Efile/Eservice network on September 18, 2020, to:

ALEXANDER CHEN
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Clark County District Attorney’s Office

BY: /s/Rosa Ramos
Senior Criminal Paralegal
Mueller & Associates
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C-20-346852-A

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Criminal Appeal COURT MINUTES November 09, 2020

C-20-346852-A Jennifer Lynn Plumlee, Appellant(s)
Vs
Nevada State of, Respondent(s)

November 09,2020 12:16 AM Minute Order

HEARD BY: Scotti, Richard F. COURTROOM: No Location
COURT CLERK: Kathryn Hansen-McDowell

RECORDER:

REPORTER:

PARTIES
PRESENT:

JOURNAL ENTRIES

- The Court GRANTS Appellant s Motion to Reconsider, based on the violation of Appellant s
Constitutional rights to procedural due process, as explained below.

Appellant Jennifer Plumlee was deprived of her Constitutional rights of procedural due process
because her prosecutor, Deputy District Attorney Scheible, also served as a Legislator at the time of
the trial, in violation of the Separation of Powers doctrine which doctrine exists as a fundamental
feature of American government, and as a express clause in the Nevada Constitution. Nev. Const.
Art. 3, Sec. 1. An individual may not serve simultaneously as the law-maker and the law-enforcer of
the laws of the State of Nevada.

The plain and unambiguous language of the Nevada Constitution is that:

The powers of the Government of the State of Nevada shall be divided into three separate
departments, - the Legislative, - the Executive and the Judiciary; and no persons charged with the
exercise of powers properly belonging to one of these departments shall exercise any functions,
appertaining to either of the others, except in the cases expressly directed or permitted in this
Constitution.

Nev. Const. Art 3, sec. 1. This is commonly known as the Separation of Powers clause.

It is undisputed that Prosecutor Scheible was a person charged with the exercise of powers within the
legislative branch of government at the time of the trial. Further, there is no reasonable dispute that,
as prosecutor, she was charged with the exercise of powers within the executive branch. The

PRINT DATE:  11/09/2020 Page1of 3 Minutes Date: ~ November 09, 2020
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enforcement of the laws of the State of Nevada are powers that fall within the executive branch of the
government of the State of Nevada. See Nev. Const. Art. 5, sec. 7. Prosecutor Scheible was enforcing
the laws of the State of Nevada, and representing the State of Nevada, and thus was exercising the
powers delegated to her within the executive branch. It is not mere coincidence that District
Attorneys are frequently referred to as the State or the government.

Deputy District Attorney Scheible did not have the legal authority to prosecute Appellant, thus the
trial was a nullity.

The Separation of Powers doctrine historically exists to protect one branch of government from
encroaching upon the authority of another. But more than that, it exists to safeguard the people
against tyranny the tyranny that arises where all authority is vested into one autocrat a person who
writes the law, enforces the law, and punishes for violations of the law.

Our Founding Fathers understood that consolidated power was the genesis of despotism. A
dispersion of power, they understood, was the best safeguard of liberty. As explained by James
Madison, The accumulation of all powers, legislative, executive and judiciary, in the same hands,
whether of one, a few or many, and whether hereditary, self-appointed or elective, may justly be
pronounced the very definition of tyranny. Federalist No. 47 (3rd para.).

One who serves in the legislative branch in making the law must not and cannot simultaneously
serve in the executive branch as a prosecutor of the State laws. This Court finds that it is a violation
of procedural due process of nearly the highest order for a person to be tried and convicted by a
public official who in charge of both writing and enforcing the law.

The authorities cited by the State are very clearly wrong and distinguishable.

In 2004 Attorney General Brian Sandoval issued an opinion that local executive branch employees are
not prohibited from serving in the legislature. But that opinion did not specifically consider that a
Deputy District Attorney enforcing the laws of the State of Nevada, and representing the State of
Nevada, is actually exercising powers belonging to the State executive branch.

In August 8, 2020 the Legislative Counsel Bureau issued an opinion that local governments and their
officers and employees are not part of one of the three departments of state government. But, like
the AG Opinion mentioned above, that opinion did not specifically consider that a Deputy District
Attorney enforcing the laws of the State of Nevada, and representing the State of Nevada, is actually
exercising powers belonging to the State executive branch.

The States reliance on Lane v. District Court, 760 P.2d 1245 (Nev. 1988) is misplaced. The issue in
Lane was whether the Judiciary was improperly interfering with the functions of the Executive
Branch. The Nevada Supreme Court did not squarely reach the issue whether the due process rights
of a criminal defendant were violated when prosecuted by an Assistant District Attorney who also
served in the Legislature. Here, this Court is not directing the Office of the District Attorney to do or
not to do anything; rather, this Court is protecting the rights of the accused.

The State attempts to draw a distinction between a public officer and a mere public employee. As
to the former, the State acknowledges that the Separation of Powers Doctrine does apply to a person
holding an Office established by the Constitution. But the State invents out of thin air the notion that
the Doctrine does not apply to an employee who carries out executive functions. The States
purported authority, State ex rel. Mathews v. Murray, 70 Nev. 116 (1953) does not stand for its
proposition. Mathews merely held that a petition for Writ of Quo Warranto could not be used to
remove a public employee, only a public officer. While there might be a meaningful distinction
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between a public employee and public officer in some situations, it is not evidence in the words of the
Nevada Separation of Powers doctrine.

The State wrongly relies on Heller v. Legislature of the State of Nevada, 120 Nev. 456 (2008) which
held that the judiciary could not determine whether a legislator must be removed for violating the
Separation of Powers doctrine where the legislator also served in the Executive Branch. That case
was based on lack of standing, rather than the merits. Further, this is not a case of the Judiciary
determining the qualifications to be a member of the Legislature, or to work for the District Attorneys
office. Rather this case involves the due process rights of an accused; and, in this case, those rights
were violated.

The Appellant was deprived of her constitutional rights to procedural due process even if the Nevada
Separation of Powers clause as written does not apply to any persons employed by local
governments. The Separation of Powers doctrine is such a clear, vital, and well-recognized aspect of
the American system of government, existing long before the adoption of the Nevada Constitution.
This Court finds that it is fundamental to American jurisprudence that a criminal defendant shall not
be prosecuted by a person who is simultaneously the law-maker and the law-enforcer of the laws of
the State of Nevada.

The Court finds that Appellant did not waive her right on appeal to raise the issue of separation of
powers. Raising it in the Motion for Reconsideration is the same as raising it in the original appeal
brief as the initial appeal is still pending.

Accordingly, the Court GRANTS the Appeal, REVERSES the conviction, and ORDERS the Bond, if
any, returned to Appellant.

Appellant shall prepare the Order, consistent herewith, correcting for any scrivener error, and adding
appropriate context and authorities. Further, Appellant shall submit the Order, pursuant to the
electronic submission provisions of AO 20-17.

CLERK'S NOTE: The above minute order has been distributed to: Craig Mueller:
cmueller@muellerhinds.com, Alexander Chen: alexander.chen@clarkcountyda.com and Melanie
Scheible: melanie.scheible@clarkcountyda.com
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Electronically Filed
11/17/2020 11:08 AM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE COU,
MOT w ,ﬁﬂ-‘l——-

STEVEN B. WOLFSON

Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565
ALEXANDER CHEN

Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #010539

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212
(702) 671-2500

Attorney for Plaintiff

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff,

~V§- CASE NO: C-20-346852-A

JENNIFER LYNN PLUMLEE, aka, DEPT NO: II
Jennifer Lynn Graves, #1410679

Defendant.

STATE’S NOTICE OF MOTION
AND MOTION FOR CLARIFICATION AND A STAY OF THE
PROCEEDINGS FOLLOWING THE FILING OF THE ORDER
DATE OF HEARING: DECEMBER 3, 2020

TIME OF HEARING: 9:00 AM
HEARING REQUESTED

COMES NOW, the State of Nevada, by STEVEN B. WOLFSON, Clark County
District Attorney, through ALEXANDER CHEN, Chief Deputy District Attorney, and files
this Notice Of Motion And Motion For Clarification And A Stay Of The Proceedings
Following The Filing Of The Order. |

This Motion is made and based upon all the papers and pleadings on file herein, the
attached points and authorities in support hereof, and oral argument at the time of hearing, if
deemed necessary by this Honorable Court.

I
I
I
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NOTICE OF HEARING
YOU, AND EACH OF YOU, WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the undersigned

will bring the foregoing motion on for setting before the above entitled Court, in Department

II thereof, on Thursday, the 3rd day of December, 2020, at the hour of 9:00 o'clock AM, or as

soon thereafter as counsel may be heard.

DATED this I f day of November, 2020,

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

BY é% é/
ALEXANDER ZHEN

Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #010539

POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
A. THE STATE REQUESTS FURTHER CLARIFICATION
On November 9, 2020, this Court granted Appellant Jennifer Plumlee’s Motion to

Reconsider based upon her argument that the separation of powers clause of the Nevada
Constitution was violated when the Deputy District Attorney also held a separate role as a
pari-time legislator. In the Minute Order, this Court granted the appeal, ordered that the
convictions be reversed, and ordered the bond, if any, be returned to Appellant. This Court
then directed Appellant to submit an Order éonsistent with the Minute Order.

In examining the Minute Order, there is no mention that this case be remanded for a
future trial. Thus, the State respectfully asks this Court for clarification on whether it is the
intent of this Court that the case be dismissed outright, or if its intention is to remand the case
to Justice Court for further proceedings.
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